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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Customers Bancorp, Inc. (“the Bancorp”), may framet to time make written or oral “forward-lookintagements,” including statements
contained in the Bancorp’s filings with the Sededtand Exchange Commission (including this Anfegport on Form 10-K and the exhibits
hereto and thereto), in our reports to shareholdedsin other communications by Customers Banaghich are made in good faith by
Customers Bancorp pursuant to the “safe harbonigians of the Private Securities Litigation RefoAt of 1995.

These forward-looking statements include statemaittsrespect to Customers Bancorp’s beliefs, plabgectives, goals, expectations,
anticipations, estimates and intentions, that abgest to significant risk and uncertainties, anel subject to change based on various factors

(some of which are beyond Customers Bancorp’s ofnifhe words “believes,” “expects,” “may,” “will,'should,” “plan,” “intend,” or

“anticipates” or the negative thereof or comparaeteninology, or discussion of strategy that inwotisks and uncertainties, identify forward
looking statements which generally are not his#driic nature. These forward-looking statementsoaitg predictions and estimates regarding
future events and circumstances and involve knavehuenknown risks, uncertainties and other factoduding the risks described undérisk
Factorsthat may cause actual results, levels of actiypigrformance or achievements to be materially difiefrom any future results, levels
activity, performance or achievements expresseaahplied by such forward-looking statements. Thi®imation is based on various
assumptions that may not prove to be correct.

In addition to the risks described in the “Risk teas” section of this Form 10-K, important factéosconsider and evaluate in such forward-
looking statements include:
. Changes in the external competitive market fadtwais might impact results of operatio

. Changes in laws and regulations, including witHouoitation changes in capital requirements underfdderal prompt corrective action
regulations

. Changes in business strategy or an inability t@eteestrategy due to the occurrence of unantiaipatents

. Ability to identify potential candidates for, andrisummate, acquisition or investment transacti

. Failure to complete any or all of the transactidascribed herein on the terms currently contemgbii

. Local, regional and national economic conditiond avents and the impact they may have on us andustomers
. Ability to attract deposits and other sources gdidity;

. Changes in the financial performance and/or coowlitif our borrowers

. Changes in the level of n-performing and classified assets and ct-offs;

. Changes in estimates of future loan loss reseginements based upon the periodic review theredéurelevant regulatory and
accounting requirement

. Changes in our capital structure resulting fronurffetcapital offerings or acquisitior
. Inflation, interest rate, securities market and etary fluctuations

. Timely development and acceptance of new bankindymts and services and perceived overall valikesfe products and services by
users;

. Changes in consumer spending, borrowing and sdabgs;

. Technological change

. The ability to increase market share and contrpeaesges

. Volatility in the credit and equity markets andeffect on the general econon
. Changes due to capital requirements under Bas:

. Effect of changes in accounting policies and pcasti as may be adopted by the regulatory agerasesgell as the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board, the Financial AccougtBtandards Board and other accounting standaet s,

. Our ability to integrate contemplated and futurguasition targets may be unsuccessful, or may beerdifficult, time-consuming or
costly than expected; al

. Material differences in the actual financial reswf merger and acquisition activities comparedhwitpectations

These forwardeoking statements are subject to significant uladeties and contingencies, many of which are bdymm control. Although tt
expectations reflected in the forward-looking staats are currently believed to be reasonablerdutsults, levels of activity, performance or
achievements cannot be guaranteed. Accordinglye tten be no assurance that actual results wilt exgeectations or will not be materially
lower than the results contemplated in this docuraed the attachments hereto. You are cautionetbrlaice undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements, which speak only athefdate of this document or, in the case of docusneferred to, the dates of those
documents.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
PART |
ltem 1. Business

Unless we state otherwise or the context otherveigaires, references in this Form 10-K to “Custarizgaincorp” refer to Customers Bancorp,
Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation, and referencéwég’ “our,” “us” and the “Bancorp” refer to Custeers Bancorp and its consolidated
subsidiaries for all periods on or after Septemt¥er2011 and Customers Bank for all periods befmpgtember 17, 2011. References in this
Form 10-K to “Customers Bank” or the “Bank” refer€@ustomers Bank, a Pennsylvania state charterddadal wholly owned subsidiary of
Customers Bancorp. All share and per share infoomdiave been retrospectively restated to refleetReorganization (as defined below),
including the three for one consideration (i.echethree shares of Customers Bank was exchangeméoshare of Customers Bancorp) used i
the reorganization.

Business Summary

Customers Bancorp, Inc. (“Customers Bancorp”), dlgtoour wholly-owned subsidiary Customers Bankyjates financial products and
services to small businesses, not-for-profits amtsamers through its fourteen branches in SoutaeaBennsylvania (Bucks, Berks, Chester
and Delaware Counties), Rye, New York (WestchaStemty) and Hamilton, New Jersey (Mercer County)st@mers Bank also provides
liquidity to the mortgage market nationwide throubh operation of its mortgage warehouse busidgd3ecember 31, 2012, Customers
Bancorp had total assets of $3.2 billion, includirgg loans (including held-for-sale loans) of $illion, total deposits of $2.4 billion, and
shareholders’ equity of $269.5 million.

Our strategic plan is to become a leading regibaak holding company through organic growth andeadded acquisitions. We differentiate
ourselves from our competitors through our focugxeeptional customer service supported by statleeoért technology. Our primary
customers are privately held businesses, profeslsimstomers and not-for-profits. We also focugeriain low-cost, lowisk specialty lendin
segments such as muléimily/commercial real estate lending and warehdesding. Our lending is funded by deposits from lotanch mode
which seeks higher deposit levels per branch thgpieal bank, combined with lower branch operatxgenses, without sacrificing
exceptional customer service. We also create fiaactalue through our disciplined approach to aitjans, both in terms of identifying
targets and structuring transactions. Superiorpnge risk management is an important part ofstn@tegies we initiate.

Our management team consists of experienced baekimcutives led by our Chairman and Chief Execu@ifficer, Jay Sidhu, who joined
Customers Bank in June 2009. Mr. Sidhu brings 38s/ef banking experience, including 20 years asthief Executive Officer and
Chairman of Sovereign Bancorp. In addition to MdHsi, most of the members of our current manageneamt joined us following Mr.
Sidhu’s arrival in 2009 and have extensive expegamorking together at Sovereign with Mr. SidhuisTieam has significant experience in
building a banking organization, completing ané&grating mergers and acquisitions, and developathgable community and business
relationships in our core markets.

Background and History

Customers Bancorp was incorporated in Pennsyhiargril 2010 to facilitate a reorganization intdank holding company structure purst

to which Customers Bank became a wholly owned slidoyi of Customers Bancorp (the “Reorganizationi)September 17, 2011. Pursuant tc
the Reorganization, all of the issued and outstandhares of Voting Common Stock and Class B NotingdCommon Stock of Customers
Bank were exchanged on a three-to-one basis foeslod Voting Common Stock and Class B Non-Votirgrtnon Stock, respectively, of
Customers Bancorp. Customers Bancorp’s corporaéduarters are located at 1015 Penn Avenue, Wyomjs8ennsylvania 19610. The
main telephone number is (610) 933-2000.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

In December 2010, Customers Bank changed its neoneNlew Century Bank. New Century Bank was incoaped in 1994 and is a
Pennsylvania state chartered bank and a membke ¢fdderal Reserve System. New Century Bank conedererations in 1997. Customers
Bank’s deposits are insured by the Federal Depasitrance Corporation. Customers Bank’s corporageljuarters are located at 99 Bridge
Street, Phoenixville, Pennsylvania 19460. The relgphone number is (610) 933-2000.

Executive Summary
Our Markets
Market Criteria

We look to grow organically as well as through stle acquisitions in our current and prospectiarkats. We believe there is significant
opportunity to both enhance our presence in owectimarkets and enter new complementary markatsriket our objectives. We focus on
markets that we believe are characterized by sara# of the following:

* Population density

» Concentration of business activi

» Attractive deposit base

» Large market share held by large bar

» Advantageous competitive landscape that providesipnity to achieve meaningful market presel
» Lack of consolidation in the banking sector andegponding opportunities for s-on transactions

» Potential for economic growth over tinr

* Management experience in the applicable mar

Current Markets

Our current markets are broadly defined as thetgré¥iladelphia region and Berks County in Penrayih, Mercer County, New Jersey and
Southeastern New York. The table below describasaioekey statistics regarding our presence inghmarkets as of June 30, 2012:

Deposit
Market Shar
Deposits Deposit
Market Rank Offices (in millions) Market Shar
Philadelphia-Camden-Wilmington, PA, NJ, DE, 26 8 $ 995.¢ 0.22%
Berks County, P/ 6 4 466.5 5.4z
Mercer County, N. 17 1 214.¢ 1.6¢€
Westchester County, N 22 1 253. 0.51

Source: FDIC Website as of June 30, 2012

We believe that these markets have highly attracd®emographic, economic and competitive dynamiasdte consistent with our objectives
and favorable to executing our organic growth acgligsition strategy.
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Prospective Market

Our organic growth strategy focuses on expandinketahare in our existing and contiguous markgtgémerating deposits, loan and fee
based services through high touch personalizedcgesupported by state of the art technology farammmercial, consumer, not for profit and
specialized lending markets. Our acquisition sgatgrimarily focuses on undervalued and troubleghitmnity banks in Pennsylvania, New
Jersey, New York, Maryland, Virginia and New Englawhere such acquisitions further our objectived meet our critical success factors.
we evaluate potential acquisition opportunities,beeve there are many banking institutions thgtinue to face credit challenges, capital
constraints and liquidity issues and that lackstede and management expertise to manage the simgaagulatory burden.

Our Competitive Strengths

Experienced and respected management tAn integral element of our business strategy isajaitalize on and leverage
the prior experience of our executive managememhid he management team is led by our ChairmarCaief Executive
Officer, Jay Sidhu, who is the former Chief ExecetOfficer and Chairman of Sovereign Bancorp. Iditoh to Mr. Sidhu,
most of the members of our current management beaya extensive experience working together at Sayemwith

Mr. Sidhu, including Richard Ehst, President anie€B®perating Officer of Customers Bank, Warren [6ayPresident of
Community Banking for Customers Bank, and Jamelddgan, Chief Financial Officer of Customers Banc@pring their
tenure at Sovereign, the team established a temaka of producing strong financial results, inggig acquisitions,
managing risk, working with regulators and achiguimganic growth and expense control. In addit@m,warehouse
lending group is led by Glenn Hedde, who bringsertban 23 years of experience in this sector. {#as has significant
experience in successfully building a banking oization as well as existing valuable community dadiness relationships
in our core market:

Unique Asset Generation Stratelye focus on local market lending combined with tieéy low-risk specialty lending
segments. Our local market asset generation prevideous types of business lending products andwuoer lending
products, such as mortgage loans and home eqaitys|&We have also established a multi-family armdroercial real estate
product line that is focused on the Mid-Atlantigien. The strategy is to focus on refinancing éxgtoans with
conservative underwriting and to keep costs lowotigh the multi-family and commercial real estatedoict, we earn
interest income, fee income and generate commatesits. We also maintain a specialty lendingrmss, warehousing
lending, which is a national business where we igiliquidity to non-depository mortgage comparti@fund their
mortgage pipelines. Through the warehouse lendisinless, we earn interest income, and generatedepasits, and earn
fees.

Attractive risk profile We have sought to maintain high asset quality anderate credit risk by using conservative
underwriting standards and early identificatiorpofential problem assets. We have also formed eiamessets department
to both manage our covered assets portfolio ameview our other classified and npefforming assets. As at December
2012, approximately 12.2% of our loans (by dollaroaint) were acquired loans and all of those loam®adjusted to their
estimated fair values. Additionally, 4.0% of ouals and 50.6% of our other real estate owned (“OREach by dollar
amount) are covered by a loss sharing arrangemiéntive FDIC in which the FDIC will reimburse us f80% of our losses
on these assel

Please refer to the Asset Quality tables regaridiggcy and acquired loans appearing on page J&iManagement
Discussion and Analysis section.

Superior Community Banking Mod®Ve expect to drive organic growth by employing tmomcierge banking” strategy,
which provides specific relationship managers orgte bankers for all customers, delivering an ampeent banking
approach available 12 hours a day, seven days ka Whis allows us to provide services in a persiaed|, convenient and
expeditious manner. This approach, coupled wittegaptechnology, including remote account openiegjote deposit
capture and mobile banking, results in a competitigvantage over larger institutions, which wedweicontributes to the
profitability of our franchise and allows us to geate core deposits. Our “high tech, high touchptiel requires less staff
and smaller branch locations to operate, theramifggantly reducing our operating cos

Acquisition ExpertiseThe depth of our management team and their experieorking together and successfully comple
acquisitions provides us with unique insight inntiying and analyzing potential markets and actjois targets. Our tears’
experience, which includes the acquisition andgraton of over 30 institutions, as well as numerbtanch acquisitions,
provide us a substantial advantage in pursuingcandummating future acquisitions. Additionally, adieve our strengths
in structuring transactions to limit our risk, axperience in the financial reporting and regulapfmocess related to troubled
bank acquisitions, and our ongoing risk manageregpértise, particularly in problem loan workoutsli@ctively enable

6
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us to capitalize on the potential of the franchisesacquire. With our depth of operational experéim connection with
completing merger and acquisition transactionsexmect to be able to integrate and reposition aeduranchises cost-
efficiently and with a minimum disruption to custenrelationships

We believe our ability to operate efficiently isramced by our centralized risk management structureaccess to attractive labor and real
estate costs in our markets, and an infrastruthateis unencumbered by legacy systems. Furtherm@r@nticipate additional expense
synergies from the integration of our recent adtjaiss, which we believe will enhance our finangiarformance.

Acquisitions

Since July 2010, we have completed three acquisitittvo of which were FDIC-assisted transactions, lsave entered into two agreements fo
acquisitions that are currently expected to take@during 2013. We believe we have structuredisitigums that limit our credit risk, which

has positioned us for attractive risk-adjustedrmetuThe consummation of the expected acquisii®osentingent upon a number of conditions
including, but not limited to, receipt of variousgulatory approvals. A summary of these acquisitigppears below.

2010 Acquisitions
FDIC-Assisted TransactiotlSA Bank Acquisition

On July 9, 2010, Customers Bank acquired substhmaithof the assets and assumed all of the naikdned deposits and substantially all othe
liabilities of USA Bank from the FDIC, as receiv@he transaction consisted of assets with a fdirevaf $221.1 million, including $124.7
million of loans (with a corresponding unpaid prpal balance (“UPB”), of $153.6 million), a $22.7llon FDIC loss sharing receivable and
$3.4 million of foreclosed assets. Liabilities wiHair value of $202.1 million were also assumedyuding $179.3 million of non-brokered
deposits. Customers Bank also received cash coatimte from the FDIC of $25.6 million. Furthermof@ustomers Bank recognized a bargain
purchase gain before taxes of $28.2 million, whiggiresented 12.2% of the fair value of the totaktsacquired.

Concurrently with the acquisition of USA Bank, thBIC agreed to absorb a portion of all future dréamises and workout expenses through
loss sharing agreements that cover certain legsssts, including the entire loan portfolio and otieal estate owned. At July 9, 2010, the
covered assets consisted of assets with a book wAlf126.7 million. The total UPB of the coveredets at July 9, 2010 was $159.2 million.
Customers Bank acquired other USA Bank assetsatkatot covered by the loss sharing agreementstétkDIC including cash and certain
investment securities purchased at fair marketevaltie loss sharing agreements do not apply tcesulestly acquired, purchased or origine
assets. Customers Bank entered into this transactioxpand its franchise into a lucrative new regraccrete its book value per share and ad
significant capital.

Pursuant to the terms of the loss sharing agreemtie FDIC will reimburse Customers Bank for 80Rkosses, calculated, in each case, base
on UPB plus certain interest and expenses. CustoBaark will reimburse the FDIC for its share ofaeeries with respect to losses for which
the FDIC has paid Customers Bank in reimbursemedéiuthe loss sharing agreements.

Customers Bank has received an aggregate of $1iBi@nfrom the FDIC in reimbursements under thedsharing agreements for claims filec
for losses incurred through December 31, 2012.

FDIC-Assisted TransactiohSN Bank Acquisition

On September 17, 2010, Customers Bank acquiredasuladly all of the assets and assumed all ofitve-brokered deposits and substantially
all other liabilities of ISN Bank from the FDIC, asceiver. The transaction consisted of assetsavitir value of $83.9 million, including
$51.3 million of loans (with a corresponding UPB$&B.2 million), a $5.6 million FDIC loss sharingceivable and $1.2 million of foreclosed
assets. Liabilities with a fair value of $75.8 moitl were also assumed, including $71.9 million ofi#brokered deposits. Customers Bank
received cash consideration from the FDIC of $5ilan. Furthermore, Customers Bank recognized @& purchase gain before taxes of
$12.1 million, which represented 14.4% of the failue of the total assets acquired.

Concurrently with the acquisition of ISN Bank, thBIC agreed to absorb a portion of all future dréaises and workout expenses through
sharing agreements that cover certain legacy asselisding the entire loan portfolio and otherlrestate owned. At September 17, 2010, the
covered assets consisted of assets with a book w&l$52.6 million. The total UPB of the coveredets at September 17, 2010 was $58.2
million. Customers Bank acquired other ISN Banletsthat are not covered by the loss sharing agneesmvith the FDIC including cash,
certain investment securities purchased at faikataralue and other tangible assets. The lossrghagreements do not apply to subsequently
acquired, purchased or originated assets. CustdBaens entered into this transaction to enhance babke per share, add capital and enter th
New Jersey market in a more efficient manner tt@anal/o expansion. Pursuant to the terms of thesloasng agreements, the FDIC v
reimburse Customers Bank for 80% of losses, caledjan each case, based on UPB plus certain gitanel expenses. Customers Bank will
reimburse the FDIC for its share of recoveries wétbpect to losses for which the FDIC has paid @usts Bank in reimbursement under the
loss sharing agreements.
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Customers Bank has received an aggregate of $@lidmfrom the FDIC in reimbursements under the IIB8s sharing agreements for claims
filed for losses incurred through December 31, 2012

In accordance with the guidance provided in SEGf Bizcounting Bulletin Topic 1.K, Financial Statemts of Acquired Troubled Financial
Institutions (“SAB 1: K”) and a request for religfanted by the SEC, historical financial informataf USA Bank and ISN Bank has been
omitted from this Form 10-K. Relief is provided @mdtertain circumstances, including transactiom €5 the acquisitions of USA Bank and
ISN Bank in which an institution engages in an ésitjon of a troubled financial institution for wtti audited financial statements are not
reasonably available and in which federal assigtéman essential and significant part of the tatisn.

2011 Acquisition
Berkshire Bancorp Acquisition

On September 17, 2011, Customers Bancorp acqueddBire Bancorp, Inc. and its subsidiary BerksBiamk. Berkshire Bancorp served
Berks County, Pennsylvania through five branchesth@ closing date, Berkshire Bancorp had totadtass approximately $132.5 million,
including total loans of $98.4 million, and tot&Hilities of approximately $122.8 million, inclutdj total deposits of $121.9 million. Under the
terms of the merger agreement, each outstanding sfi@erkshire Bancorp common stock was exchaifiged. 1534 shares of Customers
Bancorp’s Voting Common Stock, resulting in theumsce of 623,686 shares of Customers Bancorp’siy@obmmon Stock. The total
purchase price was approximately $11.3 millionrespnting a price to tangible book value of BenkesBiancorp common stock of 1.25%. T
transaction was immediately accretive to earnings.

In addition, as part of the transaction, CustonBanscorp exchanged shares of its preferred stocthéopreferred stock that was issued by
Berkshire Bancorp as part of the U.S. Treasurytaubled Asset Relief Program. Those shares wereequbstly redeemed. In addition,
warrants to purchase shares of Berkshire Bancarpram stock were converted into warrants to purcshaees of Customers Bancorp’s
Voting Common Stock.

Berkshire Bancorp’s operating results are incluideaur financial results from the date of acquésiti

Acquisition of Manufactured Housing Loans

During the years 2010, 2011, and 2012, we purchamsedifacturing housing loans from Tammac HoldingpBoation (“Tammac”). These
purchases were opportunistic purchases and mayeniodicative of future strategies or purchases.

On August 6, 2010, we purchased from Tammac Hol@arporation (“Tammac”) a $105.8 million manufaedrhousing loan portfolio for a
purchase price of $105.8 million. These loans veeggported by a cash reserve balance of $10.5 mélfiaate of purchase, that covers all
current losses and delinquent interest, and istaiaied in a demand deposit account at the Bank.

On September 30, 2011, we purchased from Tammag $difion of manufactured housing loans and a %560terest only strip security with
an estimated value of $3 million secured by a d&70 million of loans originated by Tammac fotogal purchase price of $13 million.

On July 24, 2012, the Bancorp paid $63.2 millioméguire manufactured housing loans from Vandekibilttgage and Finance Inc. at par.
These loans were originated by Tammac Holding Qaitan, and secure the interest only strip sectini&g was purchased in September 2011
The loans carry an 11.3% coupon rate, where Tangaats a 2.0% servicing fee and also retains tisrig a 2.0% IO Strip in relation to this
pool of loans. The full recourse for losses ondhlgy 2012 loan purchase resides with Tammac.

2013 Acquisition Agreements

Consummation of the following transactions is cagéint upon a number of conditions including, butlimited to, receipt of various
regulatory approvals.

Acacia Federal Savings Bank Acquisition

On June 21, 2012, the Bancorp announced the enitnaidefinitive agreement to acquire Acacia Fddgaaings Bank (Acacia) located in F:
Church, Virginia from two subsidiaries of Ameritislsitual Holding Company (Ameritas). Acacia serves tietro Washington, D.C. market.
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the Baneitiracquire 100% of the stock of Acacia from Antas Mutual Holding Company for a
total purchase price of $65.0 million to be paidiash of $10.3 million and Voting Common Stock @tgsg in a 4.9% voting ownership
interest in the Bancorp), Class B Non-Voting Comr&oock (resulting in up to 14.9% total common oveh@s interest (voting and non-voting,
taking into account outstanding securities conltinto common stock) in the Bancorp), and Pegdetion-Cumulative Preferred Stock,
Series C (with an aggregate liquidation value &.86nillion minus the value of the Common Stock &fass B Norvoting Common Stock t
be issued in the acquisition). The Bancorp exptecissue its Voting Common Stock and Class B NotingpCommon Stock at 115% of
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GAAP book value at the time of closing. It is likehat the regulatory authorities will require aangge in the composition of the consideration
in the Acacia transaction, including the eliminatiaf the Series C Preferred Stock, and a redudatitime level of Voting Common Stock to be
issued to the sellers.

The Bancorp will not be acquiring any non-perforgiioans, other real estate owned or other ass#t# theems to possess higher risk. In
addition, the Bancorp will not be responsible foy aeverance obligations, charges associated gtearly termination of the O.S.I.
technology contract or lease termination charge&aactia’s corporate headquarters beyond one yéar closing is currently expected to take
place during the first half of 2013.

CMS Bancorp Acquisition

On August 10, 2012, Customers Bancorp Inc. annaltieeentry into a definitive agreement to acquieemerger CMS Bancorp (CMS
Bancorp) located in White Plains, New York andmiitely CMS Bank. CMS Bank, with five branches, ssrWestchester County, New York,
and the surrounding areas. The total transactiareva approximately $20.8 million, and the agreetyrovides for CMS Bancorp
stockholders to receive shares of Customers Banaiiipg common stock based upon an exchange mtie determined as the quotient of
(i) the CMS Valuation, divided by (ii) the Custoreéraluation, with fractional shares to be cashad Bie “CMS Valuation'will be calculatec
as 95% of CMS Bancorp’s common stockholders’ eqastyf the month end prior to the closing, while t8ustomers Valuation” will be
calculated as 125% of Customer Bancorp’s modiftedkdolder equity as of the month end prior to icigsModified stockholders’ equity is
defined as June 30, 2012 book value plus additimnstained earnings through the month-end pri@tdsing. Shares issued by Customers
Bancorp in capital raises and purchase accountpgtments from any other acquisitions will notibeluded in calculating modified
stockholders’ equity. By way of example, basedlenNarch 31, 2012 book value per share of CMS Bgmand the June 30, 2012 modified
stockholders’ equity of Customers Bancorp, $1117% $13.99, respectively, the exchange ratio woel@6383. The foregoing calculation is
provided as an example only, and does not purpdsetthe actual exchange ratio. The actual exchaiipewill likely be different at closing.

The acquisition of CMS will enhance the Bancorp&aNYork franchise. Closing of the CMS Bancorp mergéich is subject to regulatory
approval, customary closing conditions and the apgdrof CMS Bancorp’s stockholders, is currentlypested to occur in 2013.

New England Commercial Lending Loan Purchase

On February 6, 2013, we announced the entry imtefiitive agreement to acquire certain commeioiahs from Michigan based Flagstar

Bank. Under the terms of the agreement, Customang ®ill acquire $187.6 million in commercial loaammitments, of which $150.9 millit
is currently outstanding. As part of the agreemant] subject to receipt of customary thiraty consents, Customers Bank will also assum
leases for two of Flagstar's commercial lendingoef, one in Boston, MA and one in Providence,TREe purchase price is 98.7% of loans

outstanding and the transaction is expected tealothin the first quarter of 2013.

Segment:

Customers Bancorp has one reportable segment, “GaityrBanking.” All of the Company’s activities amgterrelated, and each activity is
dependent and assessed based on how each ofithieaadf the Company supports the others. Fongla, lending is dependent upon the
ability of the Company to fund itself with depositsd borrowings while managing the interest ratk@edit risk. Accordingly, all significant
operating decisions are based upon analysis @dn& as one segment or unit.

Products

We offer a broad range of traditional banking prddwand financial services to our commercial antsamer customers in Philadelphia and
Suburban Philadelphia Counties, Berks County, Bdwaisia, Central New Jersey and Southeastern Negk.YSubsequent to the close of our
acquisitions of Acacia FSB, CMS and the New Englemaimercial loan portfolio, our business will atsver the areas of Northern Virginia,
Westchester NY and Boston, Massachusetts. We affarray of lending products to cater to our custameeds, including small business
loans, mortgage warehouse loans, multi-family asmdroercial real estate loans, residential mortgaged and consumer loans. We also offer
traditional depository products, including commaleind consumer checking accounts, non-interestrfaedemand accounts, money market
deposit accounts, savings accounts and time dep@siunts and cash management services. With ocingse of Acacia FSB in 2013, we
expect to increase our origination of mortgage $9aell them into the secondary market, and thewighe servicing of these loans. We estin
that approximately 90 percent of our total loamyimations will be eligible for sale through U.Svgonmentsponsored entities (a term gener
used to refer collectively or singularly to FanMae, Freddie Mac, and Ginnie Mae).
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Lending Activities
We focus our lending efforts to the following lengiareas:

. Commercial Lending — Includes Business Banking cenaial and industrial, Small Business, includingafirbusiness
administration (SBA) loans, and Mt-family Commercial Real Estate lendir

. Specialty Lendin— Warehouse Lending

. Consumer Lendin— Local market mortgage lending and home equity legidand

. Mortgage bankine Origination, servicing and packaging of mortgagniefor sale to investor

Commercial Lending

The Bank’s commercial lending is divided into thoégtinct groups: Multi-family/Commercial real esaBusiness Banking and Small
Business Banking. This division is designed towalfor greater resource deployment, higher standafrdsk management, strong asset qua
lower interest rate risk and higher productivitydés.

The Business Banking lending group focuses on campavith annual revenues ranging from $5.0 millioi$50.0 million, which typically
have credit requirements between $0.5 million ab@l® million. This division is serviced by very exgenced local relationship managers or
private bankers who are supported by a centratiredit function.

The Small Business Banking platform originates fgamcluding Small Business Administration loamsptigh the branch network sales force
and a team of dedicated Small Business relationshipagers. The support administration of the platffor this segment is centralized
including risk management, product management, atisudg, performance tracking and overall strategyd@ and sales training has been
established for our sales force, ensuring we hemadl dusiness experts in place providing approeretancial solutions to the small business
owners in our communities. A division approach fgesion industries that offer us high asset qualityare deposit rich to drive profitability.

The goal of our multi-family lending group is toilsua portfolio of high quality multi-family and eomercial real estate loans within our
covered markets, while cross selling our other peteland services. This business line primarily$es on refinancing existing loans, using
conservative underwriting. The primary collatei@ these loans is a first lien mortgage on the iafiathily property, plus an assignment of all
leases related to such property. During the yede@®ecember 31, 2012, we originated and closed.$28illion of multi-family loan
commitments, or $542.6 million including the mdlimily loan commitments above.

As of December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, we ha@P$13 million, $535.7 million, and $330.6 milliorespectively, in commercial loans
outstanding, composing approximately 37.0%, 35806, 37.6%, respectively, of our total loan portiplivhich includes loans held for sale.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, we otigghand closed $250.7 million of commercial loand eommitments.

Specialty Lending

In 2009, we established a warehouse lending busimdsch provides financing to mortgage bankergdsidential mortgage originations from
loan closing until sale in the secondary marketnivjaroviders of liquidity in this segment exiteathusiness in 2002008 during the period
excessive market turmoil.

The goal of the warehouse group is to provide tiquito mortgage companies. These facilities aeglusy mortgage companies to fund their
pipelines from closing of individual mortgage loamsil their sale into the secondary market. Mdghe loans are insured or guaranteed by th
U.S. government through one of their programs siscRHA, VA, or are conventional loans eligible $aie to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.

As of December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, outstgridans in our warehouse lending portfolio tote#dd4 billion, $794 million, and $386.1
million, respectively, composing approximately 32,462.3%, and 44.0%, respectively, of our totahlpartfolio, which includes loans held"
sale. During the year ended December 31, 2012 @bd, 2ve funded $19.5 billion of mortgage loans unwiarehouse facilities.
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Consumer Lending

We plan to expand our product offerings in reahtessecured consumer lending. We do not offeréetimutomobile loans, unsecured loans,
student loans or credit cards. Initially, we pravtibme equity and residential mortgage loans tomeys. Underwriting standards for home
equity lending are conservative, focusing on FI€6ras 720 and higher, and lending is offered tmplcustomer relationships and grow
relationship revenues in the long term. This legdimportant in our efforts to grow total relaig&hip revenues for our consumer households
These areas also support our commitment to lowenaderate income families in our market area.

As of December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, we had.818illion, $28.1 million, and $54.4 million resgeely, in consumer loans outstanding,
composing 4.8%, 5.1%, and 6.2%, respectively, oftotal loan portfolio, which includes loans hetit ale. During the year ended in
December 31, 2012, we originated and closed $6#l®mof consumer loans.

Mortgage Banking

The bank has aggressively recruited new leadeishipe mortgage banking group which was formeddh2 This leadership is committed to
building a state of the art Mortgage Banking platfasing best in class practices. These will inelaghaperless origination system coupled
with an unparalleled product offering. This willaie the Bank to give a level of service to outenners that is not only unique, but creates
value for our customers as well as the Bank. Wecanemitted to providing value to our shareholdarsugh enhanced technology solutions
while serving our community.

Customers Bank expects to open multiple loan prociuoffices to support the growth of the mortgéagmking platform. These offices will
allow the bank to penetrate markets that were weaeed by the Bank’s current branch locations. ifi@ementation of our secondary
marketing group, coupled with the Bank’s increalsaoh production is expected to result in significgrowth in earnings in the group.

We do not have a program for originating subprioanlproducts, or reverse mortgages. We estimatepipaoximately 90% of our mortgage
banking loan originations will be eligible for salgough U.S. government-sponsored entities.

Private Banking

Beginning in 2013, Customers Bank will introducBrévate Banking model for our commercial clientstie major markets within our
geographical footprint. This unique model will pide unparalleled service to our customers throughiremarket team of experienced private
bankers. Acting as a single-point-of-contact foitlad banking needs of our commercial clients, ¢éh@$vate bankers will deliver the whole
bank — not only to our clients, but to their fardlj their management teams, and their employeeglhdVith a world-class suite of
sophisticated cash management products, thesdghbaakers will deliver on our “high tech, high ¢bi strategy and provide real value to our
mid-market Commercial clients.

We expect to open our first private banking offieéManhattan in the second quarter of 2013, evédigtual of our markets will be served by
private bankers.

Deposit Products and Other Funding Sourc

We offer a variety of deposit products to our caostos, including checking accounts, savings accoumtsiey market accounts and other
deposit accounts, including fixed-rate, fixed-mayuretail time deposits ranging in terms from 39/d to five years, individual retirement
accounts, and noretail time deposits consisting of jumbo certifeagreater than or equal to $100,000. Using our tugch supported by hig
tech model, we have experienced significantly higlimve average growth in core deposits in allwfroarkets.

Financial Products and Services

In addition to traditional banking activities, weogide other financial services to our customersluding: internet banking, wire transfers,
electronic bill payment, lock box services, remiéposit capture services, courier services, metgiracessing services, cash vault, controllec
disbursements, positive pay and cash managememtes(including account reconciliation, collectosnd sweep accounts).

Competition

Customers Bank competes with other financial instihs for deposit and loan business. Competitmrkide other commercial banks, savings
banks, savings and loan associations, insuranceamies, securities brokerage firms, credit unifinance companies, mutual funds, money
market funds, and certain government agenciesnEiakinstitutions compete principally on the qtabf the services rendered, interest rates
offered on deposit products, interest rates chaogeldans, fees and service charges, the convenirzanking office locations and hours of
operation, and in the consideration of larger comesiaéborrowers, lending limits.
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Many competitors are significantly larger than ©usérs Bank, and have significantly greater findn@sources, personnel and locations from
which to conduct business. In addition, CustomexskBs subject to regulation, while certain ofdtsnpetitors are not. Non-regulated
companies face relatively few barriers to entry ithte financial services industry. Customers Bafd‘ger competitors enjoy greater name
recognition and greater resources to finance wadging advertising campaigns. Customers Bank cagsgdet business principally on the bz

of high quality, personal service to customerstamgr access to Customers Bank’s decision makedsg@mpetitive interest and fee structure.
Customers Bank also strives to provide maximum earance of access to services by employing inneeatelivery vehicles such as internet
banking, and the convenience of concierge banking.

Customers Bank’s current market is primarily serbgdarge national and regional banks, with a famgér institutions capturing more than
50% of the deposit market share. Customers Baakielcompetitors utilize expensive, branch-basedetsdo sell products to consumers and
small businesses, which requires our larger cortmpstio price their products with wider margins @hdrge more fees to justify their higher
expense base. While maintaining physical brancatiogs remains an important component of CustoiBank’s strategy, Customers Bank
utilizes an operating model with fewer and lessemgive locations, thereby lowering overhead castisadlowing for greater pricing flexibility.

Geographic Information

The geographic information required by Item 104@Regulation SK under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asnaleeé, is impracticab
for the Bancorp to calculate; however, the Bandwgs not believe that a material amount of reveimuasy of the last three years was
attributable to customers outside of the UnitedeStanor does it believe that a material amouitsdbng-lived assets, in any of the past three
years, was located outside of the United St:

Employees
As of December 31, 2012, Customers Bank had 242ifaé and 13 part-time employees.

Available Information

Our internet website is at www.customersbank.carforination on our website is not part of this AninRaport on Form 10-K. Investors can
obtain copies of our annual report on Form 10-Kartgrly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports om#8-K, and any amendments to those
reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 18(al5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act on oubsite as soon as reasonably practicable
we have filed such materials with, or furnishedhhte, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SB@e will also furnish a paper copy of
such filings free of charge upon request. Investarsalso read and copy any materials filed by itis tve SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference
Room which is located at 100 F Street, NE, WashingDC 20549. Information about the operation ef Bublic Reference Room can be
obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. flings can also be accessed at the SEC's intevabsite: www.sec.gov.
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SUPERVISION AND REGULATION
GENERAL

We are subject to extensive regulation, examinadiwh supervision by the Pennsylvania DepartmeB&oking and Securities and, as a
member of the Federal Reserve System, by the Hejlesarve Board. Federal and state banking lawsemdations govern, among other
things, the scope of a bank’s business, the inva#tisra bank may make, the reserves against depdsitisk must maintain, terms of deposit
accounts, loans a bank makes, the interest ratbaiiges and collateral it takes, the activitiea bank with respect to mergers and
consolidations and the establishment of branches.

PENNSYLVANIA BANKING LAWS

Pennsylvania banks that are Federal Reserve memiagrestablish new offices only after approvalliy Pennsylvania Department of
Banking and Securities and the Board of GovernbtseFederal Reserve System (the “Federal Re&waed”). Approval by these regulators
can be subject to a variety of factors, includimg tonvenience and needs of the community, whétlednstitution is sufficiently capitalized
and well managed, issues of safety and soundrnesg)dtitution’s record of meeting the credit neetléis community, whether there are
significant supervisory concerns with respect mittstitution or affiliated organizations, and wint any financial or other business
arrangement, direct or indirect, involving the pyspd branch and bank “insiders” (directors, ofSc@mployees and 10%-or-greater
shareholders) which involves terms and conditionsenfiavorable to the insiders than would be avélaba comparable transaction with
unrelated parties.

Under the Pennsylvania Banking Code, we are pexchiti branch throughout Pennsylvania. PennsyiManialso provides Pennsylvania state
chartered institutions elective parity with the mowef national banks, federal thrifts, and statartdred institutions in other states as authorize
by the FDIC, subject to a required notice to therBglvania Department of Banking and Securitie® PRnnsylvania Banking Code also
imposes restrictions on payment of dividends, dsageminimum capital requirements.

On October 24, 2012, Pennsylvania enacted thredavesvknown as the “Banking Law Modernization Pagk&all of which became effectiv
on December 24, 2012. The intended goal of thelaawwhich applies to our bank subsidiary, is todeimize Pennsylvania’s banking laws
and to reduce regulatory burden at the state lgliele possible, given the increased regulatory delat the federal level as described below

The new law also permits banks to disclose form&dreement actions initiated by the Pennsylvanipddement of Banking and Securities,
clarifies that the Department has examination aridreement authority over subsidiaries as wellféikades of regulated banks and bolsters
Department’s enforcement authority over its regdanstitutions by clarifying its ability to remowirectors, officers and employees from
institutions for violations of laws or orders or fany unsafe or unsound practice or breach of fadyaduty. Changes to existing law also allow
the Department to assess civil money penaltiepab$25,000 per violation.

The new law also sets a new standard of care fuk bicers and directors, applying the same stethtfzat exists for nobanking corporatior

in Pennsylvania. The standard is one of perforrdunies in good faith, in a manner reasonably belieto be in the best interests of the
institutions and with such care, including reasdaaiquiry, skill and diligence, as a person ofinadly prudence would use under similar
circumstances. Directors may rely in good faithrdormation, opinions and reports provided by ddfig, employees, attorneys, accountants, c
committees of the board, and an officer may ndtddd liable simply because he or she served affigeroof the institution.

Interstate Branchin. Federal law allows the Federal Reserve and FBf@,the Pennsylvania Banking Code allows the Pdvensia
Department of Banking and Securities, to approvagpiication by a state banking institution to dogjinterstate branches. For more
information on federal law, see the discussion ufiflederal Banking Laws — Interstate Branching'ttfedlows.

Pennsylvania banking laws authorize banks in Pdwaisia to acquire existing branches or branch derio other states, and also permits out-
of-state banks to acquire existing branches ordbrae novo in Pennsylvania.

In April 2008, Banking Regulators in the StatedNefv Jersey, New York, and Pennsylvania enteredatemorandum of Understanding (the
“Interstate MOU”) to clarify their respective roless home and host state regulators, regardingsiate branching activity on a regional basis
pursuant to the Riegle-Neal Amendments Act of 199 Interstate MOU establishes the regulatoryaesibilities of the respective state
banking regulators regarding bank regulatory exations and is intended to reduce the regulatorgddiuon state chartered banks branching
within the region by eliminating duplicative hosate compliance exams.

Under the Interstate MOU, the activities of brarscive established in New Jersey or New York woulddeerned by Pennsylvania state la\
the same extent that federal law governs the siesvdf the branch of an out-of-state national bansuch host states. Issues regarding wheth
a particular host state law is preempted are twdbdermined in the first instance by the
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Pennsylvania Department of Banking and Securitiethe event that the Pennsylvania Department okBa& and Securities and the applice
host state regulator disagree regarding whetharticplar host state law is pre-empted, the Penasyd Department of Banking and Securities
and the applicable host state regulator would lusie teasonable best efforts to consider all paihtgew and to resolve the disagreement.

FEDERAL BANKING LAWS

Interstate Branching The Riegle-Neal Interstate Banking and Branchirficlehcy Act of 1994 (called the “Interstate Actdmong other
things, permits bank holding companies to acquamekb in any state. A bank may also merge with & Imaanother state. Interstate acquisiti
and mergers are subject, in general, to certainertration limits and state entry rules relatinghte age of the Bank. Under the Interstate Act,
the responsible federal regulatory agency is péethiib approve the acquisition of less than athefbranches of an insured bank by an out-of
state bank or bank holding company without the &itipn of an entire bank, only if the law of th&ate in which the branch is located

permits. Under the Interstate Act, branches otstatartered banks that operate in other statesoamred by the laws of the chartering state,
rather than the host state. The Dodd-Frank WatlestReform and Consumer Protection Act (“Dodd-FraoK) created a more permissive
interstate branching regime by permitting banksdtablish branches de novo in any state if a baakered by such state would have been
permitted to establish the branch. For more infdioneon interstate branching under Pennsylvania &e& “Pennsylvania Banking Laws —
Interstate Branching” above.

Prompt Corrective Actio. Federal banking law mandates certain “promptemdive actions,” which Federal banking agenciesegeired to
take, and certain actions which they have disandtictake, based upon the capital category intahvhiFederally regulated depository
institution falls. Regulations have been adoptedhesyFederal bank regulatory agencies setting fiethiled procedures and criteria for
implementing prompt corrective action in the caSary institution that is not adequately capitadiz&nder the rules, an institution will be
deemed to be “adequately capitalized” or bettérekceeds the minimum Federal regulatory capéglirements. However, it will be deemed
“undercapitalized” if it fails to meet the minimucapital requirements, “significantly undercapitali if it has a total risk-based capital ratio
that is less than 6.0%, a Tier 1 risk-based captéd that is less than 3.0%, or a leverage tat is less than 3.0%, and “critically
undercapitalized” if the institution has a ratiotafigible equity to total assets that is equalrtiess than 2.0%. The rules require an
undercapitalized institution to file a written cegbirestoration plan, along with a performance gagyr by its holding company or a third

party. In addition, an undercapitalized institutlmecomes subject to certain automatic restrictiocisiding a prohibition on the payment of
dividends, a limitation on asset growth and expamsand in certain cases, a limitation on the payrn&bonuses or raises to senior executive
officers, and a prohibition on the payment of dartananagement fees” to any “controlling persomstitutions that are classified as
undercapitalized are also subject to certain amfthli supervisory actions, including increased répghburdens and regulatory monitoring, a
limitation on the institution’s ability to make adigitions, open new branch offices, or engage im liges of business, obligations to raise
additional capital, restrictions on transactionthvaiffiliates, and restrictions on interest rata&ly the institution on deposits. In certain case
bank regulatory agencies may require replacemesgmibr executive officers or directors, or saléhefinstitution to a willing purchaser. If an
institution is deemed to be “critically undercaptad” and continues in that category for four daes, the statute requires, with certain
narrowly limited exceptions, that the institutioa placed in receivership.

Safety and Soundness; Regulation of Bank Manageriéet Federal Reserve Board possesses the powmtibit us from engaging in any
activity that would be an unsafe and unsound bapgnactice and in violation of the law. Moreoveederal law enactments have expanded th
circumstances under which officers or directora bink may be removed by the institution’s Fedaupkrvisory agency; restricted and further
regulated lending by a bank to its executive oficéirectors, principal shareholders or relatedrasts thereof; restricted management
personnel of a bank from serving as directors atler management positions with certain depositwijtutions whose assets exceed a
specified amount or which have an office withirpaafied geographic area; and restricted managepsrabnnel from borrowing from anott
institution that has a correspondent relationshtp the bank for which they work.

Capital Rules Federal banking agencies have issued certak-bBased capital” guidelines, which supplementedteg capital
requirements. In addition, the Federal Reserve Bwaposes certain “leverage” requirements on merhbaks such as us. Banking regulators
have authority to require higher minimum capitdlagfor an individual bank or bank holding compamyiew of its circumstances.

The risk-based guidelines require all banks and batding companies to maintain two “risk-weighgsbsets” ratios. The first is a minimum
ratio of total capital (“Tier 1" and “Tier 2" cagail) to risk-weighted assets equal to 8.0%; thesgd®a minimum ratio of “Tier 1” capital to
risk-weighted assets equal to 4.0%. Assets argreesito five risk categories, with higher levelsapital being required for the categories
perceived as representing greater risk. In makiegcalculation, certain intangible assets mustdakicted from the capital base. The rfgsec
capital rules are designed to make regulatory abmtjuirements more sensitive to differencessk profiles among banks and bank holding
companies and to minimize disincentives for holdiggid assets.

The riskbased capital rules also account for interestrigke Institutions with interest rate risk exposaf®ve a normal level would be requi
to hold extra capital in proportion to that riskb&nk’s exposure to declines in the economic vafuts
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capital due to changes in interest rates is a fdletd banking agencies will consider in evaluatingank’s capital adequacy. The rule does not
codify an explicit minimum capital charge for irgst rate risk. We currently monitor and manageassets and liabilities for interest rate risk,
and management believes that the interest rateuiek which have been implemented and proposdaatimaterially adversely affect our
operations.

The Federal Reserve Board's “leverage” ratio rodegiire member banks which are rated the highgbeiromposite areas of capital, asset
quality, management, earnings and liquidity to rteaima ratio of “Tier 1” capital to “adjusted to@$sets” of not less than 3.0%. For banks
which are not the most highly rated, the minimuewvdrage” ratio will range from 4.0% to 5.0%, ortreg at the discretion of the Federal
Reserve Board, and is required to be at a levehoensurate with the nature of the level of risk aktdmers Bancorp, Inc.’s condition and
activities.

For purposes of the capital requirements, “Tieotl"core” capital is defined to include common sarlders’equity and certain noncumulat
perpetual preferred stock and related surplus.rZier “qualifying supplementary” capital is deéid to include a bank’s allowance for loan
losses up to 1.25% of risk-weighted assets, pltsiogypes of preferred stock and related surpagain “hybrid capital instruments” and
certain term subordinated debt instruments.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, management leslignat the Bank and Bancorp meet all capital am®grequirements to which they are
subject. For additional information on the Companggulatory ratios, refer to “NOTE 17 —- REGULATORMTTERS” in this Form 10-K.

New Proposed Capital Ruli

In September 2010, the oversight body of the Ba@sehmittee on Banking Supervision announced miningapital ratios and transition
periods providing: (i) the minimum requirement fbe Tier 1 common equity ratio will be increaseshfrthe current 2.0% level to 4.5% (to be
phased in by January 1, 2015); (ii) the minimunurezment for the Tier 1 capital ratio will be inased from the current 4.0% to 6.0% (to be
phased in by January 1, 2015); (iii) an additich&P6 of Tier 1 common equity to total riskeighted assets (to be phased in between Janu
2016 and January 1, 2019; and (iv) a minimum leyeratio of 3.0% (to be tested starting JanuaB013). The proposals also narrow the
definition of capital, excluding instruments that longer qualify as Tier 1 common equity as of &amu, 2013, and phasing out other
instruments over several years. It is unclear ho®. Banking regulators will define “well-capitald’ein their implementation of Basel .

The liquidity proposals under Basel Ill includé: giliquidity coverage ratio (to become effectiamdary 1, 2015); (ii) a net stable funding ratic
(to become effective January 1, 2018); and (i8ptof monitoring tools for banks to report minimtypes of information to their regulatory
supervisors.

In November 2012, the Federal Reserve delayedatigaly 2013 effective date of Basel lIlI's propobadk capital buffer rules, and did not
provide a substitute date for effectiveness. ThiS. Regulator approved proposal would substanteatignd the regulatory risk-based capital
rules applicable to the Bancorp and the Bank. Thpgsed rules implement the “Basel 111" regulatoapital reforms and changes required by
the Dodd-Frank Act.

Many of the details of the new framework relatednioimum capital levels and minimum liquidity recginents in the Basel Committee’s
proposals will remain uncertain until the finalease is issued. Implementation of the final provisiof Basel 11l will require implementing
regulations and guidelines by U.S. banking regutationplementation of these new capital and ligyidéquirements has created significant
uncertainty with respect to the future liquiditydacapital requirements for financial institutioifierefore, we are not able to predict at this
the content of liquidity and capital guidelinesregulations that may be adopted by regulatory dgerar the impact that any changes in
regulation may have on us.

DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Ahe DoddFrank bill was enacted by Congress on July 15, 2840 was signe
into law by President Obama on July 21, 2010. Ammaapy other provisions, the legislation:

. established the Financial Stability Oversight Caacfederal agency acting as the financial sy&esystemic risk regulator
with the authority to review the activities of sificant bank holding companies and non-bank finahiims, to make
recommendations and impose standards regardintadgverage, conflicts and other requirementdif@ancial firms and t
impose regulatory standards on certain financied§ideemed to pose a systemic threat to the fiabhealth of the U.S.
economy;

. created a new Consumer Financial Protection Bunéthin the U.S. Federal Reserve, which has suhstantle-making
authority over a wide variety of consumer finansatvices and products, including the power to letgwnfair, deceptive,
or abusive acts or practice

. permitted state attorney generals and other stditeaement authorities broader power to enforcesaorer protection laws
against banks
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. authorized federal regulatory agencies to ban cosgi®n arrangements at financial institutions tie¢ employees
incentives to engage in conduct that could pose tis the natio’s financial systerr

. granted the U.S. government resolution authoritijgtaidate or take emergency measures with regattibled financial
institutions, such as bank holding companies, fddabutside the existing resolution authority bétFederal Deposit
Insurance Corporatiol

. gave the FDIC substantial new authority and fldiibin assessing deposit insurance premiums, whiely result in
increased deposit insurance premiums for us irfiuttuee;

. increasgs the deposit insurance coverage liminkurable deposits to $250,000 generally, and resdve limit entirely for
transaction account

. permitted banks to pay interest on business derdapdsit account:

. extended the national bank lending (or Ic-to-one-borrower) limits to other institutions like u

. prohibited banks subject to enforcement action sisch memorandum of understanding from changirig¢harter without

the approval of both their existing charter requi@nd their proposed new charter regulator;
. imposed new limits on asset purchase and saleairdoss between banks and their insid

Many of these provisions are subject to furthee miking and to the discretion of regulatory bodieduding our primary federal banking
regulator, the Federal Reserve. It is not possibferedict at this time the extent to which regolas authorized or mandated by the Ddttdnk
Act will impose requirements or restrictions onimisiddition to or different from the provisions suarized above.

Deposit Insurance Assessme. Our deposits are insured by the FDIC up to timétdi set forth under applicable law and are sulijedeposit
insurance premium assessments. The FDIC impossk-based deposit premium assessment system, wiislamended pursuant to the
Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005 (t#het™). Under this system, the amount of FDIC asses#s paid by an individual insured
depository institution, like us, is based on theeleof risk incurred in its activities. The FDICgues a depository institution in one of four risk
categories determined by reference to its captadls and supervisory ratings. In addition, indhee of those institutions in the lowest risk
category, the FDIC further determines its assessnages based on certain specified financial ratios

On February 7, 2011, the FDIC adopted a final nglifying the risk-based assessment system aridgétitial base assessment rates
beginning April 1, 2011, ranging from 2.5 to 45 isgsoints of Tier | capital.

As of December 31, 2012, Customers Bank’s initeddassessment rate was 14.96 basis points baseteipg adequately capitalized and
other factors.

In addition to deposit insurance assessments, wksubject to assessments to pay the interdshancing Corporation bonds. The Financ
Corporation was created by Congress to issue horfitsance the resolution of failed thrift instiioms. The FDIC sets the Financing
Corporation assessment rate every quarter.

Community Reinvestment Adtinder the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977 (ACR the record of a bank holding company and its
subsidiary banks must be considered by the ap@tepFiederal banking agencies, including the FedReaérve Board, in reviewing and
approving or disapproving a variety of regulatopplécations including approval of a branch or otteposit facility, office relocation, a mer
and certain acquisitions of bank shares. Federdtibg agencies have recently demonstrated an isede@adiness to deny applications basec
on unsatisfactory CRA performance. The Federal Resgoard is required to assess our record to ihiterif we are meeting the credit needs
of the community (including low and moderate neigitimods) that we serve. The Financial InstitutiBe$orm, Recovery, and Enforcement
Act of 1989 amended the CRA to require, among dffiegs, that the Federal Reserve Board make pylaliailable an evaluation of our
record of meeting the credit needs of our entimmainity including low- and moderate-income neiglitoads. This evaluation includes a
descriptive rating (outstanding, satisfactory, rsefdimprove, or substantial noncompliance) andesent describing the basis for the rating.

Consumer Protection LawsNe are subject to a variety of consumer protedaas, including the Truth in Lending Act, the Thun Savings
Act adopted as part of the Federal Deposit Ins@w&uarporation Improvement Act of 1991 (“FDICIA"he Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the
Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, the Electronic Fulidansfer Act, the Real Estate Settlement Procediceand the regulations adopted
thereunder. In the aggregate, compliance with theemsumer protection laws and regulations invosgsstantial expense and administrative
time on our part.
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Memorandum of Understanding

As a result of a March 31, 2009 regulatory exanimaprior to the arrival of new management, CustanBank entered into an August 2009
Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) with our regtdes that called for a back-up Bank Secrecy Adteffand employee training, and
precluded us from declaring or paying dividendd ¥auld cause our capital ratios to fall below kigher of the minimum levels for a “well
capitalized” classification under Prompt Correcthgion standards or the internal ratios set in @apital plan, or redeeming our stock or
issuing debt with maturity greater than one yedhauit prior regulatory approval. The MOU requiredta update plans relating to earnings
capital improvement, management and board oversigidit risk management and liquidity risk, to anbe pre-purchase analysis of
investment securities, and to revise to our allasedior loan and lease losses methodology by Noved#e2009. Based on full compliance
with the MOU, notice that the MOU was terminatecsvpaovided on June 27, 2012.

Bank Holding Company Regulation
As a bank holding company, we are also subjectitlitianal regulation.

The Bank Holding Company Act requires us to setlueeprior approval of the Federal Reserve Boardreelve own or control, directly or
indirectly, more than five percent (5%) of the watishares or substantially all of the assets oftemk. It also prohibits acquisition by the
Company of more than five percent (5%) of the vpthares of, or interest in, or all or substantiall of the assets of, any bank located out
of the state in which a current bank subsidiaftgdsited unless such acquisition is specificallyhatized by laws of the state in which such &
is located. A bank holding company is prohibiteahfrengaging in or acquiring direct or indirect cohbf more than five percent (5%) of the
voting shares of any company engaged in non-bardgiigities unless the Federal Reserve Board, Ograor regulation, has found such
activities to be so closely related to banking @naging or controlling banks as to be a propedemi thereto. In making this determination,
the Federal Reserve Board considers whether tlierpgmnce of these activities by a bank holding canypwould offer benefits to the public
that outweigh possible adverse effects. Applicaionder the Bank Holding Company Act and the Cham@®ontrol Act are subject to review,
based upon the record of compliance of the appliwith the CRA.

We are required to file an annual report with teeéral Reserve Board and any additional informatiahthe Federal Reserve Board may
require pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Aattler, under Section 106 of the 1970 amendmerttset®ank Holding Company Act a
the Federal Reserve Board’s regulations, a barditmptompany and its subsidiaries are prohibitechfengaging in certain tie-in
arrangements in connection with any extension editior provision of credit or provision of any perty or services. The so-called “anti-tie-
in” provisions state generally that a bank mayexdend credit, lease, sell property or furnish sewice to a customer on the condition that thi
customer provide additional credit or service tptasCustomers Bank or to any other subsidiaryrothe condition that the customer not ob
other credit or service from a competitor of usst@mers Bank, or any other subsidiary.

The Federal Reserve Board permits bank holding emieg to engage in non-banking activities so cjosslated to banking or managing or
controlling banks as to be a proper incident tleeratnumber of activities are authorized by Fed&waderve Board regulation, while other
activities require prior Federal Reserve Board apgl The types of permissible activities are satfje change by the Federal Reserve Board.
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ltem 1 A. Risk Factors

Risks Related to Our Banking Operations

Our level of assets categorized as doubtful, subdtad or special mention exposes us to increasedlirg risk. If our allowance for loan
losses is insufficient to absorb losses in our loportfolio, our earnings could decrease.

Lending money is a substantial part of our businasd each loan carries a certain risk that it moll be repaid in accordance with its terms or
that any underlying collateral will not be suffioldo assure repayment. This risk is affected morag other things:

. the financial condition and cash flows of the bareo and/or the project being financi

. the changes and uncertainties as to the future\@lthe collateral, in the case of a collateralilman;
. the discount on the loan at the time of its actjoisj

. the duration of the loatl

. the credit history of a particular borrower; €

. changes in economic and industry conditic

At December 31, 2012, our allowance for loan logstded $25.8 million, which represents 1.20%aték loans not covered under the Loss
Sharing Agreements with the FDIC. We make vari@sumptions and judgments about the collectabifityun loan portfolio, including the
creditworthiness of our borrowers and loans coverder the Loss Sharing Agreements that did nob@édwvidence of deterioration in credit
quality on the acquisition date and the probabditynaking payment, as well as the value of retltesand other assets serving as collateral fc
the repayment of many of our loans. Loans coveretbuthe Loss Sharing Agreements totaled $107 liomit December 31, 2012. In
determining the amount of the allowance for loassés, significant factors considered include lapggence in particular segments of the
portfolio, trends and absolute levels of classified criticized loans, trends and absolute levetielinquent loans, trends in risk ratings, trend:
in industry charge-offs by particular segments elmahges in existing general economic and busirmsdittons affecting our lending areas and
the national economy. If our assumptions are iremtyour allowance for loan losses may not be @efit to cover losses inherent in our loan
portfolio, resulting in additions to the allowance.

Material additions to our allowance could mateyi@écrease net income. Our regulators, as an altpgrt of their examination process,
periodically review our allowance for loan lossesl anay require us to increase our allowance fan loases by recognizing additional
provisions for loan losses charged to expensea detrease our allowance for loan losses by rezognioan charge-offs, net of recoveries.
Any such additional provisions for loan losses luarge-offs, as required by these regulatory agenculd have a material adverse effect on
our financial condition and results of operations.

Our emphasis on commercial and mortgage warehousgding may expose us to increased lending risks.

We intend to continue emphasizing the originatibnanmercial lending and specialty lending, inchgimortgage warehouse financing.
Commercial loans generally expose a lender to greesk of non-payment and loss than one- to famnify residential mortgage loans because
repayment of the loans often depends on the sdateperation of the property and the income stredtie borrowers. Such loans typically
involve larger loan balances to single borrowergroups of related borrowers compared to one-to-family residential mortgage loans. In
addition, since such loans generally entail greatedit risk than one- to four-family residentiabrtgage loans, we may need to increase our
allowance for loan losses in the future to accdanthe likely increase in probable incurred crédéises associated with the growth of such
loans. Also, we expect that many of our commetoimtowers will have more than one loan outstandlity us. Consequently, an adverse
development with respect to one loan or one crethtionship can expose us to a significantly gredsk of loss compared to an adverse
development with respect to a one- to four-famégidential mortgage loan.

As a mortgage warehouse lender, we provide a fdfimancing to mortgage bankers by purchasing thdeulying residential mortgages on a
short-term basis under a master repurchase agréeierare subject to the risks associated with $ewtiing, including, but not limited to, the
risks of fraud, bankruptcy and default of the uhdeg residential borrower, any of which could ritsn credit losses. The risk of fraud
associated with this type of lending includes, ibutot limited to, the risk of financing nonexistéoans or fictitious mortgage loan transactic
or that the collateral delivered is fraudulent tireaexposure that could result in the loss offtlleamount financed on the underlying
residential mortgage loan

Decreased residential mortgage origination, voluraed pricing decisions of competitors may adversaffiect our profitability.

We currently operate a residential mortgage busibes plan to dramatically expand to originatel, @etl service residential mortgage loans in
the future. When we do, changes in interest ratdeicing decisions by our loan competitors mayeaskely affect demand for our residential
mortgage loan products, the revenue realized osdleeof loans and revenues received from serviiy loans for others, and ultimately
reduce our net income. New regulations, increasgdlatory reviews, and/or changes in the struatfithe secondary mortgage markets whick
we would utilize to sell mortgage loans may beddtrced and may increase costs and make it moieuliiffo operate a residential mortgage
origination business.
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Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh may not payiiends or repurchase capital stock in the future.

On December 23, 2008, the Federal Home Loan Bakktsburgh (“FHLB”) announced that it would volanity suspend the payment of
dividends and the repurchase of excess capitak statil further notice. The FHLB announced at ttiaite that it expected its ability to pay
dividends and add to retained earnings to be sigmifly curtailed due to low shotérm interest rates, an increased cost of maimgilguidity,
other than temporary impairment charges, and caingill access to debt markets at attractive rathde\WHLB announced on February 22,
2012 that a dividend would be paid and capitallstepurchase would resume, capital stock repurshiaes member banks are reviewed on &
quarterly basis by the FHLB. There is no guaratiteésuch dividends and capital stock repurchadésamtinue in the future. As of
December 31, 2012, we held $24.6 million of FHLBita stock.

The fair value of our investment securities can fituate due to market conditions outside of our capit

As of December 31, 2012, the fair value of our stu@ent securities portfolio was approximately $12%illion. We have historically taken a
conservative investment strategy, with concentnatiof securities that are backed by governmentsped enterprises. In the future, we may
seek to increase yields through more aggressiategies, which may include a greater percentagenpiorate securities and structured credit
products. Factors beyond our control can signifiganfluence the fair value of securities in owrffolio and can cause potential adverse
changes to the fair value of these securities. g fastors include, but are not limited to, ratingeacy actions in respect of the securities,
defaults by the issuer or with respect to the ugitey securities, and changes in market interassrand continued instability in the capital
markets. Any of these factors, among others, coaltge other-than-temporary impairments and reatineldor unrealized losses in future
periods and declines in other comprehensive incavhi&gh could have a material adverse effect orThs. process for determining whether
impairment of a security is other-than-temporanyally requires complex, subjective judgments athoetfuture financial performance and
liquidity of the issuer and any collateral undartyithe security in order to assess the probalufitgceiving all contractual principal and
interest payments on the security.

We may not be able to meet the cash flow requiretaari deposit withdrawals and other business needsupport earnings growth unless
we maintain sufficient liquidity.

We need adequate liquidity to fund our balance tstpevth in order for us to be able to successfgiiyw our revenues, make loans and to
repay deposit and other liabilities as they becdmeor are demanded by customers. This would regsito seek third party funding or other
sources of liquidity. This liquidity can be gathéiia both wholesale and non-wholesale funding nmtarkeur asset growth over the past few
years has been funded with various forms of depasitl wholesale funding which is defined as whadedaposits (primarily certificates
deposit and money market accounts) and borrowedsf(ifHLB advances, Federal advances and Fedeliheborrowings). Wholesale
funding at December 31, 2012 represented approglynab.8% of total funding compared with approxieiptl7.6% at December 31, 2011.
Wholesale funding generally costs more than depgsgiherated from our traditional branch systemisusdbject to certain practical limits such
as the FHLB’s maximum borrowing capacity and oquidity policy limits. Additionally, regulators mig consider wholesale funding beyond
certain points to be imprudent and might suggestftiture asset growth be reduced or halted. Imbsence of wholesale funding sources, we
might need to reduce earning asset growth throlgheduction of current production, sale of assatd/or the participating out of future and
current loans. This in turn might reduce our futnie¢ income. The amount loaned to us is generaibheddent on the value of the collateral
pledged and our financial condition. These lendergd reduce the percentages loaned against varaiaseral categories, eliminate certain
types of collateral and otherwise modify or eveimieate their loan programs, particularly to théeexk they are required to do so because of
capital adequacy or other balance sheet conceriffuother disruptions in the capital markets occAny change or termination of our
borrowings from the FHLB, the Federal Reserve Baardorrespondent banks would have an adverseteffiecur liquidity and profitability.

Downgrades in U.S. Government and federal agenoyusities could adversely affect Customers Bancomuahe Bank

The long-term impact of the downgrade of the U.8v&nment and federal agencies from an AAA to arrAfedit rating is currently
unknown. However, in addition to causing econonmid financial market disruptions, the recent dowdgrand any future downgrades and/or
failures to raise the U.S. debt limit if necessarthe future, could, among other things, mateyiativersely affect the market value of the U.S.
and other government and governmental agency siesutiat we hold, the availability of those setiesi as collateral for borrowing, and our
ability to access capital markets on favorable sgras well as have other material adverse effecte@operation of our business and our
financial results and condition. In particularc@uld increase interest rates and disrupt paymetesis, money markets, and long-term or sho
term fixed income markets, adversely affectingabst and availability of funding, which could negety affect profitability. Also, the adverse
consequences as a result of the downgrade cowddaei the borrowers of the loans the Bank makdsasa result, could adversely affect its
borrowers’ ability to repay their loans.
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We may not be able to retain or develop a strongeatdeposit base or other low-cost funding sources.

We expect to depend on checking, savings and marelet deposit account balances and other formasibmer deposits as our primary
source of funding for our lending activities. Outudre growth will largely depend on our abilityretain and grow a strong, low-cost deposit
base. Because 48.3% of our deposit base as of eceh, 2012 is time deposits, the large majoriityloich we acquired, it may prove harder
to maintain and grow our deposit base than wolieémitise be the case, especially since many of thenently pay interest at above-market
rates. During the 12 months following December211,2, $806.9 million of our time deposits are sched to mature.

We are working to transition certain of our custosrte lower cost traditional banking services aghbr cost funding sources, such as high
interest time deposits, mature. Many banks in thidd States are struggling to maintain depositotigiht of the recent financial crisis, and
there may be competitive pressures to pay highierdst rates on deposits, which could increaseifignebsts and compress net interest
margins. Customers may not transition to lowerdjied savings and investment products, which cowdtenially and adversely affect us. In
addition, with recent concerns about bank failuceistomers have become concerned about the egtesich their deposits are insured by the
FDIC, particularly customers that may maintain d@fsoin excess of insured limits. Customers mapdvaw deposits in an effort to ensure
the amount that they have on deposit with us Iy fasured and may place them in other institutionsnake investments that are perceived as
being more secure. Further, even if we are abfgder and maintain our deposit base, the accountlapdsit balances can decrease when
customers perceive alternative investments, sutheastock market, as providing a better risk/metsadeoff. If customers move money out of
bank deposits, we could lose a relatively low smstrce of funds, increasing our funding costs a&ddicing our net interest income and net
income. Additionally, any such loss of funds corédult in lower loan originations, which could mé#y and adversely affect us.

We may not be able to maintain consistent earnimgsprofitability.

We have had periods in which we experienced opeyétisses, including in 2009, portions of 2010 "radfirst quarter of 2011. Although we
made a profit for the years of 2011 and 2012, tharebe no assurance that we will be able to repraifitable in future periods, or, if
profitable, that our overall earnings will remaimnsistent or increase in the future. Our earniihgs may be reduced by any increased expens
associated with increased assets, such as addigionEdoyee compensation expense, and increase@shexpense on any liabilities incurrec
deposits solicited to fund increases in assetarfiings do not grow proportionately with our assgtequity, our overall profitability may be
adversely affected.

Continued or worsening general business and econoronditions could materially and adversely affecg.

Our business and operations are sensitive to gdmesimess and economic conditions in the UnitedeSt which remain guarded. If the U.S.
economy is unable to steadily emerge from the tere@ession that began in 2007 or we experienceamimg economic conditions, such as a
so-called “double-dip” recession, we could be maligrand adversely affected. Weak economic coadgimay be characterized by deflation,
fluctuations in debt and equity capital markets|uding a lack of liquidity and/or depressed prigethe secondary market for mortgage loans
increased delinquencies on loans, residential andreercial real estate price declines and lower hsates and commercial activity. All of
these factors would be detrimental to our busin@ss.business is significantly affected by monetang related policies of the U.S. federal
government, its agencies and government-sponsaotéts. Changes in any of these policies are érfeed by macroeconomic conditions and
other factors that are beyond our control and cbalee a material adverse effect on us.

The geographic concentration in the Northeast anddvAtlantic region makes our business highly sustibfe to downturns in the local
economies and depressed banking markets, which @¢anaterially and adversely affect us.

Our loan and deposit activities are largely basettié Northeast and Mid Atlantic regions. As a leswr financial performance depends
largely upon economic conditions in this regionisTitegion has recently experienced deterioratieglleconomic conditions and a continued
downturn in the regional real estate market thatccbarm our financial condition and results of gt®ns because of the geographic
concentration of loans within this region and beseaa large percentage of the loans are securezhbpnoperty. If there is further decline in
real estate values, the collateral for our loarispsvide less security. As a result, the abitityrecover on defaulted loans by selling the
underlying real estate will be diminished, and wik e more likely to suffer losses on defaultedrs. Additionally, a significant portion of ¢
loan portfolio is invested in commercial real estiians. Often in a commercial real estate tramsgatepayment of the loan is dependent on
rental income.

Economic conditions may affect the tenant’s abilitynake rental payments on a timely basis, and caage some tenants not to renew their
leases, each of which may impact the debtor’stglidi make loan payments. Further, if expensescés®sal with commercial properties
increase dramatically, the tenant’s ability to e@nd therefore the debtor’s ability to make tiynelan payments, could be adversely affected
All of these factors could increase the amountmf-performing loans, increase our provision fonlé@sses and reduce our net income.
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Our business is highly susceptible to credit risk.

As a lender, we are exposed to the risk that ostocoers will be unable to repay their loans aceaydo their terms and that the collateral
securing the payment of their loans (if any) mayb®sufficient to assure repayment. The risksnaiein making any loan include risks with
respect to the ability of borrowers to repay thedms and, if applicable, the period of time ovéiiah the loan is repaid, risks relating to proper
loan underwriting and guidelines, risks resultingn changes in economic and industry conditios&srinherent in dealing with individual
borrowers and risks resulting from uncertaintietoathie future value of collateral. Similarly, wave credit risk embedded in our securities
portfolio. Our credit standards, procedures anétjgsd may not prevent us from incurring substartiedit losses, particularly in light of marl
developments in recent years.

Additionally, we may restructure originated or aicqd loans if we believe the borrowers are likayully repay their restructured obligations.
We may also be subject to legal or regulatory neguoeénts for restructured loans. For our origindoedis, if interest rates or other terms are
modified subsequent to extension of credit orrifrte of an existing loan are renewed because awerrs experiencing financial difficulty ar

a concession is granted, we may be required tsifjfasuch action as a troubled debt restructunmigi¢h we refer to in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K as “TDR"). With respect to restructuredms, we may grant concessions to borrowers expénig financial difficulties in order to
facilitate repayment of the loan by (1) reductidrthe stated interest rate for the remaining lif¢he loan to lower than the current market rate
for new loans with similar risk or (2) extensiontbé maturity date. In situations where a TDR isuatessful and the borrower is unable to
satisfy the terms of the restructured loan, the auld be placed on non-accrual status and wridtemn to the underlying collateral value less
estimated selling costs.

We depend on our executive officers and key persna implement our strategy and could be harmedtbg loss of their services.

We believe that the implementation of our strategliydepend in large part on the skills of our extaee management team and our ability to
motivate and retain these and other key persoeebrdingly, the loss of service of one or moreof executive officers or key personnel
could reduce our ability to successfully implemeunt growth strategy and materially and adversdigcafus. Leadership changes will occur
from time to time, and if significant resignatiomscur, we may not be able to recruit additionallijed personnel. We believe our executive
management team possesses valuable knowledgethbdagnking industry and that their knowledge adtionships would be very difficult
to replicate. Although our Chief Executive Offi@d President have entered into employment agrésméth us, it is possible that they may
not complete the term of their employment agreermnemtay choose not to renew it upon expiration. Suacess also depends on the
experience of our branch managers and lendingeoffiand on their relationships with the customats@mmunities they serve. The loss of
these key personnel could negatively impact oukingnoperations. The loss of key senior persororahe inability to recruit and retain
qualified personnel in the future, could have aenat adverse effect on us.

We face significant competition from other finandianstitutions and financial services providers, udh may materially and adversely affect
us.

Consumer and commercial banking is highly competitOur markets contain a large number of commuanity regional banks as well as a
significant presence of the counsyargest commercial banks. We compete with ottate sind national financial institutions, includisavings
and loan associations, savings banks and credihanfor deposits and loans. In addition, we compsth financial intermediaries, such as
consumer finance companies, mortgage banking coempansurance companies, securities firms, mdtrals and several government
agencies, as well as major retailers, in providiagous types of loans and other financial servi€esne of these competitors may have a lonc
history of successful operations in our marketsatgr ties to local businesses and more expanaiiany relationships, as well as better
established depositor bases. Competitors may ale® ¢reater resources and access to capital angposagss an advantage by being capable
of maintaining numerous banking locations in marewenient sites, operating more ATMs and conduaixtgensive promotional and
advertising campaigns or operating a more develdmptednet platform. Competitors may also exhibifraater tolerance for risk and behave
more aggressively with respect to pricing in ordeincrease their market share.

The financial services industry could become evenencompetitive as a result of legislative, regquiatand technological changes and
continued consolidation. Increased competition agrforancial services companies due to the recemaaation of certain competing
financial institutions may adversely affect ourlipito market our products and services. Technologadvances have lowered barriers to €
and made it possible for banks to compete in ouketavithout a retail footprint by offering comptéte rates, as well as non-banks to offer
products and services traditionally provided byksa©ur ability to compete successfully dependa ommber of factors, including, among
others:

. the ability to develop, maintain and build upondeterm customer relationships based on high qualgysonal service,
effective and efficient products and services, hatical standards and safe and sound a

. the scope, relevance and competitive pricing oflpets and services offered to meet customer neetidemands

. the ability to provide customers with maximum comesce of access to services and availability ok representative
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. the ability to attract and retain highly qualifiethployees to operate our busine

. the ability to expand our market positic

. customer access to our decision makers, and cusgatisfaction with our level of service; a
. the ability to operate our business effectively effitiently.

Failure to perform in any of these areas couldifantly weaken our competitive position, whichubd materially and adversely affect us.

Like other financial services institutions, our agsand liability structures are monetary in natur&uch structures are affected by a vari
of factors, including changes in interest rates, igh can impact the value of financial instrumentseld by us.

Like other financial services institutions, we hasset and liability structures that are esseptiathnetary in nature and are directly affected b
many factors, including domestic and internati@@inomic and political conditions, broad trendblisiness and finance, legislation and
regulation affecting the national and internatiomasiness and financial communities, monetary &uwaff policies, inflation, currency values,
market conditions, the availability and terms (uaihg cost) of short-term or long-term funding axagbital, the credit capacity or perceived
creditworthiness of customers and counterpartiestiaa level and volatility of trading markets. Sdahbtors can impact customers and
counterparties of a financial services institutgmd may impact the value of financial instrumeri by a financial services institution.

Our earnings and cash flows largely depend upotetred of our net interest income, which is thdeliénce between the interest income we
earn on loans, investments and other interestrgaagsets, and the interest we pay on interesingdabilities, such as deposits and
borrowings. Because different types of assets iabilities may react differently and at differemhées to market interest rate changes, change:
in interest rates can increase or decrease oumtee¢st income. When interest-bearing liabilitieature or reprice more quickly than interest
earning assets in a period, an increase in inteatest would reduce net interest income. Similaddyen interest earning assets mature or re
more quickly, and because the magnitude of reggiofrinterest earning assets is often greater ititenest bearing liabilities, falling interest
rates would reduce net interest income.

Accordingly, changes in the level of market interases affect our net yield on interest earnirgetsand liabilities, loan and investment
securities portfolios and our overall results. Giemin interest rates may also have a signifigapact on any future loan origination revenues
Historically, there has been an inverse correldbetween the demand for loans and interest ratem brigination volume and revenues
usually decline during periods of rising or higheirest rates and increase during periods of degliar low interest rates. Changes in interest
rates also have a significant impact on the cagryalue of a significant percentage of the as&et loans and investment securities, on our
balance sheet. We may incur debt in the futuretaaddebt may also be sensitive to interest ratdsaay increase in interest rates could
materially and adversely affect us. Interest rateshighly sensitive to many factors beyond outmbnincluding general economic conditions
and policies of various governmental and regulasmgncies, particularly the Federal Reserve. Advehsinges in the Federal Reserve’s
interest rate policies or other changes in mongiafigies and economic conditions could materiathg adversely affect us.

We are dependent on our information technology atetecommunications systems and third-party serviceand systems failures,
interruptions or breaches of security could haveveaterial adverse effect on us.

Our business is highly dependent on the succeastulininterrupted functioning of our informatiocheology and telecommunications
systems and third-party servicers. We outsourceyrofnur major systems, such as data processiag,dervicing and deposit processing
systems. The failure of these systems, or the textioin of a third-party software license or senageeement on which any of these systems i
based, could interrupt our operations. Becausénéaimation technology and telecommunications systinterface with and depend on third-
party systems, we could experience service deifidéamand for such services exceeds capacity dr gurd-party systems fail or experience
interruptions. If significant, sustained or repeate system failure or service denial could compserour ability to operate effectively, damage
our reputation, result in a loss of customer bussnand/or subject us to additional regulatorytstywand possible financial liability, any of
which could have a material adverse effect on us.

In addition, we provide our customers with the iptb bank remotely, including online, over thedmet and over the telephone. The secure
transmission of confidential information over tiéernet and other remote channels is a criticahetd of remote banking. Our network could
be vulnerable to unauthorized access, computesadphishing schemes and other security breadlesay be required to spend significant
capital and other resources to protect againdhtieat of security breaches and computer viruses, alleviate problems caused by security
breaches or viruses. To the extent that our aigsviir the activities of our customers involve sterage and transmission of confidential
information, security breaches and viruses coufgbeg us to claims, regulatory scrutiny, litigataord other possible liabilities. Any inability
prevent security breaches or computer viruses aastulcause existing customers to lose confidemoaiii systems and could materially and
adversely affect us.

Additionally, financial products and services h&eeome increasingly technology-driven. Our abiiityneet the needs of our customers
competitively, and in a cost-efficient manner, &dndent on the ability to keep pace with techriold@dvances and to invest in new
technology as it becomes available. Many of ourpetitors have greater resources to invest in tdolggahan
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we do and may be better equipped to market newtdofy-driven products and services. The abilitkeep pace with technological change i
important, and the failure to do so could have &en adverse impact on our business and thereiom@ur financial condition and results of
operations.

Loss of, or failure to adequately safeguard, cordittial or proprietary information may adversely &t the Bancor’s operations, net
income or reputation.

The Bancorp regularly collects, processes, trarssamtl stores significant amounts of confidentitdrimation regarding its customers,
employees and others. This information is necedsathe conduct of the Bancorp’s business acésitincluding the ongoing maintenance of
deposit, loan, investment management and othewuatcelationships for our customers, and receiuistructions and affecting transactions
those customers and other users of the Bancorpupts and services. In addition to confidentiédimation regarding its customers,
employees and others, the Bancorp compiles, presegansmits and stores proprietary, non-pubfarimation concerning its own business,
operations, plans and strategies. In some casegahfidential or proprietary information is calted, compiled, processed, transmitted or
stored by third parties on behalf of the Bancorp.

Information security risks have generally increasegecent years because of the proliferation @f technologies and the increased
sophistication and activities of perpetrators dferyattacks. A failure in or breach of the Bancemperational or information security systems
or those of the Bancorp’s third-party service pdevs, as a result of cyber-attacks or informateeusty breaches or due to employee error,
malfeasance or other disruptions could adverségcabur business, result in the disclosure or sesaf confidential or proprietary informatic
damage our reputation, increase our costs andiedasses. As a result, cyber security and théreed development and enhancement o
controls and processes designed to protect thedBaiscsystems, computers, software, data and nksafosm attack, damage or unauthorized
access remain a priority for the Bancorp.

If this confidential or proprietary information weto be mishandled, misused or lost, the Bancoufrddze exposed to significant regulatory
consequences, reputational damage, civil litigagind financial loss. Mishandling, misuse or lostha$ confidential or proprietary information
could occur, for example, if the confidential opprietary information were erroneously provideghéaties who are not permitted to have the
information, either by fault of the systems or eaygles of the Bancorp, or the systems or employktsrd parties which have collected,
compiled, processed, transmitted or stored thenmdition on the Bancorp’s behalf, where the infoiorats intercepted or otherwise
inappropriately taken by third parties or whereré¢his a failure or breach of the network, commutidees or information systems which are
used to collect, compile, process, transmit orestbe information.

Although the Bancorp employs a variety of physipahcedural and technological safeguards to protéxiconfidential and proprietary
information from mishandling, misuse or loss, theafeguards do not provide absolute assurancenishtindling, misuse or loss of the
information will not occur, or that if mishandlinmisuse or loss of the information did occur, thegents would be promptly detected and
addressed. Additionally, as information securigksi and cyber threats continue to evolve, the Bgnoay be required to expend additional
resources to continue to enhance its informatienréty measures and/or to investigate and remediagydnformation security vulnerabilities.

Our directors and executive officers can influentlee outcome of shareholder votes and, in some casleareholders may have no
opportunity to evaluate and affect the investmermictsion regarding a potential investment or acqtign transaction.

As of December 31, 2012, the directors and exeeutfficers of Customers Bancorp as a group ownetahof 718,685 shares of Voting
Common Stock, 20,833 shares of Class B Non-Votiagn@on Stock, and exercisable options or warranpaitohase up to an additional
286,584 shares of Voting Common Stock, which paaéptgives them, as a group, the ability to cohagpproximately 7.26 of the issued and
outstanding Voting Common Stock. In addition, dioes of Customers Bank who are not directors oft@usrs Bancorp own an additional
206,576 shares of Voting Common Stock and exerlgsgitions or warrants to purchase up to an aduiti®2,324 shares of Voting Common
Stock and exercisable options or warrants to pweh@ to an additional 21,190 shares of Voting Comtock, which if combined with the
directors and officers of Customers Bancorp, paéintgives them, as a group, the ability to cohtrpproximately 8.7% of the issued and
outstanding Voting Common Stock. We believe ownigrsfistock causes directors and officers to haeesame interests as shareholders,
also gives them the ability to vote as shareholftermatters that are in their personal interestictv may be contrary to the wishes of other
shareholders. Shareholders will not necessarilgrbeided with an opportunity to evaluate the spediferits or risks of one or more target
institutions. Any decision regarding a potentialéstment or acquisition transaction will be madebyboard of directors. Except in limited
circumstances as required by applicable law, consation of an acquisition will not require the apgabof holders of Voting Common Stock.
Accordingly, you may not have an opportunity toleate and affect the investment decision regargistgntial investment or acquisition
transactions.

We intend to engage in acquisitions of other bussses from time to time. These acquisitions may praduce revenue or earnings
enhancements or cost savings at levels or withingframes originally anticipated and may result imforeseen integration difficulties.

We regularly evaluate opportunities to strengthenonrrent market position by acquiring and invegtin banks and in other complementary
businesses, or opening new branches, and whenmjgieoopportunities arise, subject to regulatgpraval, we
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plan to engage in acquisitions of other busineasdsn opening new branches. Such transactionsl cimdividually or in the aggregate, have a
material effect on our operating results and fim@mondition, including short and long-term ligitid Our acquisition activities could be
material to our business. For example, we coulgeisgiditional shares of Voting Common Stock in ecipase transaction, which could dilute
current shareholders’ value or ownership intefBEisese activities could require us to use a subiatarhount of cash, other liquid assets and/o
incur debt. In addition, if goodwill recorded inromection with acquisitions were determined to bpdired, then we would be required to
recognize a charge against our earnings, whichdamatterially and adversely affect our results agragions during the period in which the
impairment was recognized. Any potential chargesnfipairment related to goodwill would not impaesst flow, tangible capital or liquidity.
Our acquisition activities could involve a numbéadditional risks, including the risks of:

. incurring time and expense associated with ideimifyand evaluating potential acquisitions and niagjog potential
transactions, resulting in our attention being die from the operation of our existing busine

. using i_nac_cur_ate estimates and judgments to ewatwatlit, operations, management and market rigtksrespect to the
target institution or assel

. potential exposure to unknown or contingent ligiedi of banks and businesses we acq

. the time and expense required to integrate theatipes and personnel of the combined busine:

. experiencing higher operating expenses relatiaptyating income from the new operatic

. creating an adverse sh-term effect on our results of operatio

. losing key employees and customers as a resuit atquisition that is poorly received; &

. risk of significant problems relating to the corsien of the financial and customer data of thetgting acquired into our

financial and customer product syste!

Additionally, in evaluating potential acquisitiop@ortunities we may seek to acquire failed banksuth FDIC-assisted acquisitions. While
the FDIC may, in such acquisitions, provide aseistao mitigate certain risks, such as sharingposure to loan losses, and providing
indemnification against certain liabilities, of tfeled institution, we may not be able to accusaéstimate our potential exposure to loan lo
and other potential liabilities, or the difficuldf integration, in acquiring such institutions.

Depending on the condition of any institutions ssets that are acquired, any acquisition may aat ia the near term, materially adversely
affect our capital and earnings and, if not sudodlgsntegrated following the acquisition, may domwe to have such effects. We cannot assur
you that we will be successful in overcoming theslkes or any other problems encountered in conoestith pending or potential acquisitiol
Our inability to overcome these risks could havedwerse effect on levels of reported net incomiyn on equity and return on assets, an
ability to achieve our business strategy and maintearket value.

We are subject to certain risks related to FDIC-&sed acquisitions.

The success of past FDIC-assisted acquisitionsaapd-DIC-assisted acquisitions in which we mayipigate in the future, will depend on a
number of factors, including our ability to:

. fully integrate, and to integrate successfully, tih@nches acquired into bank operatic

. limit the outflow of deposits held by new customiershe acquired branches and to successfullyrretad manage interest-
earning assets (loans) acquired in F-assisted acquisition

. retain existing deposits and to generate new istezarning assets in the geographic areas preyisasled by the acquired
banks;

. effectively compete in new markets in which we dat previously have a presen

. successfully deploy the cash received in the FDi§lséed acquisitions into assets bearing suffilgidngh yields without
incurring unacceptable credit or interest rate;!

. control the incremental non-interest expense frioenatcquired branches in a manner that enablesmaitdain a favorable
overall efficiency ratio

. retain and attract the appropriate personnel fbtsia acquired branches; a

. earn acceptable levels of interest and -interest income, including fee income, from thewaeg branches

As with any acquisition involving a financial ingtiion, particularly one involving the transferafarge number of bank branches (as is often
the case with FDIC-assisted acquisitions), therg beahigher than average levels of service disomgtthat would cause inconveniences or
potentially increase the effectiveness of compefiimgncial institutions in attracting our customdrgegrating the acquired branches could
present unique challenges and opportunities bec#ithe nature of the transactions. Integratioore$fwill also likely divert our managemest’
attention and resources. It is not known whethemiliebe able to integrate acquired branches swsfaélg, and the integration process could
result in the loss of key employees, the disruptibangoing business or inconsistencies in starglahtrols, procedures and policies that
adversely affect our ability to maintain relatioipghwith clients, customers, depositors and empsya to achieve the anticipated benefits of
the FDIC-assisted acquisitions. We may also enavuntexpected difficulties or costs during inteigrathat could materially adversely affect
our earnings and financial condition. Additionallye may be unable to compete effectively in thekeiaareas previously served by the
acquired branches or to manage any growth resutimg FDIC-assisted acquisitions effective
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Our willingness and ability to grow acquired braesliollowing FDIC-assisted acquisitions dependeresal factors, most importantly the
ability to retain certain key personnel that weetor transfer in connection with FDIC-assisted #sitians. Our failure to retain these
employees could adversely affect the success oE€Fi3kisted acquisitions and our future growth.

Our ability to continue to receive benefits of oupss Sharing Agreements with the FDIC is conditich@pon compliance with certain
requirements under the Purchase and Assumption Agreents.

Pursuant to the Purchase and Assumption Agreemenssgned in connection with our FDIC-assisted &itjons of USA Bank and ISN Bank
(“Purchase and Assumption Agreements”), we ard#meficiary of loss sharing arrangements with théd~(the “Loss Sharing Agreements”)
that call for the FDIC to fund a portion of its $&s on a majority of the assets acquired in cororeetith the transactions. Our ability to
recover a portion of losses and retain the losergh@rotection is subject to compliance with cert@quirements imposed on us in the
Purchase and Assumption Agreements. The requirsnoéthie Loss Sharing Agreements relate primagilipan servicing standards
concerning the assets covered by the Loss Shagngefents (the “Covered Assets”), as well as olgithe consents of the FDIC to engage
in certain corporate transactions that may be ddamder the agreements to constitute a transféredibss sharing benefits. For example,
FDIC approval will be required for any merger wealartake that would result in the pre-merger shddgls of such entity owning less than
sixty-six and two/thirds percent (66.66%) of theiiggof the surviving entity.

As the loan servicing standards evolve, we may gapee difficulties in complying with the requirents of the Loss Sharing Agreements,
which could result in Covered Assets losing somalloof their loss sharing coverage. In accordanmite the terms of the Loss Sharing
Agreements, we are subject to audits by the FDIQuigh its designated agent. The required termBeof.bss Sharing Agreements are
extensive and failure to comply with any of thedglines could result in a specific asset or grdugssets losing their loss sharing coverage.

In such instances in which the consent of the FidI@quired under the Purchase and Assumption Ageats, the FDIC may withhold its
consent to such transactions or may conditionatsent on terms that we do not find acceptablerelban be no assurance that the FDIC will
grant its consent or condition its consent on tettmas we find acceptable. If the FDIC does not gisnconsent to a transaction we would like
to pursue, or conditions its consent on termswheatlo not find acceptable, this may cause us nehgmge in a corporate transaction that migt
otherwise benefit shareholders or to pursue sucdinaaction without obtaining the FDIC’s conserttjck could result in termination of the
Loss Sharing Agreements with the FDIC.

FDIC-assisted acquisition opportunities may not lzege available and increased competition may makadre difficult for us to bid on
failed bank transactions on terms considered todmeeptable

Our nearterm business strategy includes consideration i@l acquisitions of failing banks that the FOitans to place in receivership. 1
FDIC may not place banks that meet our strategjieatibes into receivership. Failed bank transactiare attractive opportunities in part
because of loss sharing arrangements with the FERAOimit the acquirer's downside risk on the hased loan portfolio and, apart from our
assumption of deposit liabilities, we have sigrifit discretion as to the non-deposit liabilitiesttive assume. In addition, assets purchased
from the FDIC are marked to their fair value andanany cases there is little or no addition to goiidwising from an FDIC-assisted
acquisition. The bidding process for failing baeksild become very competitive, and the increaseapetition may make it more difficult for
us to bid on terms we consider to be acceptablkehé&iy all FDIC-assisted acquisitions would requiseto obtain applicable regulatory
approval.

If we do not open new branches as planned or do achieve profitability on new branches, earnings ynbe reduced

We plan to open approximately four to six new blasceach year over the next few years in and arounthrget markets of southeastern
Pennsylvania, New Jersey, New York, Maryland, Catinet, Virginia and Delaware. These plans may geaihe opening of new branche
subject to regulatory approvals. We cannot pregiatther the banking regulators will agree with grtowth plans or if or when they will
provide the necessary branch approvals. Numeratarfacontribute to the performance of a new brasghh as the ability to select a suitable
location, competition, our ability to hire and rietgualified personnel, and the effectiveness afroarketing strategy. It takes time for a new
branch to generate significant deposits and lodumve to offset expenses, some of which, like sasasind occupancy expense, are relatively
fixed costs. The initial cost, including capitabaspurchases, for each new branch to open would &eange of approximately $200,000 to
$250,000. Additionally, there can be no assurahaeany of these new branches will ever becometpbié. During the period of time befor
branch can become profitable, operating a branémegatively impact net income.

To the extent that we are unable to increase lodmough organic loan growth, we may be unable tocsgssfully implement our growth
strategy, which could materially and adversely affess.

In addition to growing our business through strategquisitions, we also intend to grow our bussntbsough organic loan growth. While loan
growth has been strong and our loan balances havesised over the past two fiscal years, muchigfgowth has come from our warehouse
lending business. This business tends to be wolatitl we have seen strong growth due to the l@vdst rate environmental and strong
refinancing activity. If the bank is unsuccessfithaiversifying its loan originations, our resutioperations and financial condition could be
negatively impacted.
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We may not be able to effectively manage our grawth

Our future operating results depend to a largengxte our ability to successfully manage our ragpiowth. Our rapid growth has placed, and it
may continue to place, significant demands on @arations and management. Whether through additmuaisitions or organic growth, our
current plan to expand our business is dependemt apr ability to:

. continue to implement and improve our operatioo@dit, financial, management and other interrek controls and
processes and our reporting systems and proceituoeder to manage a growing number of client retehips;

. scale our technology platforr

. integrate our acquisitions and develop consistelitips throughout the various businesses;

. attract and retain management tal

We may not successfully implement improvementstantegrate, our management information and cosirstems, procedures and processe:
in an efficient or timely manner and may discoveficencies in existing systems and controls. Irtipalar, our controls and procedures must
be able to accommodate an increase in loan volamarious markets and the infrastructure that comitsnew banking centers and banks.
Thus, our growth strategy may divert managememb fooir existing franchises and may require us tariaclditional expenditures to expand
our administrative and operational infrastructund,af we are unable to effectively manage and goowbanking franchise, we could be
materially and adversely affected. In additiorwé& are unable to manage future expansion in ouatipas, we may experience compliance
and operational problems, have to slow the pacgafith, or have to incur additional expendituregdral current projections to support such
growth, any one of which could materially and adedy affect us. If we experience difficulties witke integration process, the anticipated
benefits of the particular acquisition may not ealized fully, or at all, or may take longer tolisathan expected. Additionally, we may be
unable to recognize synergies, operating efficemeind/or expected benefits within expected timeéisaand cost projections, or at all. We 1
also not be able to preserve the goodwill of anuaied financial institution.

Our acquisitions generally will require regulatorgpprovals, and failure to obtain them would restriour growth.

We intend to complement and expand our businegailguing strategic acquisitions of community bagkianchises. Generally, any
acquisition of target financial institutions, bangicenters or other banking assets by us will recapproval by, and cooperation from, a
number of governmental regulatory agencies, posgilluding the Federal Reserve, the OCC and thkCFBs well as state banking regulat
In acting on applications, federal banking regutatmnsider, among other factors:

. the effect of the acquisition on competitic

. the financial condition, liquidity, results of opions, capital levels and future prospects ofagyglicant and the bank(s)
involved;

. the quantity and complexity of previously consumadadcquisitions

. the managerial resources of the applicant andah&(g) involved

. the convenience and needs of the community, inetuthe record of performance under the CommuniipRstment Act
(which we refer to in this prospectus as“CRA");

. the effectiveness of the applicant in combating eydaundering activities; ar

. the extent to which the acquisition would resulgieater or more concentrated risks to the stalifithe United States

banking or financial syster

Such regulators could deny our application basethembove criteria or other considerations, whichild restrict our growth, or the regulat
approvals may not be granted on terms that argtaizle to us. For example, we could be requiresktbbanking centers as a condition to
receiving regulatory approvals, and such a contliti@y not be acceptable to us or may reduce thefibehany acquisition.

The success of future transactions will depend amr ability to successfully identify and consummadequisitions of banking franchises thi
meet our investment objectives. Because of therinéecompetition for acquisition opportunities ankde limited number of potential targets,
we may not be able to successfully consummate agitjans on attractive terms, or at all, that are cessary to grow our business.

Our acquisition history should be viewed in theteahof the recent opportunities available to ua assult of the confluence of our access to
capital at a time when market dislocations of histd proportions resulted in attractive asset &itjon opportunities. As conditions change,
we may prove to be unable to execute our acquis#titategy, which would materially and adversefgatfus. The success of future
transactions will depend on our ability to succelgfidentify and consummate transactions with ¢éatganking franchises that meet our
investment objectives. There are significant riagsociated with our ability to identify and sucdekg consummate these acquisitions. There
are a limited number of acquisition opportunitiasd
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we expect to encounter intense competition froneobianking organizations competing for acquisitiand also from other investment funds
and entities looking to acquire financial instituts. Many of these entities are well establishetlave extensive experience in identifying anc
consummating acquisitions directly or through &ffés. Many of these competitors possess ongoinkifigioperations with greater financial,
technical, human and other resources and accespital than we do, which could limit the acqumitiopportunities we pursue. Our
competitors may be able to achieve greater costgswthrough consolidating operations or otherptisan we could. These competitive
limitations give others an advantage in pursuingaie acquisitions. In addition, increased compatitnay drive up the prices for the
acquisitions we pursue and make the other acquisiirms more onerous, which would make the ideatibn and successful consummation
of those acquisitions less attractive to us. Coitgygstmay be willing to pay more for acquisitiolsih we believe are justified, which could
result in us having to pay more for them than wefgror to forego the opportunity. As a resultted foregoing, we may be unable to
successfully identify and consummate acquisitiamatractive terms, or at all, that are necessagraw our business.

We will generally establish the pricing of transas and the capital structure of banking franchisebe acquired by us on the basis of
financial projections for such banking franchidesgeneral, projected operating results will bedobsn the judgment of our management tean
In all cases, projections are only estimates afritesults that are based upon assumptions male tiine that the projections are developed
and the projected results may vary significantbnfractual results. General economic, political aratket conditions can have a material
adverse impact on the reliability of such projensioln the event that the projections made in cotimre with our acquisitions, or future
projections with respect to new acquisitions, aeatcurate, such inaccuracies could materiallyaaharsely affect us.

We may suffer losses due to minority investment®iher financial institutions or related companies.

From time to time, we may make or consider makimgomity investments in other financial institutioastechnology companies in the
financial services business. If we do so, we maybeaable to influence the activities of companmeshich we invest, and may suffer losses
due to these activities. Investments in foreign panies could pose additional risks as a resultsthdce, language barriers and potential lack
of information (for example, foreign institutiorincluding foreign financial institutions, may nag bbligated to provide as much information
regarding their operations as those in the UnitateS).

Some institutions we could acquire may have disted assets and there can be no assurance that Wéevable to realize the valu
predicted from these assets or that we will maké#isient provision for future losses in the valuef,cor accurately estimate the future wr-
downs taken in respect of, these assets.

The decline in real estate values in many markatssa the United States and weakened general edmoonditions may result in increases in
delinquencies and losses in the loan portfoliosathdr assets of financial institutions that weuegin amounts that exceed initial forecasts
developed during the due diligence investigatidorgo acquiring those institutions. In additiossat values may be impaired, in the future

to factors that cannot currently be predicted,udiig significant deterioration in economic cormfits and further declines in collateral values
and credit quality indicators. Any of these everusld adversely affect the financial conditionpiidjty, capital position and value of
institutions acquired and of our business as a &Halrther, as a registered bank holding compémye iacquire bank subsidiaries, they may
become subject to cross-guaranty liability undegrliapble banking law. If we do so and any of theefing adverse events occur with respect
to one subsidiary, they may adversely affect osiubsidiaries. Current economic conditions havetetean uncertain environment with respec
to asset valuations and there is no certaintyvteatvill be able to sell assets of target institngipeven if it is determined to be in our best
interests to do so. The institutions we will targety have substantial amounts of asset classeghfoh there is currently limited or no
marketability.

As a result of an investment or acquisition trangam, we may be required to take wr-downs or write-offs, restructuring and impairment
or other charges that could have a significant ndiy& effect on our financial condition and resulisf operations.

We conduct due diligence investigations of targstiiutions we intend to acquire. Intensive dugegdiice is time consuming and expensive du
to the operations, accounting, finance and legafiggsionals who must be involved in the due dil@eprocess. Even if extensive due diligenc
is conducted on a target institution with which nvay be combined, this diligence may not reveainaterial issues that may affect a particulal
target institution, and factors outside our contnmothe control of the target institution may ladgise. If, during the diligence process, we fail t
identify issues specific to a target institutiontlee environment in which the target institutioreogtes, we may be forced to later write down ol
write off assets, restructure operations or inoysdirment or other charges that could result imrépg losses. These charges may also occur
we are not successful in integrating and manadiagperations of the target institution with whiga combine. In addition, charges of this
nature may cause us to violate net worth or otbeeigants to which we may be subject as a resassiiming preexisting debt held by a targef
institution or by virtue of obtaining debt finangin

Resources could be expended in considering or eatihg potential investment or acquisition transaetis that are not consummated, whi
could materially and adversely affect subsequerteatpts to locate and acquire or merge with anottheisiness.
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We anticipate that the investigation of each sjpetafrget institution and the negotiation, draftangd execution of relevant agreements,
disclosure documents and other instruments williregsubstantial management time and attentiorsabdtantial costs for accountants,
attorneys and others. If a decision is made nobtoplete a specific investment or acquisition teatisn, the costs incurred up to that point for
the proposed transaction likely would not be recable. Furthermore, even if an agreement is reandlating to a specific target institution,
we may fail to consummate the investment or actjoistransaction for any number of reasons, incigdhose beyond our control. Any such
event will result in a loss of the related costauimed, which could materially and adversely affedisequent attempts to locate and acquire o
merge with another institution.

Risks Relating to the Regulation of Our Industry

The enactment of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refoand Consumer Protection Act of 2010 may have a matedverse effect on our
business.

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signed into teenDtodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Etiote Act of 2010 (which we refer
to as the “Dodd-Frank Act”), which imposes sigrdifit regulatory and compliance changes. The keytsffgf the Dodd-Frank Act on our
business are:

. changes to regulatory capital requireme
. exclusion of hybrid securities, including trust fereed securities, issued on or after May 19, 204 tier 1 capital
. creation of new government regulatory agenciesh(siscthe Financial Stability Oversight Council, @hivill oversee

systemic risk, and the Consumer Financial ProtedBioreau, which will develop and enforce rulestiank and non-bank
providers of consumer financial product

. potential limitations on federal preemptic

. changes to deposit insurance assessm

. regulation of debit interchange fees we e

. changes in retail banking regulations, includingeptial limitations on certain fees we may chaiaye]
. changes in regulation of consumer mortgage loagir@iion and risk retentiol

In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act restricts the dbibf banks to engage in certain proprietary trgdinto sponsor or invest in private equity or
hedge funds. The Dodd-Frank Act also contains gioms designed to limit the ability of insured dsipary institutions, their holding
companies and their affiliates to conduct certaias and derivatives activities and to take cepaimcipal positions in financial instruments.

Some provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act became dffeémmediately upon its enactment. Many provisjdrevever, will require regulations
to be promulgated by various federal agenciesdermto be implemented, some of which have beengsexpby the applicable federal agen:
The provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act may have weridied effects, which will not be clear until implkemation. The changes resulting from
the Dodd-Frank Act could limit our business act@st require changes to certain of our businesstipes, impose upon us more stringent
capital, liquidity and leverage requirements orestfise materially and adversely affect us. Thesaghs may also require us to invest
significant management attention and resourcesdtuate and make any changes necessary to comghlynesv statutory and regulatory
requirements. Failure to comply with the new regients could also materially and adversely affecmy changes in the laws or regulations
or their interpretations could be materially adeeis investors in our Voting Common Stock. For aentetailed description of the Dodldank
Act, see “Supervision and Regulation — Changesaiwd, Regulations or Policies and the Dodd-Frank”Act

We operate in a highly regulated environment ancetlaws and regulations that govern our operatioesrporate governance, executive
compensation and accounting principles, or changeshem, or our failure to comply with them, coulehaterially and adversely affect us.

We are subject to extensive regulation, supervjsaod legislation that govern almost all aspectsusfoperations. Intended to protect
customers, depositors and the Deposit Insurancd ghe “DIF"), these laws and regulations, amorfteomatters, prescribe minimum capital
requirements, impose limitations on the businesisiies in which we can engage, limit the dividenat distributions that we can pay, restrict
the ability of institutions to guarantee our deltd impose certain specific accounting requirementss that may be more restrictive and may
result in greater or earlier charges to earninggductions in our capital than GAAP. Compliancémaws and regulations can be difficult and
costly, and changes to laws and regulations oftggose additional compliance costs. Our failurecimly with these laws and regulations,
even if the failure follows good faith effort orfiects a difference in interpretation, could subjegto restrictions on our business activities,
fines and other penalties, any of which could mallgrand adversely affect us. Further, any newslamles and regulations could make
compliance more difficult or expensive and alsoematly and adversely affect us.

The FDIC's restoration plan and the related incread assessment rate could materially and adversélcaus.
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The FDIC insures deposits at FDIC-insured depogsitwstitutions up to applicable limits. The amowifia particular institution’s deposit
insurance assessment is based on that institutisi’slassification under an FDIC risk-based assent system. An institution’s risk
classification is assigned based on its capitadlfesnd the level of supervisory concern the iatstih poses to its regulators. Market
developments have significantly depleted the DIEhefFDIC and reduced the ratio of reserves toragsdeposits. As a result of recent
economic conditions and the enactment of the DadeMEACt, the FDIC has increased the deposit insigassessment rates and thus raised
deposit insurance premiums for insured depositastitutions. If these increases are insufficiemttfi@ DIF to meet its funding requirements,
there may need to be further special assessmeirtsreases in deposit insurance premiums. We arergky unable to control the amount of
premiums that we are required to pay for FDIC iasge. If there are additional bank or financiatitotion failures, we may be required to pay
even higher FDIC premiums than the recently inerddavels. Any future additional assessments, as@e or required prepayments in FDIC
insurance premiums may materially and adversebcafis, including by reducing our profitability loniting our ability to pursue certain
business opportunities.

Federal banking agencies periodically conduct exaraiions of our business, including compliance withws and regulations, and our
failure to comply with any supervisory actions tdiigh we become subject as a result of such examora could materially and adverse
affect us.

Federal banking agencies periodically conduct eratitns of our business, including our compliand vaws and regulations. If, as a result
of an examination, a federal banking agency wedetermine that the financial condition, capitalaerces, asset quality, earnings prospects,
management, liquidity or other aspects of any ofaperations had become unsatisfactory, or thaCtirapany or its management was in
violation of any law or regulation, it may take anmber of different remedial actions as it deemg@miate. These actions include the power tt
enjoin “unsafe or unsound” practices, to requiferahtive actions to correct any conditions resigtfrom any violation or practice, to issue an
administrative order that can be judicially enfatce direct an increase in our capital, to restiir growth, to assess civil monetary penalties
against our officers or directors, to remove officend directors and, if it is concluded that scehditions cannot be corrected or there is an
imminent risk of loss to depositors, to terminate deposit insurance. If we become subject to seghlatory actions, we could be materially
and adversely affected.

The Federal Reserve may require us to commit capiésources to support our subsidiary banks.

As a matter of policy, the Federal Reserve, whidm@nes us and our subsidiaries, expects a baukngotompany to act as a source of
financial and managerial strength to a subsidiamnkband to commit resources to support such surgibank. Under the “source of strength”
doctrine, the Federal Reserve may require a balgkrigopcompany to make capital injections into aibled subsidiary bank and may charge
bank holding company with engaging in unsafe arsbund practices for failure to commit resourcesuch a subsidiary bank. In addition, the
Dodd-Frank Act directs the federal bank regulatonequire that all companies that directly or redily control an insured depository
institution serve as a source of strength for tistitution. Under this requirement, we could beuregf to provide financial assistance to
Customers Bank or any other subsidiary banks weaaayin the future should they experience finandiatress.

A capital injection may be required at times whendo not have the resources to provide it and thiereve may be required to borrow the
funds or raise additional equity capital from thirarties. Any loans by a holding company to itssidilary bank are subordinate in right of
payment to deposits and to certain other indebtdlokthe subsidiary bank. In the event of a baslllihg company’s bankruptcy, the
bankruptcy trustee will assume any commitment lgyttblding company to a federal bank regulatory egém maintain the capital of a
subsidiary bank. Moreover, bankruptcy law provittet claims based on any such commitment will b#led to a priority of payment over t
claims of the holding company’s general unsecureditors, including the holders of its indebtednésyy financing that must be done by the
holding company in order to make the required ehpijection may be difficult and expensive and may be available on attractive terms, or
at all, which likely would have a material adveedtect on us.

The short-term and long-term impact of the new rdgtory capital standards and the forthcoming newytal rules on U.S. banks is
uncertain.

On September 12, 2010, the Group of Governors aatislof Supervision, the oversight body of the Basenmittee on Banking Supervisic

announced an agreement to a strengthened setitdlcaguirements for internationally active barkiorganizations in the United States and
around the world, known as Basel Ill. Basel lllre@ses the requirements for minimum common equiilyimum tier 1 capital, and minimum
total capital, to be phased in over time untilyfydhased in by January 1, 2019.

In November 2012, the Federal Reserve delayedatigaly 2013 effective date of Basel lllI's propobadk capital buffer rules, and did not
provide a substitute date for effectiveness. This. Regulator approved proposal would substantatgnd the regulatory risk-based capital
rules applicable to the Bancorp and the Bank. Thpgsed rules implement the “Basel 111" regulatoapital reforms and changes required by
the Dodd-Frank Act.

Various provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act increase ¢apital requirements of bank holding comparsesh as Customers Bancorp, and non-
bank financial companies that are supervised by#ueral Reserve. The leverage and risk-basedatagtios of these entities may not be
lower than the leverage and risk-based capitadsdtr insured depository institutions. In partarilbank holding companies, many of which
have long relied on trust preferred securities esmaponent of their regulatory capital, will no tgar be permitted to count trust preferred
securities toward their tier 1 capital. While thasBl 11l changes and other regulatory capital reguénts will likely result in generally higher
regulatory capital standards, it is not known & ttme how any new standards will ultimately bglégd to us and any bank subsidiaries.
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We face a risk of noncompliance and enforcementiaotwith the Bank Secrecy Act and other anti-monkeyindering statutes and
regulations.

The federal Bank Secrecy Act, the Uniting and Sjtleening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Riegd to Intercept and Obstruct
Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “PATRIOT Act”) and othlaws and regulations require financial instituspamong other duties, to institute and
maintain an effective anti-money laundering progeard file suspicious activity and currency tranigarcteports as appropriate. The federal
Financial Crimes Enforcement Network, establishgthle U.S. Treasury Department to administer thekB2ecrecy Act, is authorized to
impose significant civil money penalties for viatats of those requirements, and has recently engiageoordinated enforcement efforts with
the individual federal banking regulators, as vaslthe U.S. Department of Justice, Drug Enforcerdntinistration, and Internal Revenue
Service. There is also increased scrutiny of caamgk with the rules enforced by the Office of FgmeAssets Control (the “OFAC"). If our
policies, procedures and systems are deemed defai¢he policies, procedures and systems ofittamé€ial institutions that we have already
acquired or may acquire in the future are deficieugt would be subject to liability, including finesd regulatory actions (such as restrictior
our ability to pay dividends and the necessitylitam regulatory approvals to proceed with certapects of our business plan, including our
acquisition plans), which could materially and adedy affect us. Failure to maintain and implemeftquate programs to combat money
laundering and terrorist financing could also haggous reputational consequences for us.

Federal, state and local consumer lending laws mragtrict our ability to originate certain mortgag®ans or increase our risk of liability
with respect to such loans and could increase oostof doing business.

Federal, state and local laws have been adoptédrhantended to eliminate certain lending prasiconsidered “predatory.” These laws
prohibit practices such as steering borrowers dwayg more affordable products, selling unnecessayrance to borrowers, repeatedly
refinancing loans and making loans without a reablanexpectation that the borrowers will be ablesfmay the loans irrespective of the value
of the underlying property. It is our policy notritake predatory loans, but these laws create ttemfial for liability with respect to our lendil
and loan investment activities. They increase ost of doing business and, ultimately, may prewsnrom making certain loans and cause us
to reduce the average percentage rate or the auidtéees on loans that we do make.

Risks Relating to Our Voting Common Stock

There is currently no public market for our Votin@ommon Stock and an active, liquid market for ouotthg Common Stock may not
develop.

There is no established public market for our V@t@ommon Stock and an active, liquid trading maf&ebur Voting Common Stock may r
develop. Accordingly, shareholders may not be &bkell their shares of our Voting Common Stocthatvolume, prices and times desired.
We cannot predict the extent to which investorregewill lead to an active trading market in owtivig Common Stock or how liquid that
market might become. A public trading market hawimg desired characteristics of depth, liquiditd anderliness depends upon the preser
the marketplace of willing buyers and sellers af ¥ating Common Stock at any given time, which prece will be dependent upon the
individual decisions of investors, over which weséao control. The lack of an established marketdtcbave a material adverse effect on the
value of our Voting Common Stock.

Even if an established trading market developsntheket price of our Voting Common Stock may behhigrolatile, which may make it
difficult for shareholders to sell their shareaf Voting Common Stock at the volume, prices ame$ desired. There are many factors that
may impact the market price of our Voting Commoocgt including, without limitation:

. general market conditions, including price leveld aolume;

. national, regional and local economic or businesslitions;

. the effects of, and changes in, trade, monetaryfiaadl policies, including the interest rate pmiof the Federal Resen

. our actual or projected financial condition, ligityd results of operations, cash flows and capieéls;

. changes in, or failure to meet, our publicly diseld expectations as to our future financial andaiey performance

. publication of research reports about us, our cditops or the financial services industry generatiiychanges in, or failure

to meet, securities analysts’ estimates of oumfiie and operating performance, or lack of redeagports by industry
analysts or ceasing of covera

. market valuations, as well as the financial andatireg performance and prospects, of similar corgs

. future issuances or sales, or anticipated salesjrofommon stock or other securities convertibte br exchangeable or
exercisable for our common stor

. additions or departures of key personi

. the availability, terms and deployment of capi

. _the impac; of changes in financial services laws @gulations (including laws concerning taxes M@ securities and
insurance
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. unanticipated regulatory or judicial proceedingy] eelated liabilities and cost

. the timely implementation of services and prodigtsis and the acceptance of such services and gisolly customers

. our ability to continue to grow our business intdlypand through acquisitions and successful irsttégn of new or acquired
financial institutions, banking centers or othenlkiag assets while controlling cos

. compliance with laws and regulatory requirememsluding those of federal, state and local agen

. our failure to comply with the Sarbar-Oxley Act of 2002

. changes in accounting principles, policies and gjuiés;

. actual, potential or perceived accounting probleffexcting us;

. rapidly changing technolog'

. other economic, competitive, governmental, regmasmd technological factors affecting our opemasigpricing, products

and services; ar

. other news, announcements or disclosures (whethes bor others) related to us, our competitors,cone markets or the
financial services industr

The stock markets in general have experienced auteitfluctuations and volatility that has ofteselm unrelated to the operating performance
and prospects of particular companies. These braa#iet movements may materially and adversely affecmarket price of our Voting
Common Stock.

We do not expect to pay dividends on our Voting @oom Stock in the foreseeable future, and our ahiltb pay dividends is subject to
regulatory limitations.

We have not historically declared or paid dividendsour Voting Common Stock and we do not expeduiso in the near future. Any future
determination relating to dividend policy will beafe at the discretion of our board of directorsaitiddepend on a number of factors,
including earnings and financial condition, liqwidand capital requirements, the general econondcragulatory climate, ability to service &
equity or debt obligations senior to the Voting Goam Stock, and other factors deemed relevant bipdlaed of directors.

In addition, as a bank holding company, we areenilip general regulatory restrictions on the payoé cash dividends. Federal bank
regulatory agencies have the authority to proluhitk holding companies from engaging in unsafensound practices in conducting their
business, which depending on the financial condliéind liquidity of the holding company at the tireeuld include the payment of dividends.
Further, various federal and state statutory pronsslimit the amount of dividends that our banksdiaries can pay to us as its holding
company without regulatory approval. See “Market®pf Common Stock and Dividends — Dividends orindpCommon Stock” below for
further detail regarding restrictions on our abitib pay dividends.

We may issue additional shares of our common stotkhe future which could adversely affect the vawr voting power of the Voting
Common Stock.

Actual or anticipated issuances or sales of subatamounts of our common stock in the future dazduse the value of our Voting Common
Stock to decline significantly and make it mordidiflt for us to sell equity or equity-related seties in the future at a time and on terms that
we deem appropriate. The issuance of any shamsrafommon stock in the future also would, and gguglated securities could, dilute the
percentage ownership interest held by sharehopt@rsto such issuance. Actual issuances of oumgo€ommon Stock could also
significantly dilute the voting power of your VogrCommon Stock. In 2012, we issued 7,111,819 shdrésting Common Stock.
Additionally, it is currently anticipated that weallwssue approximately 3,255,000 shares of VofZgmmon Stock in connection with the
Acacia acquisition, and also an approximate aduttid, 100,000 shares of Voting Common Stock in eation with the CMS transaction.

We have also made grants of restricted stock anitisstock options with respect to shares of VoGiegimon Stock and Class B Non-Voting
Common Stock. We may also issue further egbéged awards in the future. As such shares aredsguon vesting and as such options me
exercised and the underlying shares are or becaraly iradeable, the value or voting power of ootilg Common Stock may be adversely
affected and our ability to sell more equity or igruelated securities could also be adverselyciée.

Except for Stock Option Agreements with certaingsiors as described below under “Outstanding Opiigmranted to Unaffiliated Institutional
Investors,” we are not required to offer any addiil equity securities to existing holders of owtidg Common Stock on a preemptive basis.
Therefore, additional common stock issuances, tiyrec through convertible or exchangeable se@sjtivarrants or options, will generally
dilute the holdings of our existing holders of \fmfiCommon Stock and such issuances or the peroagtguch issuances may reduce the
market price of our Voting Common Stock. Our preddrstock, if issued, would likely have a prefeeena distribution payments, periodically
or upon liquidation, which could eliminate or otivége limit our ability to make distributions to lugrs of our Voting Common Stock. Because
our decision to issue debt or equity securitiesmour other borrowings in the future will dependroarket conditions and other factors beyond
our control, the amount, timing, nature or sucadssur future capital raising efforts is uncertaiius, holders of our Voting Common Stock
bear the risk that our future issuances of deletgoiity securities or our incurrence of other botirms will negatively affect the value of our
Voting Common Stock.
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Future issuances of debt or equity securities, whiwould rank senior to our Voting Common Stock upar liquidation, and future
issuances of equity securities, which would dildtee holdings of our existing holders of Voting Conum and may be senior to our Voting
Common Stock for the purposes of making distribuigy periodically or upon liquidation, may negatiyeaffect the market price of our
Voting Common Stock.

In the future, we may issue debt or equity se@sitr incur other borrowings. Upon our liquidatibnlders of our debt securities and other
loans and preferred stock will receive a distribntof our available assets before holders of oumgaCommon Stock. If we incur debt in the
future, our future interest costs could increasd, adversely affect our liquidity, cash flows aedults of operations.

Provisions in our articles of incorporation and bglvs may inhibit a takeover of us, which could discage transactions that woul
otherwise be in the best interests of our sharetekiand could entrench management.

Provisions of our articles of incorporation andaws$, and applicable provisions of Pennsylvaniadad the federal Change in Bank Control
Act may delay, inhibit or prevent someone from gaircontrol of our business through a tender offesiness combination, proxy contest or
some other method even though some of our sharetsaldight believe a change in control is desirabihey might also increase the costs of
completing a transaction in which we acquire anotimancial services business, merge with anotimamicial institution, or sell our business to
another financial institution. These increasedsosuld reduce the value of the shares held bgloaireholders upon completion of these type:
of transactions.

Shareholders may be deemed to be acting in coneedtherwise in control of us and our bank subsidies, which could impose pric
approval requirements and result in adverse regolat consequences for such holders.

We are a bank holding company regulated by theraé&eserve. Any entity (including a “groupdmposed of natural persons) owning 25¢
more of a class of our outstanding shares of vattogk, or a lesser percentage if such holderaupgotherwise exercises a “controlling
influence” over us, may be subject to regulatiom 8sank holding company” in accordance with theB&olding Company Act of 1956, as
amended (the “BHCA"). In addition, (1) any bankdialy company or foreign bank with a U.S. presesaedquired to obtain the approval of
the Federal Reserve under the BHCA to acquiretair®% or more of a class of our outstanding shafevoting stock, and (2) any person
other than a bank holding company may be requaerbtain prior regulatory approval under the Chainggank Control Act to acquire or
retain 10% or more of our outstanding shares dhgatock. Any shareholder that is deemed to “athithe Company for bank regulatory
purposes would become subject to prior approvalirements and ongoing regulation and supervisiogh% holder may be required to divest
amounts equal to or exceeding 5% of the votingeshaf investments that may be deemed incompatiittebank holding company status, si
as an investment in a company engaged in non-fiakactivities. Regulatory determination of “coritrof a depository institution or holding
company is based on all of the relevant facts @edmstances. Potential investors are advisednswbwith their legal counsel regarding the
applicable regulations and requirements.

Our common stock owned by holders determined bgrék begulatory agency to be acting in concert wangldiggregated for purposes of
determining whether those holders have controllwdrak or bank holding company. Each shareholdezioiby control that is a “company”
would be required to register as a bank holdingmammy. “Acting in concert” generally means knowirgytiripation in a joint activity or
parallel action towards the common goal of acqgidontrol of a bank or a parent company, whetherobpursuant to an express agreement.
The manner in which this definition is applied mdlividual circumstances can vary and cannot alve@ygredicted with certainty. Many factors
can lead to a finding of acting in concert, inchglivhere: (i) the shareholders are commonly cdetiar managed; (ii) the shareholders are
parties to an oral or written agreement or undeditey regarding the acquisition, voting or transfecontrol of voting securities of a bank or
bank holding company; (iii) the shareholders eash stock in a bank and are also management officiaintrolling shareholders, partners or
trustees of another company; or (iv) both a shddelh@nd a controlling shareholder, partner, teistemanagement official of such sharehc
own equity in the bank or bank holding company.

The FDIC’s policy statement imposing restrictionsid criteria on private investors in failed bank aatgpitions will apply to us and our
investors.

On August 26, 2009, the FDIC issued a policy stat@nmposing restrictions and criteria on privateeistors in failed bank acquisitions. The
policy statement is broad in scope and both comatekpotentially ambiguous in its application. Inghcases it would apply to an investor
with more than 5% of the total voting power of ajaired depository institution or its holding compgabut in certain circumstances it could
apply to investors holding fewer voting shares. phkcy statement will be applied to us if we maldglitional failed bank acquisitions from
FDIC or if the FDIC changes its interpretation lo€ fpolicy statement or determines at some future tthat it should be applied because of our
circumstances.

Investors subject to the policy statement coulgadibited from selling or transferring their ingsts for three years. They also would be
required to provide the FDIC with information abd investor and all entities in the investor'sne@nship chain,
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including information on the size of the capitahduor funds, its diversification, its return prefilits marketing documents, and its managemer
team and business model. Investors owning 80% oe wictwo or more banks or savings associationdavoe required to pledge their
proportionate interests in each institution to srgearantee the FDIC against losses to the Dejmssitance Fund.

Under the policy statement, the FDIC also couldhirid investment through ownership structures iniray multiple investment vehicles that
are owned or controlled by the same parent comgamgstors that directly or indirectly hold 10%rapre of the equity of a bank or savings
association in receivership also would not be klégto bid to become investors in the deposit ligé$ of that failed institution. In addition, an
investor using ownership structures with entitlest tare domiciled in bank secrecy jurisdictions idawt be eligible to own a direct or indirect
interest in an insured depository institution usltéee investor’s parent company is subject to cefmgmsive consolidated supervision as
recognized by the Federal Reserve and the investers into certain agreements with the U.S. bagllators regarding access to information
maintenance of records and compliance with U.Skibgraws and regulations. If the policy statemapplies, we (including any failed bank
we acquire) could be required to maintain a ratidier 1 common equity to total assets of at |d&@8# for a period of 3 years, and thereafter
maintain a capital level sufficient to be well dafired under regulatory standards during the reamgiperiod of ownership of the investors.
Bank subsidiaries also may be prohibited from editemnany new credit to investors that own at 4886 of our equity.
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ltem 1B.  Unresolved Staff Comments

Not Applicable

Item 2. Properties
The table below summarizes our leases of brancloHiieg properties, by county, as of December 31,22 We do not currently own any real
property.
Bank Branches
County State Leasec
Berks (1) PA 4
Bucks PA 3
Chester (2 PA 3
Delaware PA 2
Mercer NJ 1
Westcheste NY 1
_ 14
Administrative Offices
County State Leasec
Berks (3) PA 4
Bucks (6) PA 1
Chester (2 PA 2
Mercer (4) NJ 1
Westchester (& NY 1
9

(1)
(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)
(6)

Includes the full service branch at 1001 Pererie, Wyomissing, PA as well as three branchesi@atthrough the Berkshire Bancorp,
Inc. acquisition. The lease on this location expire2015

Includes the corporate headquarters of CusteBank and a full service branch located in a fereting building at 99 Bridge St.,
Phoenixville, PA 19460, wherein we lease approxatya23,176 square feet on 3 floors. The lease rdhation expires in 2022. Also
includes the lease of 5,523 square feet of prorbl3 Kimberton Road in Phoenixville, Pennsylaanhere we maintain a full service
commercial bank branch and corporate offices. €aed on this location expires in 20

Includes the corporate headquarters of CusteBancorp and a full service branch located at BHrin Avenue, Wyomissing, PA. The
leased space covers a total of 9,604 square feistldase expires in 2015. Also, includes the a@trative offices for the corporate
lending group which is housed within the Exetemlofalocation and two other administrative offices €ompany personnel. The Exeter
lease expires in 2021 while the two leases on dh@rdstrative offices expire in 201

We lease 7,327 square feet of space in Hamiltow, dgsey from which we conduct our mortgage warsb@und retail lending activitie
The lease on this location expires in 2C

Represents administrative offices for Company persb The lease on this location expires in 2(

Represents administrative offices for Company pereb The lease on this location expires in 2(

The Bank branch locations, which range in size fepproximately 2,300 to 7,500 square feet, havgelean these locations which expire
between 2013 and 2022.

The total minimum cash lease payments for our otifseanches, administrative offices and mortgageehause lending locations amount to
approximately $181,000 per month.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Neither the Bancorp nor any of its subsidiaries fgrty to, nor is any of their property the subfgcany material legal proceedings other t
ordinary routine litigation incident to their bussses.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not Applicable.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market For Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and suer Purchases of Equity Securitie
Trading Market for Voting Common Stock

There is no established public trading market far\doting Common Stock or Class B Non-Voting Comn&inck as further described in
“ltem 1A. Risk Factors — Risks Relating to Our Voting Comm@&tock — There is currently no public market for oioting Common Stock
and an active, liquid market for our Voting Commdstock may not developgieginning at page 30 of this Form 10-K. We do nakena
market in our securities, nor do we attempt to tiagmprices for trades of such securities.

Market Price of Voting Common Stock

As of March 12, 2012, there were: (1) approxima#39 shareholders of record of our Voting Commarckand approximately 13
shareholders of record of our Class B Non-Votingn@mwmn Stock; and (2) 13,767,605 outstanding shdreardv/oting Common Stock and
4,691,897 outstanding shares of our Class B NomRgdtommon Stock.

The below chart shows the high and low sale pridesir Voting Common Stock known by managementateehoccurred, or bid quotations on
the OTC Pink Sheets, for the periods from JanuaB011 through December 31, 2012. These quotataftest interdealer prices, without re
mark-up, mark downs or commission and may not sepreactual transactions. Prices for March 31, 20idlJune 30, 2011 have been restate
to reflect the three for one consideration paidspant to the reorganization.

Quarter ended High (1) Low (1)
December 31, 2012 $18.2¢ $13.0(
September 30, 201 14.0C 13.9¢
June 30, 201 12.0(C 12.0(C
March 31, 201 12.0C 12.0C
December 31, 201 13.5( 13.5(
September 30, 201 — —

June 30, 201 15.0( 13.2(
March 31, 201: 16.5( 14.4(

(1) There are no brokerage firms that are activiketanakers in our Voting Common Stock or Class@ N/ oting Common Stock.
Consequently, information on current stock tradginiges is not readily available. There may haventsgitional transactions of which
management is unaware, and such transactions bau@doccurred at higher or lower prices. The cutrailing symbol of our Voting
Common Stock on the Pink Sheets is “CUUU". The tapbrted sale on the OTC Pink Sheets occurred ancivil2, 2013 at $16.50 per
share

Dividends on Voting Common Stock

Neither Customers Bancorp nor Customers Bank hidsgpg cash dividends on its shares of common siMekfollow a policy of retainini
earnings, if any, to increase our net worth andme=s and intend to continue to do so over the feextyears. We have not historically decla
or paid dividends on our Voting Common Stock anddeerot expect to do so in the near future. Anyreitdetermination relating to our
dividend policy will be made at the discretion afr doard of directors and will depend on a numbiéactors, including our earnings and
financial condition, liquidity and capital requiremts, the general economic and regulatory climmateability to service any equity or debt
obligations senior to Voting Common Stock, and ofhetors deemed relevant by our board of directersesently, for the reasons described
below, Customers Bank is not authorized to pay dagtends on its shares.

Dividend payments made by Customers Bank to iteetledders are subject to the Pennsylvania BankdeCthe Federal Deposit Insurance
Act, and the regulations of the Federal Reservedoa

The Pennsylvania Banking Code provides that cagbetids may be declared and paid only out of actated net earnings and that, prior to
the declaration of any dividend, if the surplusdfank is less than the amount of its capitalbtek shall, until surplus is equal to such amc
transfer to surplus an amount which is at leasptmeent of the net earnings of such bank for #réod since the end of the last fiscal year or
for any shorter period since the declaration oivaddnd. If the surplus of a bank is less tharyfifercent of the amount of capital, no dividend
may be declared or paid without the prior appr@fahe Pennsylvania Department of Banking and Seesiuntil such surplus is equal to fifty
percent of such bank’s capital.
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Under the Federal Reserve Act, if losses haveatiare been sustained by a bank equal to or inssxoéits undivided profits then on hand, nc
dividend is permitted; no dividends can be paidriramount greater than a bank’s net profit lesseloand bad debts. Cash dividends must be
approved by the Federal Reserve Board if the tdtall cash dividends declared by a bank in angrudér year, including the proposed cash
dividend, exceeds the total of such bank’s netifgrédr that year plus its retained net profitsnfrthe preceding two years less any required
transfers to surplus or a fund for the retiremdrmireferred stock, if any. The Federal Reserve Baand the Pennsylvania Department of
Banking and Securities each has the authority uteFederal Reserve Act to prohibit the paymermiash dividends by a bank when it
determines such payment to be an “unsafe or unsibamnking practice” under the then existing circlanses.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Act generally prediaii payments of dividends by any bank that idefault of any assessment of the FDIC.

The Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC have foandhinformal policies, which provide that insuresthks and bank holding companies
should generally pay dividends only out of currepérating earnings, with some exceptions. The Rédanking laws further limit the ability
of banks to pay dividends if they are not clasdifis well capitalized or adequately capitalized.

Registration of Shares Issued in Private Offerings

On February 4, 2013, we registered for resale amF®-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commis&@83,060 shares of Voting Common
Stock, and 2,413,603 shares of Class B Non-Votiogn@on Stock. These shares were previously issutiibifollowing private placements: a
September 20, 2012 private placement in which Vet aod issued an aggregate of 4,223,674 sharas dfaing Common Stock and
1,847,755 shares of our Class B Non-Voting Commoeksto certain investors pursuant to a stock pasehagreement; the July and August
2012 sales and issuances of an aggregate of 18#éhares of our Voting Common Stock to certaiegtors in private placements pursuar
stock purchase agreements; and a September 3Q,@04te placement in which we sold and issued@d®shares of our Voting Common
Stock and 565,848 shares of our Class B Non-Vdliagpmon Stock to one investor pursuant to a stockhmse agreement.

Registration of Shares to be Offered to Employees Employee Benefit Plans

On February 8, 2013, we registered on Form S-802080 shares of our Voting Common Stock to be dsugsuant to awards and grants,
under the Amended and Restated Customers Banoar£004 Incentive Equity and Deferred Compensagiam, 3,333,000 shares of Voting
Common Stock to be issued pursuant to awards armsggunder the Customers Bancorp, Inc. 2010 Stetio®Plan, and 500,000 shares of
Voting Common Stock to be issued pursuant to awandsgrants under the Customers Bancorp, Inc. BRegsgnition and Retention
Program.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

Below is a chart that provides information relattogall unregistered offers of securities by u2@12. The number of securities referenced
of the date of issuance in the applicable offeriftgese offers and sales were made solely to ateceitivestors as defined by Rule 501 of
Regulation D promulgated under the Securities pgtsuant to an exemption from registration undde®06 of Regulation D, and no
advertising or general solicitation was employed.

AGGREGATE PURCHASE
PRICE PAID OR OTHER DATE OF COMPLETION

TYPES AND NUMBERS CONSIDERATION GIVEN TYPES OF
OFFERING OF SECURITIES SOLD FOR SECURITIES OF OFFERING INVESTORS
September 2012 Private Placement 4,223,678 shares of $80,750,062, net of fee:  September 20, 201 Accredited
Voting Common of $4,250,000 and
Stock Institutiona
Investors

1,847,755 shares of
Class B Non-Voting
Common Stocl

July and August 2012 Private Placements 1,040,386 shares of  $13,835,938, net of fee: August 31, 2012  Accredited

Voting Common of $719,062 and

Stock Institutiona
Investors
including
certain
Customers
Bancorp
Directors
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EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS

The following table provides certain summary infation as of December 31, 2012 concerning our cosgiem plans (including
individual compensation arrangements) under whinglress of our common stock may be issued.

Number Of
Securities
Remaining
Available For
Future

Number Of Issuance
Securities Under Equity
To Be Compensatior
Issued Upor Weighted-
Exercise Of Average Plans
Outstanding Exercise (Excluding
Options, Price Of Securities
Warrants Outstanding Reflected
And In The First
Plan Category Rights(#) Options ($) Column)(#)
Equity Compensation Plans Approved By Security
Holders (1) 2,569,94: (1) $ 12.4¢(2) 3,370,55 (3)(4)
Equity Compensation Plans Not Approved By
Security Holder: N/A N/A N/A

(1) Includes shares of our common stock that magdieed upon the exercise of awards granted uhdezG04 Plan and the 2010 Stock
Option Plan and the BRRP. Also includes 23,41 1eshtr be issued in February 2013 under the 200%&3l@ompensation to Bancorp
and Bank directors for services rendel

(2) Calculation does not include restricted stock uaitd stock awards for which, by definition, thexésts no exercise pric

(3) Includes shares of our common stock underlgwgrds that may be granted under the 2004 Plathen2010 Plan. However, due to the
limitation of only awarding 15% of any stock issaaa by us under the 2010 Plan, only 595,482 sltarebe issued as of December 31,
2012 under the 2010 Plan (instead of the 1,42888@ded in the table above which is based upor8{883,333 share maximum
authorization under the 2010 Plan). See “Execufiempensation — Amended and Restated 2010 StockrOptan” in our proxy
statement for more details on this 15% limitati

(4) This amount does not include securities avhelédry future issuance under the BRRP as there specific number of shares reserved
under this plan. By its terms, the plan limits #veard of restricted stock units to the amount ef¢dhsh bonuses paid to the participants i
the BRRP. Se"Executive Compensatic— Bonus Recognition and Retention Prog” in our proxy statement for more deta
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Date

Customers Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

The following table presents Customers Bancorpisreary consolidated financial data. We derived alafhce sheet and income statement
data for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2010, 2009, and 2008 from our audited financialkstents. The summary consolidated
financial data should be read in conjunction wéthd is qualified in their entirety by, our financsgatements and the accompanying notes anc
the other information included elsewhere in thisuAal Report. Certain amounts reported in this tablee been reclassified to conform to the
2012 presentation. These reclassifications didsigptificantly impact Bancorp’s financial position @sults of operations.

2012 2011 (1) 2010 (2) 2009 2008
(dollars in thousands, except per share informa

For the Year ended December 31

Interest incom: $ 9354: $ 61,248 $ 30,907 $ 13,48¢ $ 15,50:
Interest expens 21,76 22,46¢ 11,54¢ 6,33€ 8,13¢
Net interest incom 71,78 38,78 19,36 7,15( 7,36¢
Provision for loan losse 16,27: 9,45( 10,39" 11,77¢ 611
Bargain purchase gains on acquisiti 0 0 40,254 0 0
Total non-interest income (loss), excluding bargainchase
gains 31,23( 13,42 5,41¢ 1,04: (350
Total nor-interest expens 50,65! 36,88t 26,16¢ 9,65( 7,654
Income (loss) before tax 36,09( 5,86¢ 28,46¢ (13,23 (1,25))
Income tax expense (bene! 12,27: 1,83t 4,731 0 (42€)
Net income (loss 23,81¢ 4,03¢ 23,73¢ (13,239 (82%)
Net income (loss) attributable to common sharehsl| 23,81¢ 3,99( 23,73t (13,239 (825)
Basic earnings (loss) per share 1.7¢ 0.4C 3.7¢ (10.99) (1.29)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 1.7: 0.3¢ 3.6¢ (10.99) (1.29)
At Period End
Total asset $ 3,201,23. $ 2,077,53 $1,374,40° $ 349,76(  $274,03¢
Cash and cash equivalel 186,01t 73,57( 238,72: 68,80 6,29t
Investment securities (- 129,09: 398,68: 205,82¢ 44,58¢ 32,06:
Loans held for sale (¢ 1,439,88! 174,99¢ 199,97( 0 0
Loans receivable not covered by Loss Sharing Agesdsn
with the FDIC (5) 1,216,94. 1,215,11 514,08 230,25¢ 223,75:
Allowance for loan losse 25,831 15,03: 15,12¢ 10,03 2,87¢
Loans receivable covered by Loss Sharing Agreemwitits
the FDIC (5) 107,52¢ 126,27t 164,88! 0 0
FDIC loss sharing receivable ( 12,34: 13,071 16,70: 0 0
Deposits 2,440,81! 1,583,18 1,245,691 313,92° 237,84
Borrowings 471,00( 331,00( 11,00( 0 0
Shareholder equity 269,47! 147,74¢ 105,14( 21,50 16,84¢
Tangible common equity (¢ 265,78t 144,04: 105,14( 21,50: 15,86¢
Selected Ratios and Share Dat
Return on average ass 1.02% 0.2% 3.4(% (4.69% (0.30%
Return on average equi 12.6%% 3.0€% 41.2% (65.39% (4.99%
Book value per share ( $ 14.6C $ 13.0: $ 1252 $ 1168 $ 25.0C
Tangible book value per common share (3 $ 14.4C % 126¢ $ 1252 $ 1168 $ 23.5¢
Common shares outstanding 18,459,50 11,347,68 8,398,01. 1,840,90: 673,69:
Net interest margi 3.2t% 2.47% 2.7¢% 2.62% 2.82%
Equity to asset 8.42% 7.11% 7.65% 6.14% 6.15%
Tangible common equity to tangible assets 8.31% 6.95% 7.65% 6.14% 5.7%
Tier 1 leverage rati— Customers Ban 7.78% 7.11% 8.61% 6.6€% 6.21%
Tier 1 leverage rati— Customers Bancor 9.3(% 7.31% n/e n/e n/e
Tier 1 risk-based capital rati- Customers Ban 8.5(% 9.6€6% 19.65% 9.7€¢% 7.81%
Tier 1 risk-based capital rati- Customers Bancot 10.22% 10.01% n/e n/a n/e
Total risk-based capital rati- Customers Ban 9.5%% 10.7¢% 21.1% 11.7% 10.5(%
Total risk-based capital rati- Customers Bancot 11.2€% 11.1% n/e n/a n/e
Asset Quality — Non-covered Assets (5)
Non-performing loan: $ 2650 $ 3325¢ $ 27,058 $ 19,15( $ 7,A7¢
Non-performing loans to total n-covered loan 2.1&% 2.7%% 5.2¢% 8.32% 3.21%
Other real estate ownt $ 4,008 $ 731€ $ 1906 $ 1,158 $ 1,651¢
Non-performing assel 30,50 40,57¢ 28,96 20,30¢ 8,69¢
Non-performing non-covered assets to total non-@x/e
asset: 2.5(% 3.32% 5.61% 5.81% 3.1%%
Allowance for loan losses to total r-covered loans (7 1.2(% 1.24% 2.94% 4.36% 1.2¢%



Allowance for loan losses to non-performing nonemed

loans (7) 55.02% 45.2(% 55.92% 52.3% 40.0¢%
Net charg-offs $ 5466 $ 9547 $ 525 $ 4622 $ 19t
Net charg-offs to average nc-covered loan 0.45% 1.1(% 1.41% 2.04% 0.0¢%

Asset Quality— Covered Assets (5

Non-performing loan: $ 10,50¢ $ 6,99 $ 8,08 $ 0 3 0
Non-performing loans to total covered log 22.6% 16.72% 9.1&% 0.0(% 0.0(%
Other real estate ownt $ 4,10¢ $ 6,166 $ 534: $ 0 % 0
Non-performing assei 14,61 13,15¢ 13,42¢ 0 0
Non-performing assets to total covered as 13.0%% 9.94% 7.8% 0.0(% 0.0(%

(1) On September 17, 2011, we completed our acquisiti@erkshire Bancorp, Inc. All transactions sitise acquisition date are includec
our consolidated financial statemer
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(2)
(3)

(4)
()

(6)
(7)

(8)

During the third quarter of 2010, we acquire® banks in FDIC assisted transactions. All tratieas since the acquisition dates are
included in our consolidated financial stateme

Effective September 17, 2011, Customers Baokgamnized into the holding company structure purstmwhich all of the issued and
outstanding common stock of the Bank was exchangealthree to one basis for common stock of Custe®ancorp. All share and per
share information for periods prior to the reorgation has been restated retrospectively to refhecteorganizatior

Includes availab-for-sale and he-to-maturity investment securitie

Certain loans and other real estate owned (ithestas “covered”) acquired in the two FDIC assidransactions in 2010 are subject to
loss sharing agreements between Customers BantharkDIC. If certain provisions within the loss 8hg agreements are maintained,
the FDIC will reimburse Customers Bank for 80%la# uinpaid principal balance and certain expenséssg\sharing receivable was
recorded based upon the credit evaluation of theieed loan portfolio and the estimated periodsémayments. Loans receivable and
assets that are not subject to the loss shariregeamgmt are described“nor-covere(’.

In 2012, loans held for sale includes $1,248,93/oftgage warehouse loans at fair va

Allowance for loan losses used for this caltalaexcludes the portion related to purchasedienegbaired (“PCI”)loans of $11.3 milliol
in 2012.

Our selected financial data contains non-GARRricial measures calculated using non-GAAP amodihtsse measures include tangible
common equity and tangible book value per commameshnd tangible common equity to tangible asdasagement uses these non-
GAAP measures to present historical periods coniyata the current period presentation. In addjtige believe the use of these non-
GAAP measures provides additional clarity when ssisg our financial results and use of equity. €hdisclosures should not be viewed
as substitutes for results determined to be inrdecwe with GAAP, nor are they necessarily comgarabnon-GAAP performance
measures that may be presented by other entitiecaléulate tangible common equity by excludingered stock and goodwill from
total shareholde’ equity. Tangible book value per common share edaalgible common equity divided by common shardstanding.

A reconciliation of shareholders’ equity to tangildommon equity is set forth below.

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(dollars in thousands, except per share datz

Shareholder equity $ 269,47¢ $ 147,74¢ $ 105,14( $ 21,500 $ 16,84¢
Less:
Preferred stoc 0 0 0 0 (980)
Intangible assel (3,689 (3,709 0 0 0
Tangible common equit $ 265,78t $ 144,04; $ 105,14( $ 21,50! $ 15,86¢
Shares outstandir 18,46( 11,34¢ 8,39¢ 1,841 674
Book value per shai $ 146( $ 1302 $ 1252 $ 116¢ $ 25.01
Less: effect of excluding intangible assets andiepred stock (.20) (0.39) 0 0 (1.45)
Tangible book value per she $ 144C $ 126¢ $ 1252 $ 11.6¢ $ 23.5¢
Total asset $3,201,23. $2,077,53. $1,374,40° $349,76( $274,03¢
Less: intangible asse (3,689 (3,709 0 0 0
Total tangible asse $3,197,54" $2,073,82° $1,374,40 $349,76( $274,03¢
Equity to asset 8.42% 7.11% 7.65% 6.15% 6.15%
Less: effect of excluding intangible assets andiepred stock (0.17) (0.16) 0 0 (0.36)
Tangible common equity to tangible ass 8.31% 6.95% 7.65% 6.15% 5.7%%
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Item 7. Managemen’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operations

You should read this Management Discussion andyAigain conjunction with “Business — Executive Samythand our consolidated financi
statements and related notes for the year ende@mber 31, 2012. Certain amounts reported in thel201d 2010 financial statements have
been reclassified to conform to the 2012 presemtafl hese reclassifications did not significanthpact Bancorps financial position or resuli
of operations.

Critical Accounting Policies

We have adopted various accounting policies thaégothe application of accounting principles gatigraccepted in the United States of
America (US GAAP) and that are consistent with gahgractices within the banking industry in theparation of our financial

statements. Our significant accounting policiesdagcribed in NOTE 3 “SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIES” to our audited financial
statements.

Certain accounting policies involve significant gudents and assumptions by us that have a mateialct on the carrying value of certain
assets and liabilities. We consider these accogiptiricies to be critical accounting policies. Tlhdgment and assumptions used are based o
historical experience and other factors, whichlesieved to be reasonable under the circumstaBeesiuse of the nature of the judgments an
assumptions management makes, actual results diffddfrom these judgments and estimates, whialiccbhave a material impact on the
carrying values of our assets and liabilities andresults of operations.

The following is a summary of the policies we reciag as involving critical accounting estimatesiomlance for Loan Losses, Stock-Based
Compensation, Unrealized Gains and Losses on Adaifar Sale Securities, Fair Value, AccountingRarchase Credit Impaired (PCI) Loe
FDIC Receivable for Loss, and Deferred Income Taxes

Allowance for Loan Losse We maintain an allowance for loan losses at a lemamagement believes is sufficient to absorb estiohprobable
credit losses. Management’s determination of themadcy of the allowance is based on periodic etialismof the loan portfolio and other
relevant factors. However, this evaluation is iemelly subjective as it requires significant estiesady management. Consideration is given to
variety of factors in establishing these estimatekiding historical losses, current and anticidageonomic conditions, the size and
composition of the loan portfolio, delinquency itits, criticized and classified assets and imgzhioans, results of internal loan reviews,
borrowers’ perceived financial and management gthen the adequacy of underlying collateral, theetielence on collateral, or the strength o
the present value of future cash flows and othewaat factors. These factors may be susceptibdgtuficant change. To the extent actual
outcomes differ from management estimates, additiprovisions for loan losses may be required winigty adversely affect our results of
operations in the future.

Substantially all of the Bank’s acquired loans B loans. Estimates of cash flows expected toolieated for PCI loans are updated each
reporting period. If the Bank has probable decre@&sexpected cash flows to be collected after a@tgpn, the Bank charges the provision for
loan losses and establishes an allowance for tusses.

Stock-Based Compensatiove recognize compensation expense for share-lzagmdls in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards
Cadification (*ASC”) 718Compensation — Stock Compensatiexpense related to stock option awards is basaleofair value of the option

at the grant date, with compensation expense réoagjover the service period, which is usually\tbsting period. We utilize the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model to estimate the faiue of each option on the date of grant. The Backoles model takes into consideration
exercise price of the option, the expected lif¢hef option, the current price of the underlyingcktand its expected volatility, expected
dividends on our stock, and the current risk-freenest rate for the expected life of the optionr €stimate of the fair value of a stock option is
based on expectations derived from our limitedonisal experience and may not necessarily equateronarket value when fully vested.

Unrealized Gains and Losses on Securities Availtil&ale. We receive estimated fair values of debt secsrftiem independent valuation
services and brokers. In developing these fairaglthe valuation services and brokers use essnodtash flows based on historical
performance of similar instruments in similar ratesironments. Debt securities available for sateraostly comprised of mortgage backed
securities and U.S. government agency securitiesu¥é various indicators in determining whethexausty is other-than-temporarily
impaired, including for equity securities, if thearket value is below its cost for an extended peoibtime with low expectation of recovery or,
for debt securities, when it is probable that thetactual interest and principal will not be cotled. The debt securities are monitored for
changes in credit ratings because adverse chamgesdit ratings could indicate a change in thareged cash flows of the underlying
collateral or issuer. The unrealized losses astatiaith securities that management does not inteseéll, and more likely than not that we
will be required to sell prior to maturity or matk®ice recovery, are not considered to be othem temporary as of December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011, because the unrealized losseslated to changes in interest rates and doffemtt ahe expected cash flows of the
underlying collateral or issuer.

Fair Value. The fair value of a financial instrument is defiregithe amount at which the instrument could bé@xged in a current transact
between willing parties, other than in a forcediguidation sale. Management estimates the fauealf a financial instrument using a variety
of valuation methods. Where financial instrumemésactively traded and have quoted market
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prices, quoted market prices are used for fairezalMhen the financial instruments are not activedged, other observable market inputs, sucl
as quoted prices of securities with similar chamastics, may be used, if available, to determaievalue. When observable market prices do
not exist, we estimate fair value. The valuatiortimods and inputs consider factors such as typasddrlying assets or liabilities, rates of
estimated credit losses, interest rate or discatatand collateral. The best estimate of fair @ahwolves assumptions including, but not
limited to, various performance indicators, sucliasorical and projected default and recoverysateedit ratings, current delinquency rates,
loan-to-value ratios and the possibility of obligefinancing. US GAAP requires the use of fair eslin determining the carrying values of
certain assets and liabilities, as well as for sjedisclosures. The most significant uses of failues include impaired loans and foreclosed
property and the net assets acquired in businesbinations.

Purchased Cred-Impaired Loans

Purchased credit-impaired (“PClI") loans are lodrs tvere purchased in business combinations witteage of credit deterioration since
origination and for which it is probable that adintractually required payments will not be collectee considered to be credit impaired. For
certain acquired loans that have experienced aidegtton of credit quality, we follow the guidancentained in ASC 310-3Q0ans and Debt
Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit QualiEvidence of credit quality deterioration as of fhase dates may include information s
as past-due and non-accrual status, borrower @ealiies and recent loan to value percentages. lamapsred through business combinations
that do not meet the specific criteria of ASC 31043ut for which a discount is attributable at teagart to credit quality, are also accounted
for under this guidance unless the loan type isueber! from its scope.

The fair value of loans with evidence of creditatiration are recorded net of a nonaccretablediffce and, if appropriate, an accretable
yield. The difference between contractually reqiijpayments at acquisition and the cash flows erpetict be collected at acquisition is
nonaccretable difference, which is not includethim carrying amount of acquired loans. Subsequeeredses to the expected cash flows will
generally result in a provision for loan lossesb$&guent to acquisition, estimates of cash flovggeted to be collected are updated each
reporting period based on updated assumptionsdieggadefault rates, loss severities, and otheofadhat are reflective of current market
conditions. Subsequent increases in cash flowdtriasa reversal of the provision for loan losseste extent of prior charges, or a
reclassification of the difference from nonaccrégab accretable with a positive impact on accretibinterest income in future periods.
Further, any excess of cash flows expected at sitiqui over the estimated fair value is referredsdhe accretable yield and is recognized in
interest income over the remaining life of the ledren there is a reasonable expectation aboutntlogiat and timing of those cash flows.

PCl loans acquired in the same fiscal quarter neagidgregated into one or more pools, providedtti®galbans have common risk
characteristics. A pool is then accounted for amgle asset with a single composite interestanttan aggregate expectation of cash flows

a quarterly basis, the Company re-estimates thédash flows (both principal and interest) expédttebe collected over the remaining life of
each pool. These estimates incorporate assumptgasding default rates, loss severities, the atsoamd timing of prepayments and other
factors that reflect then-current market conditidhghe timing and/or amounts of expected castvflon PCI loans were determined not to be
reasonably estimable, no interest would be accaatedhe loans would be reported as non-accruak|deowever, when the timing and
amounts of expected cash flows for PCI loans aasamably estimable, interest is being accretedt@ntbans are being reported as performing
loans. Charge-offs are not recorded on PCI loatifariual losses exceed the estimated lossesvitvat recorded as purchase accounting
adjustments at acquisition date.

FDIC Receivable for Loss Share AgreemeiThe majority of the loans and other real estatetassquired in an FDIC-assisted acquisition ar
covered under loss share agreements with the Fbvhich the FDIC has agreed to reimburse us for 808l losses incurred in connection
with those assets. We estimated the amount thatillveeceive from the FDIC under the loss sharesagrnents that will result from losses
incurred as we dispose of covered loans and ofiaestate assets, and we recorded the estimateeasivable from the FDIC.

The FDIC loss sharing receivable is measured stgparfaom the related covered assets becausadtisontractually embedded in the assets
and is not transferable if we sell the assets. $tienated the fair value of the FDIC loss sharingeieable using the present value of cash flow:
related to the loss share agreements based ompketed reimbursements for losses and the apptidabs share percentages. We review and
update the fair value of the FDIC receivable praotipely as loss estimates related to covered leawsother real estate owned change. The
ultimate realization of the FDIC loss sharing reedle depends on the performance of the underlyivgred assets, the passage of time and
claims paid by the FDIC.

Deferred Income Taxe The Bancorp provides for deferred income taxetheriiability method whereby tax assets are receghfor

deductible temporary differences and deferreditbilities are recognized for taxable temporaryed#nces. Temporary differences are the
differences between the reported amounts of aasettiabilities in the financial statements andrtkex basis. Deferred tax assets are reducec
by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion ohagement, it is more likely than not that someiparbr all of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liakslgiee adjusted for the effects of changes in tas End rates on the date of enactment.
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Accounting Changes
The Fair Value Option

We elected the fair value option for warehouse ilggdransactions documented under a Master Repsechgreement originated after July 1,
2012 in order to more accurately represent thet$bion nature of the transaction and its inhereadit risk. This adoption is in accordance \
the parameters established by Accounting Stand@odgication (“ASC”) 825-10-25Financial Instruments-Overall-Recognition: The Fair
Value OptionAs a result of this election, new warehouse lendliagsactions are classified as “Loans held fa"sath the balance sheet. The
interest income from the warehouse lending trans@eis classified in “Interest Income — Loans reabkle, taxable, including fees” on the
income statement. An allowance for loan lossesisecorded for the warehouse lending transactidren measured at fair value since under
ASC 825, the exit price (the repurchase price)farehouse lending transactions considers the affemtpected credit losses.

Change in Accounting Estimates

Estimates of cash flows from purchased credit-imgua{“PClI") loans were revised during the third gaaof 2012 due to conversion to a more
sophisticated and precise loan valuation systeractordance with the guidance in ASC 310-30, istdreeome is based on an acquired loan’s
expected cash flows. Complex models are needeal¢alate loan-level and/or pool level expected déshis in accordance with ASC 310-30.
The loan data analysis provided by the new softigaeemore precise quantification of future caslvl than the analysis that was previously
calculated manually. Upon conversion to the newnsmre, acquisition date loan values were loadeultimé system and the new software
calculated their fair values using its complex agilon model. Conversion to the new system was ceteglin September 2012. To adjust the
acquisition date loan balances recorded on CuswBemk’'s books to the amounts calculated by the saftware, approximately $4.4 million
was recognized in other non-interest income irthiivel quarter of 2012. The revised valuation far BCI acquisition date loan balances due tc
the conversion to the new software is accountegifespectively as a change in accounting estimate.

When converting to the new software system, we wegaired to calculate the estimated cash flowsiftioe various acquisition dates of the
PCI loans through the date the software was imphteaeas it was impracticable to perform these ¢aficns on a monthly or quarterly basis.
In the third quarter of 2012, approximately $4.%liovi was recognized in interest income relatethis change. The impact of the revised
valuation of cash flows for the PCI loan activityedto the conversion to the new software is acaslfdr prospectively as a change in
accounting estimate.

Also during the third quarter of 2012, we re-estimgiathe cash flows for the PCI loans using curdaté. The re-estimated expected cash flow:
decreased from prior estimated cash flows. Congistéh ASC 310-10’s fundamental premise that aréase in expected cash flows results in
accrual of a loss contingency and should not résw@tchange in yield, we evaluated the adequatigeollowance for loan losses for PCI lo
and determined that an additional provision fonlazsses of $7.5 million was appropriate. In theife, we will re-estimate the cash flows on
the PCI loans on a quarterly basis, and adjustmiémtsy, are not expected to have a material imhpaduture earnings.

As a result of the changes in estimates, net indomie year ended December 31, 2012 increas&®0,000, net of tax, and basic and
diluted earnings increased by $0.07 per share.

Background and Reorganization

Customers Bancorp was formed in April 2010 to fat# a reorganization into a bank holding compstnycture pursuant to which Customers
Bank became a wholly-owned subsidiary of CustorBarscorp (the “Reorganization”) on September 17 12®ursuant to the Reorganization,
all of the issued and outstanding shares of Va@ilngimon Stock and Class B Non-Voting Common StodRustomers Bank were exchanged
on a three-to-one basis for shares of Voting ComBitock and Class B Non-Voting Common Stock, respelgt of Customers Bancorp. The
Bancorp is authorized to issue up to 100,000,0@deshof Voting Common Stock, 100,000,000 sharédads B Non-Voting Common Stock
and 100,000,000 shares of preferred stock. Alleshad per share information for periods prior ®riorganization has been restated to reflec
the Reorganization, including the three-for-onesideration used in the Reorganization.

In the Reorganization, the Bank’s issued and onditg shares of Voting Common Stock of 22,525,82%as and Class B Non-Voting
Common Stock of 6,834,895 shares converted int@8745 3 shares of the Bancorp’s Voting Common Stoek 2,278,294 shares of the
Bancorp’s Class B NoKoting Common Stock. Cash was paid in lieu of fiawl shares. Outstanding warrants to purchased 732 shares «
the Bank’s Voting Common Stock with a weighted-aggr exercise price of $3.55 per share and 2431#2s of the Bank’s Class B Non-
Voting Common Stock with a weightenrerage exercise price of $3.50 per share wereectat/into warrants to purchase 470,260 shardse
Bancorp’s Voting Common Stock with a weighted-ageraxercise price of $10.64 per share and wartamqsrchase 81,036 shares of the
Bancorp’s Class B Non-Voting Common Stock with aghted-average exercise price of $10.50 per si@utstanding stock options to
purchase 2,572,404 shares of the Bank’s Voting Com8tock with a weighted- average exercise prick3d50 per share and stock options to
purchase 231,500 shares of the Bank’s Class B Natimy Common Stock with a weighted-average exengiie of $4.00 per share were
converted into
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stock options to purchase 855,774 shares of the®pis Voting Common Stock with a weighted-averagercise price of $10.49 per share
and stock options to purchase 77,166 shares @dheorp’s Class B Non-Voting Common Stock with aghiéed-average exercise price of
$12.00 per share.

Accordingly, descriptions of balance sheet andrimestatement items prior to September 17, 201Esept those of Customers Bank, and
descriptions of balance sheet and income stateiteem$ after September 17, 2011 represent the ddased results of Customers Bancorp.
consolidated results of operations and financiab#@on presented for those periods after the Redimgtion Date, September 17, 2011, incl
combined results for Customers Bancorp and Cus®Bank. All share and per share information has bbeeospectively restated to reflect
the Reorganization, including the three-for-onesideration used in the Reorganization.

Overview

The following discussion and analysis presents ri@t@ctors affecting our financial condition as@ecember 31, 2012 and December 31,
2011 and results of operations for the three yigattse period ended December 31, 2012. This dismussd analysis should be read in
conjunction with our financial statements, note=rétio and other financial information appearingweisere in this Form 10-K.

Like most financial institutions, we derive the oty of our income from interest we receive on ouderest-earning assets, such as loans anc
investments. Our primary source of funds for makhgse loans and investments is our deposits, achwye pay interest. Consequently, one
of the key measures of our success is our amoumdtdhterest income, or the difference betweerirtbeme on our interest-earning assets anc
the expense on our interest-bearing liabilitieshsas deposits and borrowings. Another key medsuhe spread between the yield we earn ol
these interest-earning assets and the rate itqragsir interest-bearing liabilities, which is cdlleur net interest spread.

There are risks inherent in all loans, so we mairda allowance for loan losses to absorb problaisiees on existing loans that may become
uncollectible. We maintain this allowance by chagga provision for loan losses against our opegatarnings. We have included a detailed
discussion of this process, as well as severadsadidscribing our allowance for loan losses.

2013 Economic Outlook

The general consensus amongst economists is anagdobptimism regarding economic prospects for 204/Bile most economists predict
world-wide growth rates similar to those in 201% tnodestly improved performance of the global enonin the latter half of 2012, coupled
with increased stability in the Euro-zone and amwndid growth in emerging economies, give many atmhgmson to believe that a return to
global recession can be averted.

According to the International Monetary Fund 2018rif Economic Update, “economic conditions improweodestly in the third quarter of
2012, with global growth increasing to about 3 patc The main sources of acceleration were emergidiet economies, where activity
picked up broadly as expected, and the United Statieere growth surprised on the upside. Finarciatitions stabilized. Bond spreads in the
euro area periphery declined, while prices for masky assets, notably equities, rose globally.i@aflows to emerging markets remained
strong. Global financial conditions improved funtle the fourth quarter of 2012. However, a broatdlds indicators for global industrial
production and trade suggests that global grondindt strengthen further. Indeed, the third-quasteick in global growth was partly due to
temporary factors, including increased inventorguaculation (mainly in the United States). It alsagked old and new areas of weakness.
Activity in the euro area periphery was even sdftan expected, with some signs of stronger spli®wf that weakness to the euro area core
In Japan, output contracted further in the thirertgr.”

Management believes the outlook for growth in 2fik3he United States remains positive at abouig2étvth in GDP, due in large measure to
a significant improvement in the housing markepested surge in consumer demand due to improveskehold balance sheets, and the
stabilizing effect of quantitative easing.

In the Bancorp’s market area we see continued nmiggesith in 2013. The housing market appears t@ Isabilized with modest increases in
value in selected areas. Unemployment should reatainrrent rates or slightly improve during thayéVe are seeing improvement in loan
demand in our commercial and industrial, multi-fanaind commercial real estate loan portfolios axpgkeet to significantly improve our
mortgage lending in the coming year. There congrtoebe uncertainty in the political and externalisnments in 2013 and it is likely that
these challenging conditions will continue in tlexnfew years. Overall we are optimistic that 208 show a continuation of the improving
environment we have seen in 2012.

Through our mortgage warehouse group, we provigenfiing to mortgage companies from the time ohthrae purchase or refinancing of a
mortgage loan through the sale of the loan by thetgage originator into the secondary market. Mdshe loans are FHA/VA loans or
conforming loans which are sold through Fannie iag Freddie Mac. The strategy is to stay focuseproviding the financing in the lowest
risk segments in this business. Most of the revénderived from the interest income earned omibetigage warehouse loans, but the busi
also generates fee income and deposits. We expmignate growth in commitments in this busines€ib3 Funded balances
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as a percentage of commitments were unusuallyihitgte 2012; contributing to the increase in warete loans outstanding which increased
by $655.2 million to $1,449.5 million at Decembdr, 2012, from 2011. Over the long-term, we expectiaued growth in this business but
anticipate a reduction in the proportion of wared®massets to the total assets, due to faster giowther loan portfolios. We expect warehc
mix will make up about 25% of assets over time Wwhgdown from 52% at December 31, 2012.

During 2012, we began executing on a plan to imprearnings, deploy excess cash on the balanceatetatch future loan growth with
deposit growth. We enhanced our loan originati@ifpim, expanded our small business lending teaiitt,donew consumer lending platform,
expanded our warehouse lending platform and muaitlfelending business, and started to expand outgage banking business. We believe
these efforts were successful as deposit growtbusaligned with loan originations. We believe thare significant opportunities for growtt
both lending and deposit generation in 2013 anaheyHowever, if there is a material change ingkiernal environment or our management
cannot successfully execute our plans, growth neamore difficult than expected.
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Results of Operations

The following discussion of our consolidated resolt operations should be read in conjunction with consolidated financial statements,
including the accompanying notes. Also see “CRITIGRCCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES” under NOTE 3IGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES” for information concerning ¢ain significant accounting policies and estimatpplied in determining our
reported results of operations.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and :

Net income available to common shareholders foytda ended December 31, 2012 increased by 49& 3.8 million, compared to §
million for the year ended December 31, 2011. N&rest income increased by 85.1%, or $33.0 mifiasrthe year ended December 31, 2012
to $71.8 million compared to $38.8 million for thear ended December 31, 2011. Provision for loasde was $16.3 million for the year of
2012 compared to $9.5 million in 2011, an increaseé2.2%. Non-interest income increased $17.8 amltio $31.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012 compared to $13.4 million forytsar ended December 31, 2011. Non-interest expeossased $13.7 million to $50.7
million. On a diluted per share basis, the netimeavas $1.73 per share for 2012 compared to acetrie of $0.39 per share for 2011. Our
return on average assets was 1.02% in 2012. Qumreh average equity was 12.69% in 2012.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and :

We had net income available to common shareholufe$4.0 million for the year ended December 31,226dmpared to $23.7 million for the
year ended December 31, 2010. Net interest incanreased $19.4 million for the year ended Decer@be011 to $38.8 million compared
$19.4 million for the year ended December 31, 20ddh-interest expense increased $10.7 million ®.$a&illion for the year ended
December 31, 2011 compared to $26.2 million forytkar ended December 31, 2010. Non-interest indgooteased $8.0 million to $13.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2011 coman $5.4 million for the year ended December2BI0, excluding the bargain purchase
gains on bank acquisitions of $40.3 million for ffear ended December 31, 2010. On a diluted pee fzsis, the net income was $0.39 per
share for 2011 compared to a net income of $3.68lmere for 2010. Our return on average asset®wWd8o in 2011. Our return on average
equity was 3.06% in 2011.
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NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income (the difference between thera@st earned on loans, investments and in-earning deposits with banks, and interest paid
on deposits, borrowed funds and subordinated debite primary source of Customers Bancorp’s egsiiithe following table summarizes the
Bancorp’s net interest income and related spreddaargin for the periods indicated.

For the year ended December 3.

2012 2011 2010
Interest Average Average Average
income Interest Interest
Average or yield or Average income o yield or Average income o yield or
balance expense cost balance expens¢ cost balance expens¢ cost
(dollars in thousand:
Assets
Interes-earning deposit $ 138,65 $ 352 0.25% $ 164,37¢ $ 41¢ 0.25% $128,13: $ 30< 0.24%
Federal funds sol 0] 0] 0.0c 2,28t 3 0.1¢ 11,17¢ 20 0.1¢
Investment securities, taxable ( 224,07! 6,66: 2.97 481,31¢ 14,06: 2.92 49,56¢ 1,38 2.7¢
Investment securities, non-
taxable (A) 1,64 68 4.1€ 2,08( 86 4.1t 2,51¢ 11C 4.37
Loans, taxable (B 1,853,08: 86,28¢ 4.6€ 936,50° 46,61« 4.9¢ 523,75! 29,02: 5.54
Loans, no-taxable (B) 7,59¢ 17¢ 2.31 1,30¢ 63 4.8€ 0 0 0.0C
Allowance for loan losse (17,865 (15,316 (13,310)
Total interest-earning asset: 2,207,18 93,54! 4.2¢4 1,572,55! 61,24¢ 3.8¢ 701,83 30,83¢ 4.3¢
Nonr-interes-earning asse! 118,11. 83,01% 160,24
Total assets $2,325,30: $1,655,57. $862,08:
Liabilities
Interest checkin $ 36,70: 19: 0.52 $ 20,36 95 0.4¢€ 12,00¢ 68 0.57
Money marke 856,33t 7,42 0.87 505,26 6,70t 1.3¢ 190,97. 3,60¢ 1.8¢
Other saving: 20,26° 112 0.5¢ 13,54: 92 0.6¢ 11,22 76 0.6¢
Certificates of depos 935,20° 13,34¢ 1.45 808,63 14,96¢ 1.8t 369,75 7,35¢ 1.9¢
Total interes-bearing deposit 1,848,51.  21,07¢ 1.14 1,347,81; 21,86: 1.62 583,96( 11,11: 1.9C
Other borrowing: 100,48« 68E 0.6¢ 68,55! 603 0.8¢ 13,58 434 3.2C
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,948,99 21,76 1.1 1,416,36! 22,46« 1.5¢ 597,54: 11,54¢ 1.9
Nonr-interes-bearing deposit 180,71 94,76¢ 50,70¢
Total deposits and borrowin 2,129,71 1.0z 1,511,13: 1.4¢ 648,25( 1.7¢
Other norinteres-bearing liabilitie: 7,952 12,42 144,82(
Total liabilities 2,137,66: 1,523,55! 793,07(
Shareholders Equity 187,63! 132,01t 69,01«
Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity $2,325,30. $1,655,57, $862,08:
Net interest earning 71,78: 38,78 19,29(
Tax-equivalent adjustment (¢ 131 81 57
Net interest earning $71,91! $38,86: $19,34:
Interest spread 3.22 2.41 2.61
Net interest margin (D) 3.2t 2.47 2.7t

Net interest margin tax
equivalent (C)(D) 3.26% 2.47% 2.7¢%

(A) For presentation in this table, balances amdcttrresponding average rates for investment sessuare based upon historical cost,
adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretibdiscounts

(B) Includes no-accrual loans, the effect of which is to reduceytiedd earned on loans, and deferred loan 1

(C) Full tax equivalent basis, using a 35% statutoxyréde to approximate interest income as a taxaddet

(D) Excluding the adjustment to interest income for¢hange in accounting estimate on PCI loans of 8dllon, net interest margin and r
interest margin tax equivalent are 3.05% for thelt@ months ended December 31, 2(

(E) Certain amounts reported in the 2011 and 20tEh€Eial statements have been reclassified to confo the 2012 presentation. These
reclassifications did not significantly impact Bang's financial position or results of operatio
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The following table presents the dollar amountiidmmges in interest income and interest expengdéamajor categories of our interestening
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Informai®provided for each category of interest-ear@iggets and interest-bearing liabilities with
respect to (i) changes attributable to volume,(tlanges in average balances multiplied by therqperiod average rate) and (ii) changes
attributable to rate (i.e., changes in averagematitiplied by prior-period average balances). porposes of this table, changes attributable to
both rate and volume, which cannot be segregatea; been allocated proportionately to the changetalwvolume and the change due to rate.

2012 vs. 201: 2011 vs. 201(
Increase (decrease) du Increase (decrease) due
to change in to change ir
Rate Volume Total Rate Volume Total

( dollars in thousand:
Interest income:

Interest earning depos $ 0 $ 49 $ ®4H $ 12 $ 10C $ 11°
Federal funds sol 3 0 (©)] (©)] (14 ()
Investment securities, taxat 241 (7,647 (7,400 64 12,617 12,68:
Investment securities, n-taxable 0 (18) (18) (6) (18) (24)
Loans (2,997) 42,66 39,67( (2,937  20,52¢ 17,59:
Loans, no-taxable (33 14€ 112 0 63 63
Total interest income (2,792 35,09( 32,29¢ (2,865 33,27« 30,40¢
Interest expense

Interest checkin 12 86 98 a3 4C 27
Money marke (2,329 3,04z 71¢ (1,069) 4,16¢ 3,09¢
Savings (16 36 2C 0 1€ 1€
Certificates of depos (3,39¢) 1,77¢ (1,62]) (518 8,12¢ 7,61(
Total interest bearing depos (5,729 4,93¢ (785) (1,600 12,34¢ 10,74¢
Borrowings (137 21¢ 82 (315) 484 16¢
Total interest expense (5,867) 5,15¢ (703) (1,915 12,83 10,91¢
Net interest income $ 3,06¢ $29,93. $33,000 $ (950 $20,44: $19,49:

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and :

Net interest income was $71.8 million for the yeaded December 31, 2012, compared to $39.0 milliothe year ended December 31, 2(
an increase of $32.8 million or 84.1%. This netéase was attributable to increases of $634.6anilli average volume of average interest-
earning assets, offset by an increase of $532lmih average interest-bearing liabilities. Thewary driver of the increase in net interest
income was from higher loan volume from the follogi

. $271.5 million increase in average mortgage waretidasns due to growth of the mortgage warehougdirigrbusiness
. $113.7 million increase in average commercial lodunes to growth of the commercial loan portfolio; ¢
. $126.8 million increase in average m-family loans due to growth of the mi-family lending busines:

The key measure of our net interest income ismietést margin. Our net interest margin increase125% for 2012 from 2.47% for 2011. 7
changes in yields were secondary to the changesinvolume.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and :

Net interest income was $39.0 million for the yeaded December 31, 2011, compared to $19.4 milliothe year ended December 31, 2(
an increase of $19.6 million or 101%. This netéase was attributable to increases in average eotfraverage interest-earning assets, offse
by an increase in average interest-bearing ligdslitas a result of:

. the inclusion of the acquired USA Bank and ISN Bardns and deposits, for all of 2011, as opposédeswthan six months in
2010;

. the acquisition of Berkshire Bancorp in SeptemHrl2
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. the purchase of a $105.8 million manufactured haukian portfolio in August 201!

. a $172.3 million increase in average mortgage warsé loans due to our strategy to grow the mortgagehouse lending
business; an

. significant increases in average money market adsand average certificates of deposit due teetforts to obtain new business
and the related increase in average investmentisesias a result of the deployment of the cag fjenerated by these deposit
accounts; and increases in inte-bearing deposits due to the USA Bank, ISN Bank,Bedkshire Bank acquisition

Our net interest margin decreased to 2.47% for 2@ 2.75% for 2010. This decrease was primahig/esult of a decrease in the yield of
average loans of 56 basis points as well as a @eeref 60 basis points in restricted stock. This offset by a decrease in the total interest
bearing deposits of 28 basis points, primarily eéniloy a decrease in the cost of funds of money enadcounts which dropped 56 basis points
These decreases in yields were attributable teah&nuing difficulties within the economy.

PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and :

We establish an allowance for loan losses througioaision for loan losses charged as an expensleeostatement of income. The loan
portfolio is reviewed and evaluated on a quartbdgis to evaluate our outstanding loans and to umed®th the performance of the portfolio
and the adequacy of the allowance for loan logagsire adjustments may be necessary to the provisidoan losses, and consequently the
allowance for loan losses, if economic conditiontoan quality differ substantially from the assuiops management used in the evaluation c
the level of the allowance for loan losses as caBthto outstanding loans.

During 2012, the provision for loan losses was $1#illion, an increase of $6.8 million from $9.5Ioin in 2011. The year over year increase
is primarily related to the increase in the loantfetio for commercial and residential real estasewell as a $7.5 million adjustment that is
attributable to the change in accounting estimatehfe PCI loans. Since July 2012, the majoritpuwf warehouse loans are accounted for a
value and accordingly no allowance for loan losgas recognized for these loans in 2012 comparedptovision of $929,000 in 2011. Net
charge-offs were $5.5 million and $9.5 million, pestively, for the years ended December 31, 20H2811.

As a result of significant changes to the Bank’demwvriting guidelines in 2009, all new loans orified subsequent to 2009 have been groupe
separately and are called the Post 2009 portfiisav originations in this portfolio continue to panfn very well with almost no delinquencies,
however, due to growth in loan volume for constiarcand commercial real estate, the allowanceedltd the Post 2009 portfolio increasec
$3.5 million. This increase was offset by a deczgaaghe Legacy, or pre-2009, originated portfaifeb1.6 million due to run off of this
portfolio.

For the acquired portfolio, the level of delinquemin-performing, and impaired loans increasediti?Z2compared to 2011. We recorded a

provision for loan losses of $4.1 million for Behlke in 2012, and increased the provision for tbéG-covered loans by $3.2 million. These
increases were due in part to an adjustment of ®illion that was recorded to the provision forndasses during the third quarter of 2012
was related to a change in accounting estimatth®PCI loans. For additional information aboutthange in accounting estimate refer to
“NOTE 3 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES €hange in Accounting Estimatém this Form 10-K.

On July 24, 2012, the Bank purchased $62.4 miilomanufactured housing loans with a recourse gionj whereby the Bank is reimbursed
by the originator for any incurred losses on thand therefore there are no anticipated lossesniequn allowance for loan losses reserve for
these loans.

Other than the concentrations in construction ardrercial real estate, we have no large exposorether risky industries such as
restaurants, home heating oil businesses or athestries that are typically viewed as high riskns. The majority of our borrowers are small,
local businesses and individuals with investmemt®sidential or commercial real estate. The tygoarower provides self-prepared or
accountant assisted financial statements and tasngethat are not audited and therefore are &igghte than information that would be
obtained from more sophisticated borrowers. Theiadxs of objectively verified financial informatiésma challenge to all community banks
represents a layer of risk that must be consider@eiging the adequacy of the allowance for lazssks.
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For the years ended December 31, 2011 and :

During 2011, the provision for loan losses was $8ilion, a decrease of $947,000 from $10.4 millior2010. This decrease was primarily
to the shift in reserve allocations from specifiserves to general reserves based on impaired/édaations and charge-off activity. The
charge-offs incurred in 2011 decreased the speeifierves by $2 million and provided a cushiorafiditional provision required in general
reserve. The level of delinquent, non-performingd anpaired loans have continued to increase throug2011 due the continued decline in
the economy and commercial real estate market.

As is typical with community banks, we have a higimcentration (89.4%) of our loans secured byeastdte. Construction and commercial
estate represent 25.3% of the total loan portfalislight decrease from 2010. It is in the consibncand commercial secured portion of the
loan portfolio that we are experiencing the mo#idlilty with delinquent and non-accrual loans. #dtugh we believe that we have identified
and appropriately allocated reserves against gkést of our loans in the construction and commeéreal estate portfolio, the possibility of
further deterioration before the real estate matkeis presents the need for potential increadedadlons of the allowance for loan losses in
that area in the future.

Net charg-offs were $9.5 million and $5.3 million, respeetly, for the years ended December 31, 2011 and.2010
See Credit Risk and Asset Quality sections fohterrinformation regarding our provision for loaisdes, allowance for loan losses and net
charge-offs generally, and additional discussioowfnon-performing loans.

NON-INTEREST INCOME

The below chart shows our results in the variousganents of non-interest income for each of thesyeaded December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010.

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands

Deposit fee: $ 481 $ 43¢ $ 37t
Mortgage warehouse transaction f 12,28¢ 5,581 2,631
Bank owned life insuranc 1,332 1,404 22¢
Net gain on sales of investment securi 9,017 2,731 1,11«
Gains on sales of SBA loa 357 32¢ 98
Bargain purchase gain on bank acquisiti — — 40,25¢
Accretion of FDIC loss sharing receival 2,001 1,95¢ —
Other 5,75:% 98¢ 97C
Total nor-interest income $31,23( $13,42- $45,67(

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and :

Nor-interest income was $31.2 million for the yearesh@®ecember 31, 2012, an increase of $17.8 miltimm non-interest income of $13.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Tiisease primarily was due to an increase of $6lifomin mortgage warehouse transact
fees due to increased volume during the year. Ajaigt on the sale of investment securities of $86 recognized in 2012 primarily due to oul
sale of $257.6 million in available-for-sale seties in the second quarter of 2012, which was eteecto provide funding for loan growth.
Additionally, an adjustment of $4.4 million was oeded to other non-interest income that was reltdedchange in accounting estimate for thi
PCl loans. For additional information about thergfgin accounting estimate refer to “NOTE 3 — SIEIRKIANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —
Change in Accounting Estimaté this Form 10-K.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and :

Nor+-interest income was $13.4 million for the yearesh@®ecember 31, 2011, a decrease of $32.2 miltam hon-interest income of $45.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Heisdecrease primarily was due to $40.3 milliobangain purchase gains on bank
acquisitions recognized in 2010. In addition, magg warehouse transaction fees for 2011 increg&@dillion, when compared to 2010. The
increase in mortgage warehouse transactional feeX)fl1 was the result of increased volume in 26itthermore, during 2011, we
recognized increased income on bank-owned liferamse of $1.2 million, due to the purchase of adiitamhal $20 million of Bankowned Life
Insurance (“BOLI") in December 2010 and the acdigsiof $2.5 million in BOLI relating to Berkshif®ancorp, Inc. The increase in net gains
on sales of investment securities of $1.6 millicasvthe result of our sales of $180.0 million ofdstment securities for net gains of $2.7
million. In 2010, we sold $153.2 million of investmt securities for net gains of $1.1 million. Ndjustments of $2.0 million related to our
FDIC loss sharing receivable was the result of tiamttil adjustments to the loss sharing assetsgekudfs of covered loans, and impairment:
covered OREO.
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NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

The below chart shows our results in the variousmanents of non-interest expense for each of thesyended December 31, 2012, 2011 anc
2010.

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousand:
Salaries and employee bene $23,84¢ $16,60: $14,03:
Occupancy 6,81¢ 4,28¢ 1,89
Technology, communication and bank operati 2,80¢ 1,79 2,431
Advertising and promotio 1,21¢ 994 1,00i
Professional service 3,46¢ 5,12¢ 2,83:
FDIC assessments, taxes, and regulatory 3,03 2,36¢ 1,61
Other real estate ownt (85) 80¢ 702
Loan workoult 2,24: 1,42¢ 682
Merger related expens 9C 531 0
Stock offering expense 1,43 0 0
Other 5,77¢ 2,94¢ 972
Total nor-interest expense $50,65: $36,88t¢ $26,16¢

The below chart shows our results in the variousmmnents of other noimterest expense for each of the years ended Deare®ih 2012, 201
and 2010.

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands

Loan insurance expen $1,34¢ $ 92¢ $19€

Loan origination and servicing fe 90t 137 27

Customer related and office suppl 34k 317 24¢

Other 3,181 1,56¢ 501

Total other no-interest expense $5,77¢ $2,94¢ $972

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and :

Nor-interest expense was $50.7 million for the yeateghDecember 31, 2012, which was an increase o8$tilion over non-interest
expense of $36.9 million for the year ended Decerthe2011. The following contributed to the hig2€12 noninterest expense: Salaries ¢
employee benefits, which represent the largest compt of non-interest expense increased by $7lfbmibccupancy expense increased by
$2.5 million; and technology, communications, aadkoperations expense increased by $1.0 millibe.ificrease in these expenses related
primarily to hiring of additional employees to sappCompany growth, the Berkshire acquisition whaclled three additional branches, and
opening of additional branches. The stock offeergenses of $1.4 million were recorded in 2012 @salt of the postponement of our public
offering of Voting Common Stock in May 2012. Theiease of $671,000 in FDIC assessments, taxesegnthtory fees was attributed to
increases in FDIC premiums primarily as a resuthefgrowth of our assessment base (average cdatalitotal assets minus average tangibl
equity) and additional Pennsylvania shares taxesgeue to our increased asset size. Offsettinoptiheased expenses were decreases in
professional services expense of $1.7 million. Tiesrease was primarily attributable to legal amasalting expenses incurred in 2011 relatec
to regulatory filings and the Berkshire acquisitiboan insurance and loan origination and servifé®s increased due to higher loan volume.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and :

Non-interest expense was $36.9 million for the yeateehDecember 31, 2011, an increase of $10.8 milliloen compared to $26.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2010. Salaries ancdbgegpbenefits, which represented the largest coergarf non-interest expense, increasec
$2.6 million; occupancy expense increased $2.4aniltechnology, communications, and bank operateExpense increased $634,000;
professional services expense increased $2.3 miliDIC assessments, taxes, and regulatory feesaised $753,000; loan workout and other
real estate owned expenses increased $854,000mind other expenses increased $1.9 million.ifidrease in salaries and employee
benefits expense primarily was due to an increasiea total number of employees from 133 full-tiegiivalents at December 31, 2010 to 205
full-time equivalents at December 31, 2011. Thizéase in our workforce was the result of the Barksacquisition and the need for
additional employees to support our growth stratégwaddition, share-based compensation expenseaksd $1.3
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million from December 31, 2010 to December 31, 2b&dause there were one-time share-based awa204 inthat vested immediately. The
increase in occupancy and technology, communicsitiand bank operations expense was the resuledehkshire acquisition which added
three additional branches and the opening of amtgitibranches to support our growth strategy Theease in professional services expense
was primarily attributable to legal expenses relateregulatory filings and ongoing litigation wighvendor from one of the acquired banks.
increase in FDIC assessments, taxes, and regulaesywas attributed to increases in FDIC premiprimearily as a result of the growth of our
assessment base (average consolidated total aseetsaverage tangible equity) and additional Pgransia shares tax expense due to our
increased asset size. The increase in loan woedibther real estate owned expense was due tasen volume of non-covered, non-
performing assets. The increase in other experesasrglly can be attributed to the Berkshire actjaisin 2011 and the USA Bank and ISN
Bank acquisitions in 2010 as well as general grafttine infrastructure.

INCOME TAXES

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and :

The income tax expense and effective tax rate dechioth federal and state income taxes. In 20t2nie tax expense was $12.3 million with
an effective tax rate of 34%, compared to an expen$1.8 million and a rate of 31.27% for 201Xdme tax expense was driven primarily by
net income before taxes of $36.1 million and $5iMian, for the twelve months ended December 31,2@&nd December 31, 2011,
respectively. In 2012, income tax expense was blfga tax benefit from bank owned life insuran€&466,000, or a 1.29% tax rate reducti

In 2011, income tax expense was offset by a taefitednom bank owned life insurance of $490,000a0r8.35% tax rate reduction.

For the years ended December 31, 2011 and :

The income tax provision was $1.8 million for theay ended December 31, 2011, with an effectiveatexof 31.27%, compared to $4.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2010, witheffective tax rate of 16.83%. The decreaseérirtbome tax expense was primarily due
to the decrease in net income before taxes of appately $22.6 million. In addition, the tax bertdfiom bank owned life insurance increased
by approximately $423,000 due to the purchase pfagdimately $20.0 million of bank owned life insace at the end of 2010. In 2012, we
recorded a reversal to the valuation allowance5od $nillion which reduced the year’s effective taxe by 23.51%.

For additional information regarding our incomedsxrefer to “NOTE 14 — INCOME TAXES” in the consslated financial statements
appearing in Part Il, ltem 8.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
GENERAL

Our total assets were $3.201 billion at Decembef812. This represents a $1.123 billion, or 54ifétease from $2.078 billion at
December 31, 2011. The main component of this aharas a significant increase in loan volume. Otaliabilities were $2.932 billion at
December 31, 2012, up 51.9% from $1.930 billioDatember 31, 2011.

The main driver of the increase in assets is piljnEom our expansion of mortgage warehouse leggdivhich increased by 82.5%, or $655.2
million to $1.449 billion at December 31, 2012 fr&m94.3 million at December 31, 2011. Additionatiwlti-family loans increased by $29:
million, commercial loans increased by $177.9 milland consumer loans increased by $99.5 millines€ loan increases were offset by a
decrease in investment securities of $269.6 miliomarily due to the sale of $257.6 million of sdties in the second quarter of 2012 that
used to fund the loan growth.

The increase in total liabilities is due to a higlexel of deposits in 2012, compared to 2011. Ta¢@osits grew by 54.2% or $857.6 million
$2.441 billion at December 31, 2012 from $1.588dsilat December 31, 2011. Deposits are obtainedapily from within our geographic
service area and through wholesale and broker mksw®hese networks provide low cost funding akiues to retail deposits and provide
diversity to our sources of funds. The increasieank deposits is primarily due to the use of bredleand listing service deposits in 2012. The
growth in retail deposits was primarily due to extienal sales behaviors, despite lower interesisrat 2012. Additionally, the Berkshire Bank
acquisition added three bank branches to the Compan
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The following table sets forth certain key condehisalance sheet data:

December 31

2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Cash and cash equivalel $ 186,01t $ 73,57(
Investment securities, available for s 129,09: 79,13"
Investment securities, h«to-maturity 0 319,54
Loans held for sale (including $1,248,935 of mogiyavarehouse loa

at fair value in 2012 (a 1,439,88! 174,99¢
Loans receivable not covered under FDIC loss shagreement 1,216,94 1,215,11
Loans receivable covered under FDIC loss sharimgesgents 107,52¢ 126,27t
Total loans receivable, net of the allowance fanltosse: 1,298,633 1,326,36.
Total asset 3,201,23. 2,077,53.
Total deposit: 2,440,81 1,583,18!
Federal funds purchas 5,00( 5,00(
Total other borrowing 471,00( 331,00(
Subordinated det 2,00( 2,00(
Total liabilities 2,931,75! 1,929,78.
Total shareholde’ equity 269,47" 147,74
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity 3,201,23 2,077,53.

(@) During the third quarter of 2012, we electeel ftir value option for certain warehouse lendiagn$actions originated after July 1, 2012.
As a result of this election, all qualified warekeuending transactions on our balance sheet arblaer 31, 2012, were accounted for at
fair value and classified as held for sale. Warskdanding transactions on our balance sheet arbleer 31, 2011 were classified as
loans receivable not covered under FDIC loss shagreements

CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

Cash and due from banks consists mainly of vash @md cash items in the process of collections@talances totaled $12.9 million at
December 31, 2012. This represents a $5.1 milliorease from $7.8 million at December 31, 2011 séHmlances vary from day to day,
primarily due to variations in customers’ depositth us.

INTEREST-EARNING DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

Our interest earning deposits consist mainly ofodép at the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsbufdiiese deposits totaled $173.1 million at
December 31, 2012, which is a $107.3 million inseetom $65.8 million at December 31, 2011. Thisibee varies from day to day,
depending on several factors, such as variationsstomers’ deposits with us and the payment oflchdrawn on customers’ accounts.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Our investment securities portfolio is an importaotirce of interest income and liquidity. It cotssisf U.S. Treasury, government agency and
mortgage-backed securities (guaranteed by an agdribg United States government and non-agencsagteed), municipal securities,
domestic corporate debt, and asset-backed sesutiti@ddition to generating revenue, we maintaéninvestment portfolio to manage interest
rate risk, provide liquidity, provide collateralrfother borrowings and diversify the credit riskeafrning assets. The portfolio is structured to
maximize net interest income, given changes irett@omic environment, liquidity position and baksbeet mix.

At December 31, 2012, our investment securitieevd29.1 million compared to $398.7 million in 20The decrease is primarily the result
of our sale in May 2012 of $257.6 million of invesnt securities that realized a pre-tax gain o8 $&llion. Of the $398.7 million in
investment securities at December 31, 2011, $3hdl®on were classified as held to maturity. Dudt®strong outlook for loan growth, falling
interest rates, and its recent decision to postjeneitial public offering of stock, the Bancodecided to reclassify these securities to availabl
for sale and subsequently sold $257.6 million ekthsecurities to provide liquidity. In accordangih regulatory and accounting requireme
the Bancorp is prohibited from classifying secuptyrchases as held to maturity for a period of years.

Unrealized gains and losses on AFS securitiespadtin excluded from the results of operations, eperted as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity, net of the related tax effect

The following table sets forth the amortized cdsthe investment securities at the last three figear ends:

December 31
2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousand:

Available for Sale:
U.S. Treasury and government agen $ 0 $ 1,002 $ 1,711



Mortgagebacked securitie
Asse-backed securitie
Municipal securitie:
Corporate note

Equity securitie:

Held to Maturity:
Mortgage-backed securitie

102,44 55,81¢ 204,18:
0 622 71¢

0 2,071 2,08¢

25,00( 20,00( 0

6 0 0
$127,45! $ 79,518 $208,70(
$ 0 $319,54° $ 0
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For financial reporting purposes, available foess#curities are carried at fair value.

The following table sets forth information aboug¢ tmaturities and weighted average yield on ourriigsiportfolio. Yields are not reported on
a tax-equivalent basis.

December 31, 201;

Fair
Amortized Cost Value
No
< 1-5 5-10 After 10 Specific
lyr ears years years Maturity Total Total

(dollars in thousands
Available for Sale

Mortgage-backed securitie — — — $102,44¢ $102,44¢ $104,13!

Yield — — — — 1.86% 1.86% —
Corporate note — $25,00( — — — 25,00( 24,95
Yield — 3.852% — — — 3.85% —
Equity securitie: — — — — 6 6 6
Yield = — = — 0.0(% 0.0(% —
Total — $25,00( — — $102,45! $127,45! $129,09:
Weighted Average Yiel — % 38% — % — % 1.8¢% 2.2%

The mortgage-backed securities in our portfolioanissued by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and Ginnie fi@econtain guarantees for the
collection of principal and interest on the underymortgages. The corporate notes in the portfalehigh-quality investments in financial
service industry companies.

LOANS

Our existing lending relationships are primarilytiwsmall businesses and individual consumers irkBuBerks, Montgomery, Chester and
Delaware Counties, Pennsylvania, southeast New dodkcentral New Jersey, and to a lesser exteniriounding markets. Our loan portfolio
is primarily comprised of commercial real estatmstruction and development, and commercial andsinl loans. We continue to focus on
small business loans, to realign our commercialileg efforts, to establish a specialty lending bass and expand our consumer lending
products, as outlined below:

Commercial Lending

The Bank’s commercial lending is divided into thoigtinct groups: Business Banking, Small Busirigesking, and Multi-family/commercial
real estate. This division is designed to allowdarater resource deployment, higher standardslofmanagement, strong asset quality, lower
interest rate risk and higher productivity levels.

The Business Banking lending group focuses on campavith annual revenues ranging from $5 millior$60 million, which typically have
credit requirements between $0.5 million and $1lioni

The Small Business Banking platform originates &ancluding Small Business Administration loamsptigh the branch network sales force
and a team of dedicated Small Business relationshipagers. The support administration of the platffor this segment is centralized
including risk management, product management, atiaudg, performance tracking and overall strategyd@ and sales training has been
established for our sales force, ensuring we hmadl dusiness experts in place providing approeratancial solutions to the small business
owners in our communities. A division approach fesion industries that offer us high asset qualityare deposit rich to drive profitability.

As of December 31, 2012, we had $1,023.3 milliondmmercial loans outstanding, composing approxiya7.0% of our total loan
portfolio, which includes loans held for sale.
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Specialty Lending

In 2009, we established the mortgage warehousénigdisiness which provides financing to mortgageklers for residential mortgage
originations from loan closing until sale in thesadary market. Many providers of liquidity in tlisgment exited the business in 2009 during
the period of excessive market turmoil. There i®gportunity to provide liquidity to this businessattractive spreads. There is also
opportunity to attract escrow deposits and to gaeediee income in this business.

The goal of the warehouse group is to provide dgyito mortgage companies. These lines are useddrjgage companies to fund their
pipelines from closing of individual mortgage loamsil their sale into the secondary market. Mdghe loans are guaranteed by the U.S.
government through one of their programs such a&, A, Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac. As of DecemlierZ)12, loans in our warehouse
lending portfolio totaled $1.449 billion outstandjrcomposing approximately 52.4% of our total lpantfolio, which includes loans held for
sale.

The goal of our multi-family lending group is toilsua portfolio of high quality multi-family and eomercial real estate loans within our
covered markets, while cross selling our other peteland services. This business line primarily$es on refinancing existing loans, using
conservative underwriting. The primary collatei@ these loans is a first lien mortgage on the iafiathily property, plus an assignment of all
leases related to such property. As of Decembe2@12, we had multi-family loans of $358.9 millionotstanding, composing approximately
12.9% of our total loan portfolio, which includesmhs held for sale.

Consumer Lending

We plan to expand our product offerings in reahiessecured consumer lending. We will not offeirgxt automobile loans, unsecured loan
credit cards. We provide home equity and residemt@tgage loans to customers. Underwriting statisléor home equity lending are
conservative, focusing on FICO scores 720 and hjgimel lending is offered to solidify customer tielaships and grow relationship revenues
in the long term. This lending is important in @dforts to grow total relationship revenues for oansumer households. As of December 31,
2012, we had $131.4 million in consumer loans aniding, composing 4.8% of our total loan portfolidiich includes loans held for sale.

During 2012, certain types of loans were reclasditiue to their purpose and overall risk charastiesi. Therefore certain loan balances as of
December 31, 2011 were reclassified to confornméo2012 presentation.

The composition of net loans receivable is as ¥adlo

December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Covered Loans: (dollars in thousands)
Constructior $ 27,79: $ 3792« $3828( $ — $ —
Business Bankin¢

Commercial real esta 44,90: 48,78¢ 75,24 — —

Commercial and industrii 11,15¢ 13,08 22,87¢ — —
Residential real esta 19,95 22,46" 23,82: — —
Manufactured housin 3,72¢ 4,012 4,66: — —

Total loan receivable covered under FDIC loss sigagigreement:

(@) 107,52t 126,27t 164,88! — —

Non-Covered Loans:
Constructior 28,89 15,27: 13,38 21,74 —
Business Banking

Commercial real esta 835,48t 350,92¢ 144,84¢ 133,43: —
Commercial and industri 75,11¢ 69,73¢ 35,94 25,29( 188,19:
Mortgage warehouse (| 9,56¢ 619,31¢ 186,11: 16,43¢ —
Manufactured housin 154,70 104,56! 102,92: — —
Residential real esta 109,43( 53,47¢ 28,96¢ 27,42 8,59:
Consume 2,061 2,211 1,581 5,562¢ 26,44¢
Unearned origination (fees) costs, 1,67¢ (389) 327 452 52C

Total loan receivable not covered under FDIC |¢sgiag

agreement 1,216,94 1,215,11 514,08 230,29¢ 223,75.

Total loans receivabl 1,324,46 1,341,39: 678,97. 230,29¢ 223,75:
Allowance for loan losse (25,83)) (15,037 (15,129 (10,037 (2,876
Loans receivable, ni $1,298,631  $1,326,36. $663,84! $220,26¢  $220,87!

(&) Covered loans receivable acquired from the éordSA Bank and ISN Bank are covered under the HD$€ sharing agreements over a
five to ten year period, depending upon the typean.

(b) During the third quarter of 2012, we electee fhir value option for certain warehouse lendiagn$actions originated after July 1, 2012.
As a result of this election, all qualified warekeuending transactions on our balance sheet arbaer 31, 2012, were accounted for at
fair value and classified as held for sale. Warskdanding transactions on our balance sheet arbleer 31, 2011 were classified as
loans receivable not covered under FDIC loss shagreement:



During 2012, loans held for sale increased by $8 fion while loans receivable, net decrease&®y.7 million. The variance in these loan
categories is due to the classification of qualtifymortgage warehouse loans in “Loans held fof’ sal®ecember 31, 2012, compared to their
classification in “Loans Receivable, net” at DecemBl1, 2011. The change in classification is dusutoelection of the fair value option, for
qualifying mortgage warehouse lending transactmiginated after July 1, 2012. At December 31, 20tdrtgage warehouse loans classified
in loans receivable, net that would have qualifatthe fair value option were $606.1 million; exded from loans receivable, net, the year
over year loans receivable, net balance increag&$18.0 million from 2011 to 2012.

The primary drivers of this increase were multi-figmand commercial real estate that contributedg$3@%nillion and $476.6 million,
respectively to the December 31, 2012 balance, aoeapto their combined balance of $350.9 millioDatember 31, 2011. Our strategic
expansion of our multi-family and commercial resilage product lines was the basis for this growtladdition, during 2012, we acquired a
manufactured housing portfolio of $63.2 million tdiouted to the 2012 growth.

Total loans increased by $1.248 billion to $2.78Hon at December 31, 2012 from $1.516 billionDecember 31, 2011. During 2012, loans
held for sale increased by $1.265 billion whilerlsaeceivable, net decreased by $27.7 million. &ténber 31, 2012, mortgage warehouse
loans were included in loans held for sale dueutoetection to the fair value option, comparedhirtinclusion in loans receivable, net at
December 31, 2011. Excluding from loans receivaiee, the December 31, 2011 type of mortgage waishtpans that are accounted for by
the fair value option in 2012, of $606.1 milliohete was an increase of $578.0 million from the yé2011 to the year of 2012. The primary
drivers of this increase were multi-family and coernial real estate that contributed $358.9 milkmal $476.6 million, respectively to the
December 31, 2012 balance, compared to their cadiialance of $350.9 million at December 31, 2@ strategic expansion of our multi-
family and commercial real estate product lines thasbasis for this growth. In addition, during 20tve acquired a manufactured housing
portfolio of $63.2 million contributed to the 2032owth.
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The following table sets forth certain categoriébans* as of December 31, 2012, in terms of awitral maturity date:

After one
but
within After
Within five five
one year years years Total

(dollars in thousands
Types of Loans

Constructior $31,63¢ $ 3,44¢ $ 21,60¢ $ 56,68¢
Commercial real esta 53,98: 244 ,96" 581,44: 880,38¢
Commercial and industrii 7,44 12,38¢ 66,44( 86,27

Total $93,06( $260,79¢ $669,49( $1,023,34!

Amount of such loans witt

Predetermined rate $68,54¢ $240,33! $503,15: $ 812,03
Floating or adjustable rat 24,51« 20,46¢ 166,33 211,31!

Total $93,06( $260,79¢ $669,49( $1,023,34!

* Includes covered and n-covered loans

CREDIT RISK

We manage credit risk by maintaining diversificatio our loan portfolio, by establishing and enfogerigorous underwriting standards, by
intensive collection efforts, and by establishimgl @erforming periodic loan classification reviewsanagement also attempts to anticipate an
allow for credit risks by maintaining an adequdteveance for loan losses, to which credit lossesdrarged as they are incurred, and to whicl
provisions are added periodically as Managementlaadoard of directors deem appropriate.

The provision for loan losses was $16.3 million,55illion, and $10.4 million for the years endeddember 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010,
respectively. The allowance for loan losses was&##llion, or 2.1% of total non-covered loansPetcember 31, 2012, and $15.0 million, or
1.2% of total non-covered loans, at December 3112Net charge-offs were $5.5 million for the yeaded December 31, 2012, a decrease o
$4.0 million compared to the $9.5 million for theay ending December 31, 2011. In addition, we lzgopeoximately $107.5 million in loans
that are covered under loss share arrangementsheithDIC as of December 31, 2012 compared to 8Ir2dlion as of December 31, 2011.
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The chart below depicts the Bancorp allowancedanllosses for the periods indicated.

December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(dollars in thousand:

Balance of the allowance at the beginning of ther $15,03: $15,12¢ $10,03: $ 2,87¢ $2,46(
Loan charge-offs (3)
Constructior 2,50¢ 1,17¢ 1,21« 92C 10C
Commercial real esta 2,462 5,77¢ 964 2,597 79
Commercial and industri 522 2,54: 1,69¢ 1,08( —
Residential real esta 64¢ 10¢ 1,36¢ — 1
Consumer and otht 25 55 22 33 15
Total Charg-offs (2) 6,16¢ 9,661 5,26¢ 4,63( 19t
Loan recoveries
Constructior 3 2 — — —
Commercial real esta 64 94 — — —
Commercial and industri 59¢ 11 6 8 —
Residential real esta 5 — 9 — —
Consumer and othq 32 7 — — —
Total Recoverie: 70C 114 15 8 —
Total net charge-offs 5,46¢ 9,54 5,25( 4,622 19t
Provision for loan losses 16,27: 9,45( 10,39 11,77¢ 611
Transfer (1) — — (50) — —
Balance of the allowance for loan losses at the enflthe year $25,83: $15,03: $15,12¢ $10,03: $2,87¢
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average non-cox@ loans 0.43% 1.1% 1.0(% 2.05% 0.0<%

(1) In 2010, we had a reserve of $50,000 for unéehcommitments previously included in the allowafardoan losses. The reserve for
unfunded loan commitments was reclassified to dihbilities.

(2) The large charc-offs in 2011 were related to loans acquired in2820 FDIC assisted transactions and the Legacyotiort

(3) PCl loans that are pooled do not have ct-offs until the pool mature:

The allowance for loan losses is based on a permdiluation of the loan portfolio and is maintairad a level that management considers
adequate to absorb potential losses. All loangssgned risk ratings, based on an assessmerd bbthower, the structure of the transaction
and the available collateral and/or guaranteesloaths are monitored regularly and the risk ratiagsadjusted when appropriate. This proces:
allows us to take corrective actions on a timelgi®avianagement considers a variety of factors,raodgnizes the inherent risk of loss that
always exists in the lending process. Managemesg aslisciplined methodology to estimate the appateplevel of allowance for loan

losses. Management reviewed various factors toldg\an aggregate reserve under ASC 45@a0tingencieggeneral reserve). See “Asset
Quality” beginning on page 59 in this Form 10-K.

This methodology includes an evaluation of loseptal from individual problem credits, as wellaticipated specific and general economic
factors that may adversely affect collectabilithiSTassessment includes a review of changes icatmgosition and volume of the loan
portfolio, overall portfolio quality and past losgperience, review of specific problem loans, aureonomic conditions that may affect
borrowers’ ability to repay, and other factors tirty warrant current recognition. In addition, miernal and external auditors, loan review
auditors and various regulatory agencies periolgicaliew the adequacy of the allowance as an matquart of their examination process. S
agencies may require us to recognize additionsduations to the allowance based on their judgmafitformation available at the time of
their examination.

In our covered loan table, many of our commerana sdustrial loans have been classified as coveraldestate. Approximately 729% of ou
commercial real estate, commercial and resideodiastruction, consumer residential and commercidliadustrial loan types have real estate
as collateral (collectively, “the real estate palitf”). Our lien position on the real estate cadlat will vary on a loan by loan basis. Current
appraisals are received when our credit group ohétes that the facts and circumstances have signifiy changed since the date of the last
appraisal, including that real estate values hateribrated. The credit committee and loan officexsew loans that are fifteen or more days
delinquent and all non-accrual loans on a peribdgis. In addition, loans where the loan officexgehidentified a “borrower of interest” are
discussed to determine if additional analysis essary to apply the risk rating criteria propefllge risk ratings for the real estate loan
portfolio are determined based upon the currerim&tion available, including but not limited tesdissions with the borrower, updated
financial information, economic conditions withimetgeographic area and other factors that maytdffecash flow of the loan. On a quarterly
basis, if necessary, the collateral values or distedl cash flow models are used to determine the
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estimated fair value of the underlying collateral the quantification of a specific reserve for airpd loans. Appraisals used within this
evaluation process do not typically age more thanytears before a new appraisal is obtained. Fordavhere real estate is not the primary
source of collateral, updated financial informatismbtained, including accounts receivable aneéimery aging reports and relevant
supplemental financial data to determine the falue of the underlying collateral.

An unallocated component is maintained to coveettamnties that could affect management’s estirnatgobable losses. The unallocated
component of the allowance reflects the margimygdriecision inherent in the underlying assumpticsedun the methodologies for estimating
specific and general losses in the portfolio.

These evaluations, however, are inherently subjeets they require material estimates, includingprag others, the amounts and timing of
expected future cash flows on impaired loans, egéhlosses in the loan portfolio, and general artsofor historical loss experience,
economic conditions, uncertainties in estimatirggés and inherent risks in the various credit pliot, all of which may be susceptible to
significant change. Pursuant to ASC 45@ntingenciesind ASC 310-40roubled Debt Restructurings by Creditoirepaired loans, consisting
of non-accrual and restructured loans, are consitlierthe methodology for determining the allowafurecredit losses. Impaired loans are
generally evaluated based on the expected futwte ftavs or the fair value of the underlying cadiatl (less estimated costs to sell) if principal
repayment is expected to come from the sale oratiperof such collateral.

The following table shows how the allowance fomdasses is allocated among the various loan dmsfthat are outstanding. This allocation
is based on management’s specific review of thdicrisk of the outstanding loan portfolios in eategory as well as historical trends.

December 31

2012 2011 2010
Percent
of Loans Percent o Percent c
Loans in
in each each Loans in
Allowance category Allowance category t Allowance each
category
for loan to total for loan total for loan to total
losses loans (a losses loans (a losses loans (a
(dollars in thousand:
Constructior $ 3,991 4.2% $ 4,65¢€ 4% $ 2,12¢ 9.5%
Commercial real esta 15,43¢ 66.5% 7,03( 29.8% 6,28( 32.(%
Commercial and industrii 1,47 6.5% 1,441 6.2% 1,66 7.2%
Residential real esta 3,23: 9.8% 844 5.€% 3,98¢ 7.8%
Consumer and othi 154 0.2% 77 0.1% 11 0.2%
Mortgage warehous 71 0.7% 92¢ 46.2% 46% 27.%%
Manufactured housin 75C 12.(% 1 8.1% — 15.%
Unallocatec 722 — 54 — 59¢€ —

$25,83] 100.(%  $15,03: 100.(% $15,12¢ 100.(%

December 31

2009 2008
Percent o Percent o
Loans in Loans in
each each
Allowance category t Allowance category t
for loan total for loan total
losses loans losses loans
(dollars in thousand:
Constructior $ 2,34¢ 9.5% $ 60¢€ 15.€%
Commercial real esta 4,87¢ 58.(% 85€ 53.2%
Commercial and industri 1,35( 11.(% 532 15.1%
Residential real esta 1,28¢ 11.% 69¢€ 3.9%
Consumer and otht 75 2.4% 32 11.8%
Mortgage warehous — 7.2% — —
Manufactured housin — — — —
Unallocatec 10C — 152 —
$10,03: 100.(% $ 2,87¢ 100.(%

(a) Total loans include covered and I-covered loans in 2012, 2011, and 2010. No coveraasl were held prior to 201
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ASSET QUALITY

We had impaired loans totaling $56.0 million at Beber 31, 2012, compared to $57.8 million at Deaam3i, 2011. Non-accrual nammvere(
loans totaled $22.3 million at December 31, 20Rym from $29.6 million at December 31, 2011. We bhadrge-offs of $6.2 million in 2012,
compared with $9.7 million in 2011. We had recossmf $700,000 in 2012, compared with $114,000ih12 There was $8.1 million and
$11.8 million of other real estate owned as a tesffioreclosure or voluntary transfer to us at 8mber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

To better understand our asset quality and rela&selve adequacy, we categorize our loan portiolmtwo categories: loans that we
“Originated” and loans that were “Acquired”. Loathat are acquired are accounted for in accordatitteASC 310-30. For additional
information on accounting for PCI loans and ouiligoWith respect to placing loans on non-accrualust, see Acquired loans below and
“NOTE 3 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES". We funer categorize our portfolio into “Covered Loandiieh are loans that were
acquired in the FDIC assisted transactions, andh*Novered Loans'Management believes that this additional infornratiall allow investor:
to better understand the risk in our portfolio #mel various types of credit reserves that are alkglto support loan losses in the future.

Asset Quality at December 31, 201

NPLs
Greater to NPAs
than 90 Total to
Days Non- Loan Loans +
30-90 and accrual/ OREO NPAs Type OREO
Loan Type Total Loans PCI Loans Current Days Accruing  NPLs (a) (b) (2)+(b) (%) (%)

(dollars in thousand:
Originated Loans

Legacy (prior to 9/09 $ 104,66t $ 0 $ 8739 $183€ $ 0 $15,43: $2,24% $17,67° 14.7¢ 16.5¢
Manufacturec 3,11: 0 3,101 12 0 0 0 0 0.0C 0.0C
Warehous« Repo 9,56¢ 0 9,56¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0.0C 0.0C
Warehouse HFS 1,439,88! 0 1,439,88 0 0] 0 0 0 0.0c 0.0C
Multi-family 358,87 0 358,87: 0 0] 0 0 0 0.0c 0.0c
Commercia 429,51 0 428,61- 0 0] 1,897 0 1,897 0.21 0.21
Consumer/Mortgag 76,55¢ 0 76,55¢ 0 0 0 0 0 0.0C 0.0C
TDRs 4,30z 0 604 0 0 3,69¢ 0 3,69¢ 85.9¢ 85.9¢
Total Originated Loans 2,426,47 0 2,404,60 1,84¢ 0 20,028 2,248 2227: 0.8t 0.92
Acquired Loans
Berkshire 14,73¢ 0 12,71¢ 20 0] 2,00z 1,31t 3,317 13.5¢  20.6¢
FDIC — Coverec 63,65 0 52,88: 26¢€ 0 10,50¢ 4,10¢ 14,61: 16.5( 21.5i
FDIC — Non-coverec 20 0 2C 0 0] 0 0 0 o0.0C 0.0C
Manufactured Housing 201 83,57( 0 79,00( 4,57( 0 0 0 0 o0.0C 0.0C
Manufactured Housing 201 0 0 0 0 0 0 44% 44 0.0C 100.0(
Manufactured Housing 201 59,47 0 52,89: 4,61  1,96¢ 0 0 0 o0.0C 0.0C
TDRs 1,84¢ 0 1,54¢ 39 0 26C 0 26C 14.0¢ 14.0¢
Total Acquired Loans 223,30( 0 199,05¢ 9,51( 1,96¢ 12,76f 5,86¢ 18,63¢ 5.7Z 8.1¢2
Acquired PCI Loans
Berkshire 60,66¢ 60,66¢ 0 0 0] 0 0 0
FDIC - Coverec 45,57 45,57 0 0 0 0 0 0
Manufactured Housing 201 12,32: 12,321 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Acquired PCI
Loans 118,56. 118,56. 0 0 0 0 0 0
Subtotal 2,768,33' 118,56: 2,603,66/ 11,35¢ 1,96¢ 32,79¢ 8,11¢ 40,90
Fair Value/Credit Marks/Deferre
Fees and Expens (3,987 (6,0579) 2,017 0 0 57 0 57
Total Portfolio $2,764,351 $112,51( $2,605,67. $11,35¢ $1,96¢ $32,85( $8,11¢ $40,96¢  1.1¢ 1.4¢
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Asset Quality at December 31, 2012 (continue:

Reserve
Reserve:
Total to Loans
Credit Cash Credit to NPLs
Loan Type Total Loans NPLs ALL Marks Reserve Reserves (%) (%)

(dollars in thousands
Originated Loans

Legacy (prior to 9/09 $ 104,66t $15,19: $ 4,38¢ $ 0 $ 0 $438¢ 4.1¢ 28.8¢
Manufacturec 3,11 0 63 0 0 63 2.0z n/e
Warehous« Repo 9,56t 0 71 0 0 71 0.74 n/e
Warehous« HFS 1,439,88 0 0 0 0 0 0.0C n/e
Multi-family 358,87 0 1,79¢ 0 0 1,79¢ 0.5C n/e
Commercia 429,51: 1,13¢ 4,10¢ 0 0 4,10¢ 0.9¢ 362.0:
Consumer/Mortgag 76,55¢ 0 537 0 0 537 0.7 n/e
TDRs 4,30:¢ 3,69¢ 0 0 0 0 0.0cC n/e
Total Originated Loans 2,426,47 20,02¢ 10,96: 0 0 10,96 0.4t 54.7¢
Acquired Loans
Berkshire 14,73¢ 2,00z 35¢ 0 0 35¢ 2.44 17.9:
FDIC — Coverec 63,65 10,50« 2,53¢ 0 0 2,53¢ 3.9¢ 24.15
FDIC — Non-coverec 2C 0 0 0 0 0 0.0C n/e
Manufactured Housing 201 83,57( 0 0 0 3,48¢ 3,48¢ 4.17 n/e
Manufactured Housing 201 0 0 0 0 0 0 n/e n/e
Manufactured Housing 201 59,47 0 0 0 0 0 0.0C n/e
TDRs 1,84¢ 26C 0 0 0 0 0.0c n/e
Total Acquired Loans 223,30( 12,76¢ 2,89¢ 0 3,48¢ 6,38¢ 2.8¢ 50.01
Acquired PCI Loans
Berkshire 60,66¢ 0 4,111 (1,539 0 2,57 4.2¢ n/e
FDIC — Coverec 45,57 0 6,457 2,31¢ 0 8,77¢ 19.2¢ n/e
Manufactured Housing 201 12,32: 0 68€ 4,88 0 5,56¢ 45.1¢ n/e
Total Acquired PCI Loans 118,56. 0 11,25¢ 5,66 0 16,91¢ 14.2 n/e
Subtotal 2,768,33! 32,79« 25,11°¢ 5,662 3,48¢ 34,26! 1.24  104.4¢
Fair Value/Credit Marks/Deferred Fees and
Expense: (3,989 57 0 0 0 0
Unallocatec 0 0 722 0 0 722
Total Portfolio $2,764,35¢ $32,85. $25,837 $5,66: $3,48¢ $34,98! 1.27  106.5(

Originated Loans

The outstanding balance of loans that the Banlohigiated totaled $2.4 billion as of December&112 or about 87.7% of total loans. Of
these, $108.7 million were loans originated praBeptember 2009 (“Legacy Loans”), when the newagament team lead by Jay Sidhu
introduced new underwriting standards that managéingieves are more conservative. The loans atguhprior to September 2009 have
$21.1 million of non-performing assets (“NPAs”)®t.9% of total NPAs for originated loans. Loangjorated after September 2009 which
total approximately $2.3 billion, have only $1.1llioh of NPAs.

The high level of non-performing loans (“NPLs")time Legacy Loan portfolio, are supported with a434illion allowance for loan losses, or
about 4.0% of total Legacy Loans. The newly origgdgportfolio includes $1.4 billion of warehouseis held for sale. Held for sale loans are
carried on our balance sheet at fair value solawahce for loan losses is not needed. Commeiazald and multifamily loans totaled $788.6
million, which are supported with $5.9 million allance for loan losses. Consumer and mortgage totaded $76.6 million, which are
supported with a $537,000 allowance for loan losses

Acquired Loans

As of December 31, 2012, we carried $337.9 milbbacquired loans which is 12.2% of total loansgiced loans include purchased
portfolios, and FDIC assisted transactions anditiessisted transactions. As of December 31, 2)122.(1% of acquired loans are from the
Berkshire Bancorp acquisition, (i) 32.1% of acgdiloans are from FDIC assisted transactions, whéske loss share protection and 80% of
credit losses are covered by the FDIC, and (iii#oof acquired loans are manufactured housingsltizett were purchased from Tammac
Holding Corporation, a consumer finance companyth®f$156.5 million in loans purchased from Tamn$&el.7 million of the loans are
supported by a $3.5 million cash reserve that cogbrcurrent losses and delinquent interest, amdaintained in a demand deposit account at
the Bank. For an addition $59.5 million of thesans, Tammac Holding Corporation has an obligatiopay us the full payoff amount of a
defaulted loan once the borrower vacates the ptgp&hich includes any principal, unpaid interestadvances on the loans.

We acquired certain loans with evidence of creddliy deterioration subsequent to their originatémd for which it was probable, at
acquisition, that we would be unable to collectcalhtractually required payments receivable. Wetetkto account for all loans acquired a



2010 within the scope of the ASC 310-30 accoungjuiglance using the same methodology. Certain laagsired in the FDIC assisted
transactions (primarily lines of credit) were notaunted for by this accounting guidance since #reynot within its scope. The fair value of
loans with evidence of credit deterioration areorded net of a nonaccretable difference and, if@mpate, an accretable yield. The difference

between contractually required payments at aciuisétnd the cash flows expected to be collectetauisition is the nonaccretable differer
which is not included in the carrying amount of aiced loans.

60



Table of Contents

PCl loans acquired in the same fiscal quarter neagidgregated into one or more pools, providedtti®albans have common risk
characteristics. A pool is then accounted for amgle asset with a single composite interestanttan aggregate expectation of cash flows

a quarterly basis, the Company re-estimates tla¢ ¢ash flows (both principal and interest) expeédttebe collected over the remaining life of
each pool. These estimates incorporate assumptgasding default rates, loss severities, the atsoamd timing of prepayments and other
factors that reflect then-current market conditidhghe timing and/or amounts of expected castvflon PCI loans were determined not to be
reasonably estimable, no interest would be accaatedhe loans would be reported as non-accruak|deowever, when the timing and
amounts of expected cash flows for PCI loans asaeably estimable, interest is being accretedtantbans are being reported as performing
loans. Charge-offs are not recorded on PCI loatibariual losses exceed the estimated lossesvityat recorded as purchase accounting
adjustments at acquisition date. The PCI loankeridan portfolio of $118.6 million at December 30,12, were supported with an $11.3

million allowance for loan losses.

As a result of loans accounted for under this asting guidance, certain asset quality ratios atenmeaningfubvhen comparing a portfolio th
includes PCI loans against one that does not, cotgpare ratios across years. As such, the tables/tare presented excluding the impact of
PCl loans. Certain loans acquired in the 2010 F&s€listed transactions (primarily lines of credigrevnot within the scope of this accounting
guidance and are presented as covered loans fatiles below.

Loans not covered under loss sharing arrangem
The tables below set forth non-covered non-perfogiidans and non-performing assets and assetyjuetiibs:

December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(dollars in thousand:
Non-accrual loan: $22,347 $29,62° $22,27: $10,34. $4,38i
Loans 90+ days delinquent still accru 1,96¢ 0 5 4,11¢ 1,58t
Restructured loans in compliance with modified t& 2,18¢ 3,63: 4,77¢ 4,69( 1,20:%
Non-performing no-covered loan 26,50: 33,25¢ 27,05t 19,15( 7,17¢
OREO 4,00¢ 7,31¢ 1,90¢ 1,15¢ 1,51¢
Non-performing no-covered asse $30,50° $40,57¢ $28,96: $20,30¢ $8,69¢
December 31
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Non-accrual non-covered loans to total non-covereddoa 1.842% 2.44% 4.3% 4.4% 1.9€%
Non-performing no-covered loans to total n-covered loan 2.1&% 2.74% 5.2€% 8.32% 3.21%
Non-performing no-covered assets to total r-covered asse 2.5(% 3.32% 5.61% 5.81% 3.17%
Non-accrual no-covered loans and 90+ days delinquent to tota-covered asse 1.9% 2.42% 4.32% 4.1% 2.1&%
Allowance for loan losses to (1
Total nor-covered loan 1.2(% 1.28% 2.94% 4.3¢% 1.2%
Non-performing no-covered loan 55.0% 45.2(% 55.92% 52.3% 40.0&%
Non-performing no-covered asse 47.8(%  37.02% 5220 49.41% 33.0¢%

(1) This table excludes the impact of PCI loans thed related allowance for loan losses of $11ifon for 2012, and $0 for 2011 and
2010. There were no PCI loans in the portfolio bef2010.

The table below sets forth types of non-coveredddaat were non-performing at December 31, 2002122010, 2009 and 2008.

December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(dollars in thousand:

Constructior $ 242 $5630( $ 4,67 $ 2,835 $1,44:
Residential real esta 2,232 1,64: 1,79: 672 35C
Commercial real esta 18,37¢ 22,18: 15,87¢ 14,78¢ 5,23¢
Commercial and industri 28¢ 2,78¢ 4,67: 721 15C
Manufactured housin 3,131 1,01¢ 5 13€ 0
Consumer and otht 53 2 32 0 0
Total nor-performing loan: $26,50: $33,25¢ $27,05¢ $19,15( $7,17¢
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We seek to manage credit risk through the divesstiion of the loan portfolio and the applicationpoficies and procedures designed to foster
sound credit standards and monitoring practiceslamvarious degrees of credit risk are associatitld substantially all investing activities, the
lending function carries the greatest degree aémt@l loss.

Asset quality assurance activities include carafahitoring of borrower payment status and a revaéworrower current financial information
to ensure financial strength and viability. We hasgeablished credit policies and procedures, dez=kdnsistent application of those policies
and procedures across the organization, and gutjlistes as appropriate for changes in market d¢mrdi and applicable regulations. The risk
elements, which comprise asset quality, includedqaast due, non-accrual loans, renegotiated |lo#inss, real estate owned, and loan
concentrations.

Potential Problem Loan

To facilitate the monitoring of credit quality withthe commercial and industrial, commercial resthte, construction portfolio and residential
real estate segments, and for purposes of analystayical loss rates used in the determinatiothefallowance for loan losses for the
respective portfolio segment, the Bank utilizesftiilowing categories of risk ratings: pass, spkgiantion, substandard, doubtful or loss. The
risk rating categories, which are derived from dtad regulatory rating definitions, are assignedruinitial approval of credit to borrowers a
updated periodically thereafter. Pass ratings, iwhie assigned to those borrowers that do not idaveified potential or well defined
weaknesses and for which there is a high likelihoborderly repayment, are updated periodicallyeldasn the size and credit characteristics ¢
the borrower. All other categories are updated qoarterly basis during the month preceding theadrtle calendar quarter. While assigning
risk ratings involves judgment, the risk rating gges allows management to identify riskier creidits timely manner and allocate the
appropriate resources to managing the loans.

The Bank assigns a special mention rating to Itlaaishave potential weaknesses that deserve maeagjsrolose attention. If left uncorrecte
these potential weaknesses may, at some futurerdatét in the deterioration of the repayment pexss for the loan and the Bank’s credit
position. At December 31, 2012 and December 311 2€decial mention loans were $28.8 million and.$2Billion, respectively.

Risk ratings are not established for home equiiyn$y consumer loans, and installment loans, mamtause these portfolios consist of a large
number of homogenous loans with smaller balancssedd, these portfolios are evaluated for risknipdiased on aggregate payment history,
through the monitoring of delinquency levels arahtts.

A regular reporting and review process is in placprovide for proper portfolio oversight and camtrand to monitor those loans identified as
problem credits by management. This process igdedito assess our progress in working towardwisno| and to assist in determining an
appropriate specific allowance for possible losgéidoan work out situations involve the activerpeipation of management, and are reported
regularly to the Board.

Loan charge-offs are determined on a case-by-casie.tboans are generally charged off when prindsplékely to be unrecoverable and after
appropriate collection steps have been taken.

Loan policies and procedures are reviewed interriafl possible revisions and changes on a regalsisbin addition, these policies and
procedures, together with the loan portfolio, @eéewed on a periodic basis by various regulatgenaies and by our internal, external and
loan review auditors, as part of their examinatiod audit procedures.

Troubled Debt Restructurings (TDRS)

At December 31, 2012, there were $6.1 million iane categorized as troubled debt restructuringpiR), and at December 31, 2011, there
were $9.9 million in loans categorized as trouldledt restructurings. All TDRs are considered imgrhioans in the calendar year of their
restructuring. In subsequent years, a TDR may deeisg classified as impaired if the loan was medifat a market rate and has performed
according to the modified terms for at least sixiths. A loan that has been modified at a below etarkte will return to performing status if it
satisfies the six-month performance requiremenyédwer, it will remain classified as impaired.

Modification of PCI loans that are accounted fothivi loan pools in accordance with the accountiagdards for PCI loans do not result in the
removal of these loans from the pool even if madifions would otherwise be considered a TDR. Adogtyg, as each pool is accounted for as
a single asset with a single composite interestaatl an expectation of cash flows, modificatiohnsans within such pools are not TDRs.

TDR modifications primarily involve interest ratencessions, extensions of term, deferrals of gradciand other modifications. Other
modifications typically reflect other nonstandaedms which the Bancorp would not offer in non-trieabsituations. During the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, loanseggting $1.4 million and $6.1 million were moddia troubled debt restructurings. TDR
modifications of loans within the commercial andustrial category were primarily interest rate @swons, deferrals of principal and other
modifications; modifications of commercial realastloans were primarily deferrals of principaltemsions of term and other modifications;
and modifications of residential real estate loagse primarily interest rate concessions and daffenf principal. As of December 31, 2012
and 2011, there were no commitments to lend adhditifunds to debtors whose terms have been modifiedubled debt structuring.

There were no valuation losses at the time ofrdmester and had no impact on the allowance for losses. During the twelve month periods
ending December 31, 2012, three TDR loans defawltdda total recorded investment of $283,000. Bgithe twelve month periods ending

December 31, 2011, one TDR loans defaulted withtal tecorded investment of $710,000. Since thé3® bans were included in the loans
portfolio that is subject to the cash reserve, tiveye subsequently removed from the loan portfalamordingly, there were no defaulted Ti



loans at December 31, 2012 and 2011.

All loans modified in troubled debt restructuriry®e evaluated for impairment. The nature and exteimipairment of TDRs, including those
which have experienced a subsequent default, isidered in the determination of an appropriatellefallowance for credit losses. There v
$120,000 and $352,000 in specific reserves regultom the addition of TDR modifications during thears ended December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011.

Nor-performing loans and assets covered under FDIG &sring agreements

The tables below set forth non-accrual covereddaard non-performing covered assets covered undié€? Iess sharing agreements excluding
PCl loans.

December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands
Non-accrual covered loar $10,50: $ 6,99 $ 8,08¢
Covered other real estate owr 4,10¢ 6,16¢ 5,34
Total nor-performing covered asse $14,61: $13,15¢ $13,42¢

The table below sets forth the types of coveredddhat were non-performing excluding PCI loans.

December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands
Constructior $ 5,24¢ $2,58¢ $4,59(
Residential real esta 1,35¢ 1,07¢ 37¢
Commercial real esta 3,71z 3,18t 2,647
Commercial and industri; 10C 72 28¢
Manufactured housin 90 78 191
Total nor-performing covered loar $10,50¢ $6,99: $8,08¢

FDIC LOSS SHARING RECEIVABLE

As of December 31, 2012, 4.0% of the outstandimgcppal balance of loans receivable and 50.6% ofather real estate assets were covered
under loss share agreements with the FDIC in wihielFDIC has agreed to reimburse us for 80% dbafles incurred in connection with th
assets. We estimated the FDIC reimbursement thiatesult from losses or expenses incurred as wpadie of covered loans and other real
estate assets, and we recorded the estimate esizatgde from the FDIC. The FDIC loss sharing reable was approximately $12.3 and $13.1
million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respelstiv
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PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT AND OTHER ASSETS

Our premises and equipment, net of accumulatededigtion, was $9.7 million and $8.4 million at Dedzer 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
Leasehold improvements and furniture and equipmperthases from relocation of a bank branch and bé#ie contributed $690,000 to the
increase. Technology equipment contributed $558t0@be increase due to the addition of two tecbgpffacilities.

Our restricted stock holdings at December 31, 20i®December 31, 2011 were $30.2 million and $&1ili&n, respectively. These consist
stock of the Federal Reserve Bank, Federal Home Baank and Atlantic Central Bankers Bank, and atgiired as part of our relationship
with these banks.

BOLI purchases of $25.5 million during 2012 contitid to the increase in our BOLI cash surrendaresaf $54.7 million at December 31,
2012 from $28.4 million at December 31, 2011. B&Lilised by the Bank as tax-free funding for emptdyenefits. Included in BOLI on the
balance sheet is the Supplemental Executive Regmelan (“SERP”) balance of $1.5 million and $@00, at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Accrued interest receivable and other assets isecetr $27.4 million at December 31, 2012 from 81billion at December 31, 2011. This
increase primarily was the result of higher deféi@ad prepaid taxes of $3.7 million and $4.3 millicespectively. The deferred taxes increase
of $3.7 million is a timing difference related teetincreased allowance for loan losses, and theehigrepaid taxes are the result of a projectec
overpayment of federal income taxes. Additionadpitalized software increased by $760,000 duaftastructure improvements, and
technology development in 2012.

DEPOSITS

We offer a variety of deposit accounts, includihgcking, savings, money market and time deposipoBits are obtained primarily from our
geographic service area. Total deposits grew té4f12billion at December 31, 2012, an increase &7# million, or 54.2%, from $1.583
billion at December 31, 2011. We experienced grawttetail deposits due to exceptional sales beirayiespite lower interest rates in 2012.

The components of deposits were as follows at #tesdndicated:

December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousand:
Demand, no-interest bearin $ 219,68 $ 114,04 $ 72,26¢
Demand, interest bearit 1,020,94 739,46: 387,01:
Savings 20,29¢ 16,92: 17,64¢
Time, $100,000 and ow 708,48 408,85: 434,45
Time, othel 471,39¢ 303,90’ 334,30
Total deposit: $2,440,81 $1,583,18 $1,245,69

Total time deposits increased $467.1 million, 05566, to $1.180 billion at December 31, 2012 compaoe$712.8 million at December 31,
2011. Time deposits of $100,000 or more were $708l%n at December 31, 2012 compared to $408l8aniat December 31, 2011, an
increase of $299.6 million or 73.3%. The increass wrimarily due to deposits received from listiggvices. Time deposits, other increase
$167.5 million to $471.4 million at December 31120The increase was primarily due to $149.9 mmillid brokered time deposits in 2012.

Nor-interest bearing demand deposits at December@P, &ere $219.7 million, an increase of $105.7iomll or 92.7%, from $114.0 million
at December 31, 2011. Interest bearing demand dsposreased $281.5 million, or 38.1%, to $1.020dm from $739.5 million at
December 31, 2011. The increase was due to brokeoedy market deposits of $203.1 million, and iases in money market accounts of
$75.1 million. Savings deposit accounts increasd fhillion, or 20.0%, to $20.3 million at Decemi&dr, 2012 from $16.9 million.
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Average deposit balances by type and the asso@atrdge rate paid are summarized below:

Year ended December 31

Demand deposil
Interes-bearing demand depos
Savings deposil

Time deposit:

Total

Average Deposit Balance

2012 2011 2010
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Rate Paic Balance Rate Pai Balance Rate Pai
(dollars in thousands)

$ 180,71¢ 0.0(% $ 94,76¢ 0.0(% $ 50,70¢ 0.0(%
893,03¢ 0.8t 525,63¢ 1.2¢ 202,98: 1.81
20,26 0.5¢€ 13,54: 0.6€ 11,22: 0.6€
935,20° 1.4Z 808,63 1.8t 369,75 1.9¢

$2,029,23. $1,442,58! $634,66¢
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At December 31, 2012, the scheduled maturitiegy# teposits greater than $100,000 are as follows:

December 31
(dollars in thousands

3 months or les $ 176,42t
Over 3 through 6 montt 81,14(
Over 6 through 12 montt 153,38«
Over 12 month: 297,53
Total $ 708,48

OTHER BORROWINGS

Borrowed funds from various sources are generagduto supplement deposit growth. There were $8lidmof Federal funds purchased as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011. Federal funds tifpicsture in one day. An increase in mortgage Wwause funding has increased the need
for us to borrow overnight funds. FHLB overnightvadces totaled $411.0 million and $320.0 millioro&®ecember 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. We also had contractual maturitiefixefd rate long-term advances as noted below.

December 31

2012 2011
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(dollars in thousand:
2014 $15,00( 0.52% $ 1,00( 3.7%%
2015 25,00( 0.61 0 0.0C
2016 10,00( 0.77 0 0.0C
2017 5,00( 3.0¢ 5,00( 3.0¢
2018 5,00( 3.31 5,00( 3.31
$60,00( $11,00(
Short-term debt
Short-term debt was as follows:
December 31
2012 2011 2010
Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
(dollars in thousand:
FHLB advance: $411,000 0.2%8% $320,000 0.282% $ O 0.0(%
Federal funds purchas 5,000 0.2C 5,00 0.1z 0 0.0
Total shor-term borrowings $416,00( $325,00( $ O
The following is a summary of the Bancorp’s sheitit borrowings:
December 31
2012 __2011 2010
(dollars in thousands
FHLB advances
Maximum outstanding at any month € $411,00( $329,00( $30,00(
Average balance during the ye 74,33¢ 25,01t 54€
Weighted average interest rate during the .38% .34% .7€%
Federal funds purchase
Maximum outstanding at any month € 55,00( 8,00( 5,461
Average balance during the ye 4,33¢ 1,41¢ 56
Weighted average interest rate during the 24% 12% .6S%
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SUBORDINATED DEBT

Customers Bank issued a subordinated term notaglthie second quarter of 2004 that matures on2B)I2014. The note was issued for $2.0
million at a floating rate based upon the three-th@anBOR rate, determined quarterly, plus 2.75% g@num. Quarterly interest payments are
made on this note in January, April, July and Oetolt December 31, 2012, the quarterly averagewais 3.07% and the average rate for the
year was 3.20%. The note matures in the third guaft2014. Currently, 20% of this subordinatedtdglincluded in Customers Bank and
Bancorp’s Tier Il regulatory capital requirement.

PREFERRED STOCK

As part of the Berkshire acquisition in Septemt@t we exchanged outstanding Berkshire TARP Si8eees A and Series B preferred
shares for 2,892 shares of the Series A Sharesgib@ers Bancorp, having a liquidation prefererfcglc000 per share, and 145 shares of the
Series B Shares of Customers Bancorp, also haviggidation preference of $1,000 per shares. Oced®er 28, 2011, we repurchased thes
preferred shares from the U.S. Treasury for $3I0ami

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Shareholders’ equity increased by $121.8 millio8269.5 million at December 31, 2012, from $147illion at December 31, 2011. The
increase in equity was primarily the result of m@mmmon stock private offerings in the third quade2012 that raised net proceeds of $94.6
million. Net income and stock-based compensatiat icereased equity by $23.8 million and $1.3 midlirespectively, for the twelve months
ended December 31, 2012.

For additional details relating to changes in dwareholders’ equity, refer to the Statements ofr@ka in Shareholders Equity and “NOTE 10 -
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY” presented in Part Il, temBnancial Statements and Supplementary Data.

PRIVATE OFFERINGS OF COMMON STOCK

Since January 1, 2009, we have raised approxim&g€{.1 million of capital, net of offering costirough several private offerings of our
securities. In the aggregate, we issued 11,90&h8s of Voting Common Stock and 4,937,831 shair€$ass B Norvoting Common Stoc|
pursuant to these private offerings. Several iroresh our 2010 private offerings were deemed “lea@stors,” which entitled them to certain
registration rights, pre-emptive rights and antititbn rights. In addition, as part of the privatierings, the lead investors, along with certain
other investors, received anti-dilution agreementwiding them with protection from dilution unMarch 31, 2011. All of the contractual
rights mentioned in the preceding sentence havieezkpr we have performed our required obligati@ms] these rights are no longer in forc
effect. In addition, some of these purchasersm@seived warrants in connection with their investine

Investors in the September 2011, July and Augus? 28nd September 2012 private offerings receiesdle registration rights, either in piggy-
back or demand form. In February of 2013, we regést for resale on Form S-3 the 5,683,060 shar¥stirig Common Stock and 2,416,603
shares of Class B Non-Voting Common Stock that isseed in those private offerings, satisfyingoalistanding registration rights of the
various investors.

We anticipate that from time to time we may all@awvour discretion, holders of Class B Non-Votingcktto convert such stock into Voting
Common Stock, on a one-to-one basis, but onlyd@ttient the holder would not own greater than 409%ur outstanding Voting Common
Stock after conversion.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Liquidity for a financial institution is a measunéthat institution’s ability to meet depositor®exs for funds, to satisfy or fund loan
commitments, and for other operating purposes. mgadequate liquidity is an objective of the A#isability Management process. We
coordinate our management of liquidity with ouleirgst rate sensitivity and capital position. Wé&etto maintain a strong liquidity position.

Our investment portfolio provides periodic cashwifothrough regular maturities and amortization, et be used as collateral to secure
additional liquidity funding. Our principal sourcesfunds are proceeds from stock issuance, depabt issuance, principal and interest
payments on loans, and other funds from operatiMesalso maintain borrowing arrangements with teédfal Home Loan Bank and the
Federal Reserve Bank of Philadelphia to meet dleont-liquidity needs. As at December 31, 2012 aBitil2 our borrowing capacity with the
Federal Home Loan Bank was $608.9 million, and $5Tiillion, respectively, of which $411 million a$20 million, respectively, was used
in short-term borrowings. As of December 31, 204@ 2011, our borrowing capacity with the Federaddtee Bank of Philadelphia was
$107.0 million and $72.0 million, respectively.

Net cash flows used in operating activities were242 billion for the twelve months ended DecemtierZ)12, compared to net cash flc
provided by operating activities of $29.9 millicor the twelve months ended December 31, 2011. @aiigin of loans held for sale in excess of
the proceeds from the sales of loans contributeiBibillion to cash flows used in operating atigdd during 2012. In 2011, proceeds from
sales of loans in excess of origination of loarld fer sale contributed $25.2 billion to cash floprevided by operating activities
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Investing activities provided net cash flows of $26million for the twelve months ended December2f12. Proceeds less purchases from
sales of investment securities contributed $277lkom which included the sale of $257.6 milliofi@vailable-for-sale securities realized in
May 2012. These securities were reclassified fretd-to-maturity investment portfolio to availablar fsale in May 2012. A net decrease in
loans contributed $61.2 million to investing adigs$, offset by $63.2 million used to purchase aufiactured housing loan portfolio. For the
twelve months ended December 31, 2011, net casls flsed in investing activities were $760.5 million

The difference in the net cash from operating awvesting activities in 2012 versus 2011 was duééachange in presentation for warehouse
lending transactions. In July 2012, we electedsethe fair value option to account for warehoeseling transactions. As a result of this
election, in 2012 warehouse lending transactioa<kassified as an operating activity on the statgrof cash flows, instead of as an investing
activity in 2011.

Financing activities provided $1.092 billion forethwelve months ended December 31, 2102, as ireséasash from deposits provided $8!
million, and net proceeds of $94.6 million weregiged from the July, August and September 2012apgigecurities offerings under which the
Bancorp sold 7,111,819 shares of common stock.€Tfieancing activities, in addition to increasesimort-term and FHLB borrowings of
$91.0 million and $49.0 million, respectively, pided sufficient cash flows to support operating anetsting activities, and increased cash
cash equivalents by $112.4 million.

Financing activities provided $565.4 million foethwelve months ended December 31, 2011, primdug/to increased growth of deposits of
$215.5 million in addition to an increase in sh@tm FHLB borrowings of $325.0 million.

Overall, based on our core deposit base and alataloirces of borrowed funds, management belidwagsite have adequate resources to mee
our short-term and long-term cash requirementsimvitie foreseeable future.

CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve Byhtes adopted risk-based capital and leverageregigrements for bank holding
companies like the Bancorp and banks like CustofBark that are members of the Federal Reserve8y3tee Pennsylvania Department of
Banking and Securities also sets minimum capiglirements. At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the @anoet each of our minimum capital
requirements. Management believes that the Bangoyd be deemed “well capitalized” for regulatoryrposes as of December 31, 2012 anc
2011. Banking regulators have discretion to esthldin institution’s classification based on otlatdrs, in addition to the institution’s numeric
capital levels.

Management is not aware of any developments theg becurred and that could, or would be reasonidt#iy to, cause the Bancorp’s
classification to be reduced below a level of “wepitalized” for regulatory purposes. The Banceapital classification is determined
pursuant to “prompt corrective action” regulatioasd to determine levels of deposit insurance ags&sts, and may not constitute an accurat
representation of our overall financial conditiarpoospects.

The Bank experienced rapid loan growth during thalfdays of 2012. During the standard closing psscof the Bank’s December 2012
financial statements, management determined oradp®0, 2013 that the rapid loan growth resulted ieduction in the Bank’s capital ratios,
causing the Bank to become adequately capitaliged Recember 31, 2012. Management immediatelhsteared sufficient capital from the
Bancorp to the Bank, returning the Bank to wellitajzed status. Sufficient cash is maintainechatBancorp to ensure that the Bank remains
well capitalized, and management remains commitie¢dking all steps necessary to ensure that bettBancorp and the Bank remain well
capitalized going forward. Since the Bank was adégly capitalized at December 31, 2012, reguladémgroval is required to accept, renew or
roll over any brokered deposits. Effective Januarg013, the interest rate paid for deposits biitint®ns that are less than well capitalized is
limited to 75 basis points above the national fatesimilar products unless the institution cangsup to the FDIC that prevailing rates in its
market area exceed the national average.
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The following table summarizes the required capatibs and the corresponding regulatory capitaltfums of the Bancorp and Customers
Bank for the periods or dates indicated:

To Be Well Capitalized

Under
Prompt Corrective
For Capital Adequacy Action
Actual Purposes Provisions
(Dollars in thousands Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 201z
Total capital (to risk weighted assets
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $289,03! 11.2¢% = $205,44: = 8.(% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $244,71(  9.55% = $205,44. = 8.(% $256,80. = 10.(%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $262,71¢ 10.23% = $102,72. = 4.% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $218,39: 85(% = $102,72: = 4.0% $154,08: = 6.C%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $262,71¢ 9.3(% = $112,93¢ = 4.% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $218,39: 7.74% = $112,89. = 4.(% $141,11' = 5.C%
As of December 31, 2011:
Total capital (to risk weighted assets
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $157,70. 11.1% = $113,34t = 8.(% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $152,75! 10.7¢% = $113,34t = 8.(% $141,68. = 10.(%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $141,86¢ 10.0% = $ 56,67 = 4.(% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $136,87( 9.66% = $ 56,67 = 4.(% $ 85,01( = 6.C%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $141,86¢ 7.31% = $ 76,98 = 4.(% N/A N/A
Customers Bank $136,87( 7.11% = $ 76,98 = 4.(% $ 96,23, = 5.C%

Capital Ratios
We continued to build capital during 2012. In gehein the past few years, balance sheet loan grbas been offset by earnings and increas
in capital from sales of common stock. As our asgebw, our capital ratios decrease.

We are unaware of any current recommendationsédyetijulatory authorities which, if they were toilmplemented, would have a material
effect on our liquidity, capital resources, or giems.

The maintenance of appropriate levels of capitahismportant objective of our Asset and Liabiliianagement process. Through our initial
capitalization and our subsequent offerings, weslelwe have continued to maintain a strong capitaltion.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We are a party to financial instruments and otleenmnitments with off-balance sheet risks. Financisfruments with off-balance sheet risks
are incurred in the normal course of business tetite financing needs of our customers. Thesadiaainstruments include commitments to
extend credit, including unused portions of linésredit, and standby letters of credit. Thoserimsents involve, to varying degrees, elements
of credit risk in excess of the amount recognizedhe balance sheets.
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With commitments to extend credit, our exposurergalit loss in the event of non-performance byatier party to the financial instrument is
represented by the contractual amount of thoseum&nts. We use the same credit policies in magkamymitments and conditional obligations
as for on-balance sheet instruments. Since theghiacredit risk similar to extending a loan, theg subject to our Credit Policy and other
underwriting standards.

As of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 201 ¥ptlusving off-balance sheet commitments, finandéitruments and other arrangements
were outstanding:

December 31

2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:
Commitments to fund loar $136,00° $106,22°
Unfunded commitments to fund mortgage warehouseas! 428,40( 294,68:
Unfunded commitments under lines of cre 87,22( 66,93¢
Letters of credi 3,06¢ 1,37¢

Commitments to fund loans, unfunded commitmentsind mortgage warehouse loans, unfunded commitmenasr lines of credit and letters
of credit are agreements to extend credit to ottferbenefit of a customer in the ordinary courfseun business.

Commitments to fund loans and unfunded commitmentter lines of credit may be obligations of oursomg as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Since mdrth® commitments are expected to expire withoirtddrawn upon, the total commitment
amounts do not necessarily represent future caglireanents. Commitments generally have fixed exipinadates or other termination clauses
and may require payment of a fee. We evaluate eastomer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case.bHssamount of collateral obtained, if
we deem it necessary upon extension of credised on management’s credit evaluation. Collateria varies but may include personal or
commercial real estate, accounts receivable, iover@tnd equipment.

Mortgage warehouse loan commitments are agreerteeptechase mortgage loans from mortgage bankatsree to purchase the loans t
in a short period of time or to sell to third pantyrtgage originators. These commitments geneflallyuate monthly as existing loans are
repurchased by the mortgage bankers and new loaqsiechased by us.

Outstanding letters of credit written are condiiboommitments issued by us to guarantee the préioce of a customer to a third

party. Letters of credit may obligate us to fundwis under those letters of credit whether or maistomer continues to meet the conditions of
the extension of credit. The credit risk involvedssuing letters of credit is essentially the sam¢hat involved in extending loan facilities to
customers.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

The following table sets forth contractual obligats and other commitments representing requiregpatehtial cash outflows as of
December 31, 2012. Interest on subordinated detenand long-term borrowed funds is calculated dhasecurrent contractual interest rates.

More thar
Within one After one but After three but
Total year within three yeal within five year: five years
(dollars in thousand:

Operating lease $ 1198 $ 2171 % 343¢  $ 2,612 $ 3,76¢
Benefit plan commitment 4,50( 0 0 30C 4,20(
Contractual maturities of time depos 1,179,88I 806,92¢ 215,34 157,61« 0
Subordinated notes plus interest expens: 2,107 61 2,04¢ 0 0
Loan commitment 651,62 630,65( 1,43 56€ 18,97¢
Long-term debi 60,00( 0 40,00( 15,00( 5,00(
Interest on lon-term debt 2,52z 62% 1,12: 71€ 59
Standby letters of crec 3,06¢4 3,06¢ 0 0 0
Total $1,915,69. $1,443,49 $ 263,38. $ 176,800  $32,00:

(1) Includes interest on lorterm debt and subordinated debentures at a weighteaf 1.04% and 3.20%, respectivt
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NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

For information about the impact that recently addmr issued accounting guidance will have onefgr to “NOTE 3 — SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES” appearing in Part I, Item 8this Form 10-K.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure Aut Market Risk
Interest Rate Sensitivity

The largest component of our net income is netésteancome, and the majority of our financial iastents are interest rate sensitive asset
liabilities with various terms and maturities. Qufehe primary objectives of management is to mazémmet interest income while minimizing
interest rate risk. Interest rate risk is deriviemhf timing differences in the repricing of assetd &abilities, loan prepayments, deposit
withdrawals, and differences in lending and fundiates. Our Asset/Liability Committee actively seé® monitor and control the mix of
interest rate sensitive assets and interest rasitise liabilities.

We use two complementary methods to analyze anduneénterest rate sensitivity as part of the dveranagement of interest rate risk. They
are income simulation modeling and estimates ofiestc value of equity. The combination of these twethods provides a reasonably
comprehensive summary of the levels of interest rigk of our exposure to time factors and chamgé#erest rate environments.

Income simulation modeling is used to measure m@rést rate sensitivity and manage our interastrisk. Income simulation considers not
only the impact of changing market interest rafgsnuforecasted net interest income, but also ddwtors such as yield curve relationships, th
volume and mix of assets and liabilities, custopreferences and general market conditions.

Through the use of income simulation modeling, aeehestimated the net interest income for the geding December 31, 2012, based upon
the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet fir@rinstruments in existence at December 31, 202 have also estimated changes to that
estimated net interest income based upon intemtest rising or falling immediately (“rate shocksRate shocks assume that all interest rates
increase or decrease immediately. The followindgetadflects the estimated percentage change imat&d net interest income for the year
ending December 31, 2012, resulting from changé&sémest rates.

Net change in net interest income

%

Rate Shocks Change
Up 3% 16.%
Up 2% 13.2%
UB 1% 8.2%
Down 1% (5.0) %
Down 2% (4.€) %
Down 3% (6.5) %

The net changes in net interest income in all stemare within Customers Bank’s interest rate pekcy guidelines.

Economic Value of Equity (“EVE”) estimates the disated present value of asset and liability casivdl Discount rates are based upon
market prices for comparable assets and liabilitigsvard and downward rate shocks are used to meeaslatility of EVE in relation to a
constant rate environment. This method of measunepranarily evaluates the longer term repricingks and options in Customers Bank’s
balance sheet. The following table reflects thevested EVE at risk and the ratio of EVE to EVE adigd assets at December 31, 2012,
resulting from shocks to interest rates.

Rate Shocks From base EVE assets capital (¢
Up 3% (4.6% (4.0%
Up 2% 3.7 3.2
UB 1% 6.2 5.4
Down 1% (9.9 (8.2
Down 2% (6.€) (5.8
Down 3% (2.0 (1.0

(a) Capital defined as Tier 1 plus Tier 2 Capital, akwlated under regulatory guidelin

The percent changes of EVE with the exception ef‘ttown 1%” and “down 2% rate shocks are all witliur interest risk policy guidelines.
While the percent changes of EVE in the “down 1%d &down 2% rate shock scenarios are slightly mg®ur guidelines, management does
not believe these scenarios are likely given theett interest rate environment.

The matching of assets and liabilities may alsarteyzed by examining the extent to which suchtass® liabilities are interest rate sensitive
and by monitoring a bank’s interest rate sensitilgiap.” An asset or liability is said to be inteteate sensitive within a specific time period if
it will mature or reprice within that time perio@ihe interest rate sensitivity gap is defined adifference between the amount of interest

earning assets maturing or repricing within a dpettime period and the amount of interest beatialilities maturing or repricing within that
time period.
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The following table sets forth the amounts of ia#fearning assets and interest-bearing liabildigstanding at December 31, 2012 that are
anticipated, based upon certain assumptions, ticeepr mature in each of the future time peridusven. Except as stated below, the amou
assets and liabilities shown that reprice or matluring a particular period were determined in adance with the earlier of term to repricing
or the contractual maturity of the asset or liapiliThe table sets forth an approximation of thajgmted repricing of assets and liabilities at
December 31, 2012 on the basis of contractual nti@siranticipated prepayments, and scheduledadjtestments within a three-month period
and subsequent selected time intervals. The loauaty in the table reflect principal balances etg@to be repaid and/or repriced as a result
of contractual amortization and anticipated prepayis of adjustable and fixed rate loans, and asutrof contractual-rate adjustments on
adjustable-rate loans.

Balance Sheet Gap Analysis at December 31, 2C

3 months 3to6 6to 12 1to3 3to5 Over 5
or less months months years years years Total
(dollars in thousands

Assets
Interest earning deposits and federal funds

sold $ 173,106 % 0 3 0 s 0 s 0 $1290f $ 186,01t
Investment securitie 3,314 3,11¢ 16,16: 33,88t 31,25« 71,42¢ 159,16:
Loans receivable (z 1,674,32 60,22: 116,73t 306,39( 252,26° 328,58( 2,738,52i
Total interes-earning asset 1,850,74. 63,34( 132,90: 340,27¢ 283,52: 412,91¢ 3,083,69
Non interes-earning asse! 0 0 0 0 0 117,53 117,53
Total asset 1,850,74. 63,34( 132,90: 340,27t 283,52: 530,45.  $3,201,23.
Liabilities
Other interesbearing deposit $ 99144  $ 0o $ 0 % 0 s 0 $49,79¢ $1,041,24
Time deposit: 363,45( 227,33 234,05: 219,26¢ 135,64 131 1,179,88
Other borrowing 425,00( 1,00(¢ 0 40,00: 9,99¢ 0 476,00(
Subordinated det 2,00( 0 0 0 0 0 2,00(
Total interes-bearing liabilities 1,781,89 228,33 234,05: 259,26¢ 145,64¢ 49,93( 2,699,13
Non interes-bearing liabilities 0 0 0 0 0 232,62° 232,62°
Shareholders equity 0 0 0 0 18 269,45 269,47!
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity 1,781,89 228,33 234,05: 259,26¢ 145,66« 552,01  $3,201,23.
Interest sensitivity ga $ 68,84t $(164,99) $(101,15) $ 81,000 $137,85  $(21,56)
Cumulative interest sensitivity gi 0 (96,157 (197,309 (116,296 21,56 0
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap to tot

asset: 2.2% -3.C% —6.2% -3.€% 0.7% 0.C%
Cumulative interest-earning assets to

cumulative intere-bearing liabilities 103.¢% 95.2% 91.2% 95.4% 100.8% 114.2%

(&) Including loans held for sa

As shown above, we have a negative cumulative gaplative interest sensitive assets are lower tvanulative interest sensitive liabilities)
within the next year, which generally indicatesttha increase in rates may lead to a decreasd inteeest income, and a decrease in rates
lead to an increase in net interest income. Inteats sensitivity gap analysis measures whettsataor liabilities may reprice but does not
capture the ability to reprice or the range of ptit# repricing on assets or liabilities. Thus itations based on a negative or positive gap
position needs to be analyzed in conjunction witfeointerest rate risk management tools.

Management believes that the assumptions and camidrinof methods utilized in evaluating estimatetiinterest income are

reasonable. However, the interest rate sensitbfigur assets, liabilities and off-balance shewsricial instruments, as well as the estimated
effect of changes in interest rates on estimatédhterest income, could vary substantially if di#nt assumptions are used or actual exper
differs from the assumptions used in the model.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Customers Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Customers Bancorp, Inc. and Subsdiétie “Bancorp”) as of

December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related cdasetl statements of income, comprehensive inconamges in shareholders’ equity and
cash flows for each of the years in the thyear period ended December 31, 2012. These coasatidinancial statements are the responsil
of the Bancorp’s management. Our responsibilitp isxpress an opinion on these financial statentsaged on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those standard:s
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether the finastaieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of Customers
Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of December @12 2nd 2011, and the results of their operatiouistiaeir cash flows for each of the year
the three-year period ended December 31, 201rifoomity with accounting principles generally apta in the United States of America.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the Bancorp’s
internal control over financial reporting as of Betber 31, 2012, based on criteria establishédt@mnal Control — Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadrike Treadway Commission (COSO) and our repated March 18, 2013 expressed an
unqualified opinion.

/sl ParenteBeard LLC
Lancaster, Pennsylvania
March 18, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Customers Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited Customers Bancorp, Inc. and Sabidi (the “Bancorp”) internal control over finaakreporting as of December 31, 2012,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadwa
Commission (COSO). The Bancorp’s management ioresble for maintaining effective internal contosler financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal cootret financial reporting included in the accompgagyManagement’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsipile to express an opinion on the Bancorp’s intecoatrol over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti8d&/nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenalteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audintééinal control over financial reporting includdotaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk thataderial weakness exists, and testing and evafygtie design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Quit also included performing such other proceda®®/e considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provide=sagonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statet:iéor external purposes in accordance with acéogmirinciples generally accepted in the
United States of America. A company'’s internal cohover financial reporting includes those pol&cend procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detiljrately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transadi@nsecorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, andrdxipts and expenditures of the company are bmadg only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of timepany; and (3) provide reasonable assurance rieggstevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition ef¢bmpany’s assets that could have a materialtaffethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Customers Bancorp, Inc. and Subsigls maintained, in all material respects, effeciinternal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2012, based on criteria estedali;internal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Customers Bancorp, Inc. and @abiss as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and tatedeconsolidated statements of
income, comprehensive income, changes in sharaisokelguity, and cash flows for each of the yearthanthree-year period ended
December 31, 2012 and our report dated March 1B3 2@pressed an unqualified opinion.

/s/ ParenteBeard LLC

Lancaster, Pennsylvania
March 18, 2013
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
December 31,

2012

2011

(dollars in thousands,
except share dat

ASSETS
Cash and due from ban $ 12,90¢ $  7,76f
Interest earning depos 173,10t 65,80:
Cash and cash equivalel 186,01¢ 73,57(
Investment securities available for sale, at falue 129,09: 79,137
Investment securities held to maturity (fair vai@s1 $330,809 0 319,54
Loans held for sale (including $1,248,935 of mogiyaarehouse loans at fair value in 20 1,439,88! 174,99¢
Loans receivable not covered under Loss Sharingémgents with the FDIi 1,216,94 1,215,11
Loans receivable covered under Loss Sharing Agratswegth the FDIC 107,52¢ 126,27t
Less: Allowance for loan loss (25,83) (15,037
Total loans receivable, n 1,298,63 1,326,36
FDIC loss sharing receivakb 12,34: 13,077
Bank premises and equipment, 9,672 8,44¢
Bank-owned life insuranc 56,19: 29,26¢
Other real estate owned (2012 $4,109; 2011 $6,066red under Loss Sharing Agreements with the FI 8,11« 11,81«
Goodwill and other intangible 3,68¢ 3,70¢
Restricted stoc 30,16 21,81¢
Accrued interest receivable and other as 27,43¢ 15,78t
Total assets $3,201,23.  $2,077,53
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Deposits:
Demand, no-interest bearin $ 219,68 $ 114,04
Interest bearin 2,221,13 1,469,14
Total deposit: 2,440,81! 1,583,18
Federal funds purchas 5,00( 5,00(
Other borrowing 471,00( 331,00(
Subordinated det 2,00(¢ 2,00¢
Accrued interest payable and other liabilit 12,94: 8,59¢
Total liabilities 2,931,75! 1,929,78.
Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock, par value $1,000 per share; 100000 shares authorized; none iss 0 0
Common stock, par value $1.00 per share; 200,00G0ares authorized; 18,507,121 share
issued and 18,459,502 outstanding at December@32, &nd 11,395,302 shares issued &
11,347,683 outstanding at December 31, 2 18,50 11,39t
Additional paid in capita 212,09( 122,60:.
Retained earning 38,31« 14,49¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 1,06¢ (24%)
Less: Cost of treasury stock; 47,619 shares atbeee31, 2012 and December 31, 2! (500 (500
Total shareholde’ equity 269,47! 147,74¢
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $3,201,23.  $2,077,53.

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsi@tgements.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
For the years ended December 31,

Interest income
Loans receivable, taxable, including f
Loans receivable, nrtaxable, including fee
Investment securities, taxak
Investment securities, n-taxable
Other
Total interest incom

Interest expenst
Deposits
Federal funds purchas
Securities sold under repurchase agreen
Borrowed funds
Subordinated del

Total interest expens

Net interest incom
Provision for loan losse
Net interest income after provision for loan los
Non-interest income
Deposit fee:
Mortgage warehouse transactional f
Bank-owned life insuranc
Gains on sales of investment securi
Gains on sales of SBA loa
Bargain purchase gains on bank acquisit
Accretion of FDIC loss sharing receival
Other

Total nor-interest incomt

Nonr-interest expenst
Salaries and employee bene
Occupancy
Technology, communication and bank operati
Advertising and promotio
Professional service
FDIC assessments, taxes, and regulatory
Other real estate ownt
Loan workoult
Merger related expens
Stock offering expense
Other
Total nor-interest expens
Income before tax expen
Income tax expens
Net income
Dividends on preferred stox
Net income available to common shareholdel

Basic income per common sh
Diluted income per common shg

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbstEilements.

2012

2011

2010

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

$ 86,28c $ 46,61« $ 28,92
17€ 63 92
6,66 14,06 1,38:
68 86 11¢
352 41¢ 394
93,54 61,24 30,90
21,07¢ 21,86 11,11
10 2 0

0 88 0

60€ 447 36€
69 66 68
21,76 22,46 11,54¢
71,78 38,78: 19,36
16,27 9,45¢( 10,39;
55,517 29,33 8,96+
481 43€ 37¢
12,28¢ 5,581 2,631
1,33: 1,40+ 22¢
9,017 2,731 1,11
357 32¢ 08

0 0 40,25¢
2,001 1,95¢ 0
5,75¢ 98¢ 97¢
31,23( 13,42 45,67(
23,84 16,60: 14,03
6,81¢€ 4,28¢ 1,897
2,80¢ 1,797 2,431
1,21¢ 994 1,007
3,46¢ 5,12¢ 2,83:
3,03 2,36¢€ 1,61
(85) 80¢ 702
2,24: 1,42¢ 682
90 531 0
1,43 0 0
5,77¢ 2,94¢ 972
50,65 36,88 26,16¢
36,00 5,86¢ 28,46t
12,27: 1,83¢ 4,731
23,81 4,03¢ 23,73
0 44 0

$ 23,81¢ $ 3,990 $ 23,73
$ 17¢ $ 04 $ 3.7¢
1.7¢ 0.3¢ 3.6¢
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31,

Net income
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on securitiesirsgiduring the perio
Income tax effec
Unrealized holding gains on securities transfefreoh the held-to-maturity category into the
availablefor-sale categor
Income tax effec
Reclassification adjustment for gains includedetincome
Income tax effec
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Comprehensive income

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbstEilements.
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2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousand:

$23,81¢ $4,03¢ $23,73¢

2,52 5271 (1,709

(883 (1,845 57¢
8,50¢ 0 0
(2,979) 0 0
(9,019 (273) (1,119
3,15¢ 95€ 37¢

1,30¢ 1,651 (1,869
$25,127 $5,68: $21,87:
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and @01

Shares o Retained Accumulated
Earnings Other
Preferred Shares of Preferred Additional (Accumulated Comprehensive  Treasury
Common Common Paid in
Stock Stock Stock Stock Capital Deficit) Income (Loss) Stock Total
(dollars in thousand:

Balance, January 1, 201( 0 1,840,90: 0 $1841 $3292¢ $ (13,229 $ 33 $ 0 $ 21,50
Comprehensive incorr 23,73t (1,869 21,87
Share-based compensatiol

expense 2,041 2,041
Issuance of common stock,

net of cost: 6,323,77! 6,32¢ 52,70( 59,02«
Issuance of stock under the

management stock

purchase pla 233,33: 233 467 70C
Balance, December 31,

2010 0 8,398,01! 0 8,39¢ 88,13 10,50¢ (1,896 0 105,14(
Comprehensive incorr 4,03¢ 1,651 5,68t
Share-based compensation

expense 704 704
Issuance of common stock

net of cost: 2,373,60: 2,37¢ 26,15: 28,52¢
Acquisition of Berkshire

Bancorp 3,031 623,68t 3,03 623 7,61¢ 11,27
Repurchase of preferred

stock (3,037 (3,037) (3,037)
Repurchase of 47,619 shares

at $10.50 per sha (47,619 (500 (500
Dividends on preferred sto: (44) (44)
Balance, December 31

2011 0 11,347,68 0 11,39t 122,60: 14,49¢ (24%) (500) 147,74¢
Comprehensive incorr 23,81¢ 1,30¢ 25,12;
Share-based compensation

expense 2,01« 2,01«
Issuance of common stock

net of cost: 7,111,81! 7,112 87,47 94,58t
Balance, December 31

2012 0 18,459,50 0 $18,507 $212,09¢ $ 38,31+ $ 1,06¢ $ (500) $269,47!

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbstEilements.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousand:

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income $ 23,81¢ $ 4,03¢ $ 23,73t
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashduis) provided by operating activiti¢
Provision for loan losse 16,27 9,45( 10,39°
Provision for depreciation and amortizat 2,02¢ 1,37¢ 84C
Stoclk-based compensatic 2,01« 704 2,041
Bargain purchase gain on bank acquisiti 0 0 (40,259
Deferred taxe (3,73)) (2,729 1,81
Net amortization (accretion) of investment secesifpremiums and discout 3,06z (14%) (139
Gain on sale of investment securit (9,019 (2,737 (1,119
Gain on sale of SBA loar (357) (329) (98)
Origination of loans held for sa (13,410,48) (2,243,12) (199,97()
Proceeds from the sale of loans held for 12,145,59 2,268,34! 0]
Increase in FDIC loss sharing receiva (5,839 (3,920 (520
Amortization (accretion) of fair value discoul (240 28C (4179)
(Gain) loss on sales of other real estate ov 1,22¢ (367) 67
Impairment charges on other real estate ov 29t 57€ 63=
Change in investment in be-owned life insuranc (1,459 (1,409 (228
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receiatuleother asse (9,587 2,25i (11,417
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payabletaedliabilities 4,34¢ (2,369 (6,929
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities (1,242,06) 29,90 (221,549
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of investment securities available fler (114,049 (72,937 (303,68))
Purchases of investment securities held to mat 0 (397,487 0
Proceeds from maturities, calls and principal repayts on investment

securities available for sa 31,42( 22,13} 8,17t
Proceeds from maturities and principal repaymentseestment securities held to

maturity 50,96¢ 78,04¢ 0
Proceeds from sales of investment securities dlaifar sale 309,22: 182,74: 154,28
Net decrease (increase) in loi 61,20: (581,339 (175,18)
Purchase of loan portfoli (63,24¢) (20,000 (94,637)
Proceeds on sale of SBA loe 4,50z 5,172 1,46¢
(Purchase of) proceeds from b-owned life insuranc (25,465 273 (20,46¢€)
Purchase of restricted sto (8,345 (16,707 (2,149
Proceeds and acquired cash in FDIC assisted traomss 0 0 72,93:
Reimbursements from the FDIC on loss sharing ageaé¢s 6,57 7,54t 11,11¢
Purchases of bank premises and equipt (2,719 (2,72)) (3,287)
Cash proceeds from acquisitic 0 19,201 0
Proceeds from sales of other real estate ov 12,06: 5,572 2,63:
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activitie: 262,13( (760,479 (348,780)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net increase in deposi 857,79: 215,49! 680,52!
Net increase in sh-term borrowed fund 91,00( 325,00( 0
Proceeds from FHLB borrowing 49,00( 0 0
Purchase of treasury sto 0 (500) 0
Repayment of TARI 0 (3,056 0
Proceeds from issuance of common st 94,58¢ 28,52¢ 59,72:
Payment of TARP preferred stock divider 0 (44) 0
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities 1,092,37 565,42: 740,24¢
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalst 112,44¢ (165,15/) 169,91°
Cash and Cash Equivalent— Beginning 73,57( 238,72« 68,80"
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Ending $ 186,01t $ 73,57( $ 238,72

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finhst@Etements
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
For the years ended December 31,

Supplementary Cash Flow Information
Interest paic
Income taxes pai

Non-cash ltems:
Transfer of loans to other real estate ow
Transfer of hel-to-maturity securities to available for si
Issuance of common stock related to the me

Acquisitions:
Assets acquire
Liabilities assumei

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finbsi@gements.
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2012 2011 2010
21,70¢ $ 22,64: $ 10,24:
19,36¢ 2,81¢ 0
10,457 $ 8,63( $ 4,78¢

268,67 0 0

0 624 0
0 $ 130,48 $ 285,60!
0 122,83t 264,84
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS AND BASIS OF RESENTATION

Customers Bancorp, Inc. (the “Bancorp”) is a Petuagya corporation formed on April 7, 2010 to féeile the reorganization of Customers
Bank (the “Bank”) into a bank holding company stue. The reorganization was completed on Septetibe2011. Any financial information
for periods prior to September 17, 2011 contairer@in reflects that of Customers Bank as the pessar entity. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in conformity witbw@ating principles generally accepted in the Whiates (“U.S. GAAP”) and pursuant to
the rules and regulations of the Securities ancdh&mge Commission (“SEC”).

Customers Bancorp, Inc., and its wholly owned dlibsies, Customers Bank and non-bank subsidiss@se residences and businesses in
Southeastern Pennsylvania (Bucks, Berks, ChestdrDalaware Counties), Rye, New York (Westchestarmty) and Hamilton, New Jersey
(Mercer County). On September 17, 2011, the Banparphased Berkshire Bancorp, Inc. In 2010, CustsBank acquired two banks, USA
Bank and ISN Bank (the Acquired Banks), in FDICistesl transactions that expanded its footprint a&otral New Jersey and southeast New
York. The Bancorp has 14 branches and provides @wiai banking products, primarily loans and detsogihe Bancorp also provides
liquidity to mortgage market originators nationwitheough its mortgage warehouse division. CustorBar is subject to regulation of the
Pennsylvania Department of Banking and Securitiesthe Federal Reserve Bank and is periodicallynixad by those regulatory

authorities. Customers Bank changed its name fremy 8entury Bank in 2010.

NOTE 2 — REORGANIZATION AND ACQUISITION ACTIVITY
Reorganization into Customers Bancorp, |

The Bancorp and the Bank entered into a Plan ofysteand Reorganization effective September 17, patduant to which all of the issued
and outstanding common stock of the Bank was exggdhon a three to one basis for shares of comneek ahd Non-Voting common stock
of the Company. The Bank became a wholly-ownedidigrg of the Bancorp (the “Reorganization”). Thari®orp is authorized to issue up to
100,000,000 shares of common stock, 100,000,00@sled Class B NoMoting Common Stock and 100,000,000 shares of pefestock. Al
share and per share information has been retrogplgatestated to reflect the Reorganization, idahg the three-for-one consideration used in
the Reorganization.

In the Reorganization, the Bank’s issued and ondite shares of common stock of 22,525,825 share@<#ass B Non-Voting common stock
of 6,834,895 shares converted into 7,508,473 sludréae Bancorp’s common stock and 2,278,294 stafréee Bancorp’s Class B Non-Voting
common stock. Cash was paid in lieu of fractiot@res. Outstanding warrants to purchase 1,410/7@&2s of the Bank’s common stock with
a weighted-average exercise price of $3.55 peesnad 243,102 shares of the Bank’s Class B NonAgatommon stock with a weighted-
average exercise price of $3.50 per share wereettat/into warrants to purchase 470,260 shardsedBancorp’s common stock with a
weighted-average exercise price of $10.64 per snadlevarrants to purchase 81,036 shares of theoBaliedClass B Non-Voting common
stock with a weighted-average exercise price of 1@er share. Outstanding stock options to puecBgs72,404 shares of the Basikommol
stock with a weighted- average exercise price d&per share and stock options to purchase 235/5@@s of the Bank’s Class B Nviting
common stock with a weighted-average exercise pfii&.00 per share were converted into stock aptto purchase 855,774 shares of the
Bancorp’s common stock with a weighted-averageaseiprice of $10.49 per share and stock optiopsitohase 77,166 shares of the
Bancorp’s Class B Non-Voting common stock with aghieed-average exercise price of $12.00 per share.

Business Combination in 2011
Berkshire Bancorp Acquisitic

On September 17, 2011, the Bancorp completed dsisition of Berkshire Bancorp, Inc. (“BBI”) andisubsidiary, Berkshire Bank
(collectively, “Berkshire™). Berkshire Bank mergadth and into the Bank immediately following thegadsition. BBI served Berks County,
Pennsylvania through the five branches of its sliéagi, Berkshire Bank. Under the terms of the meeggeement, each outstanding share of
BBl common stock (a total of 4,067,729) was excleahipr 0.1534 shares of the Bancorp’s common staskilting in the issuance of 623,686
shares of the Bancorp’s common stock. Cash wasipéiel of fractional shares. The most recentgatthe time for the sale of the Bancorp
common stock, $13.20, was used to determine thedie of the Bancorp stock issued. The total lpase price was approximately $11.3
million.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 — REORGANIZATION AND ACQUISITION ACTIVITY — (continued)

The table below illustrates the calculation of thasideration effectively transferred.

Reconcilement of Pro Forma Shares Outstanc

Berkshire shares outstandi 4,067,72!
Exchange ratit 0.153¢
Bancorp shares to be issued to Berks 623,68¢
Customers shares outstand 9,786,76!
Pro Forma Customers shares outstan 10,410,75
Percentage ownership for Custom 94.01%
Percentage ownership for Berkst 5.9¢%%

In addition, the Bancorp exchanged each share ¢&BRares of Series A Preferred Securities anteS& Preferred Shares to the U.S.
Treasury for one share of the Bancarpixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stockhk total issuance of 2,892 shares of Seriesxéd
Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock (“Sexi€seferred Stock”) and 145 shares of Series Bd-Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred
Stock (“Series B Preferred Stock”) with a par vatfi€1.00 per share and a liquidation value of 8Q,per share. Cumulative dividends on the
Series A Preferred Stock were 5% per year and SBriereferred Stock were 9%. Upon the exchangeeoSeries A and B preferred shares,
the Bancorp paid to the Treasury $218,000 of cutivalaividends which were previously unpaid.

The acquisition was accounted for under ASC &L&iness Combinatiorsd accordingly, assets acquired, liabilities asyrand
consideration transferred were recorded at estiifaie value on the acquisition date. Subsequettidacquisition date, the Bancorp received
new information about the facts and circumstanoe®anding other real estate owned (OREO), custenheans and the acquired federal net
operating loss. As a result, the Bancorp adjusteddquisition date information by recognizing gases to goodwill and deferred tax assets o
$1.2 million and $1.6 million, respectively, offdet decreases to other real estate owned of $1lidmiand loans receivable not covered by
loss sharing agreements with the FDIC of $1.4 onilliin addition, the adjustment to deferred taxetsmcluded a $626,000 write-off of
acquired NOLs that would expire before being u3édse measurement-period adjustments have beenpettively applied to comparative
financial information for prior periods.

The following table presents the final fair valuésassets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Berkshire Bank
September 17, 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Total purchase price $11,27¢
Net assets acquire
Cash 19,207
Restricted investmen 947
Loans 97,01«
Accrued interest receivab 27€
Premises and equipment, | 3,41¢
Other real estate ownt 1,817
Deferred tax asse 4,81t
Other asset 2,98¢
Time deposit: (45,72)
Deposits other than time depos (76,145
Accrued interest payab (48)
Other liabilities (922)
7,64¢
Gooduwill resulting from Berkshire Merg $ 3,62¢

In addition, 774,571 warrants to purchase shar&Bbfcommon stock were converted into warrantsuchase 118,853 shares of the
Bancorp’s common stock with an exercise price nagdiom $21.38 to $73.01 per share. The warrants wgtended for a five-year period and
will expire on September 17, 2016.

BBI's operating results are included in the Bantoffmancial results from the date of acquisiti@gptember 17, 2011 through December 31,
2011.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 — REORGANIZATION AND ACQUISITION ACTIVITY — (continued)

Acquisition of Manufactured Housing Loa

During the years 2010, 2011, and 2012, we purchamsedifacturing housing loans from Tammac HoldingpBoation (“Tammac”). These
purchases were opportunistic purchases and mayeniodicative of future strategies or purchases:

On August 6, 2010, we purchased from Tammac Hol@arporation (“Tammac”) a $105.8 million manufaedrhousing loan portfolio for a
purchase price of $105.8.

On September 30, 2011, we purchased from Tammag $difion of manufactured housing loans and a %560terest only strip security with
an estimated value of $3 million secured by a d&70 million of loans originated by Tammac fotogal purchase price of $13 million.

On July 24, 2012, the Bancorp paid $63.2 milliome¢guire manufactured housing loans from Vandekbilttgage and Finance Inc. at par.
These loans were originated by Tammac Holding Qatgan (“Tammac”), and will be serviced by Tammarctbhe Bancorp’s

behalf. Approximately 85% of the loans are chattéth the other 15% representing real estate. dhad carry an 11.3% coupon rate, where
Tammac earns a 2.0% servicing fee and also rettansghts to a 2.0% 10 Strip in relation to thsopof loans. The full recourse for losses on
these loans resides with Tammac.

Business Combinations in 2010
FDIC Assisted Transactior

On July 9, 2010, Customers Bank acquired certaatasind assumed certain liabilities of USA Baokifthe Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (“FDIC”) in an FDIC-assisted transantithe “USA Bank acquisition”). USA Bank was headdared in Port Chester, New York
and operated one branch. In addition, on Septeihe2010, Customers Bank acquired certain assdtassumed certain liabilities of ISN
Bank from the FDIC in an FDIC-assisted transacftbe “ISN Bank acquisition”). ISN Bank was headdeszd in Cherry Hill, New Jersey and
operated one branch. The acquisitions were accddiotainder the acquisition method of accountingénordance with ASC 80Business
Combinations The purchased assets and assumed liabilitiesneeoeded at their acquisition date fair values.

As part of the Purchase and Assumption Agreemeeteshinto by Customers Bank with the FDIC (the fégment”) in connection with the
USA Bank and ISN Bank acquisitions, Customers Bamtiered into loss sharing agreements, pursuantichwhe FDIC will cover a
substantial portion of any future losses on thaied loans. Excluding certain consumer loans)dhas and other real estate owned acquired
are covered by a loss share agreement betweennmrst®ank and the FDIC which affords Customers Baokection against future losses.
Under the Agreement, the FDIC will cover 80% ofsles on the disposition of the loans and OREO caveneler the Agreements (collectively,
the Covered Assets). The term for loss sharingGmstomers Bank reimbursement to the FDIC is fivargdor non-single family loans and ten
years for single family loans. The reimbursableéssfrom the FDIC are based on the book valueeofealevant loans as determined by

FDIC at the date of the transaction. New loans nedthe that date are not covered by the provisadribe loss share agreement. Customers
Bank recorded an aggregate receivable from the FIDE28.3 million for the USA Bank and ISN Bank agijtions which represented the
estimated fair value of the FDIC'’s portion of tlosdes that are expected to be incurred and reiedbtmsCustomers Bank.

The Agreement with the FDIC for each acquisitioayided Customers Bank with an option to purchasgpptaised value the premises,
furniture, fixtures, and equipment of each bank asslime the leases associated with these officstoi@ers Bank exercised the option to
purchase the assets of USA Bank during the thiedtquof 2010. Customers Bank did not exerciseofit®n to purchase the assets of ISN
Bank. Customers Bank received approval from theG=&81d moved the deposit relationships to its HamjlNew Jersey branch on January
2011.

The acquired assets and liabilities, as well asthestments to record the assets and liabilitiégiavalue, are presented in the following table
Cash received from the FDIC was included in thevalue adjustments to arrive at the total asssjsised. Because the consideration paid to
the FDIC was less than the net fair value of trguaied assets and assumed liabilities, the Bankrded bargain purchase gains as part of the
acquisitions.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 — REORGANIZATION AND ACQUISITION ACTIVITY — (continued)

A summary of the net assets acquired and the &hirevadjustments for USA Bank as of July 9, 201d I&N Bank as of September 17, 2010
resulting in a bargain purchase gain are as fotlows

(dollars in

thousands

Cost basis of assets acquired in excess of ligsilissumed $ 20,58¢

Cash payments received from the FL 31,51¢

Net assets acquired before fair value adjustrr 52,10¢
Fair value adjustment

Loans receivabl (35,739

FDIC loss share receivat 28,331

Other real estate ownt (4,26])

Bank premises and equipment and repossessed (199

Total fair value adjustmen (11,85)

Pre-tax gain on the acquisitic 40,25¢

Income taxe: (13,109

Gain on the acquisition of the Acquired Banks, afdbxes $27,14¢

The net after-tax gain represents the excess addtimated fair value of the assets acquired (o cash payments received from the FDIC)
over the estimated fair value of the liabilities@®ed, and is influenced significantly by the FRi§5isted transaction process. As indicated in
the preceding table, net assets of $20.6 millian,(the cost basis) were transferred to CustoB@n& in the USA Bank and ISN Bank
acquisitions, and the FDIC made cash paymentst@#mk totaling $31.5 million.

In many cases, the determination of the fair valuthe assets acquired and liabilities assumednedjmanagement to make estimates about
discount rates, future expected cash flows, marteditions, and other future events that are highlgjective in nature and subject to change.

The following table sets forth the assets acquaredi liabilities assumed, at the estimated fair &/ailn the USA Bank and ISN Bank
acquisitions:

USA Bank ISN Bank
July 9, 201( September 17, 201

(dollars in thousand:
Assets Acquired

Cash and cash equivalents, including federal fisodt $ 54,14( $ 18,79:
Investment securitie 15,33( 6,181
Loans receivabl- covered under FDIC loss shari 123,31 51,34¢
Loans receivabl- not covered under FDIC loss shar 1,41¢ 26
Total loans receivabl 124,72t 51,37
Other real estate ownt 3,40¢ 1,23¢
FDIC loss sharing receivakb 22,72¢ 5,60¢
Other asset 78E 71%
Total assets acquire 221,11! 83,90:

Liabilities Assumed

Deposits

Nor-interest bearin 7,58¢ 972
Interest bearin: 171,76 70,91¢
Total deposit: 179,34t 71,89
Deferred income tax liabilit 9,39( 3,71¢
Other liabilities 13,37( 154
Total liabilities assume 202,10¢ 75,76¢
Net Assets Acquirec $ 19,00: $ 8,13¢
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 — REORGANIZATION AND ACQUISITION ACTIVITY — (continued)

In accordance with the guidance provided in SEGf 8izcounting Bulletin Topic 1.K, Financial Statemts of Acquired Troubled Financial
Institutions (“SAB 1: K”) and a request for religfanted by the SEC, historical financial informataf USA Bank and ISN Bank has been
omitted from the financial statements. Relief isypded for acquisitions of troubled institutionsciuding transactions such as the acquisitions
of USA Bank and ISN Bank in which an institutiongages in an acquisition of a troubled financiatitnson for which audited financial
statements are not reasonably available and inhafbiteral assistance is an essential and signiffzn of the transaction.

NOTE 3 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accounting policies and reporting policieshaf Bancorp are in conformity with accounting prples generally accepted in the United
States of America and predominant practices ob#rking industry. The preparation of financial stagnts requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the repbekhces of assets and liabilities and disclostioetingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported bako revenues and expenses during the reportimgdpéctual results could differ from tho
estimates. Material estimates that are particukubceptible to significant change in the near teslate to the determination of the allowance
for loan losses, credit deterioration and expecteth flows of purchase credit impaired loans, FD&mnification asset, the valuation of
deferred tax assets, determination of other-thenptaary impairment losses on securities, the falue of financial instruments, and annual
goodwill impairment analysis.

Certain amounts reported in the 2011 and 2010 §ilshstatements have been reclassified to conforthe 2012 presentation. These
reclassifications did not significantly impact Bang's financial position or results of operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handjrasidue from banks, interest-bearing deposits battiks with a maturity date of three
months or less, and federal funds sold. Generf@ltieral funds are sold for one-day periods.

Restrictions on Cash and Amounts due from Banks

Customers Bank is required to maintain averagenbakon hand or with the Federal Reserve Bank.esehber 31, 2012 and 2011, these
reserve balances were $26.2 million and $10.2 onillrespectively.

Investment Securities

Available for sale: Investments securities classified as availablesébe are those securities that Bancorp intentisithfor an indefinite period
of time but not necessarily to maturity. Investmssturities available for sale are carried atfalue. Unrealized gains or losses are reporte
increases or decreases in other comprehensive @aoehof the related deferred tax effect. Realgads or losses, determined on the basis o
the cost of the specific securities sold, are idetliin earnings and recorded at the trade datmitmes and discounts are recognized in interes
income using the interest method over the termbe&ecurities.

Held to maturity: Investment securities classified as held to nitgtare those debt securities that Bancorp has thetlintent and ability to hol
to maturity regardless of changes in market comlj liquidity needs, or changes in general econ@anditions. These securities are carrie
cost, adjusted for the amortization of premium aocketion of discount, computed by a method whigtreximates the interest method over
the terms of the securities. In accordance withulsgry and accounting requirements, the Bancoppadkibited from classifying security
purchases as held to maturity for a period of tearg. For additional information about this resiit refer to NOTE 5 = INVESTMENT
SECURITIES” , in this Form 10-K.

Other-than-temporary impairmen®ther-than-temporary impairment means that managebsdieves the security’s impairment is due to
factors that could include its issuer’s inabilibygay interest or dividends, its potential for detfaand/or other factors. When a held-to-maturity
or available-for-sale debt security is assessedtfrer-than-temporary impairment, management héisstaconsider (a) whether the Bancorp
intends to sell the security, and (b) whether ihizre likely than not that the Bancorp will be rizggd to sell the security prior to recovery of its
amortized cost basis.

If one of these circumstances applies to a secumityther-thatemporary impairment loss is recognized in theest@nt of income equal to t
full amount of the decline in fair value below ariwed cost. If neither of these circumstances &gyl a
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (continu ed)

security, but the Bancorp does not expect to reciheeentire amortized cost, an other-than-temgdrapairment has occurred that must be
separated into two categories: (a) the amounteefat credit loss, and (b) the amount related lterotactors. In assessing the level of other-
than-temporary impairment attributable to crediisiomanagement compares the present value ofloashexpected to be collected with the
amortized cost basis of the security. The portibthe total other-than-temporary impairment relaiedredit loss is recognized in earnings (as
the difference between the fair value and the ptesalue of the estimated cash flows), while theant related to other factors is recognize
other comprehensive income. The total other-thampt@ary impairment loss is presented in the stat¢mieincome, less the portion
recognized in other comprehensive income. Wherbaskeurity becomes other-than-temporarily impaiitesdamortized cost basis is reduced
to reflect the portion of the total impairment teldto credit loss.

Loan Accounting Framework

The accounting for a loan depends on managemistritegy for the loan, and on whether the loas aredit impaired at the date of acquisiti
The Bank accounts for loans based on the followategories:

. Loans held for sal

. Warehouse loans at fair val

. Loans receivable covered under Loss Sharing Agratswegth the FDIC

. Loans receivable not covered under Loss Sharingégents with the FDI
. Purchased cre-impaired loans“PCI’ loans)

The following provides a detailed accounting distois of these loan categories:

Loans Held for Sale

Loans originated by the Bank with the intent td sethe secondary market are carried at the lafeost or fair value, determined in the
aggregate. These loans are sold on a non-recoasge\ith servicing released. Gains and losseh®sadle of loans recognized in earnings are
measured based on the difference between proceegived and the carrying amount of the loans, sietuof deferred origination fees and
costs, if any. As a result of changes in eventscredimstances or developments regarding managé&needv of the foreseeable future, loans
not originated or acquired with the intent to sedly subsequently be designated as held for saés€ellbans are transferred to the held for sale
portfolio at the lower of amortized cost or failwe.

We elected the fair value option for warehouse ilegdransactions documented under a Master Repsechgreement originated after July 1,
2012. This adoption is in accordance with the patens established by ASC 825-10-Efancial Instruments-Overall-Recognition: The Fair
Value OptionAs a result of this election, new warehouse lendiagsactions are classified as “Loans held fag"sahd are carried at fair value
on the balance sheet with unrealized changesrivdhie presented in earnings. An allowance fon leases is not recorded for the warehouse
lending transactions when measured at fair valueesithe exit price (the repurchase price) for Wwanse lending transactions considers the
effect of expected credit losses.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable that management has the intenalility to hold for the foreseeable future or Untaturity or payoff are stated at their
outstanding unpaid principal balances, net of fowaince for loan losses and any deferred feesdsiténcome is accrued on the unpaid
principal balance. Loan origination fees, net otai@ direct origination costs, are deferred armbgnized as an adjustment of the yield (inte
income) of the related loans using the level-yiakthod without anticipating prepayments. The Banganerally amortizing these amounts
over the contractual life of the loans.

The accrual of interest is generally discontinudetmthe contractual payment of principal or intehes become 90 days past due or when
management has doubts about further collectalfigrincipal or interest, even though the loanusrently performing. A loan may remain on
accrual status if it is in the process of collectémd is well secured. When a loan is placed orawenual status, unpaid interest credited to
income is reversed. Interest received on non-attoaas is applied against principal until all gripal has been repaid. Thereafter, interest
payments are recognized as income until all unipagatest has been received. Generally, loans atersesl to accrual status when the obliga
is brought current and has performed in accordaitethe contractual terms for a minimum of six rtfenand the ultimate collectability of the
total contractual principal and interest is no lenim doubt.
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Transfers of financial assets, including loan ggsttions sold, are accounted for as sales, whett@mver the assets has been
surrendered. Control over transferred assets isidedo be surrendered when (1) the assets havadmated from The Bank, (2) the transfe
obtains the right (free of conditions that constiidifrom taking advantage of that right) to pledgesxchange the transferred assets, and (3
Bank does not maintain effective control over tlamsferred assets through an agreement to reperthes before their maturity.

Purchased Credit-Impaired Loans

Purchased credit-impaired (PCI") loans are loaaswere purchased in business combinations wittheenge of credit deterioration since
origination and for which it is probable that adintractually required payments will not be collectee considered to be credit impaired. For
certain acquired loans that have experienced aidetgon of credit quality, we follow the guidancentained in ASC 310-3Qoans and Debt
Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit QualiEvidence of credit quality deterioration as of fhase dates may include information s
as past-due and non-accrual status, borrower @eaiies and recent loan to value percentages. lamansred through business combinations
that do not meet the specific criteria of ASC 31043ut for which a discount is attributable at teagart to credit quality, are also accounted
for under this guidance unless the loan type isuebezi from its scope.

The fair value of loans with evidence of creditatidration are recorded net of a nonaccretablerdiffce and, if appropriate, an accretable
yield. The difference between contractually reqdiipayments at acquisition and the cash flows ergect be collected at acquisition is-
nonaccretable difference, which is not includethim carrying amount of acquired loans. Subsequeatquisition, estimates of cash flows
expected to be collected are updated each reparéirigd based on updated assumptions regardingltiedites, loss severities, and other
factors that are reflective of current market ctinds. Subsequent decreases to the expected oashwlill generally result in a provision for
loan losses. Subsequent increases in cash flowl e reversal of the provision for loan losseshe extent of prior charges, or a
reclassification of the difference from nonaccrégab accretable with a positive impact on accretibinterest income in future periods.
Further, any excess of cash flows expected at sitigui over the estimated fair value is referredsdhe accretable yield and is recognized in
interest income over the remaining life of the ledren there is a reasonable expectation abouttiogirat and timing of those cash flows.

PCl loans acquired in the same fiscal quarter neagidggregated into one or more pools, providedttiwatoans have common risk
characteristics. A pool is then accounted for amgle asset with a single composite interestanttan aggregate expectation of cash flows

a quarterly basis, the Bank re-estimates the ¢atsth flows (both principal and interest) expectelld collected over the remaining life of each
pool. These estimates incorporate assumptionsdiegpdefault rates, loss severities, the amourdstianing of prepayments and other factors
that reflect then-current market conditions. If tireing and/or amounts of expected cash flows ohl®&hs were determined not to be
reasonably estimable, no interest would be accaatedhe loans would be reported as non-accruak|deowever, when the timing and
amounts of expected cash flows for PCI loans asaably estimable, interest is being accretedtantbans are being reported as performing
loans.

Loans Receivable Covered Under Loss Sharing Agreemis

The loans acquired in the FDIC assisted transesfimm USA Bank and ISN Bank and are subject te 8saring agreements with the FDIC.
These loans are referred to as “covered loans’asmdeported separately in the balance sheet.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established agtoare estimated to have occurred through progidar loan losses charged against
income. Loans deemed to be uncollectible are cldaagainst the allowance for loan losses, and sulesggecoveries, if any, are credited to
allowance. The allowance for loan losses is maiethiat a level considered appropriate to meet ptebaan losses.

The Bank disaggregates its loan portfolio into grotor purposes of determining the allowance fanlsses.

The Banks portfolio groups include commercial and industéammercial real estate, construction, residéntial estate, mortgage wareho!
manufactured housing, consumer, and PCI loansBané& further disaggregates its residential reategtortfolio segment into two classes
based upon certain risk characteristics; first gages and home equity. The remaining portfolio gsoare also considered classes for purpos
of monitoring and assessing credit quality basedastain risk characteristics. Additionally, witréach loan group the acquired loans that are
accounted for under ASC 310-10 are further segeglgat
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The allowance consists of specific, general, arallocated components. The allowance for loan lossesintained at a level considered
adequate to provide for losses that can be reaboaaticipated. Management performs a quarterlyuateon of the adequacy of the allowan
which is based on the Bank’s past loan loss expegieknown and inherent risks in the portfolio, ede situations that may affect the
borrower’s ability to repay, the estimated valueny underlying collateral, composition of the Iq@ortfolio, current economic conditions and
other relevant factors. This evaluation is inhdgestibjective as it requires material estimates thay be susceptible to significant revision as
more information becomes available. The Bank'sentrmethodology for determining the allowance &arl losses is based on historical loss
rates, risk ratings, specific allocation on loagdenitified as impaired above specified thresholdsather qualitative adjustments.

The specific component relates to loans that assdied as impaired. For such loans, an allow@nestablished when the (i) discounted cash
flows, or (ii) collateral value, or (iii) the impaid loan is lower than the carrying value of thenloThe general component covers pools of loar
by loan class including commercial loans not comsd impaired, as well as smaller balance homogenleans, such as residential real estate
home equity loans, home equity lines of credit atiger consumer loans. These pools of loans are:aeal for loss exposure based upon loan
risk ratings and historical loss rates for eacthefe categories of loans, adjusted for relevaailitgtive factors. Separate qualitative
adjustments are made for higher-risk criticizechbthat are not impaired. These qualitative risitdies include:

» Lending policies and procedures, including unddmgistandards and historical-based loss/collecttbarge-off, and recovery
practices

* National, regional, and local economic and busicesslitions as well as the condition of various ketssegments, including tt
value of underlying collateral for collateral depent loans

* Nature and volume of the portfolio and terms ohlmi

» Experience, ability, and depth of lending managdaraed staff

» Volume and severity of past due, classified anc-accrual loans as well as trends and other loanfinations.
» Existence and effect of any concentrations of ¢tr&dil changes in the level of such concentrati

Each factor is assigned a value to reflect imprgyvgtable or declining conditions based on managémbkest judgment using relevant
information available at the time of the evaluation

An unallocated component is maintained to coveetmainties that could affect management’s estirnatgobable losses. The unallocated
component of the allowance reflects the margimygdriecision inherent in the underlying assumpticsedun the methodologies for estimating
specific and general losses in the portfolio.

Commercial and industrial loaase underwritten after evaluating historical andigeted profitability and cash flow to determine th
borrower’s ability to repay their obligation as agd. Commercial and industrial loans are made pilyrzased on the identified cash flow of
the borrower and secondarily on the underlyingatetal supporting the loan facility. Accordinglizetrepayment of a commercial and indus
loan depends primarily on the creditworthinesshefthorrower (and any guarantors), while liquidatibcollateral is a secondary and often
insufficient source of repayment.

Construction loanare underwritten based upon a financial analyste@flevelopers and property owners and constructist estimates, in
addition to independent appraisal valuations. Thees will rely on the value associated with thejgct upon completion. These cost and
valuation estimates may be inaccurate. Construtbians generally involve the disbursement of suttgtbfunds over a short period of time
with repayment substantially dependent upon theesscof the completed project. Sources of repayofahese loans would be permanent
financing upon completion or sales of developegeprty. These loans are closely monitored by oms#eections and are considered to be of
higher risk than other real estate loans due tio thttmate repayment being sensitive to generahemic conditions, availability of long-term
financing, interest rate sensitivity, and governtakregulation of real property.
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Commercial real estate loaage subject to the underwriting standards and psaEesimilar to commercial and industrial loangddition to
those underwriting standards for real estate lo&ingse loans are viewed primarily as cash flow ddpet and secondarily as loans secured b
real estate. Repayment of these loans is genalgfigndent upon the successful operation of theepippecuring the loan or the principal
business conducted on the property securing thre ammercial real estate loans may be adverstdgtafl by conditions in the real estate
markets or the economy in general. Management msretnd evaluates commercial real estate loangl lmaseollateral and risk-rating criteria.
The Bank also utilizes third-party experts to pdevenvironmental and market valuations. The naificmmmercial real estate loans makes
them more difficult to monitor and evaluate.

Residential real estate loam®e secured by one to four dwelling units. Thissewqt is further divided into first mortgage and feeguity
loans. First mortgages have limited risk as theyasiginated at a loan to value ratio of 80% oslésome equity loans have additional risks
result of being in a second position in the evetiateral is liquidated.

Mortgage warehouse loarspresent loans to third-party mortgage originatinsng the period of financing their loan inventamtil the loans
are sold to investors. Mortgage warehouse lendasgahlower risk profile than other real estate $daecause the loans are conforming one to
four family real estate loans that are subjectu@pase commitments from approved investors.

Manufactured housing loamspresent loans that are secured by the personaégty where the borrower may or may not own theeulying
real estate and therefore have a higher risk thrasidential real estate loan.

Consumer loansonsist of loans to individuals originated throulgl Bank’s retail network and are typically unseclor secured by personal
property. Consumer loans have a greater credithisk residential loans because of the differendbe underlying collateral, if any. The
application of various federal and state bankruptag insolvency laws and may limit the amount tzat be recovered on such loans.

Delinquency monitoring is used to identify credsiks, and the general reserves are established bagte expected net charge-offs, adjusted
for qualitative factors. Loss rates are based eratferage net charge-off history by portfolio segiméistorical loss rates may be adjusted for
significant factors that, in managemenjtidgment, are necessary to reflect losses inhere¢ine portfolio. Factors that management considte
the analysis include the effects of the national lacal economies; trends in the nature and volafreelinquencies, charge-offs and trends in
non-accrual loans; changes in loan mix; risk manege and loan administration; changes in the iadending policies and credit standards;
collection practices and the Bank’s regulatory eixans.

Charge-offs on the commercial and industrial, cartsion and commercial real estate loan segmestseaorded when management estimates
that there are insufficient cash flows to repayltfan contractual obligation based upon financiédimation available and valuation of the
underlying collateral. Additionally, the Bank takieso account the strength of any guarantees amdlbiity of the borrower to provide value
related to those guarantees in determining thematté charge-off or reserve associated with any imegaoans. Accordingly, the Bank may
charge-off a loan to a value below the net appdaisdue if it believes that an expeditious liquidatis desirable in the circumstance and it has
legitimate offers or other indications of interessupport a value that is less than the net apgaaralue.
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Alternatively, the Bank may carry a loan at a vethet is in excess of the appraised value if thekB#as a guarantee from a borrower that the
Bank believes has realizable value. In evaluatiegstrength of any guarantee, the Bank evaluagefrthncial wherewithal of the guarantor,
the guarantor’s reputation, and the guarantor’ngihess and desire to work with the Bank. The Bugi conducts a review of the strength o
a guarantee on a frequency established as thenstances and conditions of the borrower warrant.

The Bank records a loan charge-off for the residérgal estate, consumer, manufactured housingrarthage warehouse loans, not eligible
for fair value accounting, after 120 days of deliagcy or sooner when cash flows are determinee todufficient for repayment. The Bank
may also charge-off these loan types below thepptaised valuation if the Bank holds a junior mage position in a piece of collateral
whereby the risk to acquiring control of the prdpehrough the purchase of the senior mortgagetiposs deemed to potentially increase the
risk of loss upon liquidation due to the amountiie to ultimately market the property and the tildanarket conditions. In such cases, the
Bank may abandon its junior mortgage and chargéheffoan balance in full.

Substantially all of the Bank’s acquired loansR€ loans. Estimates of cash flows expected toolleated for PCI loans are updated each
reporting period. If the Bank has probable decre@sexpected cash flows to be collected after a@tgpn, the Bank charges the provision for
loan losses and establishes an allowance for wsses.

Credit Quality Factors

Commercial and industrial, commercial real estagsidential real estate and construction loandased on an internally assigned risk rating
system which are assigned at the loan originatiwhraviewed on a periodic or on an “as needed’sb&insumer, mortgage warehouse and
manufactured housing loans are evaluated basdueqmayment activity of the loan. Risk ratings avéestablished for home equity loans,
consumer loans, and installment loans, mainly bee#iiese portfolios consist of a larger numberoofilgenous loans with smaller balances.
Instead, these portfolios are evaluated for risknipdased on aggregate payment history, throughrtbnitoring of delinquency levels and
trends. For additional information about creditliydactor ratings refer to Note 6'-LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR
LOAN LOSSES”, in this Form 10-K.

Impaired Loan:

A loan is considered impaired when, based on cuinéormation and events, it is probable that trBwill be unable to collect the schedulec
payments of principal or interest when due accardinthe contractual terms of the loan agreemeattdfs considered by management in
determining impairment include payment statusatetal value and the probability of collecting shled principal and interest payments
when due. Loans that experience insignificant payrdelays and payment shortfalls generally areclasisified as impaired. Management
determines the significance of payment delays aydngnt shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, takiogconsideration all of the circumstances
surrounding the loan and the borrower, includinglémgth of the delay, the reasons for the delaybbrrower’s prior payment record and the
amount of the shortfall in relation to the prindipad interest owed.

Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basibdtr covered and non-covered loans for commerai@dlc@nstruction loans by either the
present value of expected future cash flows distaliat the loan’s effective interest rate, the lpabtainable market price or the fair value of
the collateral if the loan is collateral dependé&air value is measured based on the value ofdi@teral securing the loans, less cost to sell.
Collateral may be in the form of real estate orifess assets including equipment, inventory, agdwatts receivable. The vast majority of the
collateral is real estate. The value of real estaliateral is determined utilizing an income orrk&d valuation approach based on an appraisal
conducted by an independent, licensed appraissideudf the Bank using observable market data.vahe of business equipment is based
upon an outside appraisal if deemed significanthemet book value on the applicable businesahiiial statements if not considered
significant using observable market data. Likewigdues for inventory and accounts receivable tefid are based on financial statement
balances or aging reports.

Covered loans are and will continue to be subjetihé Bank’s internal and external credit reviewl amnitoring that is applied to the non-
covered loan portfolio. If credit deteriorationeisperienced subsequent to the initial acquisit®imdicated above, such deterioration will be
measured, and a provision for loan losses willllerged to earnings. These provisions will be offfisean increase to the FDIC loss sharing
receivable for the estimated portion anticipatetdgaeceived from the FDIC, and is recognized in-imberest income.
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of cost over thetifible net assets of businesses acquired. Gdlodwecognized as an asset and is reviewe
for impairment annually as of October 31 and betwesenual tests when events and circumstances teditat impairment may have occurred.

Restricted Stock

Restricted stock represents required investmethigirtapital stock of the Federal Home Loan BanKH(B"), the Federal Reserve Bank, and
Atlantic Central Bankers Bank and is carried at.cosFebruary 2012, the FHLB of Pittsburgh dedtbaedividend payable to their shareholc
and also resumed repurchase of excess capital ftbiskwas a recovery from December 2009, wherrtheB of Pittsburgh notified member
banks that it was suspending dividend paymentgtandepurchase of capital stock.

Other Real Estate Owned

Real estate properties acquired through, or indieloan foreclosure are initially recorded at fealue less cost to sell at the date of foreclesur
establishing a new cost basis. After foreclosuadyations are periodically performed by manageraedtthe real estate is carried at the lower
of its carrying amount or fair value less the dostell. Revenue and expenses from operations lzenthes in the valuation allowance are
included in the statement of income. Certain otkal estate owned (OREOQ) that was acquired from B8Ak and ISN Bank or through the
foreclosure of loans of those banks is subjectassLSharing Agreements with the FDIC.

FDIC Loss Sharing Receivable

The FDIC loss sharing receivable is measured stpafaom the related covered assets becausadtisontractually embedded in the assets
and is not transferrable if we sell the assets.HIDEC loss sharing receivable was initially recatd fair value, based on the discounted value
of expected future cash flows under the loss shgreements. The difference between the preserg eald the undiscounted cash flows

the Bank expects to collect from the FDIC is aaui@hto non-interest income over the life of thel€lbss sharing receivable.

The FDIC loss sharing receivable is reviewed quigrend adjusted for any changes in expected daslsfbased on recent performance and
expectations for future performance of the covgradfolio. These adjustments are measured on the &asis as the related covered loans ar
covered other real estate owned. Any increaseash flow of the covered assets over those exp&dteeduce the FDIC loss sharing
receivable and any decreases in cash flow of thiered assets under those expected will increaseie loss sharing receivable. Increases t
the FDIC loss sharing receivable are recorded iniatelgt as adjustments to non-interest income awdedses to the FDIC loss sharing
receivable are recognized over the life of the kiere agreements.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance

Bank-owned life insurance policies insure the ligésfficers of the Bank, and name the Bank as fieiney. Non-interest income is generated
tax-free (subject to certain limitations) from therease in the policies’ underlying investmentglenby the insurance company. The Bank is
capitalizing on the ability to partially offset desassociated with employee compensation and ligmefirams with the bank-owned life
insurance.

Bank Premises and Equipment

Bank premises and equipment are stated at costdessnulated depreciation. Depreciation is compatethe straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the related assetaséhold improvements are amortized over the shafrtee term of the lease or estimated
useful life, unless extension of the lease terneasonably assured.

Income Taxes

The Bancorp accounts for income taxes under thditiamethod of accounting for income taxes. Thedme tax accounting guidance results
in two components of income tax expense: curredtdmierred. Current income tax expense reflecesstéx be paid or refunded for the current
period by applying the provisions of the enactedlaav to the taxable income or excess of deductawes revenues. The Bancorp determines
deferred income taxes using the liability (or balasheet) method. Under this method, the net defeax asset or liability is based on the tax
effects of the differences between the book andémes of assets and liabilities, and enacted elsandax rates and laws are recognized in th
period in which they occur.
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A tax position is recognized if it is more likelgan not, based on the technical merits, that thedaition will be realized or sustained upon
examination. The term more likely than not meatikedihood of more than 50 percent; the terms exadiand upon examination also include
resolution of the related appeals or litigationgass, if any. A tax position that meets the mdtehi-than-not recognition threshold is initially
and subsequently measured as the largest amotax bénefit that has a greater than 50 percenthikad of being realized upon settlement
with a taxing authority that has full knowledgeatifrelevant information. The determination of whet or not a tax position has met the more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold considers fhets, circumstances, and information availabliateporting date and is subject to
management’s judgment.

In assessing the realizability of federal or stterred tax assets, management considers whetkenore likely than not that some portion or
all of the deferred tax assets will not be realiZEte ultimate realization of deferred tax assetdependent upon the generation of future
taxable income during periods in which those terapodifferences become deductible. Management dersthe scheduled reversal of
deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxalslieome and prudent, feasible and permissible akasedvailable tax planning strategies in
making this assessment. Based on the level ofridatdaxable income and projections for futureatale income over the periods in which the
deferred tax assets are deductible as well asadaitax planning strategies, management beli¢vgsnore likely than not that Bancorp will
realize the benefits of these deferred tax assets.

Share-Based Compensation

Customers Bancorp has three active share-basedecsiation plans. Share-based compensation accogutidgnce requires that the
compensation cost relating to share-based-paynmardctions be recognized in financial statemdihtat cost is measured based on the gran
date fair value of the equity or liability instrums issued.

Compensation cost for all share awards is caladilatel recognized over the employees’ service pegederally defined as the vesting
period. For awards with graded-vesting, compensat@st is recognized on a straight-line basis tverequisite service period for the entire
award. The Black-Scholes model is used to estithatéair value of stock options, while the markaete of Customers Bancorp’s common
stock at the date of grant is used for restrictedksawards.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net incass) and other comprehensive income. Other congmsve income includes unrealized
gains and losses on securities available for salé unrealized losses related to factors other¢hedlit on debt securities which have been
determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share represents net incomeediiy the weighted-average number of common sleaitstanding during the
period. Diluted earnings per share includes alltdlié potential common shares outstanding duriegpriod. Potential common shares that
may be issued related to outstanding stock opti@ssricted stock units, and warrants are deterthirsing the treasury stock method.

Segment Information

Customers Bancorp, Inc. has one reportable segfit@mtamunity Banking.” All of the Company’s activés are interrelated, and each activity
is dependent and assessed based on how eachaatithges of the Company supports the others.dxample, lending is dependent upon the
ability of the Company to fund itself with depositsd borrowings while managing the interest ratk@edit risk. Accordingly, all significant
operating decisions are based upon analysis ddin& as one segment or unit.

Accounting Changes
The Fair Value Option

We elected the fair value option for warehouse ilegdransactions documented under a Master Repsechgreement originated after July 1,
2012 in order to more accurately represent thet $éon nature of the transaction and its inheresdit risk. This adoption is in accordance \
the parameters established by Accounting Standaodgfication (“ASC”) 825-10-25Financial Instruments-Overall-Recognition: The Fair
Value OptionAs a result of this election, new warehouse lendliagsactions are classified as “Loans held fa"sath the balance sheet. The
interest income from the warehouse lending traimastare classified in “Interest Income — Loansiegble, taxable, including fees on the
income statement. An allowance for loan losse®igecorded for the warehouse lending transactidren measured at fair value since under
ASC 825, the exit price (the repurchase pricefarehouse lending transactions considers the affextpected credit losses.
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Change in Accounting Estimates

Estimates of cash flows from purchased credit-imgaa(“PCl”) loans were revised during the third geaof 2012 due to conversion to a more
sophisticated and precise loan valuation systeractordance with the guidance in ASC 310-30, istdreeome is based on an acquired loan’s
expected cash flows. Complex models are needeal¢alate loan-level and/or pool level expected déshis in accordance with ASC 310-30.
The loan data analysis provided by the new softisagemore precise quantification of future cashw8 than the analysis that was previously
calculated manually. Upon conversion to the newnsare, acquisition date loan values were loadealtim system and the new software
calculated their fair values using its complex agilon model. Conversion to the new system was ceteglin September 2012. To adjust the
acquisition date loan balances recorded on CuswBemk’'s books to the amounts calculated by the saftware, approximately $4.4 million
was recognized in other non-interest income irthivel quarter of 2012. The revised valuation far BCI acquisition date loan balances due tc
the conversion to the new software is accountegifespectively as a change in accounting estimate.

When converting to the new software system, we wegaired to calculate the estimated cash flowsiftioe various acquisition dates of the
PCI loans through the date the software was imphteaeas it was impracticable to perform these ¢aficns on a monthly or quarterly basis.
In the third quarter of 2012, approximately $4.3liom was recognized in interest income relatethie change. The impact of the revised
valuation of cash flows for the PCI loan activityedto the conversion to the new software is acaslifdr prospectively as a change in
accounting estimate.

Also during the third quarter of 2012, we re-estimgiathe cash flows for the PCI loans using curdaté. The re-estimated expected cash flow:
decreased from prior estimated cash flows. Congistgh ASC 310-10’s fundamental premise that ael@se in expected cash flows results in
accrual of a loss contingency and should not résw@tchange in yield, we evaluated the adequatiyeoéllowance for loan losses for PCI lo
and determined that an additional provision fonlazsses of $7.5 million was appropriate. In theife, we will re-estimate the cash flows on
the PCI loans on a quarterly basis, and adjustmiémtsy, are not expected to have a material immpaduture earnings.

As a result of the changes in estimates, net indomine year ended December 31, 2012 increasé&90§,000, net of tax, and basic and
diluted earnings increased by $0.07 per share.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-G&consideration of Effective Control for RepurchageeementsThis ASU removes from the
assessment of effective control (1) the criteriequiring the transferor to have the ability to netase or redeem the financial assets on
substantially the agreed terms, even in the evietgfault by the transferee, and (2) the collateraintenance implementation guidance relate
to that criterion. This guidance is effective fbeffirst interim or annual period beginning on fieaDecember 15, 2011. The guidance is to be
applied prospectively to transactions or modificasi of existing transactions that occur on or dftereffective date. The adoption of this ASU
did not have a significant impact on the Bancogwgesolidated financial statements.

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-8dnendments to Achieve Common Fair Value MeasursraadtDisclosure Requirements in U.S
GAAP and IFRSThe amendments change the wording used to desoahg of the requirements in U.S. GAAP for measufaigvalue and

for disclosing information about fair value measueats. The guidance is effective during interim andual periods beginning after
December 15, 2011. The guidance is to be appliesigictively, and early application by public erstis not permitted. The adoption of this
ASU did not have a significant impact on the Baptoconsolidated financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011®®sentation of Comprehensive Incotdader the new guidance, the components of net iecom
and the components of other comprehensive incoméeg@resented either in a single continuous s&teof comprehensive income or in two
separate but consecutive statements. This guiddiminates the option to present components ofratbmprehensive income as part of the
changes in shareholders’ equity. This amendmehbeibpplied retrospectively, and the amendmemteHective for fiscal years and interim
periods ending after December 15, 2011. Early adofs$ permitted. The adoption of this ASU did have a significant impact on the
Bancorp’s consolidated financial statements.

In September, 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011F@8ting Goodwill for Impairmenthe purpose of this ASU is to simplify how entitiest
goodwill for impairment by adding a new first stepthe preexisting goodwill impairment test und&@Topic 350|ntangibles — Goodwill

and other.This amendment gives the entity the option to fustess a variety of qualitative factors such as@uic conditions, cash flows, and
competition to determine whether it was more likilgn not that the fair value of
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NOTE 3 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (continu ed)

goodwill has fallen below its carrying value. Igtkentity determines that it is not likely that faé value has fallen below its carrying value,
then the entity will not have to complete the arajitwo-step test under Topic 350. The amendmerttsis ASU are effective for impairment
tests performed for fiscal years beginning aftecémber 15, 2011. Early adoption is permitted. Tdhapsion of this ASU did not have a
significant impact on the Bancorp’s consolidatedhficial statements.

In December, 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011Hi4¢losures about Offsetting Assets and Liabiljtiean effort to improve comparability
between U.S. GAAP and IFRS financial statementk vdgard to the presentation of offsetting assedsliabilities on the statement of financ
position arising from financial and derivative inshents, and repurchase agreements. The ASU a$tabladditional disclosures presenting
gross amounts of recognized assets and liabiltiffsetting amounts, and the net balance refleictéde statement of financial position.
Descriptive information regarding the nature amghts of the offset must also be disclosed. Theangd in this ASU is effective for the first
interim or annual period beginning on or after Jagul, 2013 and should be applied retrospectividig. Bancorp does not expect this ASU to
have a significant impact on its consolidated fiahstatements.

In October, 2012, the FASB issued ASU 2012 Bésiness Combinations (Topic 805): Subsequent Aticgufor an Indemnification Asset
Recognized at the Acquisition Date as a Result@daernmer-Assisted Acquisition of a Financial Institutiondansensus of the FASB
Emerging Issues Task ForcThis ASU requires an entity to subsequently accéamthe change in the measurement of the indenatitin
asset on the same basis as the change in the sisisjetst to indemnification. The amendments in &8dJ are effective for the first interim
periods or annual period beginning on or after Ddwmer 15, 2012 and should be applied prospectidyly adoption is permitted. The
Bancorp does not expect this ASU to have a sigmtiempact on its consolidated financial statements

In February, 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-B2porting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accutadl®ther Comprehensive Income,
which adds new disclosure requirements for iterokssified out of accumulated other comprehensigerme (“AOCI"). The ASU requires
entities to disclose additional information abaetlassification adjustments, including (1) changesccumulated other comprehensive income
balances by component and (2) significant itemmssified out of AOCI. The new disclosure requiremseare effective for fiscal years and
interim periods beginning after December 15, 2@%iiblic companies. Early adoption is permittelde Bancorp does not expect this ASU to
have a significant impact on its consolidated ftiahstatements.
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NOTE 4 — EARNINGS PER SHARE
The following are the components of the Bancorpsags per share for the periods presented:

December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Net income allocated to common shareholi $ 23,81 $ 3,99( $ 23,73
Weighted-average number of common shares outstgndin

— basic 13,416,39 10,071,56 6,303,00!

Stoclk-based compensation pla 250,70: 141,26: 97,89:

Warrants 119,97t 71,53: 48,11!

Weightec-average number of common she- diluted 13,787,07 10,284,36 6,449,01.

Basic earnings per she $ 1.7¢ $ 0.4C $ 3.7¢

Diluted earnings per sha $ 1.72 $ 0.3¢ $ 3.6¢

The following is a summary of securities that coptdentially dilute basic EPS in the future thateveot included in the computation of dilu
EPS because to do so would have been antidilutivetné periods presented.

Anti -dilutive Securities Excluded from
the Computation of Earnings per Share

2012 2011 2010
Weightec-average ar-dilutive securities
Shar+-based compensation awal 152,25: 34,13( 9,61¢
Warrants 129,94t 130,04° 11,19:
Total weighte-average ar-dilutive securities 282,19 164,17 20,81

NOTE 5 — INVESTMENT SECURITIES

In May 2012, Customers Bancorp reclassified its®@@nillion held-to-maturity investment portfolio aivailable for sale. Due to its strong
outlook for loan growth, falling interest ratesdats recent decision to postpone its initial paloiffering of stock, the Bancorp decided to
proceed with this reclassification to provide lidity. The reclassification increased total shardbd’ equity by $5.5 million associated with
the recording of the net security gains on thefplot net of tax effects, to accumulated other poatensive income. Subsequently, the
Bancorp sold $257.6 million of available-for-saézsrities and realized a pre-tax gain of $8.8 mnilliin accordance with regulatory and
accounting requirements, the Bancorp is prohilfitech classifying security purchases as held to nitgttor a period of two years.
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NOTE 5 — INVESTMENT SECURITIES — (continued)
The amortized cost and approximate fair value eéstment securities are summarized as follows:

December 31, 201,

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(dollars in thousands

Available for Sale:

Mortgage-backed securities (; $102,44¢ $ 1,79¢ $ (109 $104,13!
Corporate note 25,00( 89 (137) 24,95:
Equities 6 0 0 6
Total $127,45! $ 1,88/ $ (246  $129,09:

(1) Includes privat-label securities with an aggregate amortized cb$629 and an aggregate fair value of $¢

December 31, 201

Gross Gross
Unrealizer Unrealizer
Amortized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(dollars in thousand:
Available for Sale:
U.S. Treasury and government agen $ 1,002 $ 0 $ O $ 1,001
Mortgagebacked securities (1) (. 55,81¢ 581 (207) 56,29:
Asse-backed securitie 622 5 0 627
Municipal securitie! 2,071 0 (72) 2,00(
Corporate note 20,00( 0 (783) 19,217
Total $ 79,518 $ 58¢€ $ (962 $ 79,137
Held to Maturity:
Mortgage-backed securitie $319,54 $11,26: $ 0 $330,80¢

(1) Includes an interest only strip security of $2,€
(2) Includes privat-label securities with an aggregate amortized cb$765 and an aggregate fair value of $¢

The following table shows proceeds from the salavaiilable for sale investment securities, grosssgand gross losses on those sales of
securities:

December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousand:

Proceeds from sale of availa-for-sale investment securiti $309,22: $182,74: $154,28’

Gross gain: $ 9,017 $ 2,731 $ 1,115

Gross losse 0 0 3)

Net gains $ 9,01i $ 2,731 $ 1114

These gains and losses were determined using ¢offispdentification method and were included omrinterest income.
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NOTE 5 — INVESTMENT SECURITIES — (continued)

The following table shows investment securitiestated maturity. Investment securities backed bytgages have expected maturities that
differ from contractual maturities because borraeave the right to call or prepay, and are, tleeegfclassified separately with no specific
maturity date:

December 31, 201;
Available for Sale

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
(dollars in thousand:

Due in one year or le: $ 0 $ 0
Due after one year through five ye. 25,00( 24,95;
Due after five years through ten ye 0 0
Due after ten yeal 0 0
Mortgage-backed securitie 102,44¢ 104,13!
Total debt securitie $127,44¢ $129,08

The Bancorp’s investments’ gross unrealized loasesfair value, aggregated by investment categotyi@ngth of time for individual
securities that have been in a continuous unrehlizes position were as follows:

December 31, 201,

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealizec
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

(dollars in thousand:
Available for Sale:

Mortgage-backed securitie $ 5698 $ (87 $ 42¢ $ (220 $ 6,12« $ (109
Corporate note 0 0 9,86z (137) 9,86: (1379)
Total $ 5695 $ (87) $10,29: $ (159 $1598¢ $ (246
December 31, 201
Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor Total
Unrealizec Unrealizec Unrealizec
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

(dollars in thousand:
Available for Sale:

U.S. Treasury and government agen $ 1,001 $ @ % 0 % 0 $ 1,000 $% (1)
Mortgage-backed securitie 16€ @ 412 (10¢) 57¢ (207)
Municipal securitie: 0 0 2,00( (72) 2,00¢ (77)
Corporate note 19,21¢ (789 0 0 19,21¢ (789
Total $20,38 $ (785 $ 241z $ (177) $22,790 $ (962

At December 31, 2012, there were two availablesfde investment securities in the less-than-twetesth category and eight available-for-
sale investment securities in the twelve-month-orercategory. At December 31, 2011, there weravailable for sale investment securities
in the less-than-twelve-month category and sixlalbtg for sale investment securities in the twetveath-or-more category.

98



Table of Contents

CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 — INVESTMENT SECURITIES — (continued)

In management’s opinion, the unrealized lossescefirimarily changes in interest rates, due toxgha in economic conditions and the
liquidity of the market and not credit quality. dddition, the Bancorp does not believe that it ndlmore likely than not that the Bancorp will
be required to sell the securities prior to mayunit market price recovery.

During June 2012, Moody’s downgraded all five cogte notes in the Bancorp’s portfolio. This downgravas anticipated since Moody's
placed these notes on negative watch in Februakg.2lthe Bancorp analyzed these notes in more dgttik time of downgrade. The Bancorp
does not intend to sell these debt securities poioecovery, and it is more likely than not that Bancorp will not have to sell these debt
securities prior to recovery. These notes conttoygay their scheduled interest payments on tineeadiditional downgrades are anticipated at
this time. The holdings are all in the financiaivéees industry and all are well capitalized.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, Customers Bank lealypd municipal and mortgage-backed securitieseggding $103.5 million and
$311.4 million, respectively, as collateral for tmwings.

NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES
We focus our lending efforts to the following lengiareas:

. Commercial Lending — Includes Multi-family/Commaeakieal estate, Construction, Commercial and ingstnd Business
Banking

. Specialty Lendini— Warehouse Lendin

. Consumer Lendin— Local market mortgage lending and home equity leg

. Mortgage bankine Origination, servicing and packaging of mortgaganie for sale to investo

. Manufactured Housin

During 2012, certain types of loans were reclaaditiue to their purpose and overall risk charasties. Therefore certain loan balances as of
December 31, 2011 were reclassified to confornméo2012 presentation.

The composition of loans receivable, net of alloeeafor loan losses was as follows:

December 31

2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Constructior $ 27,79: $ 37,92¢
Commercial real esta 44,90: 48,78¢
Commercial and industri 11,15:¢ 13,08
Residential real esta 19,95 22,46
Manufactured housin 3,72¢ 4,012

Total loans receivablcoveredunder FDIC loss sharing agreements 107,52¢ 126,27t
Constructior 28,891 15,27:
Commercial real esta 835,48t 350,92¢
Commercial and industri 75,11¢ 69,73¢
Mortgage warehouse (. 9,56¢ 619,31¢
Manufactured housin 154,70: 104,56!
Residential real esta 109,43( 53,47¢
Consume 2,061 2,211

Total loans receivablnot coveredunder FDIC loss sharing agreeme 1,215,26: 1,215,501
Total loans receivabl 1,322,78:i 1,341,78:
Deferred (fees) costs, n 1,67¢ (389)
Allowance for loan losse (25,83) (15,037
Loans receivable, ni $1,298,63  $1,326,36:

(1) Loans that were acquired in the two FDIC assistansactions and are covered under loss shagiegments with the FDIC are referred
to as“covere loans throughout these financial stateme

(2) During the third quarter of 2012, we electee fhir value option for warehouse lending transextidocumented under a Master
Repurchase Agreement originated after July 1, 28%2 result of this election, new warehouse legdiansactions were classified as
“Loans held for sale” on the balance sheet andharéncluded in this table. Certain classes of Wwatese lending loans were not eligible
for fair value option accountin
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)

Customers Bank takes advantage of FHLB programevfemight and term borrowings. Under the terma bfanket collateral agreement,
advances from the FHLB are collateralized by quadd first mortgage loans.

Non-Covered Non-accrual Loans and Loans Past Due
The following table summarize®wn-coveredloans, by class:

December 31, 201,

Greater Total Pas!
30-89 Days Than Non- PCI Total Loans
Past Due (1 90 Days (1 Due (1) Accrual Current (2) Loans(5) (4

(dollars in thousand:

Commercial and industrii $ 38 % 0O $ 38 $ 28 $ 72,71 $207i $ 7511¢
Commercial real esta 1,43 0 1,43 17,77( 770,50t 45,77 835,48
Constructior 0 0 0 2,42: 25,02: 1,452 28,89:
Residential real esta 381 0 381 1,66¢ 95,39¢ 11,98 109,43(
Consume 0 0 0 56 1,48¢ 51¢ 2,061
Mortgage warehous 0 0 0 0 9,56¢ 0 9,56¢
Manufactured housing (: 9,234 1,96¢ 11,20( 141 135,92« 7,43¢ 154,70:
Total $ 11,09C $ 1,96€ $13,05¢ $22,34° $1,110,61 $69,24: $1,215,26.

(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)
(5)

Loan balances do not include r-accrual loans

Loans where payments are due within 29 days of¢heduled payment da

Purchased manufactured housing loans, purchas2l 0, are subject to cash reserves held @ané that are used to fund the past-due
payments when the loan becomes 90 days or momrgdelit. Subsequent purchases are subject to vasyangsions in the event of
borrower! delinquencies

Loans exclude deferred costs and fi

PCI loans that were aggregated into a poohaceunted for as a single asset with a single csitgpmterest rate and an aggregate
expectation of cash flows, the past due statuseopbols, or that of the individual loans withir ghools, is not meaningful. Because we
recognize interest income on each pool of loares; #re all considered to be performing. PCI lo&as &re not in pools accrete interest
when the timing and amount of their expected chshsf are reasonably estimable, and being repoggedorming loans. For additional
information about PCI loans refer to refer to NOFESIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES -Purchased Credit-Impaired Loans”
in this Form 1-K.
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)

The following table summarize®n-coveredloans, by class:

December 31, 201

Greater

Than Total Pas!
3C-89 Days 90 Days Non- PCI Total
Past Due (1 (1) Due (1) Accrual Current (2) Loans (5) Loans (4)
(dollars in thousand:

Commercial and industrii $ 0O $ 0 % 0 $278 $ 6427 $267¢ $ 69,73¢
Commercial real esta 1,02¢ 0 1,02¢ 19,53t 276,08: 54,28 350,92¢
Constructior 0 0 0 5,63( 7,69¢ 1,94¢ 15,27:
Residential real esta 65¢ 0 65¢ 1,64: 38,72: 12,45; 53,47¢
Consume 12 0 12 40 1,91« 24% 2,211
Mortgage warehous 0 0 0 0 619,31¢ 0 619,31¢
Manufactured housing (: 3,481 0 3,481 0 92,25! 8,82¢ 104,56!
Total $ 517t $ 0 $517¢ $29,63: $1,100,25 $80,43° $1,215,50i
(1) Loan balances do not include -accrual loans
(2) Loans where payments are due within 29 days o$t¢heduled payment da
(3) Purchased manufactured housing loans, purchas 0, are subject to cash reserves held @3ané& that are used to fund the past-due

(4)
(5)

payments when the loan becomes 90 days or momrgdelit. Subsequent purchases are subject to vasyangsions in the event of
borrower! delinquencies

Loans exclude deferred costs and fi

PCI loans that were aggregated into a poohaceunted for as a single asset with a single ceitgmterest rate and an aggregate
expectation of cash flows, the past due statuseopbols, or that of the individual loans withir ghools, is not meaningful. Because we
recognize interest income on each pool of loares; #re all considered to be performing. PCI lo&as &re not in pools accrete interest
when the timing and amount of their expected chshsfare reasonably estimable, and being reposgxeorming loans. For additional
information about PCI loans refer to refer to NOFESIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Purchased Credit-Impaired Loans”
in this Form 1-K.
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NOTE 6 - LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)

Covered\Non-accrual Loans and Loans Past Due

The following table summarize®veredloans, by class:

December 31, 201,

Greater Total Pas!
3C-89 Days Than Non- PCI Total
Past Due (1 90 Days (1 Due (1) Accrual Current (2) Loans(5) Loans (4)
(dollars in thousand:

Commercial and industrii $ 22C % 0O $ 22 $ 10C $ 8,40« $2,42¢ ¢ 11,15!
Commercial real esta 0 0 3,71 20,85¢ 20,33( 44,90:
Constructior 0 0] 5,24« 6,47 16,07¢ 27,79:
Residential real esta 0 0 1,35¢ 14,22¢ 4,36¢ 19,95:
Manufactured housing (: 48 0 48 9C 3,52 63 3,72¢
Total $ 26 $ 0 $ 266 $10,50: $ 53,48t $43,26¢  $107,52¢
(1) Loans balances do not include -accrual loans
(2) Loans that were not identified at the acquisitiatedas a loan with credit deterioratir
(3) Loans where payments are due within 29 days o$t¢heduled payment da

(4)
(5)

Loans exclude deferred costs and fi

PCI loans that were aggregated into a poohaceunted for as a single asset with a single ceitgpmterest rate and an aggregate

expectation of cash flows, the past due statusepbols, or that of the individual loans withir ghools, is not meaningful. Because we

recognize interest income on each pool of loarey; #re all considered to be performing. PCI lo&as$ ére not in pools accrete interest

when the timing and amount of their expected chshsf are reasonably estimable, and being repoggedorming loans. At

December 31, 2012, covered PCI loans with a recbimestment of approximately $8.0 million were fmerforming. For additional
information about PCI loans refer to refer to NOFESIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Purchased Credit-Impaired Loans”

in this Form 1+K.
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)
The following table summarize®veredloans, by class:

December 31, 201

Greater
Than Total Pasl
3C-89 Days 90 Days Non- PCI Total
Past Due (1 (1) Due (1) Accrual Current (2) Loans (5) Loans (4)
(dollars in thousand:
Commercial and industrii $ 2672 $ 0 $267: $ 72 $ 9,76C $ 58C $ 13,08
Commercial real esta 531 0 531 3,18¢ 22,30t 22,76¢ 48,78¢
Constructior 91 0 91 2,58¢ 13,08¢ 22,16: 37,92¢
Residential real esta 643 0 643 1,07¢ 14,43 6,317 22,46¢
Manufactured housing (: 5 0 5 78 3,85: 77 4,012
Total $ 3942 $ 0 $394: 9$6,99¢ $63437 $51,90¢ $126,27¢

(1) Loans balances do not include -accrual loans

(2) Loans that were not identified at the acquisitiatedas a loan with credit deterioratir

(3) Loans where payments are due within 29 days o$t¢heduled payment da

(4) Loans exclude deferred costs and fi

(5) PClloans that were aggregated into a poohaceunted for as a single asset with a single csitgpmterest rate and an aggregate
expectation of cash flows, the past due statusepbols, or that of the individual loans withir ghools, is not meaningful. Because we
recognize interest income on each pool of loarey; #re all considered to be performing. PCI lo&@as$ are not in pools accrete interest
when the timing and amount of their expected chshsf are reasonably estimable, and being repogge@dorming loans. At
December 31, 2012, covered PCI loans with a recbirdeestment of approximately $8.0 million were fmarforming. For additional
information about PCI loans refer to refer to NOFESIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — Purchased Citelinpaired Loans’in
this Form 1+K.

Impaired Loan— Covered and Non-Covered
The following table presents a summary of impaloeths at and for the year ended December 31, 2012.

December 31, 201

(1)

Unpaid Average Interest
Principal Related Recorded Income
Balance (1 Allowance Investment Recognize!
(dollars in thousand:
With no related allowance recorded:
Commercial and industri $ 3,84« $ 4,922 $ 20¢
Commercial real esta 26,62¢ 23,08¢ 1,247
Constructior 6,58¢ 7,42( 9
Consume 101 13C 1
Residential real esta 3,18¢ 2,54: 63
With an allowance recordec
Commercial and industri; 374 $ 29t 672 12
Commercial real esta 8,70¢ 2,50¢ 8,99¢ 14¢
Constructior 5,11¢ 1,541 6,54% 20E
Consume 10C 14 43 6
Residential real esta 1,331 27C 1,04( 13
Total $ 55,97¢ $ 4,62¢F $ 55,40: $ 1,914

Also represents the recorded investm
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)
The following table presents a summary of impaloeths at and for the year ended December 31, 2011.

December 31, 201

Unpaid Average Interest
Principal Related Recorded Income
Balance (1 Allowance Investmer Recognize

(dollars in thousand:
With no related allowance recorde

Commercial and industri $ 6,97¢ $ 0 $ 7,10¢ $ 35€
Commercial real esta 20,43: 0 21,88’ 792
Constructior 8,77% 0 8,77¢ 25E
Residential real esta 345 0 347 0
With an allowance recorded:
Commercial and industri; 80C $ 42¢ 81t 27
Commercial real esta 12,19t 2,047 12,41« 55¢&
Constructior 7,36¢ 2,98¢ 7,36¢ 132
Consume 22 22 27 1
Residential real esta 86¢ 19E 904 9
Total $57,77 $ 5,67¢ $59,64¢ $ 2,127

(2) Also represents the recorded investm
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)

Troubled Debt Restructurings

At December 31, 2012, there were $6.1 million iane categorized as troubled debt restructuringpiR), and at December 31, 2011, there
were $9.9 million in loans categorized as trouldett restructurings. All TDRs are considered imgmiioans in the calendar year of their
restructuring. In subsequent years, a TDR may deeisg classified as impaired if the loan was medifit a market rate and has performed
according to the modified terms for at least sixiths. A loan that has been modified at a below etarkte will return to performing status if it
satisfies the six-month performance requiremenyédwer, it will remain classified as impaired.

Modification of PCI loans that are accounted fothivi loan pools in accordance with the accountiagdards for PCI loans do not result in the
removal of these loans from the pool even if medifions would otherwise be considered a TDR. Adogiy, as each pool is accounted for as
a single asset with a single composite interestaatl an aggregate expectation of cash flows, matdns of loans within such pools are not
TDRs.

The following is an analysis of loans modified itr@ubled debt restructuring by type of conces$iorihe years ended December 31, 2012 an
2011. There were no modifications that involvedjfeeness of debt.

December 31, 201

TDRs in
compliance
with their TDRs that
modified
terms and are not
accruing accruing
interest interest Total
(dollars in thousand:
Extended under forbearan $ 0 $ 514 $ 514
Multiple extensions resulting from financial diftikty 47 0 47
Interes-rate reduction 792 141 93¢
Total $ 83¢ $ 65 $1,49¢
December 31, 201
TDRs in
complianc
with their
modified TDRs tha
terms and are not
accruing accruing
interesl interest Total
(dollars in thousand:
Extended under forbearan $ 0 $ 5,151 $5,151
Multiple extensions resulting from financial diftilty 72 0 72
Interest rate reductior 91( 0 91(
Total $ 982 $ 5,151 $6,13¢
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)
Troubled Debt Restructurings (continued)

The following tables provide, by class, the numiidpans modified in troubled debt restructuringisg the recorded investments and unpaid
principal balances for the years ended Decembe2@®12 and 2011.

December 31, 201,
TDRs in compliance with

their modified terms and TDRs that are not
accruing interest accruing interest
Number Recorded Number Recorded
of Loans Investment of Loans Investment
(dollars in thousand:
Commercial and industri; 0 $ 0 0 $ 0
Commercial real esta 0 0 0 0
Constructior 0 0 0 0
Manufactured housin 4 223 3 141
Residential real esta 1 564 1 67
Consume 1 52 1 447
Total loans 6 $ 83¢ 5 $ 655
December 31, 201
TDRs in compliance with
their modified terms and TDRs that are not
accruing interes accruing interes
Number Recorded Number Recorded
of Loans Investmen of Loans Investmen
(dollars in thousands
Commercial and industri 0 $ 0 0 $ 0
Commercial real esta 0 0 7 5,151
Constructior 0 0 0 0
Manufactured housin 12 982 0 0
Residential real esta 0 0 0 0
Consume 0 0 0 0
Total loans 12 $ 982 7 $ 5,151

TDR modifications primarily involve interest ratercessions, extensions of term, deferrals of gradciand other modifications. Other
modifications typically reflect other nonstandaedms which the Bancorp would not offer in non-trieabsituations. During the years ended
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, loanseggting $1.5 million and $6.1 million were moddia troubled debt restructurings. TDR
modifications of loans within the commercial andustrial category were primarily interest rate @swons, deferrals of principal and other
modifications; modifications of commercial realastloans were primarily deferrals of principaltemsions of term and other modifications;
and modifications of residential real estate loapse primarily interest rate concessions and deffenf principal. As of December 31, 2012
and 2011, there were no commitments to lend adhdititunds to debtors whose terms have been modifiedubled debt structuring.

There were no valuation losses at the time ofrdmester and had no impact on the ALL. During thelts® month period ending December 31,
2012, three TDR loans defaulted with a recordedstment of $283,000. During the twelve month peending December 31, 2011, one TDR
loan defaulted with a recorded investment of $700,&ince these loans were included in the loatigiar that is subject to the cash reserve,
they were subsequently removed from the loan platfo

All loans modified in troubled debt restructurirgye evaluated for impairment. The nature and exteimipairment of TDRs, including those
which have experienced a subsequent default, isidered in the determination of an appropriatellefallowance for credit losses. There v
$120,000 and $352,000 in specific reserves regultom the addition of TDR modifications during thears ended December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011.
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)

Credit Quality Indicators

Commercial and industrial, commercial real estasidential real estate and construction loandased on an internally assigned risk rating
system which are assigned at the loan originatiwhraviewed on a periodic or on an “as needed"sb&insumer, mortgage warehouse and
manufactured housing loans are evaluated basduequayment activity of the loan.

To facilitate the monitoring of credit quality withthe commercial and industrial, commercial resthe, construction portfolio and residential
real estate segments, and for purposes of analjstayical loss rates used in the determinatiothefallowance for loan losses for the
respective portfolio segment, the Bank utilizesftiilowing categories of risk ratings: pass, spkgiantion, substandard, doubtful or loss. The
risk rating categories, which are derived from dtad regulatory rating definitions, are assignedruipitial approval of credit to borrowers a
updated periodically thereafter. Pass ratings, vhie assigned to those borrowers that do not idawified potential or well defined
weaknesses and for which there is a high likeliholodrderly repayment, are updated periodicallyelasn the size and credit characteristics o
the borrower. All other categories are updated qoarterly basis during the month preceding theadrtle calendar quarter. While assigning
risk ratings involves judgment, the risk rating gges allows management to identify riskier credits timely manner and allocate the
appropriate resources to managing the loans.

The Bank assigns a special mention rating to Itlaaishave potential weaknesses that deserve maeagisrolose attention. If left uncorrecte
these potential weaknesses may, at some futurerdatét in the deterioration of the repayment pexss for the loan and the Bank'’s credit
position.

The Bank assigns a substandard rating to loansthahadequately protected by the current sourthvamd paying capacity of the borrowe

of the collateral pledged. Substandard loans haledefined weaknesses or weaknesses that coyddijdize the orderly repayment of the
debt. Loans in this category also are charactetigetthe distinct possibility that the Bank will $ais some loss if the deficiencies noted are no
addressed and corrected.

The Bank assigns a doubtful rating to loans thaelal the attributes of a substandard rating Withadded characteristic that the weaknesses
make collection or liquidation in full, on the basif currently existing facts, conditions, and ealuhighly questionable and improbable. The
possibility of loss is extremely high, but becao$eertain important and reasonable specific pepéctors that may work to the advantage of
and strengthen the credit quality of the loancligssification as an estimated loss is deferreil itmtmore exact status may be determined.
Pending factors may include a proposed mergerauisition, liquidation proceeding, capital injectigperfecting liens on additional collateral
or refinancing plans. Loans classified as lossarsidered uncollectible and are charged off inpiagod in which they are determined
uncollectible.

Risk ratings are not established for home equiy$p consumer loans, and installment loans, maedause these portfolios consist of a large
number of homogenous loans with smaller balancssedd, these portfolios are evaluated for risknipdiased on aggregate payment history,
through the monitoring of delinquency levels arentts.
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)

The following presents the credit quality table®aBecember 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 fondhecoveredloan portfolio.

Pass/Satisfactor
Special Mentior
Substandar
Doubtful

Total

Performing
Non-performing (1)
Total

Pass/Satisfactor
Special Mentior
Substandar
Doubtful

Total

Performing
Non-performing (1)

Total

(1) Includes loans that are on r-accrual status at December 31, 2012 and 2

December 31, 201,

Commercial
and Commercial Residential
Industrial Real Estate Construction Real Estate
(dollars in thousand:
$ 70,95t $ 794,18 $ 26,02( $ 105,49(
3,83¢ 18,735 454 1,01
327 21,80: 1,971 2,91¢
0 768 452 4
$ 75,11¢ $ 835,48 $ 28,897 $ 109,43(
Manufactured
Mortgage
Consumer Warehouse Housing
(dollars in thousands)
$ 2,00t $ 9,56t $ 154,56:
56 0 141
$ 2,061 $ 9,56¢ $ 154,70:
December 31, 201
Commercial
and Commercial Residential
Industrial Real Estatt Constructior Real Estat
(dollars in thousand:
$ 61,85 $ 307,73 $ 9,31« $ 50,517
57 13,40: 237 0
7,50¢ 28,13: 4,34¢ 2,95¢
322 1,662 1,371 0
$ 69,73¢ $ 350,92 $ 15,27: $ 53,47¢

108

Manufactured
Mortgage
Consumer Warehouse Housing
(dollars in thousand:
$ 2,171 $619,31¢ $ 104,56!
40 0 0
$ 2,211 $619,31¢ $ 104,56!
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)

The following presents the credit quality table®tBecember 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 focaleredloan portfolio.

(1)

Pass/Satisfactol
Special Mentior
Substandar
Doubtful
Total
Performing
Non-performing (1)
Total
Pass/Satisfactor
Special Mentior
Substandar
Doubtful
Total
Performing
Non-performing (1)
Total

December 31, 201,

Includes loans that are on r-accrual status at December 31, 2012 and 2
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Commercial
and Commercial Residential
Industrial Real Estate Construction Real Estate
(dollars in thousand:
$ 8,88¢ $ 26,19 $ 2,43¢ $ 14,02
51 22t 4,03¢ 45E
2,214 18,48: 21,32( 5,47¢
0 0 0 0
$ 11,15! $ 44,90: $ 27,79 $ 19,95:
Manufactured
Housing
(dollars in
thousands
$ 3,63¢
90
$ 3,72¢
December 31, 201
Commercial
and Commercial Residential
Industrial Real Estat Constructior Real Estat
(dollars in thousand:
$ 10,92¢ $ 29,89: $ 5,53¢ $ 16,47¢
1,77¢ 1,63: 7,641 45E
37¢ 17,26« 24,74¢ 5,53¢
0 0 0 0
$ 13,08 $ 48,78¢ $ 37,92¢ $ 22,46°
Manufacture
Housing
(dollars in
thousands
$ 3,93
78
$ 4,017
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)

Allowance for loan losse

The changes in the allowance for loan losses &eoémber 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 and the k&l allowance for loan losses by
loan segment based on impairment method are asvill

Commercial
Commercial Residentia  Manufactured
and Mortgage
Twelve months ended December 31, 20: Industrial Real Estate  Construction  Real Estate Housing Consumel  Warehouse  Unallocatec Total
(dollars in thousand:

Beginning Balance, January 1, 2( $ 1,441  $ 7,02¢ $ 4,65¢ $ 844 $ 18 $ 61 $ 92¢ $ 54 $ 15,03
Chargeoffs (522) (2,462) (2,507 (64¢) 0 (2€) 0 0 (6,16¢€)
Recoverie: 514 63 4 5 0 114 0 o] 70C
Provision for loan losse 44 10,80¢ 1,83¢ 3,03 732 5 (85€) 66¢ 16,27

Ending Balance, December 31, 2( $ 1477 $ 15,43¢ $ 3991 $ 323 $ 75C % 154 $ 71 3% 72z $ 25,83

Loans:

Individually evaluated for impairme $ 4218 $ 3533 % 11,70  $ 451¢ $ 0 3 201 % 0 $ 55,97t

Collectively evaluated for impairme 77,54, 778,95: 27,457 108,51: 150,93( 1,341 9,56% 1,154,30:
Loans acquired with credit

deterioration (PCI Loan 4,50¢ 66,10: 17,52¢ 16,35 7,501 51¢ 0 112,50¢

$ 86,27 $ 880,38¢ $ 56,68¢ $ 129,38 $ 158,43. $ 2,061 $ 9,56t $1,322,78:

Allowance for loan losses
Individually evaluated for impairme $ 295 $ 250t $ 1,541 % 27C  $ 0o $ 14 3 0 $ 0 $ 462
Collectively evaluated for impairme 731 7,04¢ 35C 917 63 55 71 722 9,957
Loans acquired with credit

deterioration (PCI Loan: 451 5,88¢ 2,100 2,04¢ 687 8E 0 0 11,25¢
$ 1,477 $ 1543¢ $ 3991 $ 323 $ 75C % 154 $ 71 3% 72z $ 25,831
Commercial
Manufactured
and Commercial Residentia Mortgage
Twelve months ended December 31, 20: Industrial Real Estate  Construction Real Estate Housing Consumel  Warehouse Unallocatec Total
(dollars in thousand:

Beginning Balance, January 1, 2C $ 1,66z $ 9,15 $ 2127 $ 1,11¢ $ 0o $ 1 3 465 $ 59¢ $ 15,12¢
Chargeoffs (2,54%) (5,775 (1,179 (20¢) 0 (55) 0 0 (9,667
Recoveries 11 94 2 0 0 7 0 0 114
Provision for loan losse 2,311 3,55¢ 3,70¢€ (163) 18 98 464 (542) 9,45(

Ending Balance, December 31, 2( $ 1,441 $ 7,02¢ $ 4,656 $ 844 $ 18 3 61 $ 92¢ $ 54 $ 15,03:

Loans:

Individually evaluated for impairme $ 7,778 $ 32,62¢ $ 16,14: $ 1,212 0o $ 22 % 0 $ 57,77%

Collectively evaluated for impairme 71,787 290,03° 12,947 55,96( 99,67: 1,94¢ 619,31¢ 1,151,66.
Loans acquired with credit

deterioration (PCI Loan 3,25¢ 77,05¢ 24,10¢ 18,76¢ 8,90¢ 24¢ 0 132,34:

$ 82,82( $ 399,71t $ 53,197 $ 7594. $ 10857 $ 2,211 $ 619,31 $1,341,78;

Allowance for loan losses
Individually evaluated for impairme $ 42¢ 3 2047 $ 298t $ 198 % 0 $ 22 $ 0 $ 0 $ 5,67¢
Collectively evaluated for impairme 911 4,062 20¢ 55¢E 1 3¢ 92¢ 54 6,76(
Loans acquired with credit

deterioration (PCI Loan: 104 92( 1,461 94 17 Q 0 0 2,59¢
$ 1,441 $ 7,02¢ $ 4,656 $ 844 $ 18 3 61 $ 92¢ $ 54 $ 15,03:

The non-covered manufactured housing portfolio prashased in August 2010. A portion of the purchasse may be used to reimburse the
Bank under the specified terms in the Purchaseekgemt for defaults of the underlying borrower attteo specified items. At December 31,
2012 and December 31, 2011, funds available fonbarsement, if necessary, were $3.5 million and $%illion, respectively. Each quarter,
these funds are evaluated to determine if they evbalsufficient to absorb probable losses withenrttanufactured housing portfolio.
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)
The analysis of the allowance for loan losses 62 2011, and 2010 is as follows:

December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousand:
Balance, January $15,03: $15,12¢ $10,03:
Provision for loan losse 16,27: 9,45( 10,397
Loans charged o (6,16€) (9,66)) (5,26%)
Recoveries 70C 114 15
Transfers (1 0 0 (50)
Balance, December : $25,83" $15,03: $15,12¢

(1) At December 31, 2010, the Bancorp had a resar$80,000 for unfunded commitments included wittiie allowance for loan
losses. The reserve for unfunded loan commitmeassreclassified to Other Liabilities during the yeaded December 31, 20:

The following table presents the changes in acoletgeld related to PCI loans since origination:

December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousand:
Balance, beginning of peric $ 45,35¢ $ 7,17¢ $ 0
Additions resulting from acquisitic 0 41,30¢ 6,83
Accretion to interest incormr (12,727 (3,55€) (971)
Reclassification from nonaccretable difference disgosals, ne (1,467) 432 1,31¢
Balance, end of peric $ 32,17 $45,35¢ $7,17¢

The contractual balance of the PCI loans was $1h#llon and $132.3 million, as at December 31,2@hd 2011, respectively. The carrying
value of the PCI loans was $103.5 million and $228illion, as at December 31, 2012, and 2011, i&sdy.
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NOTE 6 — LOANS RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LO SSES — (continued)

FDIC Loss Sharing Receivak

Prospective losses incurred on Covered Loans @ielelfor partial reimbursement by the FDIC. Sulpsent decreases in the amount expecte
to be collected result in a provision for loan Essan increase in the allowance for loan lossebsagroportional adjustment to the FDIC loss
sharing receivable for the estimated amount teebmbursed. Subsequent increases in the amounttexipiecbe collected result in the reversal
of any previously-recorded provision for loan lasaad related allowance for loan losses and adgrdsrio the FDIC loss sharing receivable,
or accretion of certain fair value amounts inte@rest income in future periods if no provision lfman and lease losses had been recorded.

The following table summarizes the activity relatedhe FDIC loss sharing receivable:

December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousand:
Balance, beginning of peric $13,07: $16,70: $ 0
Acquisitions 0 0 27,29
Change in FDIC loss sharing receiva 5,83¢ 3,92( 52C
Reimbursement from the FDI (6,579 (7,545 (11,11%)
Balance, end of peric $12,34: $13,07; $ 16,70:

NOTE 7 — BANK PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
The components of bank premises and equipment agei@lows:

December 31

Expected Useful Life 2012 2011

(dollars in thousand:
Leasehold improvemen 3 to 25 year: $ 9,78¢ $ 8,70¢
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 5 to 10 year: 3,26¢ 2,66¢
IT equipment 3to 5 year: 2,752 1,77¢
Automobiles 5to 10 year: 112 127
15,92: 13,27
Less accumulated depreciati (6,249) (4,826
Total $ 9,672 $ 8,44¢

Future minimum rental commitments under non-cafdelleases were as follows:

December 31, 201,
(dollars in thousand

2013 $ 2,171
2014 1,91¢
2015 1,51¢
2016 1,415
2017 1,19¢
Subsequent to 201 3,76¢
Total minimum payment $ 11,98¢

Rent expense, which includes reimbursements ttetiser for real estate taxes, was approximatelly S@lion, $1.6 million and $1.1 million
for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 an@, 284pectively. The Bancorp’s leases are for larahch or office space. A majority of
the leases provide for the payment of taxes, maamtee, insurance and certain other expenses aplglitathe leased premises. Many of the
leases contain extension provisions and escalalises. These leases are generally renewable andmtertain cases, contain renewal
provisions and options to expand and contract spaddgerminate the leases at predetermined conélagtates. In addition, escalation clauses
may exist, which are tied to a predetermined rat@ay change based on a specified percentage s&cogahe Consumer Price Index.
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NOTE 8 - GOODWILL

The Company’s goodwill was recognized in connectigth the acquisition of Berkshire Bank on Septembg 2011. The following table
presents changes to goodwill as originally estichateSeptember 17, 2011, and measurement periadtagjnts to the fair values of certain
assets acquired as information about facts androstances that existed as of the acquisition daterbe available.

(dollars in

thousands

Balance at January 1, 201: $ 0
Goodwill resulting from the Berkshire acquisitia@s originally estimated

at September 1 2,46¢

Subsequent adjustments relating to deferred indemes (867)

Balance at December 31, 2011, as originally repode 1,59¢

Final adjustments relating to the Berkshire actjoisi

Loans receivabl 1,14

Other real estate ownt 1,66¢

Deferred income taxe (789

Balance at December 31, 201 $ 3,62¢

The goodwill acquired in the Berkshire acquisitismot deductible for income tax purposes.

In accordance with ASC 350-2Gpodwill and Other Intangiblesgoodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assete #ested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if impairment indicegt@rise utilizing a two-step methodology. Step miires the Company to determine the
fair value of the reporting unit and compare ithte carrying value, including goodwill, of such ogfing unit. The reporting unit was
determined to be our community banking operatiatgch is our only operating segment. If the failueaof the reporting unit exceeds the
carrying value, goodwill is not impaired. If therpang value exceeds fair value, there is an inificaof impairment and the second step is
performed to determine the amount of impairmerdnif. The second step compares the fair valueeofgporting unit to the aggregate fair
values of its individual assets, liabilities anéndified intangibles.

The Company performed its annual step one goodwidhirment analysis as of October 31, 2012 and teefair value of the reporting unit
based on the income approach and market approhehinfome approach uses a dividend discount asallysis approach calculates cash
flows based on anticipated financial results asagraichange of control transaction. This changmofrol assumes that an acquirer will
achieve an expected base level of earnings, achiggration cost savings and incur certain trafisacosts (including such items as legal an
financial advisors fees, contract cancellationgesEnce and employment obligations, and other &t costs). The present value of all
excess cash flows generated by the Company (abevainimum tangible capital ratio) plus the preseaitie of a terminal sale value is
calculated to arrive at fair value for the inconppach.

The market approach is used to calculate the &irevof a company by calculating median earningsharok value pricing multiples for recent
actual acquisitions of companies of similar sizd parformance and then applying these multiplesitoccommunity banking reporting unit. I
company or transaction in the analysis is identica@ur community banking reporting unit and, adiogly, the results of the analysis are only
indicative or comparable value. This technique Unsst®rical data to create a current pricing lear@d is thus a trailing indicator. Results of the
market approach need to be understood in this xprespecially in periods of rapid price change aratket uncertainty. The Company app!
the market valuation approach to our then currmtksprice adjusted by an appropriate control premand also to a peer group adjusted b
appropriate control premium.

Based on the results of the step one goodwill immpait analysis, the Company determined that theaene impairment on the current
goodwill balance of $3.6 million.
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NOTE 9 — DEPOSITS
The components of deposits were as follows:

December 31

2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:
Demand, no-interest bearin $ 219,68 $ 114,04
Demand, interest bearit 1,020,94i 739,46
Savings 20,29¢ 16,92:
Time, $100,000 and ow 708,48’ 408,85:
Time, other 471,39¢ 303,90°
Total deposit: $2,440,81. $1,583,18!

Time deposits scheduled maturities were as follows:

December 31, 201,
(dollars in thousand

2013 $ 806,92t
2014 139,45t
2015 75,89
2016 106,80¢
2017 50,80¢
Thereaftel 0

Total time deposit $ 1,179,88

The aggregate amount of demand deposits overdafthiave been reclassified as loan balances at@%@and $49,000 as at December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively.

Included in the demand, interest bearing balanbeseare $203.1 million and $0 of brokered monevketadeposits, respectively as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011. Also, included in tiotieer balances above are $149.9 million and $f¥aitered time deposits, respectively as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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NOTE 10 —- BORROWINGS
Short-term debt
Short-term debt was as follows:

December 31

2012 2011
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(dollars in thousands
FHLB advance: $411,00( 0.25%  $320,00( 0.25%
Federal funds purchas 5,00( 0.2C 5,00( 0.12%
Total shor-term borrowings $416,00( $ 325,00(

The following is a summary of the Bancorp’s sheitit borrowings:

December 31
2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:

FHLB advances

Maximum outstanding at any month € $411,00( $329,00(

Average balance during the ye 74,36¢ 25,01t

Weighted average interest rate during the .38% .34%
Federal funds purchase

Maximum outstanding at any month € 55,00( 8,00(

Average balance during the ye 4,33¢ 1,41¢

Weighted average interest rate during the 24% 12%

At December 31, 2012, the Customers Bank had agtgexyailability under federal funds lines total®t35 million.

Long-term debt
The contractual maturities of long-term advancereves follows:

December 31

2012 2011
Amount Rate Amount Rate
(dollars in thousands

2014 $ 15,00( 052% $ 1,00( 3.7%
2015 25,00( 0.61 0 0.0C
2016 10,00¢( 0.77 0 0.0C
2017 5,00( 3.0¢ 5,00( 3.0¢
2018 5,00( 3.31 5,00( 3.31

$ 60,00( $ 11,00(

Of the $60 million of long-term advances above,.8Ifillion in Federal Home Loan Bank advances, thature in 2017 and 2018, and are
convertible select advances. One $5.0 million adeganay be converted during any quarter to a flgatate advance with a rate of three-montt
LIBOR plus 17 basis points. The remaining $5.0imnlladvance may be converted in any quarter toatifig-rate advance with a rate of three:
month LIBOR plus 18 basis points. If the Bancorpev® convert these advances to a floating raeeBdmcorp would have the right to prepay
the advances with no penalty.

The Bank had a total borrowing capacity with thedéral Home Loan Bank of $608.9 million and with frederal Reserve Bank of
Philadelphia of $107.0 million at December 31, 204@vances under these arrangements are secuiegttayn assets, which include a blanket
lien on securities and qualifying loans of Custosrigank.
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NOTE 10 — BORROWINGS — (continued)

Subordinated debt

Customers Bank issued a subordinated term notagithie second quarter of 2004. The note was isEuekP.0 million at a floating rate based
upon the three-month LIBOR rate, determined quigntptus 2.75% per annum. Quarterly interest payisiare made on this note in January,
April, July and October. At December 31, 2012, dliarterly average rate was 3.07% and the averagéorathe year was 3.20%. The note
matures in the third quarter of 2014.

NOTE 11 — SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
TARP Payoff

On December 28, 2011, the Bancorp entered inttiex @greement (the “Letter Agreement”) with theitdd States Department of Treasury
(“Treasury”) pursuant to which the Bancorp repusgthfrom the Treasury 2,892 shares, constitutingf déhe issued and outstanding shares, c
the Bancorp’s Series A Preferred Stock at a re@mselprice equal to the liquidation value of $1,080share, or a total of $2.9 million plus
accrued, unpaid dividends on such shares equdla®80, and 145 shares, constituting all of theedsand outstanding shares, of the
Bancorp’s Series B Preferred Stock and, togethtir thie Series A Preferred Stock, (the “preferreatasi’), at a repurchase price equal to the
liquidation value of $1,000 per share, or a tofedb45,000, plus accrued, unpaid dividends on shelies equal to $2,000. The total repurcl
price for the preferred shares equaled $3.1 milliecluding accrued dividends.

The repurchase of the preferred shares relatée tietter agreement (the “TARP Letter Agreementiteeed into by and among the Bancorp,
Berkshire and the Treasury on September 16, 20irsuBnt to the TARP Letter Agreement, the Bancgrped to assume the due and punt
performance and observance of Berkskimvenants, agreements, and conditions undecéhiatin letter agreement, dated as of June 12,;:
by and between Treasury and Berkshire, incorpaydtie Securities Purchase Agreement — StandardsTighe “Securities Purchase
Agreement”) and all ancillary documents theretcadidition, Bancorp agreed to exchange the outsigri8ierkshire TARP Shares Series A anc
Berkshire TARP Shares Series B Preferred Share§)@;892 shares of the Series A Shares, havirgualation preference of $1,000 per
share; and (ii) 145 shares of the Series B Shheséng a liquidation preference of $1,000 per shgseed by Bancorp. The issuance and sg
these securities was a private placement exemt fegistration pursuant to Section 4(2) of the $Sides Act of 1933, as amended.

Capital Raises

During the third quarter of 2012, the Bancorp st 1,819 shares of common stock in private ofégifThe proceeds, net of offering costs,
were $94.6 million.

On May 8, 2012, the Bancorp announced that, dmestdet conditions, it had postponed its initial zibffering of voting common stock.
Costs related to this postponed offering in the ambof $1.4 million have been expensed.

On September 30, 2011, the Bancorp sold 419,00@sloh common stock and 565,848 shares of ClaserB\Witing Common Stock at $13.
per share with total proceeds of $13.0 million. iDgrthe first quarter 2011, the Bank sold sharetsafommon stock and Class B Non-Voting
Common Stock to certain Lead Investors. Givingaffe the Reorganization, the Bancorp (as successbe Bank) issued, in connection with
this transaction, 668,527 shares of common stodk3&,000 shares of Class B Non-Voting Common S&@l2.00 per share and 210,916
shares of common stock and 146,310 shares of 8l&km-Voting Common Stock to the Bancorp’s Leaddstors at $10.50 per share. The
proceeds, net of offering costs were $15.5 million.

In December 2010, the Bancorp sold 694,947 shdresnomon stock and 49,266 shares of Class B Noimgdommon Stock at a weighted-
average price of $11.82 per share. In Septembé¥,26& Bancorp sold 78,699 shares of common stbak average price of $10.65. In July
2010, the Bancorp sold 8,333 shares of common st0di93,333 shares of Class B Non-Voting Commonksab a price of $10.50 per share.
In March 2010, the Bancorp sold 253,865 share®wingon stock and 396,400 shares of Class B Non-g@immmon Stock at a price of
$11.28 per share. In February 2010, the Bancogp24dl76,516 shares of common stock and 1,182,8&2slof Class B Non-Voting Common
Stock at a price of $12.84 per share (collectividlg,“2010 Capital Raises”).

The proceeds of the 2010 Capital Raises were $8Bli0n, net of offering costs of approximately 8Imillion. As a result of the July 2010 a
March 2010 capital raises at a price less thamtiggnal per share purchase price, 1,096,496 steiresmmon stock and 293,056 shares

of Class B Non-Voting Common Stock at a price d0.$D per share were issued to the existing invegarsuant to anti-dilution agreements
between the Bancorp and those investors.
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NOTE 11 — SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY — (continued)

Each investor who participated in the 2010 Captimses and owned more than 9% of the common egtittye Bancorp was identified by the
Bancorp as a Lead Investor. The 2010 Capital Raesedted in seven Lead Investors who receivedamésrequal to 5% of the shares that the)
purchased in 2010 and have exercise prices (akéarg into account anti-dilution repricing) of $80.per share (collectively, the 2010
Warrants). The 2010 Warrants are for the issuah8d,628 shares of the Bancorp’s Common Stock &212 shares of the BancospClass |
Non-Voting Common Stock.

NOTE 12 — EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
401(k) Plan

Customers Bank has a 401(k) profit sharing planrelneeligible employees may contribute up to 15%hefr salary to the Plan. Customers
Bank provides a matching contribution equal to 5ifothe first 6% of the contribution made by the émype. Employer contributions for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010$8&6000, $224,000, and $101,000, respecti

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans

Customers Bank entered into a supplemental exectgtrement plan (SERP) with its Chairman and Chiecutive Officer that provides
annual retirement benefits for a 15 year periochupe later of his reaching the age of 65 or whetehminates employment. The SERP is a
defined-contribution type of deferred compensatioangement that is designed to provide a targaiametirement benefit of $300,000 per
year for 15 years starting at age 65, based ossumaed constant rate of return of 7% per yearthattevel of retirement benefit is n
guaranteed by the Bank, and the ultimate retirertnengfit can be less than or greater than thettafrge Bank intends to fund its obligations
under the SERP with the increase in cash surreralee of a life insurance policy on the life of tBhairman and Chief Executive Officer
which is owned by the Bank. As a result of the &sitjion of USA Bank on July 9, 2010, the SERP beeaafiective and the Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer is entitled to receive theance of his account in accordance with the teitlse SERP. The present value of the
amount owed as of December 31, 2012 is $2.9 millioah is included in other liabilities.

NOTE 13 — SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS
Summary

During 2010, the shareholders of Customers Bankaaeg the 2010 Stock Option Plan (“2010 Plan”), dadng 2012, the shareholders of
Customers Bancorp approved the 2012 Amendment asthiement of the Customers Bancorp, Inc. Amendddrastated 2004 Incentive
Equity and Deferred Compensation Plan (“2004 Plafle purpose of these plans is to promote theesscand enhance the value of the
Bancorp by linking the personal interests of theners of the Board of Directors and Customers Barkiployees, officers, and executive
those of Bancorp’s shareholders and by providiray $ndividuals with an incentive for outstandingfpemance in order to generate superior
returns to shareholders of Bancorp. The 2010 Ridr2804 Plan are intended to provide flexibilityBancorp in its ability to motivate, attract
and retain the services of members of the Boamirefctors, employees, officers and executives aft@uers Bank. Stock options and
restricted stock units normally vest on the thirditth anniversary of the grant date provided ¢liantee remained employed by the Bancorp o
continued to serve on the Board. With respectdoksbptions granted under the 2010 Plan, vestadrapshall be exercisable only when the
Bancorp’s fully diluted tangible book value will\aincreased by 50% from the date of grant. Ceghare-based awards provide for
accelerated vesting if there is a change in co@®tefined in the Plans). No stock options magxecisable for more than ten years from the
date of grant.

The 2010 and 2004 Plans are administered by thep€asation Committee of the Board of Directors. Z820 Plan provides exclusively for
the grant of stock options, some or all of whichyrha structured to qualify as Incentive Stock Omico employees, officers and executives.
The maximum number of shares of common stock wimak be issued under the 2010 Plan is the lesga) 46% of the number of shares of
common stock and Class B Non-Voting Common Stosléd in consideration of cash or other propergrdadecember 31, 2009, which
amount at December 31, 2012 was 2,499,933 shalb3 8/333,334 shares. The 2004 Plan provideshfgtant of options, some or all of
which may be structured to qualify as IncentivecEt@ptions if granted to employees, stock apprexiaights (“SARS”), restricted stock,
restricted stock units, and unrestricted stockmipleyees, officers, executives, and members oBtigrd of Directors. The maximum number
of shares of common stock which may be issued uth@e?004 Plan is 2,500,000 shares. At Decembe2@®12, the aggregate number of
shares of common stock available for grant undesdtplans was 2,560,568 shares.
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NOTE 13 — SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS — (continwed)

On January 1, 2011, the Bancorp initiated a BoresoBnition and Retention Program (“BRRP”). Thig isestricted stock unit plan.
Employees eligible to participate in the BRRP inlguhe Chief Executive Officer and other manageraadthighly compensated employee:
determined by the Compensation Committee in its dedcretion. Under the BRRP, a participant magtdte defer not less than 25%, nor more
than 50%, of his or her bonus payable with resfmeetich year of participation. Shares of Voting @wn Stock having a value equal to the
portion of the bonus deferred by a participantadi@cated to an annual deferral account, and ahimf@mount equal to an identical number o
shares of common stock is also allocated to theardeferral account. A participant becomes 100%eckin the annual deferral account on
the fifth anniversary date of the initial fundinfjtbe account, provided he or she remains contislyamployed by the Bancorp from the date
of funding to the anniversary date.

Vesting is accelerated in the event of involuntermination other than for cause, retirement atftar age 65, death, termination on account o
disability, or a change in control of the BancdPprticipants were first eligible to make electiomsler the BRRP with respect to their bonuses
for 2011 which were payable in the first quarteR612. The BRRP does not provide for a specific lInemnof shares to be reserved; by its te
the award of restricted stock units under this jdimited by the amount of cash bonuses paithégparticipants in the plan. At December 31,
2012, restricted stock units outstanding underplds totaled 107,172.

Share-based compensation expense is recognizedtomight-line basis over the vesting periods efdlvards and is a component of salaries
and employee benefits expense. Total share-basegersation expense for 2012, 2011, and 2010 wasdiflion, $704,000, and $2.0
million, respectively. At December 31, 2012 ther@sw10.1 million of unrecognized compensation pelsted to all non-vested share-based
compensation awards. This cost is expected todmyrézed through December 2017.

Stock Options

The Bancorp estimated the fair value of each oggiamt on the date of grant using the Black-Schofg®n pricing model. The risk-free
interest rate was based upon the zero-coupon Teeses in effect on the grant date of the optiéhgected volatility was based upon limited
historical information because the Bancorp’s commstmek has only been traded on the Pink Sheete &iabruary 2012. Expected life was
management’s estimate which took into consideratierfive-year vesting requirement and the fact there have been no exercises prior to
2010. The following table presents the weighted-age assumptions used:

2012 2011 2010
Weighted-average risk-free interest rate 1.15% 2.0(% 2.81%
Expected dividend yiel 0.0(% 0.0(% 0.0(%
Weightec-average expected volatili 17.4% 20.00% 20.00%
Weightec-average expected life (in yea 6.9¢ 7.0C 7.0C
Weighte-average fair value of options grani $ 3.04 $ 4.14 $ 2.6¢

The following summarizes stock option activity foe year ended December 31, 2012:
Weighted-
average
Weighted- remaining
contractual Aggregate
average
Number exercise term intrinsic
of shares price in years value
(dollars in thousands, except Weigl-average exercise pric
Outstanding, January 1, 20 1,127,65. $ 11.0(
Issued 944,52 14.0¢
Adjustment (1) 67,09:
Forfeited (135,38) 11.2¢
Outstanding, December 31, 20 2,003,88! $ 12.4¢ 7.0 $ 3,82¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 4,43¢ $ 31.5¢ 29¢ % 0

(1) The adjustment above represents error correstihe cancellation of the directors’ options #meconversion of the voting stock options
to nor-voting stock options
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NOTE 13 — SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS — (continwed)

The September 17, 2011 and the September 30, Zibhe awards to Mr. Sidhu totaling 160,884 shavese cancelled on March 6, 2012, :
new options to purchase the same number of shaf@sss B Non-Voting common stock upon the samaseiincluding the same exercise

price and expiration date) were issued. The caambati and grant were done to correct an inadvertéstake of originally awarding these as
options to purchase shares of voting common sfbiokre was no impact to the total number of stodloashares from this adjustment.

A summary of the status of the Bancorp’s nonvestgitbns at December 31, 2012 and changes duringetiieended December 31, 2012 is as
follows:

Weighted-

average
Options exercise price
Nonvested at January 1, 2C 1,121,06. $ 11.01
Grantec 944,52 14.0¢

Adjustments 67,09:

Forfeited (133,229 11.0C
Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 1,999,45 $ 124«

Restricted Stock Uni

The fair value of restricted stock units grantedemthe 2004 Plan is determined based on the mariket of the Bancorp’s common stock on
the date of grant. The fair value of restrictectktonits granted under the BRRP is measured dweaddte on which such portion of the bonus
would have been paid but for the deferral.

In February 2012, the Compensation Committee recema@d and the board of directors approved a ressdrgtock reward program that has
two vesting requirements. The first requiremeriha the recipient remains an employee or dirgttaugh December 31, 2016. The second
requirement is that the BancospV/oting Common Stock will have traded at a prioeager than $18.90 per share (adjusted for ank Sjglis o
stock dividends) for at least 5 consecutive tradiags during the five-year period ending Decemide2816.

The table below presents the status of the restristock units at December 31, 2012 and changésydine year ended December 31, 2012:

Weighted-
Restricted average grant-
Stock Units date fair value
Outstanding and unvested at January 1, 2012 35,28¢ $ 12.0(
Grantec 569,96( 12.7i
Vested 0 0.0c
Forfeited (62,607 12.6(
Outstanding and unvested at December 31, ; 542, 64! $ 12.7¢

Management Stock Purchase P

The Bancorp initiated a Management Stock Purchasgr&#m (MSPP) in 2010 where certain employees wiezed an option to purchase
shares of common stock at $1.00 per share for greggte issuance of 233,333 shares of common stbekMSPP offers vested in accorda
with the plan document in the third quarter of 2@&0result of the acquisition of USA Bank on Jul®010. The Bancorp’s common stock had
a market value of $10.50 at the offer date and emsation expense of $1.8 million was recorded@sgonent of salaries and benefits du
the year ended December 31, 2010. In December 204 @ffering period ended, and 233,333 shareswincon stock were issued.
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NOTE 14 — INCOME TAXES
The components of income tax (benefit) expense agffellows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
(dollars in thousand:
Current $16,00: $ 4,56 $2,91¢
Deferred (3,73)) (2,726 1,817
Total $12,27:  $1,83  $4,73]

Effective tax rates differ from the federal statytoate of 35%, for the years ended 2012 and 208134% for the year ended 2010, which is
applied to income before income tax expense dtiestdollowing:

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
% of % of % of
pretax pretax pretax
Amount income Amount income Amount income
(dollars in thousand:

Federal income tax at statutory r $12,63. 35.0% $2,05¢ 35.0% $9,55Z 34.0%
State income ta 184 0.51 64 1.0¢ 20¢ 0.74
Tax-exempt interes (85) (0.29 (14 (0.29 (74) (0.27)
Interest disallowanc 4 0.01 3 0.0t 4 0.0z
Bank-owned life insuranc (466) (1.29 (490 (8.39) (67) (0.29)
Recordation (reversal) of valuation allowat 0 0.0C 0 0.0C (6,608 (23.5))
Other 4 0.01 21¢ 3.71 1,712 6.0¢

Effective income tax rat $12,27. 34.0% $1,83t 31.2% $4,73] 16.8%

Deferred income taxes reflect temporary differerindbe recognition of revenue and expenses forgprrting and financial statement
purposes, principally because certain items, sadhaallowance for loan losses and loan feesesmagnized in different periods for financial
reporting and tax return purposes. A valuationvedince has not been established for deferred t@tsas®ealization of the deferred tax assets
dependent on generating sufficient taxable incohitbough realization is not assured, managemetrigwes it is more likely than not that all of
the deferred tax asset will be realized. Defereedaissets are recorded in other assets.

The Bancorp accounts for income taxes under thditiamethod of accounting for income taxes. Thedme tax accounting guidance results
in two components of income tax expense: curredtdmierred. Current income tax expense reflecesstéx be paid or refunded for the current
period by applying the provisions of the enactedldsv to the taxable income or excess of deductomes revenues. The Bancorp determines
deferred income taxes using the liability (or balasheet) method. Under this method, the net defeax asset or liability is based on the tax
effects of the differences between the book andbéeses of assets and liabilities, and enacted elsangax rates and laws are recognized in th
period in which they occur.

A tax position is recognized if it is more likelyan not, based on the technical merits, that thedaition will be realized or sustained upon
examination. The term more likely than not mealikedihood of more than 50 percent; the terms exediand upon examination also include
resolution of the related appeals or litigationgass, if any. A tax position that meets the mdtehi-than-not recognition threshold is initially
and subsequently measured as the largest amotax bénefit that has a greater than 50 percenthiked of being realized upon settlement
with a taxing authority that has full knowledgeatifrelevant information. The determination of whet or not a tax position has met the more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold considers thets, circumstances, and information availablhateporting date and is subject to
management’s judgment.
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NOTE 14 — INCOME TAXES - (continued)

December 31

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for loan losse $ 9,04: $ 5,261
Net unrealized losses on securil 0 132
Impairment charge on securiti 0 17t
OREO expense 147 437
Nonr-accrual interes 3,15: 2,64¢
Net operating losse 2,27¢ 2,60¢
Deferred compensatic 2,42: 1,09C
Fair value adjustments on acquisitic 2,11¢ 1,952
Other 60€ 63¢
Total deferred tax asse 19,76¢ 14,94:
Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax basis discount on acquisitic (7,139 (7,739
Net unrealized gains on securit (579 0
Deferred loan cost (1,509 (447)
Bank premises and equipme (1,009 (230
Other (400 (429

Total deferred tax liabilitie (10,627 (8,82¢)

Net deferred tax ass $ 9,141 $ 6,11°F

The Bancorp had approximately $6.5 million of feaderet operating loss carryovers at December 312 2at expire beginning in 2023
through 2031.

The Bancorp and its subsidiary are subject to fé@eral income tax as well as income tax of varitases primarily in the mid-Atlantic region
of the U.S. Years that remain open for potentigiaw by the Internal Revenue Service and the statieg authorities are 2009 through 2011.
Total amount of interest and penalties for the yesded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 amown$gG00, $30,000 and $0, respectiv
and is included in other non-interest expense.

NOTE 15 — TRANSACTIONS WITH EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, DIR ECTORS AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

The Bancorp has had, and may be expected to hdke fture, banking transactions in the ordinayrse of business with its executive
officers, directors, principal shareholders, thigimediate families and affiliated companies (comipoeferred to as related parties), on the
same terms, including interest rates and collatasthose prevailing at the time for comparalaledactions with others. The activity relating
to loans to such persons was as follows:

For the Years Ended December 3]

2012 2011 201(
(dollars in thousand:
Balance— January 1 $ 3,657 $ 0 $0
Additions 14 3,66( 0
Repayment (399 3 0
Other Change 0 0 0
Balance — December 31 $ 3,27 $ 3,65 $0
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NOTE 15 — TRANSACTIONS WITH EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, DIR ECTORS AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS — (continued)

Some current directors and executive officers efBlancorp and entities or organizations in whi@ytivere executive officers or the equiva
or owners of more than 10% of the equity were austs of and had transactions with or involving Baencorp in the ordinary course of
business during the fiscal year ended Decembe2(B12. None of these transactions involved amoumgxcess of 5% of the Bancorp’s gross
revenues during 2012 nor was the Bancorp indelbtedhy of the foregoing persons or entities in agregate amount in excess of 5% of the
Bancorp’s total consolidated assets at Decembe2@®12. Additional transactions with such persorts emtities may be expected to take place
in the ordinary course of business in the future.

On June 30, 2010, the Bancorp extended a termitodne principal amount of $5.0 million to Atlant@@oast Financial Corporation, which is
the holding company for Atlantic Coast Bank. Thieding transaction was in the ordinary course eBhncorp’s business, made on
substantially the same terms, including interegtsrand collateral, as those prevailing at the foneomparable transactions with other non-
affiliated customers, and did not involve more tlta® normal risk of collectibility or present otharfavorable features. The Bancorp sold the
full amount of the term loan to accredited investorAugust 2010. Two of the Bancorp’s directord haaterial interests in this

transaction: $500,000 of the loan was participateal director and $2.0 million of the loan was gvhted to a company for which a directo
the Bank’s is a managing member.

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar@ith@Bancorp has paid approximately $394,000, $8®Mand $300,000, respectively to
Clipper Magazine and its division, Spencer AdvéertjidMarketing as well as Jaxxon Promotions, Indi#ector of the Bancorp is the Chief
Executive Officer of Clipper Magazine, an affiliasd€Gannett Co., Inc., and a 25% shareholder afa@a®Promotions, Inc.

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 ar® # Bancorp has paid approximately $6,400, $l0lahd $42,000 to Jastrem Premium
Landscapes. An immediate family member of an Exeeice President of the Bank is the sole proprietf Jastrem Premium Landscapes.
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NOTE 16 — FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SH EET RISK

The Bancorp is a party to financial instrumentshwatf-balance sheet risk in the normal course aiiless to meet the financing needs of its
customers. These financial instruments include caments to extend credit and letters of credit. §hmstruments involve, to varying
degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of theust recognized in the consolidated balance sheets

The Bancorp’s exposure to credit loss in the esénbnperformance by the other party to the finahicistrument for commitments to extend
credit is represented by the contractual amoutiade instruments. The Bancorp uses the same paiites in making commitments and
conditional obligations as it does for on-balanveet instruments.

The following financial instruments were outstanglimhose contract amounts represent credit risk:

December 31

2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:
Commitments to fund loar $136,00° $106,22°
Unfunded commitments to fund mortgage warehousas! 428,40( 294,68:
Unfunded commitments under lines of cre 87,22( 66,93¢
Letters of credi 3,06¢ 1,37¢

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totteactustomer as long as there is no violatioanyf condition established in the

contract. Since many of the commitments are expdctexpire without being drawn upon, the total atitment amounts do not necessarily
represent future cash requirements. Mortgage wasshlman commitments are agreements to purchasgagerloans from mortgage bankers
that agree to purchase the loans back in a shoddpef time. These commitments generally fluctuatenthly as existing loans are repurchase
by the mortgage bankers and new loans are purchwystbe Bancorp.

Commitments generally have fixed expiration datestber termination clauses and may require paymkatfee. The Bancorp evaluates each
customer’s credit worthiness on a case-by-casa.bBlse amount of collateral obtained, if deemecdeasary by the Bancorp upon extension of
credit, is based on management’s credit evaluaGofiateral held varies but may include personal@nmercial real estate, accounts
receivable, inventory and equipment.

Outstanding letters of credit written are condiiboommitments issued by the Bancorp to guarahe@érformance of a customer to a third
party. The majority of these standby letters oflidrexpire within the next year. The credit riskdtved in issuing letters of credit is essentially
the same as that involved in extending other lmanmitments. The Bancorp requires collateral sufppthese letters of credit as deemed
necessary. Management believes that the procee¢gisieth through a liquidation of such collateral eblbe sufficient to cover the maximum
potential amount of future payments required urtdercorresponding guarantees. The current amouhedfabilities as of December 31, 2012
and 2011 for guarantees under standby letterseditassued is not material.

NOTE 17 — REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank and the Bancorp are subject to variouslasgyy capital requirements administered by thieefal banking agencies. Failure to meet
the minimum capital requirements can initiate dartaandatory and possibly additional discretionacgions by regulators that, if undertaken,
could have a direct material effect on the Bancfiiiancial statements. Under capital adequacyedjuiels and the regulatory framework for
prompt corrective action, the Bank and Bancorp rmuestt specific capital guidelines that involve ditative measures of their assets, liabili
and certain off-balance sheet items, as calculate@r the regulatory accounting practices. Thetapmounts and classification are also
subject to qualitative judgments by the regulatdysut components, risk weightings and other fac@msmpt corrective action provisions are
not applicable to bank holding companies.

Quantitative measures established by regulati@nsare capital adequacy require the Bank and Bprioanaintain minimum amounts and
ratios (set forth in the following table) of tothd Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets andief T capital to average assets (as defined in th
regulations) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011thleaBank and Bancorp meet all capital adequaayirements to which they are subject.

The Bank experienced rapid loan growth during thalfdays of 2012. During the standard closing psscof the Bank’s December 2012
financial statements, management determined oradp®0, 2013 that the rapid loan growth resulted ireduction in the Bank’s capital ratios,
causing the Bank to become adequately capitaligedt Becember 31, 2012. Management immediatel\steared sufficient capital from the
Bancorp to the Bank, returning the Bank to wellitajzed status. Sufficient cash is maintainechatBancorp to ensure that the Bank remains
well capitalized, and management remains commitie¢dking all steps necessary to ensure that bettBancorp and the Bank remain well
capitalized going forward. Since the Bank was adégly capitalized at December 31, 2012, reguladémgroval is required to accept, renew or
roll over any brokered deposits. Effective Janugrg013, the interest rate paid for deposits biitintgons that are less than well capitalized is
limited to 75 basis points above the national fatesimilar products unless the institution cansup to the FDIC that prevailing rates in its
market area exceed the national average.
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NOTE 17 — REGULATORY MATTERS — (continued)

To be categorized as well capitalized, an instituthust maintain minimum total risk based, Tieisk based and Tier 1 leveraged ratios as se
forth in the following table:

To Be Well Capitalized

Under
Prompt Corrective
For Capital Adequacy Action
Actual Purposes Provisions
(Dollars in thousands Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 201z
Total capital (to risk weighted assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $289,03! 11.2¢% = $205,44: = 8.(% = N/A N/A
Customers Bank $244,71( 9.5% = $205,44: = 8.(% = $256,80. = 10.(%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $262,71¢ 10.27% = $102,72: = 4.(% = N/A N/A
Customers Bank $218,39: 8.5(% = $102,72: = 4.(% = $154,08. = 6.C%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $262,71¢ 9.3(% = $11293¢ = 4.(% = N/A N/A
Customers Bank $218,39:  7.786 = $112,89. = 4.(% = $141,11! = 5.C%
As of December 31, 2011:
Total capital (to risk weighted assets
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $157,70: 11.1% = $113,34t = 8.(% = N/A N/A
Customers Bank $152,75¢ 10.7¢&% > $113,34t = 8.(% = $141,68. = 10.(%
Tier 1 capital (to risk weighted assets
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $141,86¢ 10.01% = $ 56,67 = 4.(% = N/A N/A
Customers Bank $136,87( 9.6€% = $ 56,67 = 4.C% = $ 85,01( = 6.C%
Tier 1 capital (to average assets)
Customers Bancorp, Inc. $141,86¢ 7.3% = $ 7698 = 4.(% = N/A N/A
Customers Bank $136,87( 7.11% = $ 76,98t = 4.(% = $ 96,23. = 5.C%
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NOTE 18 — DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Bancorp uses fair value measurements to réardalue adjustments to certain assets and tadis the fair value of its financial
instruments. FASB ASC 825 inancial Instruments requires disclosure of the estimated fair valuamentity’s assets and liabilities
considered to be financial instruments. For thed®gm as for most financial institutions, the méajoof its assets and liabilities are considered
to be financial instruments. However, many of sinstruments lack an available trading market asadtarized by a willing buyer and willing
seller engaging in an exchange transaction. Fovédile disclosure purposes, the Bancorp utilizathin fair value measurement criteria unde
the FASB ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures explained below.

The following methods and assumptions were usestimate the fair values of the Bancorp’s finaniriatruments at December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2011:

Cash and cash equivalents:
The carrying amounts reported in the balance gbeetsh and short-term instruments approximatsdlassets’ fair values.

Investment securities:

The fair value of investment securities availaldedale and held-to-maturity are determined byiobtg quoted market prices on nationally
recognized securities exchanges (Level 1), matioing (Level 2), which is a mathematical technigised widely in the industry to value debt
securities without relying exclusively on quotedrke prices for the specific securities but rathyerrelying on the securities’ relationship to
other benchmark quoted prices, or externally deperlanodels that use unobservable inputs due teelinair no market activity of the
instrument (Level 3).

The carrying amount of restricted stock approxirmdiéér value, and considers the limited marketgbdf such securities.

Interest-only strips:

To obtain fair values, quoted market prices arelufsavailable. Quotes are generally not availdbtenterests that continue to be held by the
transferor, so the Bancorp generally estimatesvidire based on the future expected cash flowsattd using managemesntiest estimates
the key assumptions, credit losses and discouss,rabmmensurate with the risks involved. At Decen®i, 2012, the Bancorp no longer had
interest-only strips.

Loans held for sale:

Loans originated with the intent to sell in the@®tary market are carried at the lower of cosaarfalue, determined in the aggregate. These
loans are sold on a non-recourse basis with saegyigleased. Gains and losses on the sale of teaognized in earnings are measured based
on the difference between proceeds received anchtfiging amount of the loans, inclusive of defdrogigination fees and costs, if any.

As a result of changes in events and circumstamcdsvelopments regarding managemewmtéw of the foreseeable future, loans not origid
or acquired with the intent to sell may subseqye! designated as held for sale. These loansaarsférred to the held for sale portfolio at the
lower of amortized cost or fair value.

The fair value of loans receivable held for salkased on commitments on hand from investors withérnsecondary market for loans with
similar characteristics.

Loans held for sale: Mortgage Warehouse Loans:

Mortgage Warehouse Loans are classified as helsieerand are carried at fair value on the balaheet. The fair value of mortgage
warehouse loans is the amount of cash initiallyaaded to fund the mortgage, plus accrued interesfees, as specified in the respective
agreements. The loan is used by the mortgage congsashort term bridge financing between the fugdihmortgage loans and the sale of the
loans to an investor. Changes in fair value areerpected to be recognized since at inceptionefrdmsaction the underlying loans have
already been sold to an approved investor or tlaee bheen hedged by the mortgage company. Additigrtaé interest rate is variable, and the
transaction is shoterm, with an average life of 17 days from purchiassale. There are no differences between theeggtg fair value and tl
aggregate unpaid principal balance and no gaioss from changes in fair value were recorded inrime during 2012.

We elected the fair value option for warehouse ilegdransactions documented under a Master Repsechgreement originated after July 1,
2012 in order to more accurately represent thet$bom nature of the transaction and its inhereadic risk. Prior to this accounting election,
mortgage warehouse loans were classified as Lemasvable, net. For additional information about election of the fair value option refer to
“NOTE 3 — “SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Accouimg Changes Fhe Fair Value Optiofi, in this Form 10-K.
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CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 18 — DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (continued)

Loans receivable, net:

The fair values of loans are estimated using distamlicash flow analyses, using market rates atdlance sheet date that reflect the credit an
interest rate-risk inherent in the loans. Projedt#tdre cash flows are calculated based upon comimbmaturity or call dates, projected
repayments and prepayments of principal. Generaltyariable rate loans that reprice frequentlg anth no significant change in credit risk,
fair values are based on carrying values.

Impaired loans:

Impaired loans are those that are accounted foerdRASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASCH3} Contingencies in which the
Bancorp has measured impairment generally basdidediair value of the loan’s collateral. Fair valagenerally determined based upon
independent third-party appraisals of the propgrte discounted cash flows based upon the expecte@eds. These assets are included as
Level 3 fair values, based upon the lowest levéhpiit that is significant to the fair value measuents.

FDIC loss sharing receivable:

The FDIC loss sharing receivable is measured segpafaom the related covered assets, as it iaotractually embedded in the assets and i
not transferable with the assets should the absetsld. Fair value is estimated using projectesth dmws related to the loss sharing agreen
based on the expected reimbursements for losseg ts applicable loss share percentages and tineagsd true-up payment. These cash
flows are discounted to reflect the estimated tgrofithe receipt of the loss share reimbursemem fhe FDIC.

Other real estate owned:

The fair value is determined using appraisals, tvini@y be discounted based on managemmeatiew and changes in market conditions (L
3 Inputs). All appraisals must be performed in adaace with the Uniform Standards of Professiorgbrisal Practice (“USPAP”Appraisal:
are certified to the Bancorp and performed by appra on the Bancorp’s approved list of appraigevaluations are completed by a person
independent of management.

Accrued interest receivable and payable:
The carrying amount of accrued interest receivahltaccrued interest payable approximates itsvédire.

Deposits:

The fair values disclosed for deposits (e.g., #geand noninterest checking, passbook savingshaneéy market accounts) are, by definition,
equal to the amount payable on demand at the iegatate (i.e., their carrying amounts). Fair valéar fixed-rate certificates of deposit are
estimated using a discounted cash flow calculatiahapplies interest rates currently being offénetthe market on certificates to a schedule o
aggregated expected monthly maturities on time siepo

Federal funds purchased:
Due to the short term nature of Fed Funds purchakedarrying amount is considered a reasonaktifeae of fair value.

Borrowings:

Borrowings consist of long-term and short-term FHhdsances. For the short-term borrowings, the oagrgmount is considered a reasonable
estimate of fair value. Fair values of long-termlLB-Hadvances are estimated using discounted cashaff@lysis, based on quoted prices for
new FHLB advances with similar credit risk charastees, terms and remaining maturity. These prigatsined from this active market
represent a market value that is deemed to représetransfer price if the liability were assunigda third party.

Subordinated debt:

Fair values of subordinated debt are estimatedyudistounted cash flow analysis, based on markes currently offered on such debt with
similar credit risk characteristics, terms and rigrimg maturity.

Off-balance sheet financial instruments:

Fair values for the Bancorp’s off-balance shearirial instruments (lending commitments and letdéicredit) are based on fees currently
charged in the market to enter into similar agre@s)daking into account the remaining terms ofageements and the counterparties’ credit
standing.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 18 — DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (continued)

The estimated fair values of the Bancorp’s financistruments were as follows at December 31, 28i® December 31, 2011.

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalel
Investment securities, available for s
Loans held for sale (:
Loans receivable, ni

FDIC loss sharing receivah
Restricted stoc

Accrued interest receivab
Liabilities:

Deposits

Federal funds purchas
Other borrowing:
Subordinated del

Accrued interest payab

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalel
Investment securities, available for sale
Investment securities, held to matui
Loans held for sal

Loans receivable, net (

FDIC loss sharing receivak
Restricted stoc

Accrued interest receivab
Liabilities:

Deposits

Federal funds purchas
Subordinated det

Borrowings

Accrued interest payab

(1) Includes an interest only strip security of $2,€

(2) During the third quarter of 2012, we electee fhir value option for certain warehouse lendiagn$actions originated after July 1, 2012.

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 20:

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for Significant
Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Carrying Estimated Assets Inputs Inputs
Amount Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(dollars in thousands
$ 186,01t $ 186,01t $186,01¢ $ 0 $ 0
129,09: 129,09: 6 129,08 0
1,439,88 1,439,88 0 1,439,88 0
1,298,633 1,307,04 0 0 1,307,04
12,34: 12,34: 0 12,34: 0
30,16 30,16 0 30,16 0
5,79( 5,79( 5,79( 0 0
$2,440,81 $2,674,76! $219,68" $2,455,07 $ 0
5,00( 5,00( 5,00( 0 0
471,00( 471,43. 0 471,43. 0
2,00( 2,00( 0 2,00( 0
1,53( 1,53( 1,53( 0 0
December 31, 201
Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value

(dollars in thousand:

$ 73,57( $ 73,57
79,13] 79,13]
319,54° 330,80
174,99¢ 174,99¢
1,326,36. 1,338,48
13,07" 13,07"
21,81¢ 21,81¢
5,011 5,011
$1,583,18! $1,610,97
5,00( 5,00(
2,00C 2,00(
331,00( 332,84
1,47¢ 1,47¢

As a result of this election, all qualified warebeuending transactions at December 31, 2012, aaeunted for at fair value and
classified as loans held for sale. Warehouse lgnalansactions at December 31, 2011 were classifiddans receivable, ni
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 18 — DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (continued)

In accordance with FASB ASC 82Bair Value Measurements and Disclosurégke fair value of a financial instrument is thiéepg that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfiebdity in an orderly transaction between margatticipants at the measurement date. Fair \
is best determined based upon quoted market ptittegever, in many instances, there are no quota#leharices for the Bancorp’s various
financial instruments. In cases where quoted maokieés are not available, fair values are baseelstimates using present value or other
valuation techniques. Those techniques are sigmifig affected by the assumptions used, includimgdiscount rate and estimates of future
cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimatessymot be realized in an immediate settlement efitistrument.

The fair value guidance provides a consistent @&fimof fair value, focusing on an exit price in arderly transaction (that is, not a forced
liquidation or distressed sale) between markeig@pants at the measurement date under currentanadkditions. If there has been a
significant decrease in the volume and level ofvigtfor the asset or liability, a change in vaiioa technique or the use of multiple valuation
techniques may be appropriate. In such instanetsrrdining the price at which willing market paipients would transact at the measurement
date under current market conditions depends ofatfie and circumstances and requires the usgwifisant judgment. The fair value is a
reasonable point within the range that is mostasgmtative of fair value under current market ctoowis.

Level 1.  Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets thahecessible at the measurement date for identinedstricted assets or
liabilities.

Level 2. Quoted prices in markets that are not active, putisithat are observable either directly or indiyedor substantially the full
term of the asset or liabilit

Level 3. Prices or valuation techniques that require inthas are both significant to the fair value measwet and unobservable (i.
supported with little or no market activit

An asset’s level within the fair value hierarchyp@sed on the lowest level of input that is sigiifit to the fair value measurement.

For financial assets measured at fair value orcarneg and non-recurring basis, the fair value saieaments by level within the fair value
hierarchy used at December 31, 2012 and Decemh@031 were as follows:

December 31, 201,
Fair Value Measurements at the End of the Reporting

Period Using
Quoted
Prices in
Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(dollars in thousand:
Recurring fair value measurements
Available-for-sale debt securitie
Mortgage-backed securitie $ 0 $ 104,13 $ 0 $ 104,13
Corporate note 0 24,95:; 0 24,95:;
Equities 6 0 0] 6
Mortgage warehouse loans held for ¢ 0 1,248,93! 0 1,248,93
Total recurring fair value measureme $ 6 $ 1,378,02; $ 0 $ 1,378,02
Nonrecurring fair value measurements
Impaired loans, net of specific reserves of
$4,625 $ 0 $ 0 $ 11,00 $ 11,00¢
Other real estate ownt 0 0 5,731 5,73i
Total nonrecurring fair value measureme $ 0 $ 0 $ 16,74.  $ 16,74:
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NOTE 18 — DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (continued)

December 31, 2011
Fair Value Measurements at the End of the Reporting

Period Usinc
Quoted
Prices in
Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(dollars in thousand:
Recurring fair value measurements
Available-for-sale debt securitie
U.S. Treasury and government age $ 0 $ 1,001 $ 0 $ 1,001
Mortgage¢backed securities (: 0 53,39¢ 2,89/ 56,29:
Asse-backed securitie 0 627 0 627
Corporate note 0 0 19,21 19,21
Municipal securitie: 0 2,00( 0 2,00(
Total recurring fair value measureme $ 0 $ 57,02¢ $ 22,117 § 79,13:
Nonrecurring fair value measurements
Impaired loans, net of specific reserves of
$5,676 $ 0 $ 0 $ 15,57¢ $ 15,57¢
Other real estate ownt 0 0 2,64¢ 2,64¢
Total nonrecurring fair value measureme $ 0 $ 0 $ 18,227 § 18,22

(1) Includes an interest only strip security of $2,&
The changes in Level 3 assets and liabilities nrealsat fair value on a recurring basis are sumradras follows:

December 31, 201

Mortgage-
backed Corporate
securities notes Total
(dollars in thousand:
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 2,89/ $ 19,217 $ 22,111
Total gains included in other comprehensive incdbedore taxes 0 73t 73t
Amortization included in interest incon (291) 0 (297)
Settlement: (2,609 0 (2,607)
Purchase 0 5,00( 5,00(
Transfers out of Level 3 (: 0 (24,957) (24,957)
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
December 31, 201
Mortgage-
backed Corporate
securities notes Total
(dollars in thousand:
Balance at January 1, 20 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
Total losses included in other comprehensive inc@veéore taxes 0 (789) (789
Purchase 2,89¢ 20,00( 22,89«
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 2,89/ $19,21° $22,11;

(1) The Bancorp’s policy is to recognize transteesnveen levels when events or circumstances watnamgfers. In the fourth quarter of
2012, the Bancorg’management, made the determination that theperade notes were being valued based on inputathaibservabl
either directly or indirectly for substantially tifal term of the assets (matrix pricing). As aukésthese corporate notes were transferred
to Level 2.
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NOTE 18 — DISCLOSURES ABOUT FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — (continued)

The following table summarizes financial assets famehcial liabilities measured at fair value adDefcember 31, 2012 for which the Bancorp
utilized Level 3 inputs to measure fair value:

Quantitative Information about Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Fair value
Valuation Unobservable Range (weightec
December 31, 201, estimate technique input average) (3)
(dollars in
thousands
Impaired loan: $11,00¢ Collateral appraisal ( Liquidation expenses (  —3% to—-8% (5.5%
Other real estate ownt 5,73 Collateral appraisal ( Liquidation expenses (  —-3% to—-8% 5.5%

(1) Obtained from independent third-parties appdoaepraisers. Appraisals are current and in comgdiavith credit policy. The Bancorp
does not discount appraise

(2) Fair value is adjusted for costs to s

(3) Presented as a percentage of the value determynappnaisal

The above information should not be interpretedrasestimate of the fair value of the entire Bancinge a fair value calculation is only
provided for a limited portion of the Bancospassets. Due to a wide range of valuation teclesiqnd the degree of subjectivity used in ma
the estimates, comparisons between the Bancorgctodures and those of other companies may notaaimgful.
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NOTE 19 — CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY

On September 17, 2011, Customers Bank and Custddaerorp, Inc. completed a Plan of Merger and raoization pursuant to which all of
the issued and outstanding common stock of the Bartkexchanged on a three-to-one basis for shasesronon stock and non-voting
common stock of the Bancorp.

Balance Sheet

December 31
2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Assets

Cash in subsidiary bar $ 44,67¢ $ 4.99¢
Investment securities available for sale, at falue 6 0
Investment in and receivable due from subsid 225,15( 142,74¢
Other asset 12 0
Total assets $269,84° $147,74¢

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Other liabilities 372 0
Total liabilities 372 0
Shareholders equity 269,47" 147,74
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $269,84 $147,74¢

Income Statement

Year Ended December 31
2012 2011
(dollars in thousand:

Non-interest expense

Total other expense $ 2,70¢ $ 0
Loss before income tax bene (2,70¢) 0
Income tax benefi 94¢ 0
Loss before undistributed income of subsidia (1,760 0
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiar 25,57¢ 4,03¢

Net income 23,81¢ 4,03¢
Dividends on preferred stox 0 (44

Net income available to common shareholde!l $ 23,81¢ $ 3,99(
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NOTE 19 — CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY — (continued)

Statement of Cash Flow:
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by
operating activities

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidii

Increase in other asst¢

Increase in other liabilitie

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of investment securities available fler
Payments for investments in and advances to suaiss
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from issuance of common st
Purchase of treasury sto
Repayment of TARI
Dividends paic
Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Beginning
Cash and Cash Equivalent— Ending
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Year Ended December 31

2012

2011

(dollars in thousand:

$ 23,81¢

(25,57
(12)
372

(1,400

(6)
(53,500
(53,506

94,58¢

0

0
0
94,58¢
39,68(
4,99¢

$ 44,67¢

$ 4,03«

(4,039
0

0
0

0
(4,420)
(4,420)

13,00(
(500)
(3,037)
(44)
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NOTE 20 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDI TED)

2012
Quarter Ended December 31 September 3( June 30 March 31
(dollars in thousand:

Interest incomt $ 27,24 $ 27,96 $ 19,70( $ 18,63¢
Interest expens 5,58( 5,407 5,54¢ 5,22¢
Net interest incom 21,66 22,55t 14,15: 13,41(
Provision for loan losse 1,617 10,11¢ 2,73¢ 1,80(
Nor-interest incom 4,482 9,77¢ 13,23¢ 3,73¢
Nor-interest expense 13,44 12,00° 14,574 10,62:
Income before income tax 11,08° 10,21( 10,07¢ 4,71F
Provision for income taxe 3,521 3,57¢ 3,57¢ 1,60:
Net income applicable to common shareholi $  7,56¢ $ 6,63€ $ 6,50« $ 311C
Earnings per common sha

Basic $ 0.41 $ 0.5: $ 0.57 $ 0.27

Diluted 0.4C 0.51 0.5€ 0.27

2011
Quarter Ended December 31 September 3( June 30 March 31
(dollars in thousand:

Interest incomt $ 19,44( $ 15,35 $ 14,64 $ 11,80:
Interest expens 5,42 5,69¢ 5,79( 5,55¢
Net interest incom 14,017 9,661 8,857 6,24¢
Provision for loan losse 2,90(C 90C 2,85( 2,80(
Nor-interest incom 4,34¢ 3,24; 2,64 3,19¢
Nor-interest expense 10,70¢ 8,72¢ 8,43¢ 9,01
Income (loss) before income tax 4,75¢€ 3,27¢ 21C (2,372)
Provision (benefit) for income tax 1,53¢ 93( 65 (69€)
Net income (loss $ 3,22 $ 2,34t $ 14& $ (1,676
Preferred stock dividenc 39 5 0 0
Net income (loss) applicable to common sharehol $ 3,181 $ 2,34 $ 14E $ (1,676
Earnings per common sha

Basic $ 0.2¢ $ 0.24 $ 0.01 $ (0.19)

Diluted 0.27 0.2¢ 0.01 (0.13)

NOTE 21 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Consummation of the following transactions is cogéint upon a number of conditions including, butlimited to, receipt of various
regulatory approvals.

Acacia Federal Savings Bank Acquisit

On June 21, 2012, the Bancorp announced the ertnaidefinitive agreement to acquire Acacia Fddeaaings Bank (Acacia) located in Fi
Church, Virginia from two subsidiaries of Ameritslsitual Holding Company (Ameritas), pursuant to ttiens and conditions of an Agreem
dated June 20, 2011, as amended mostly receniieoamber 18, 2012, January 31, 2013 and Februa3048. Pursuant to the terms of the
agreement, the Bancorp will acquire 100% of thekstdf Acacia from Ameritas Mutual Holding Compary & total purchase price of $65.0
million paid in Cash of $10.3 million and Voting @onon Stock (resulting in a 4.9% voting ownershigrast in the Bancorp), Class B Non-
Voting Common Stock (resulting in up to 14.9% tatainmon ownership interest (voting and non-vottaging into account outstanding
securities convertible into common stock) in the&ap. The Bancorp expects to issue its Voting Com&tock and Class B Non-Voting
Common Stock at 115% of GAAP book value at the tiohelosing. It is likely that the regulatory authi@s will require a change in the
composition of the consideration in the Acacia $astion, including the elimination of the Serie®r@ferred Stock, and a reduction in the leve
of Voting Common Stock to be issued to the sellers.

The Bancorp will not be acquiring any non-perforgiioans, other real estate owned or other assatté theems to possess higher risk. In
addition, the Bancorp will not be responsible foy aeverance obligations, charges associated gtearly termination of the O.S.I.
technology contract or lease termination charge&catia’s corporate headquarters beyond one yéara€quisition will provide us with a
mortgage banking platform and will expand our pneseto the metro Washington, D.C. market that Axaeirves and is expected to occur in
the first half of 2013.
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NOTE 21 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS — (continued)

CMS Bancorp Acquisition

On August 10, 2012, Customers Bancorp Inc. annalutieentry into a definitive agreement to acquieemerger CMS Bancorp (CMS
Bancorp) located in White Plains, New York andrmatitely CMS Bank. CMS Bank, with five branches, ssrWestchester County, New York,
and the surrounding areas. The total transactibreva approximately $20.8 million, and the agreehprovides for CMS Bancorp
stockholders to receive shares of Customers Banaiiipg common stock based upon an exchange mbie tetermined as the quotient of
(i) the CMS Valuation, divided by (ii) the Custoraéraluation, with fractional shares to be cashed The “CMS Valuation'will be calculatec
as 95% of CMS Bancorp’s common stockholders’ eqgastyf the month end prior to the closing, while t8ustomers Valuation” will be
calculated as 125% of Customer Bancorp’s modiftedidholder equity as of the month end prior to iclgsModified stockholders’ equity is
defined as June 30, 2012 book value plus additmnstained earnings through the month-end pri@idsing. Shares issued by Customers
Bancorp in capital raises and purchase accountjgstnents from any other acquisitions will notibbeluded in calculating modified
stockholders’ equity. By way of example, basedhlenNarch 31, 2012 book value per share of CMS Bgmand the June 30, 2012 modified
stockholders’ equity of Customers Bancorp, $11.7% $13.99, respectively, the exchange ratio woel@6383. The foregoing calculation is
provided as an example only, and does not purpdyetthe actual exchange ratio. The actual exchaatigewill likely be different at closing.

The acquisition of CMS will enhance the Bancorp&aNYork franchise. Closing of the CMS Bancorp merggich is subject to regulatory
approval, customary closing conditions and the eygdrof CMS Bancorp’s stockholders, is expecteddeur in 2013.

New England Commercial Lending Acquisit

On February 6, 2013, we announced the entry intefiaitive agreement to acquire certain commeioahs from Michigan based Flagstar
Bank. Under the terms of the agreement, Customan& ®ill acquire $187.6 million in commercial loaammitments, of which $150.9 millic
is currently outstanding. As part of the agreemant] subject to receipt of customary thiraty consents, Customers Bank will also assum
leases for two of Flagstarcommercial lending offices in the Northeast. Phechase price is expected to be 98.7% of loarstanding and tr
transaction is expected to close within the fitsarger of 2013.
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MANAGEMENT’'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT S AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of Customers Bancorp, Inc. (the “CusterBancorp”) is responsible for the integrity arujestivity of all information
presented in this report. The consolidated findrat&tements were prepared in conformity with Ushif¢ates generally accepted accounting
principles. Management believes that the cons@alfihancial statements of Customers Bancorp,faidy reflect the form and substance of
transactions and that the financial statementlyfedpresent Customers Bancorp’s financial posiéiad results of operations. Management ha
included in Customers Bancorp’s financial statem@nbounts that are based on estimates and judgmkicis it believes are reasonable unde|
the circumstances.

The independent registered public accounting fiflRarenteBeard LLC audits Customers Bancorp’s dateted financial statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Compaepunting Oversight Board (United States).

The Board of Directors of Customers Bancorp ha8udit Committee composed of three independent Dirsc The Committee meets
periodically with financial management, the intdraaditors and the independent registered pubktowating firm to review accounting,
internal control, auditing, corporate governance famancial reporting matters. The Audit Committeeesponsible for the engagement of the
independent auditors. The independent auditorsraachal auditors have access to the Audit Comamitte

Management of Customers Bancorp, Inc. is respan$iblestablishing and maintaining adequate interoatrol over financial reporting,
as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13&-18nder the supervision and with the participatof management, including the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, wentlucted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofirmernal control over financial reporting
based on the framework internal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway
Commission. Based on our evaluation under the fveoriein Internal Control — Integrated Frameworknanagement concluded that our
internal control over financial reporting was effee as of December 31, 2012. Management's asses@hthe effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting as of December&112 has been audited by ParenteBeard LLC, apamttent registered public accounting
firm, as stated in their report which is includeatdin.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Aecunting and Financial Disclosure
None

Item 9A.  Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProceduiWe have established disclosure controls and preesda ensure that material information
relating to us, including our consolidated subsid® is made known to the officers who certify éimancial reports and to other members of
senior management and the Board of Directors.

We carried out an evaluation, under the superviaimhwith the participation of our management,udiig our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, of the design and opergtiifectiveness of our disclosure controls and @doces, as defined in Exchange Act Rule
15d-15(e). Based upon that evaluation, our Chiefchtive Officer and Chief Financial Officer conchutithat, as of December 31, 2012, our
disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Management’s Responsibility for Financial Stateraemtd Report on Internal Control over Financial &t8pg are included in Part Il, Item 7,
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,”ardncorporated by reference herein.

Our independent registered public accounting fiParenteBeard LLC, also attested to, and reportethereffectiveness of internal control c
financial reporting. ParenteBeard LLC's attestatieport is incorporated herein by reference.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin

As of the date of this Report, there have beenhamges in the Bancorp’s internal control over feiahreporting that have materially affected
or are reasonably likely to materially affect thenBorp’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B.  Other Information

On January 30, 2013, the Bancorp entered into Ghah@ontrol Agreements with each of Glenn Hedd® \Warrant Taylor (each, a “Change
of Control Agreement”)Under each Change of Control Agreement, the exezigientitled to certain payments if his employiristerminate:
other than for Cause or by the executive Good Reaseach case within one year after a Changeointr@l of the Bancorp. If these events
occur, the executive is entitled to a single lummgayment, subject to tax withholding obligatioois(i) two hundred percent (200%) of the
highest rate of base annual salary in effect ferekecutive during the twelve month period prioteionination of employment, and (ii) two
hundred percent (200%) of the average of the agégeannual cash performance bonuses earned byebetiwe during each of the three
preceding fiscal years. Each Change of Control A&gyent also provides for a reduction of the paymentke executive in order to avoid ex
taxes under Section 4999 of the Internal Revenude©@6 1986, as amended. Each Change of Controleffgeat contains non-competition,
non-solicitation and similar covenants that remaieffect for a period of twelve months followingrinination upon a Change in Control, as
well as covenants related to confidentiality ofgfetary information. The terms “Cause,” “Good R&as and “Change in Control” as used
herein have the definitions set forth in each CleamigControl Agreement.

The above summary of each Change of Control Agreeime general description only and is qualifiedts entirety by reference to the full
text of the respective agreements, copies of whiehattached hereto as Exhibits 10.29 and 10.8Dinaorporated by reference herein.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and CorpoeaGovernance

The information required by this Item will be inded in the Proxy Statement for the 2013 annual img@t the sections titled “Our Board of
Directors and Management,” and “Board Governanaad' is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensatic

The information required by this Item will be indied in the Proxy Statement for the 2013 annual imgét the section titled “Director
Compensation,” “Executive Officer Compensation” dBdard Governance,” and is incorporated hereimdfgrence.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficiamMders and Management and Related Shareholder Mat

The information required by this Item will be indied in the Proxy Statement for the 2013 annual imgé@t the Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management section, anccisidied in the section Equity Compensation Planrmédion set forth in Item 5. of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, and is incorporateceheby reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trandaas, and Director Independenc
The information required by this Item will be inded in the Proxy Statement for the 2013 annual img@t the section titled “Certain

Relationships and Related Transactions” and “B@uwdernance” and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servic

The information required by this Item will be indled in the Proxy Statement for the 2013 annual imgét the section titled “Proposal 2 —
Ratification of Appointment of Independent RegistePublic Accounting Firm,” and is incorporatedéirmy reference.
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Item 15.
(a)

(b)

(c)
Exhibit No.
2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

3.1
3.2
3.3

4.1

PART IV

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule

1. Financial Statemen
Consolidated financial statements are included ulidm 8 of Part Il of this Form 10-K.
2. Financial Statements Schedt

Financial statements schedules are omitted bethesequired information is either not applicalvlet required or is shown in
the respective financial statements or in the nitteeto.

Exhibits

Descriptior

Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated Septerithe?011, incorporated by reference to Exhibittd.the Customers
Bancorp Form -K filed with the SEC on September 22, 2(

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Augus2@B0, by and among Customers Bank, CustomersdBaniac.,
Berkshire Bank and Berkshire Bancorp, Inc., incoaped by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the CustonBanscorp Form S-1/A
filed with the SEC on January 13, 2C

Purchase and Assumption Agreement, dated as oBJ@@10, by and among Customers Bank, the FDIReagiver of USA
Bank, and the FDIC acting in its corporate capadityorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to thestmers Bancorp Form S-
1/A filed with the SEC on January 13, 2C

Purchase and Assumption Agreement, dated as oéi®@ept 17, 2010, by and among Customers Bank, th€ BB Receiver ¢
ISN Bank, and the FDIC acting in its corporate cdiyaincorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.4he Customers Bancorp
Form &-1/A filed with the SEC on January 13, 2C

Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, datesf April 27, 2011, by and among Berkshire Bancadng,, Berkshire
Bank, Customers Bancorp, Inc., and Customers Ban&rporated by reference to Exhibit 2.5 to thetGomers Bancorp Form
S-1/A filed with the SEC on June 13, 20

Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, datesf &eptember 16, 2011, by and among Berkshire @andnc.,
Berkshire Bank, Customers Bancorp, Inc., and CusterBank, incorporated by reference to Exhibittd.the Customers
Bancorp Form -K filed with the SEC on September 22, 2(

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 20, B@Hhd among Customers Bancorp, Inc., Acacia lniéarance Compan
and Ameritas Life Insurance Corp., incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 2.1 to the Customers BancamrR8-K filed with the
SEC on June 21, 20:

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Augus2Q02, by and between Customers Bancorp, IncCif8 Bancorp, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to thetGomers Bancorp Form-K filed with the SEC on August 10, 20.

Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement, dated Readmber 18, 2012, by and among Customers Banlcwrp Acacia Life
Insurance Company, and Ameritas Life Insurance Corporporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Ghestomers Bancorp
Form &K filed with the SEC on December 20, 2C

Amendment No. 2 to Stock Purchase Agreement, deged January 30, 2013, by and among CustomersoBarac., Acacia
Life Insurance Company, and Ameritas Life Insura@oep., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.thte Customers Bancao
Form &K filed with the SEC on January 31, 2C

Amendment No. 3 to Stock Purchase Agreement, deted February 28, 2013, by and among Customersdpninc., Acaci
Life Insurance Company, and Ameritas Life Insura@oep., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1h® Customers Bancao
Form &K filed with the SEC on March 4, 20:

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation e$tGmers Bancorp, Inc., incorporated by refereadexhibit 3.1 to the
Customers Bancorp Forn-K filed with the SEC on April 30, 201

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Customers Bancocp,incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 t® @Gustomers Bancorp
Form &K filed with the SEC on April 30, 201

Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restatditlas of Incorporation of Customers Bancorp, Jicorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Customers Bancam=-K filed with the SEC on July 2, 201

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation e$tGmers Bancorp, Inc., incorporated by refereadexhibit 3.1 to the
Customers Bancorp Forn-K filed with the SEC on April 30, 201
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Exhibit No.

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

10.1+

10.2+

10.3+

10.4+

10.5 +

10.6

10.7+

10.8

10.9

10.10+

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

Descriptior

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Customers Bancocp,incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 t® @Gustomers Bancorp
Form &K filed with the SEC on April 30, 201

Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restatditlas of Incorporation of Customers Bancorp, Jimcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Customers Bancam=-K filed with the SEC on July 2, 201

Specimen stock certificate of Customers Bancom, Woting Common Stock and Class B Non-Voting Comrfstock,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thetGomers Bancorp Form-1/A filed with the SEC on May 1, 201

Indenture, dated as of June 29, 2004, by and batiNees Century Bank and Wilmington Trust Companjatirg to Floating
Rate Subordinated Debt Securities Due 2014, incatpd by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the CustonBanscorp Form S-1 filed
with the SEC on April 22, 201

Form of Warrant issued to investors in New CenBayk’s March and February 2010 private offering¥)2 private offering,
and in partial exchange for New Century Bank’s shanf 10% Series A Non-Cumulative Perpetual CoiblerPreferred Stock
in June 2009, incorporated by reference to ExHiléitto the Customers Bancorp For-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Warrants issued to Jay S. Sidhu, June 30, 2008¢pocated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the CustanBancorp Form $-filed
with the SEC on April 22, 201

New Century Bank Management Stock Purchase Plaarporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the @ustrs Bancorp Fori
S-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Amended and Restated Customers Bancorp, Inc. 2@l ®ption Plan, incorporated by reference to Bitti0.2 to the
Customers Bancorp Form-K filed with the SEC on March 21, 20:

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiMarch 26, 2012, by and between Customers Bandoc. and Jay !
Sidhu, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.& Customers Bancorp Forr-1 filed with the SEC on March 28, 20

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiMarch 26, 2012, by and between Customers Bandoc. and
Richard Ehst, incorporated by reference to ExHiBi# to the Customers Bancorp Form S-1 filed with $EC on March 28,
2012

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiMarch 26, 2012, by and between Customers Bandoc. and
Thomas Brugger, incorporated by reference to ExAibi5 to the Customers Bancorp Form S-1 filed with SEC on March 28,
2012

Agreement, dated as of May 19, 2009, by and betWssmn Century Bank and Jay Sidhu, incorporated sreace to Exhibit
10.6 to the Customers Bancorp For-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Amended and Restated Customers Bancorp, Inc. 2@@hiive Equity and Deferred Compensation Plargriprated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Customers Ban€&anpn 1(-K filed with the SEC on March 21, 20:

Lease Agreement, dated January 5, 2007, by ancebatiNew Century Bank and Gateway Partnership Lh€rporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Customers Ban€&amm ¢-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Amendment to Lease, dated May 4, 2007, by and estWew Century Bank and Gateway Partnership LL&rporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Customers Ban€&amm ¢-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement fonfdoyees relating to the 2012 Special Stock Rewaodjiram,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to thestdmers Bancorp Forn-1/A filed with the SEC on May 1, 201

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Septemb2030, by and between Customers Bancorp, Inc. afiR Tambur,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to thistGmers Bancorp Forn-1/A filed with the SEC on April 25, 201

Subscription Agreement, dated May 19, 2009, bylatdieen New Century Bank and Jay S. Sidhu, incatpdrby reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to the Customers Bancorp For-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Amendment to Subscription Agreement, dated Jun@@®0, by and between New Century Bank and JaydBuSincorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Customers Bgmé&orm -1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Amendment #2 to Subscription Agreement, dated dsioé 30, 2009, by and between New Century BanKlap. Sidhu,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to thistGmers Bancorp Forn-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201
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10.15+

10.16 4

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23+

10.24+

10.25+

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

211
23.2
31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2

101

Descriptior

Amended and Restated Customers Bancorp, Inc. BRaosgnition and Retention Plan, incorporated bgregfce to Exhibit
10.15 to the Customers Bancorp Forn-K filed with the SEC on March 21, 20:

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan of Jay @h§iincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18h#Customers Bancorp
Form &-1/A filed with the SEC on April 18, 201

Form of Voting and Lock-Up Agreement entered inithwhe various directors and executive officer€dMS Bancorp, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thestGmers Bancorp Forn-K filed with the SEC on August 10, 20

Form of Stock Purchase Agreement used in the hdyfaigust 2012 private placement of voting commiols incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Customers BancamrFs-3 filed with the SEC on October 22, 20

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 112, 2y and between Customers Bancorp, Inc. and=Bidnce Investment
Fund, L.P., incorporated by reference to Exhibdtt.the Customers Bancorp Fori-3 filed with the SEC on October 22, 20

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Septemp2012, by and among the Corporation and thehasers party thereto,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thestGmers Bancorp Forn-K filed with the SEC on September 17, 2(

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Septedvbe2012, by and among the Corporation and thehasers party thereto,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thestGmers Bancorp Forn-K filed with the SEC on September 17, 2(

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement fardators relating to the 2012 Special Stock Revienamhram, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Customers Bgmé&orm -1/A filed with the SEC on May 1, 20!

Form of Stock Option Agreement, incorporated bgrefice to Exhibit 10.18 to the Customers BancormFD-K filed with the
SEC on March 21, 201

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Customersddrp Form 10-K filed
with the SEC on March 21, 20:

TARP Letter Agreement, dated as of September 18], 20y and among Customers Bancorp, Berkshire Bantac. and
Treasury, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 106.Customers Bancc’'s Form K filed with the SEC on September 22, 2(

ARRA Letter Agreement, dated as of September 17120y and among Customers Bancorp and Treaswyrporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Customer Ban/’s Form K filed with the SEC on September 22, 2(

Letter Agreement dated as of December 28, 201 hbyamong Customers Bancorp and Treasury, incogubiat reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Customers Banci’s Form K filed with the SEC on January 4, 20

Change of Control Agreement, dated as of Januarg2@D3, by and between Customers Bancorp, IncGdedn Hedde, filed
herewith

Change of Control Agreement, dated as of Januarg@®03, by and between Customers Bancorp, IncWaden Taylor, filed
herewith

List of Subsidiaries of Customers Bancorp, |

Consent of ParenteBeard LLC, filed herev

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiido Exchange Act Rule 1-14(a) or Rule 15-14(a)
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Exchange Act Rule 1-14(a) or Rule 15-14(a)

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiidao 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, ad Adopted PursumaBettion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, ad Adopted Pursua8ettion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 200z

Interactive Data Files regarding (a) Balance Shesisf December 31, 2012 and 2011, (b) Statemémsame for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, (c) StatermaeComprehensive Income for the years ende@mber 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, (d) Statements of Cash Flows foy¢laes ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2018tgements of Changes
in Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended DecerBbhe2012, 2011 and 2010 and (f) Notes to Findi8tiements for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and

+ Management Contract or compensatory plan or geraent
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13()lof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, thggsteant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtteereunto duly authorized.

Customers Bancorp, Inc.
March 18, 2013 By: /s/Jay S. Sidhu

Name Jay S. Sidhi
Title: Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Customers Bancorp, Inc.

March 18, 2013 By:  /s/ James D. Hogan
Name James D. Hoga
Title: Chief Financial Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
Registrant and in the capacities and on the dathsated.

Signature Title(s): Date:
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Director March 18, 2013
/s/ Jay S. Sidhu (principal executive officer
Jay S. Sidhi
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office March 18, 2013
/sl James D. Hogan (principal financial and principal accounting offig
James D. Hoga
/s/ Daniel K. Rothermel Director
Daniel K. Rotherme March 18, 201
/s/ Bhanu Choudhrie Director
Bhanu Choudhri March 18, 201
/s/ John R. Miller Director
John R. Miller March 18, 201
/s/ T. Lawrence Way Director
T. Lawrence Wa) March 18, 201
/s/ Steven J. Zuckerman Director
Steven J. Zuckerme March 18, 201
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2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Descriptior

Plan of Merger and Reorganization, dated Septerihe?011, incorporated by reference to Exhibittd.the Customers
Bancorp Form -K filed with the SEC on September 22, 2(

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Augus2@B80, by and among Customers Bank, CustomersdBaniac.,
Berkshire Bank and Berkshire Bancorp, Inc., incoaped by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the CustonBanscorp Form S-1/A
filed with the SEC on January 13, 2C

Purchase and Assumption Agreement, dated as oBJ@@10, by and among Customers Bank, the FDIReagiver of USA
Bank, and the FDIC acting in its corporate capadityorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to thest®mers Bancorp Form S-
1/A filed with the SEC on January 13, 2C

Purchase and Assumption Agreement, dated as oéi®@ept 17, 2010, by and among Customers Bank, th€ BB Receiver ¢
ISN Bank, and the FDIC acting in its corporate cdiyaincorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.4he Customers Bancorp
Form &-1/A filed with the SEC on January 13, 2C

Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, datesf April 27, 2011, by and among Berkshire Bancang,, Berkshire
Bank, Customers Bancorp, Inc., and Customers Ban&rporated by reference to Exhibit 2.5 to thetGomers Bancorp Form
S-1/A filed with the SEC on June 13, 20

Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Merger, datesf &eptember 16, 2011, by and among Berkshire @andnc.,
Berkshire Bank, Customers Bancorp, Inc., and CusterBank, incorporated by reference to Exhibittd.the Customers
Bancorp Form -K filed with the SEC on September 22, 2(

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 20, B@Hhd among Customers Bancorp, Inc., Acacia lniéarance Compan
and Ameritas Life Insurance Corp., incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 2.1 to the Customers BancamrR8-K filed with the
SEC on June 21, 20:

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Augus2Q02, by and between Customers Bancorp, IncCif§ Bancorp, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to thetGomers Bancorp Form-K filed with the SEC on August 10, 20.

Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement, dated Readmber 18, 2012, by and among Customers Banlcwrp Acacia Life
Insurance Company, and Ameritas Life Insurance Corporporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Ghestomers Bancorp
Form &K filed with the SEC on December 20, 2C

Amendment No. 2 to Stock Purchase Agreement, deged January 30, 2013, by and among CustomersoBarac., Acacia
Life Insurance Company, and Ameritas Life Insura@oep., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.thte Customers Bancao
Form &K filed with the SEC on January 31, 2C

Amendment No. 3 to Stock Purchase Agreement, deted February 28, 2013, by and among Customersdpninc., Acaci
Life Insurance Company, and Ameritas Life InsuraB@oep., incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1h® Customers Banca
Form &K filed with the SEC on March 4, 20:

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation v$t@mers Bancorp, Inc., incorporated by refereadexhibit 3.1 to the
Customers Bancorp Forn-K filed with the SEC on April 30, 201

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Customers Bancocp,incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 t® @Gustomers Bancorp
Form &K filed with the SEC on April 30, 201

Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restatditlas of Incorporation of Customers Bancorp, Jimcorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Customers Bancam=-K filed with the SEC on July 2, 201

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation e$tGmers Bancorp, Inc., incorporated by refereadexhibit 3.1 to the
Customers Bancorp Forn-K filed with the SEC on April 30, 201

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Customers Bancocp,incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 t® @Gustomers Bancorp
Form &K filed with the SEC on April 30, 201

Articles of Amendment to the Amended and Restatditlas of Incorporation of Customers Bancorp, Jicorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Customers Bancam=-K filed with the SEC on July 2, 201

Specimen stock certificate of Customers Bancom, Woting Common Stock and Class B Non-Voting Comrfstock,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to thetGomers Bancorp Form-1/A filed with the SEC on May 1, 20!
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4.5

4.6

4.7

10.1+
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10.8

10.9
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10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15+

10.16 +

Descriptior

Indenture, dated as of June 29, 2004, by and batiNees Century Bank and Wilmington Trust Companjatirg to Floating
Rate Subordinated Debt Securities Due 2014, incatpd by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the CustonBanscorp Form S-1 filed
with the SEC on April 22, 201

Form of Warrant issued to investors in New CenBayk’s March and February 2010 private offering¥)2 private offering,
and in partial exchange for New Century Bank’s shanf 10% Series A Non-Cumulative Perpetual CoiblerPreferred Stock
in June 2009, incorporated by reference to ExHiléitto the Customers Bancorp For-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Warrants issued to Jay S. Sidhu, June 30, 2008rpdncated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the CustianBancorp Form $-filed
with the SEC on April 22, 201

New Century Bank Management Stock Purchase Plaorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Guetrs Bancorp Fori
S-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Amended and Restated Customers Bancorp, Inc. 2B ®ption Plan, incorporated by reference to BiHi0.2 to the
Customers Bancorp Form-K filed with the SEC on March 21, 20:

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiMarch 26, 2012, by and between Customers Bandoc. and Jay !
Sidhu, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.&# Customers Bancorp Forr-1 filed with the SEC on March 28, 20

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiMarch 26, 2012, by and between Customers Bandoc. and
Richard Ehst, incorporated by reference to ExHibi# to the Customers Bancorp Form S-1 filed wigh$EC on March 28,
2012

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefiMarch 26, 2012, by and between Customers Bandoc. and
Thomas Brugger, incorporated by reference to ExAibi5 to the Customers Bancorp Form S-1 filed with SEC on March 28,
2012

Agreement, dated as of May 19, 2009, by and betiesmn Century Bank and Jay Sidhu, incorporated BBreace to Exhibit
10.6 to the Customers Bancorp For-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Amended and Restated Customers Bancorp, Inc. 2@@hiive Equity and Deferred Compensation Plargripmrated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Customers Ban&anpn 1(-K filed with the SEC on March 21, 20:

Lease Agreement, dated January 5, 2007, by ancebatiNew Century Bank and Gateway Partnership Lh€rporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Customers Ban€&amm ¢-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Amendment to Lease, dated May 4, 2007, by and estWew Century Bank and Gateway Partnership LL&rporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the Customers Ban&amm ¢-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement fonfidoyees relating to the 2012 Special Stock Rewaogjram,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to thestdmers Bancorp Forn-1/A filed with the SEC on May 1, 201

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Septemb2030, by and between Customers Bancorp, Inc. afiR Tambur,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to thust@mers Bancorp Form-1/A filed with the SEC on April 25, 201

Subscription Agreement, dated May 19, 2009, bylztdreen New Century Bank and Jay S. Sidhu, incatpdrby reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to the Customers Bancorp For-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Amendment to Subscription Agreement, dated Jun@@®0, by and between New Century Bank and JaydBuSincorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Customers Bgmé&orm -1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Amendment #2 to Subscription Agreement, dated dsioé 30, 2009, by and between New Century BankKland. Sidhu,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to thistGmers Bancorp Forn-1 filed with the SEC on April 22, 201

Amended and Restated Customers Bancorp, Inc. BRaosgnition and Retention Plan, incorporated bgreafce to Exhibit
10.15 to the Customers Bancorp Forn-K filed with the SEC on March 21, 20:

Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan of Jay &h&iincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18h®Customers Bancorp
Form &-1/A filed with the SEC on April 18, 201

143



Table of Contents

Exhibit No.
10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23+

10.24+

10.25+

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

21.1
23.2
31.1
31.2
32.1

32.2

101

Descriptior

Form of Voting and Lock-Up Agreement entered inithvthe various directors and executive officer€MS Bancorp, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thestGmers Bancorp Forn-K filed with the SEC on August 10, 20.

Form of Stock Purchase Agreement used in the hdyAaigust 2012 private placement of voting commtogls incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Customers BancamrFs-3 filed with the SEC on October 22, 20

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 112, 2y and between Customers Bancorp, Inc. and=Bidnce Investment
Fund, L.P., incorporated by reference to Exhibitté.the Customers Bancorp Fori-3 filed with the SEC on October 22, 20

Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of Septemp2012, by and among the Corporation and thehgaisers party thereto,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thet®mers Bancorp Forn-K filed with the SEC on September 17, 2(

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Septedhe2012, by and among the Corporation and thehasers party thereto,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to thet®Gmers Bancorp Forn-K filed with the SEC on September 17, 2(

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement fardotors relating to the 2012 Special Stock ReviRnahram, incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to the Customers Bgmé&orm -1/A filed with the SEC on May 1, 20!

Form of Stock Option Agreement, incorporated bgrefice to Exhibit 10.18 to the Customers BancormFm-K filed with the
SEC on March 21, 201

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 10.17 to the Customensddrp Form 10-K filed
with the SEC on March 21, 20:

TARP Letter Agreement, dated as of September 161 28y and among Customers Bancorp, Berkshire Bantac. and
Treasury, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 26.Customers Bancc's Form &K filed with the SEC on September 22, 2(

ARRA Letter Agreement, dated as of September 17120y and among Customers Bancorp and Treasuyrgarated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Customer Ban(s Form K filed with the SEC on September 22, 2(

Letter Agreement dated as of December 28, 201 hbyamong Customers Bancorp and Treasury, incogubiat reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Customers Banci’s Form K filed with the SEC on January 4, 20

Change of Control Agreement, dated as of Januarg2@®D3, by and between Customers Bancorp, IncGiedn Hedde, filed
herewith

Change of Control Agreement, dated as of Januarg@D3, by and between Customers Bancorp, IncWaden Taylor, filed
herewith

List of Subsidiaries of Customers Bancorp, |

Consent of ParenteBeard LLC, filed herev

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Purstido Exchange Act Rule 1-14(a) or Rule 15-14(a)
Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo Exchange Act Rule 1-14(a) or Rule 15-14(a)

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursiido 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, ad Adopted PursumBettion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursudo 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, ad Adopted Pursua8ettion 906 of the
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

Interactive Data Files regarding (a) Balance Shaeisf December 31, 2012 and 2011, (b) Statemémsame for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, (c) StatsmEComprehensive Income for the years ende@mber 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, (d) Statements of Cash Flows foy¢laes ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2018td®ments of Changes
in Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended Decer@be2012, 2011 and 2010 and (f) Notes to Finarigt@ements for the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and

+ Management Contract or compensatory plan or geraent
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Exhibit 10.29
CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC
CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENT

THIS CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENT (this “Agreementiade as of January 30, 2013, is by and among QMRS
BANCORP INC., a Pennsylvania Corporation (“Bankdid an individual (“Executive”).

Background

Bank wishes to secure the future services of Exeebly providing Executive the severance paymerdsiged in this Agreement as
additional incentive to induce Executive to devkecutive's time and attention to the interests afifigirs of the Bank (the “Agreement”).

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual preesiand agreements set forth herein, and intenalibg legally bound hereby,
the parties agree as follows:

1. Employment Except strictly to such extent (if any) as maypbevided in another agreement between Bank anduiive, Executive
shall remain an employee at will of the Bank haezafThis Agreement is not an employment agreenfenitshall only be interpreted as
governing the payment of severance, which may leet@iExecutive upon termination of Executive’s eoyphent with Bank under the specific
circumstances described in this Agreement. No gromiof this Agreement shall be interpreted to date from the power of Bank or its Board
of Directors to terminate the employment of the &tave, subject nevertheless to the terms of tlgjgeAment.

2. CompensationThe compensation to be paid by Bank to Execdtive time to time, including any fringe benefitsather employee
benefits, shall not be governed by this AgreemEnis Agreement shall not be deemed to affect thragef any stock options, employee
benefits or other agreements between the Bank aeduve.

3. Severance Payments upon Termination of Emplaywfter a“ Change in Contrdl.This Agreement does not govern any termination
of Executive’s employment with Bank which occurgopto a “Change in Control” as defined in subsmtife) of this Section. No inference
shall be drawn from any provision of this Sectiameerning the rights and obligations of the paiitiesonnection with a termination of
Executive’s employment prior to a Change in Control

(a) Termination by Company for Cause or Not for CalfsExecutive’s employment is terminated by Bankf¢i) “Cause” (as
defined in subsection (c) of this Section) at amet (ii) with or without Cause prior to a ChangeQontrol, or (iii) more than two (2) years
after a Change in Control, Executive shall haveigiat to any severance under this Agreement dgeith termination. If Executive is
terminated by Bank within two (2) years after a @@in Control other than for Cause, Executivegbtrto a severance payment under this
Agreement shall be as set forth in subsectionf(fiis Section.

(b) Termination by Executive for Good Reason or NotFood Reason.If Executive terminates Executive’'s employment with
Bank (i) prior to a Change in Control, (ii) morathtwo years after a Change in Control, or (iiheut “Good Reason” (as defined in
subsection (d) of this Section) at any time, Exiseushall have no right to any severance underAgigement due to such termination. If
Executive terminates Executive’s employment witmB#or Good Reason within two (2) years after ar@fgin Control, Executive’s right to a
severance payment under this Agreement shall betdsrth in subsection (f) of this Section.

(c) Definition of “Cause.”For the purpose of this Agreement, “Cause” meatisraof or failure to act by Executive which would
authorize the forfeiture of fring



benefits or other remuneration under Execuiwefitten contract of employment with the Bankibthere is no written contract of employme
() the willful material failure to perform the das to the Bank required of Executive (other thay such failure resulting from incapacity due
to physical or mental illness of Executive or miatlecthanges in the direction and policies of theuloof Directors of Bank), if such failure
continues for fifteen (15) days after a written @eh for substantial performance is delivered tockkee by the Bank which specifically
identifies the manner in which it is believed tBaecutive has failed to attempt to perform his er ¢uties hereunder; (2) the willful engaging
by Executive in misconduct materially injurioustb® Bank; (3) receipt by the Bank of a notice (varstall not have been appealed by
Executive or shall have become final and non-agta) of any governmental body or entity havingsidiction over the Bank requiring
termination or removal of Executive from his or fi@en present position, or receipt of a writterediive or order of any governmental body or
entity having jurisdiction over the Bank (which 8heot have been appealed by Executive or shalkkhmcome final and non-appealable)
requiring termination or removal of Executive frdmis or her then present position; or (4) persomsiahesty, incompetence, willful
misconduct, willful breach of fiduciary duty invehg personal profit or conviction of a felony. Rmurposes of this paragraph, no act, or failure
to act, on Executive’s part shall be consideredIfui unless done or omitted to be done by Exeegiiin bad faith and without reasonable
belief that his or her action or omission was i@ biest interest of Bank. Any act or omission totgcExecutive in reliance upon a written
opinion of counsel to Bank shall not be deemedetavitiful.

(d) Definition of “Good Reason.For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shalin (i) any material reduction in title or a
material adverse change in Executive’s responséslor authority which are inconsistent with, loe assignment to Executive of duties
materially inconsistent with, Executive’s positiaith the Bank immediately prior to such action;(igrany material reduction in Executive’s
annual base salary as in effect on the date herezd the same may be increased from time to time.

(e) Definition of “Change in Control."For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change in Céntfthe Bank shall mean:

(i) there occurs a merger, consolidation or othesitess combination or reorganization to whichBhak is a party, whether
or not approved in advance by the Board of Directdrthe Bank, in which (A) the members of the Bbaf Directors of the Bank immediately
preceding the consummation of such transactionoi@anstitute a majority of the members of the BloafrDirectors of the resulting
corporation and of any parent corporation thergohediately after the consummation of such transactind (B) the shareholders of the Bank
immediately before such transaction do not holdentban fifty percent (50%) of the voting power etsrities of the resulting corporation;

(i) There occurs a sale, exchange, transfer, loeradisposition of substantially all of the assdtthe Bank to another entity,
whether or not approved in advance by the Boafdirctors of the Bank (for purpose of this Agreetarsale of more than one-half of the
branches of the Bank would constitute a Changeoimt@l, but for purposes of this paragraph, no binas or assets will be deemed to have
been sold if they are leased back contemporaneatsiyor promptly after their sale);

(iiif) A plan of liquidation or dissolution is adogd for the Bank; or

(iv) Any “person” or any group of “persons” (as Buerm is defined in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) eflxchange Act), as if
such provisions were applicable to the Bank, othan the holders of shares of the Bank’s commockstoexistence on the date of the
Opening for Business, is or shall become the “beiaiowner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3 under theliange Act), as if such rule were
applicable to the Bank, directly or indirectly, s#curities of the Bank representing 50% or morth@fcombined voting power of the Bank’s
then outstanding securities.
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(f) Severancdf Executive is entitled to severance under sulisegs) or (b) of this Section, Bank shall pay egesance to
Executive the sum of the following amounts in gg&riump sum within 60 days following the date &f termination of employment, subjeci
all tax withholding obligations of the Bank:

(i) 200% of the highest rate of base annual safzaywas payable to or for the benefit of Execuéivany time during the 12-
month period ending on the date of Executive’s teation of employment; and

(if) 200% of the average of the aggregate annugtl benuses that have been earned by the Execatipefformance by the
Executive during each of the three (3) most refisoal years of the Bank ended with or prior to dlage of Executive’s termination of
employment. If Executive shall not have been emgdblyy the Bank for three (3) full fiscal years ptio the time the Executive becomes
entitled to severance payments under this Sedtieraverage used shall be determined based omwihlean of full and partial fiscal years of
Bank in which the Executive was so employed antlhse ended with or prior to the date of Execusivermination of employment.

(g) Any termination of Executive’s employment byri&eor by Executive shall be communicated by a dateitten notice, signed
by the party giving the notice, which shall (i) icate the specific termination provision in thisrAgment relied upon; (ii) set forth in
reasonable detail the facts and circumstances ethimprovide a basis for termination of Executvemployment under the provision so
indicated; and (iii) specify the effective datetefmination. In addition, Executive shall not besioered to have terminated his employmer
Good Reason unless he provides such written nttitee Bank within 90 days following the initialistence of a condition creating Good
Reason, and upon notice of which the Bank mustrbeigied a period of at least 30 days during whiahay remedy the condition and not be
required to pay the severance payment.

(h) Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemémthe contrary, if, as a result of a payment fates for under or pursuant to
this Agreement, together with all other paymentthannature of compensation provided to or forkteeefit of the Executive under any other
plans or agreements in connection with a Chan@wointrol, the Executive becomes subject to excisestander Section 4999 of the Code, 1
the amount of severance to be paid pursuant téAtlieement shall be reduced to the maximum amdilowable without causing Executive to
become subject to such excise taxes. Such maximuara shall be determined by a registered pubkoaeting firm selected by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of DirectorthefBank, whose determination, absent manifeet,eshall be treated as conclusive and
binding.

(i) It is understood by Executive and Bank that Baray elect to participate in the Troubled Assedtid® Program (“TARP”)
established under the Emergency Economic Staldiz#tct of 2008 (“EESA"), as amended by the Ameniddecovery and Reinvestment Act
of 2009 (“ARRA") and any subsequent legislation wiee heretofore or hereafter enacted (“Subsequegislation”) and as implemented by
present and future regulations of applicable fddgraernment agencies (“Implementing Regulatiorf#ie requirements of EESA, ARRA,
Subsequent Legislation and Implementing Regulatibasmay be applicable to the Bank or Executivthercompensation or benefits provis
to Executive under this Agreement or otherwise essalt of the Bank’s participation in TARP are stimes referred to herein as the “TARP
Provisions”). In that event, if the severance tphmvided to Executive pursuant to this Agreemeusiie reduced, delayed or otherwise
modified in order for the Bank to comply with anfytbe TARP Provisions, as interpreted and implemétity regulations of the U. S.
Department of the Treasury and the terms of anyrachbetween Bank or Executive and said Departroeaty other agency of the federal
government (“TARP Requirements”), this Agreemerd ah such other compensation, benefits and peitgaiand
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agreements relating to any of the foregoing shabmatically be deemed amended to cause the Bamdk ito compliance at all times with the
TARP Requirements. Executive and Bank shall negiragood faith to document, by amendment or ammemds to this Agreement, the
modifications so required, but the parties’ failtwereach final agreement shall not negate theigians of this Section. In consideration for the
benefits Executive will receive under this Agreetreamd potentially as a result of Bank’s participatin TARP, Executive hereby voluntarily
waives any claim against the Bank for any changé&sxecutive’s compensation or benefits that areired for Bank to comply with TARP
Requirements. This waiver includes all claims Exi®eunay have under the laws of the United Stateny state related to the requirements
imposed by any of the TARP Requirements, includiithout limitation a claim for any compensationather payments Executive would
otherwise receive, any challenge to the processhigh any of the TARP Requirements were adoptedaauydort or constitutional claim abc
the effect of any of the TARP Requirements on Exgels employment relationship with Bank. Executagrees to execute such waivers and
other agreements as may be requires by the U.8sling Department in connection with Bank’s partdipn in TARP.

(j) All obligations under this Agreement are subjectermination by any bank regulatory agency hgyurisdiction over Bank in
accordance with any applicable provisions of lawegulations granting such authority, but rightshef Executive to compensation earned i
the date of termination shall not be affected.

(k) Executive shall not be required to mitigate #meount of any payment provided for in this Agreat®y seeking other
employment or otherwise. The severance paymenigedvor in this Agreement shall not be reducecby compensation or other payments
received by Executive after the date of terminatbExecutive’s employment from any source.

4. Payment Obligations Absolut®rovided that the preconditions for payment sethfin this Agreement are fully satisfied, Bank'’s
obligation to pay Executive the severance paymentiged herein shall be absolute and unconditiandl shall not be affected by any
circumstances, including, without limitation, aret-®ff counter claim, recoupment, defense or otlgnt which Bank may have against
Executive. All amounts payable by Bank hereundatl éfe paid without notice or demand.

5. Executives CovenantsAs further consideration for the Bank’s willinggseto enter into this Agreement and to providepittential
benefits set forth herein, Executive agrees tadlgictions set forth in this Section.

(a) Executive covenants and agrees that ExecutiVaat at any time, either during his or her empteent with the Bank or
thereafter, use, disclose or make accessible t@tmgy person, firm, partnership, corporation gr ather entity any Confidential and
Proprietary Information (as defined herein), ottian to (i) Executive’s attorney or spouse in coeffice, (ii) while employed by the Bank, in
the business and for the benefit of the Bank,ipmhen required to do so by a court of compefarisdiction, any government agency having
supervisory authority over the business of the Htiee or the Bank or any administrative body oridé&give body, including a committee
thereof, with jurisdiction.

For purposes of this Agreement, “Confidential anopPietary Information” shall mean non-public, ciolential, and proprietary
information provided to the Executive concerningthaut limitation, the Bank’s financial conditiomd/or results of operations, statistical data
products, ideas and concepts, strategic businass,fists of customers or customer informatiofgrimation relating to marketing plans,
management development reviews, including inforamategarding the capabilities and experience oBek’'s employees, compensation,
recruiting and training, and human resource pdiieied procedures, policy and procedure manualsthiegwith all materials and document:
any form or medium (including oral, written, tanigibintangible, or electronic) concerning any af #hove, and other non-public,
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proprietary and confidential information of the Baprovided, however, that Confidential and Proanig Information shall not include any
information that is known generally to the publiovathin the industry other than as a result ofutharized disclosure by the Executive. It is
specifically understood and agreed by the Execulimeany non-public information received by thesEixtive during Executive’'s employment
by the Bank is deemed Confidential and Proprieltafgrmation for purposes of this Agreement. In #vent the Executive’s employment is
terminated for any reason, the Executive shall idiately return to the Bank upon request all Conftéd and Proprietary Information in
Executive’s possession or control.

(b) Executive agrees that during his or her empleryinwith the Bank and for a period of twelve (12)nths thereafter, unless the
Executive obtains the Bank'’s prior written permissiwhich may be granted or denied at the BanKis aod absolute discretion, the Executive
shall not:

(i) solicit or divert to any competitor of the Bank, upon termination of the Executive’s employmeith the Bank, accept
any business from any individual or entity thad isustomer or a prospective customer of the Banthe extent that such prospective custome
was identifiable as such prior to the date of tRedttive’s termination, except that this covendman-solicitation shall not apply with respect
to anyone who, while having previously been a austoor prospect of the Bank, is no longer a custamerospect of the Bank at the time of
the solicitation; or

(ii) induce or encourage any officer and/or emptopéthe Bank to leave the employ of the Bank, himg individual who
was an employee of the Bank as of the date ofetmimation of the Executive’s, or induce or encgerany customer, vendor, participant,
agent or other business relation of the Bank teeea reduce doing business with the Bank or inveany interfere with the relationship
between any such customer, vendor, participanftageother business relation and the Bank.

(c) For a period of twelve (12) months after arsigeation or termination of Executive’s employméartany reason, Executive
shall not, directly or indirectly, within 25 miled any office of the Bank, enter into or engagedily or indirectly in competition with the Bal
or any subsidiary or other company under commornrobwith the Bank, in any financial services buesa conducted by the Bank or any such
subsidiary at the time of such resignation or teation, either as an individual on his own or g&géner or joint venturer, or as a director,
officer, shareholder, employee, agent, indepencemtractor, nor shall Executive assist any othesqreor entity in engaging directly or
indirectly in such competition.

6. Amendments No amendments to this Agreement shall be binditigss in a writing, signed by both parties, whstdites expressly
that it amends this Agreement.

7. Notices Notices under this Agreement shall be deemedcserit and effective if (i) in writing and (ii) éier (A) when delivered in
person or by facsimile, telecopier, telegraph teotlectronic means capable of being embodiediitew form or (B) forty-eight (48) hours
after deposit thereof in the U.S. mails by certifar registered mail, return receipt requestedtgoasprepaid, addressed to each party at such
party’s address first set forth above and, in #ecof Bank, to the attention of the Chairman efloard, or to such other notice address as th
party to be notified may have designated by writietice to the sending party.

8. Prior AgreementsThere are no other agreements between Bank aexlixe regarding Executive’'s employment. This Agnent is
the entire agreement of the parties with respeits tsubject matter and supersedes any and all @ricontemporaneous discussions,
representations, understandings or agreementglirgats subject matter.

9. Assigns and SuccessofEhe rights and obligations of Bank under this @gment shall inure to the benefit of and shallibdihg
upon the successors and assigns of
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Bank and Executive, provided, however, that Exeeushall not assign or anticipate any of his rigteseunder, whether by operation of law or
otherwise. For purposes of this Agreement, “Barfidlkalso refer to any successor to Bank, whetheh succession occurs by merger,
consolidation, purchase and assumption, sale etsass otherwise.

10. Executives Acknowledament of TermsExecutive acknowledges that he or she has réadgreement fully and carefully,
understands its terms and that it has been enit@ieedy Executive voluntarily. Executive acknowledghat any payments to be made
hereunder will constitute additional compensatmizkecutive.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisedlue execution of this Agreement as of the filstieset forth above.

Attest: Bank:
CUSTOMERS BANCORP INC
Is/ Glenn Yeager By: /s/ Richard A. Ehst
Print Name: Glenn Yeag: Print Name: Richard A. Eh
Title: Corporate Secreta Title: Presiden
Witness: Executive:
/sl J. Christopher Black /s/ Glenn A. Hedde
Print Name: J. Christopher Bla Glenn A. Hedds



Exhibit 10.30
CUSTOMERS BANCORP, INC
CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENT

THIS CHANGE OF CONTROL AGREEMENT (this “Agreementiade as of January 30, 2013, is by and among QMRS
BANCORP INC., a Pennsylvania Corporation (“Bankdid an individual (“Executive”).

Background

Bank wishes to secure the future services of Exeebly providing Executive the severance paymerdsiged in this Agreement as
additional incentive to induce Executive to devkecutive's time and attention to the interests afifigirs of the Bank (the “Agreement”).

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual preesiand agreements set forth herein, and intenalibg legally bound hereby,
the parties agree as follows:

1. Employment Except strictly to such extent (if any) as maypbevided in another agreement between Bank anduiive, Executive
shall remain an employee at will of the Bank haezafThis Agreement is not an employment agreenfenitshall only be interpreted as
governing the payment of severance, which may leet@iExecutive upon termination of Executive’s eoyphent with Bank under the specific
circumstances described in this Agreement. No gromiof this Agreement shall be interpreted to date from the power of Bank or its Board
of Directors to terminate the employment of the &tave, subject nevertheless to the terms of tlgjgeAment.

2. CompensationThe compensation to be paid by Bank to Execdtive time to time, including any fringe benefitsather employee
benefits, shall not be governed by this AgreemEnis Agreement shall not be deemed to affect thragef any stock options, employee
benefits or other agreements between the Bank aeduve.

3. Severance Payments upon Termination of Emplaywfter a“ Change in Contrdl.This Agreement does not govern any termination
of Executive’s employment with Bank which occurgopto a “Change in Control” as defined in subsmtife) of this Section. No inference
shall be drawn from any provision of this Sectiameerning the rights and obligations of the paiitiesonnection with a termination of
Executive’s employment prior to a Change in Control

(a) Termination by Company for Cause or Not for Caudd=xecutive’'s employment is terminated by Bajkd@r “Cause” (as
defined in subsection (c) of this Section) at amet (ii) with or without Cause prior to a ChangeQontrol, or (iii) more than two (2) years
after a Change in Control, Executive shall haveigiat to any severance under this Agreement dgeith termination. If Executive is
terminated by Bank within two (2) years after a @@in Control other than for Cause, Executivegbtrto a severance payment under this
Agreement shall be as set forth in subsectionf(fiis Section.

(b) Termination by Executive for Good Reason or NotFood Reason If Executive terminates Executive’s employment with
Bank (i) prior to a Change in Control, (ii) morathtwo years after a Change in Control, or (iiheut “Good Reason” (as defined in
subsection (d) of this Section) at any time, Exiseushall have no right to any severance underAgigement due to such termination. If
Executive terminates Executive’s employment witmB#or Good Reason within two (2) years after ar@fgin Control, Executive’s right to a
severance payment under this Agreement shall betderth in subsection (f) of this Sectic



(c) Definition of “Cause.”For the purpose of this Agreement, “Cause” meatisracof or failure to act by Executive which would
authorize the forfeiture of fringe benefits or athemuneration under Executigeritten contract of employment with the Bankibthere is n
written contract of employment, (I) the willful neatal failure to perform the duties to the Bankuieegd of Executive (other than any such
failure resulting from incapacity due to physicaheental iliness of Executive or material changethe direction and policies of the Board of
Directors of Bank), if such failure continues fdtelen (15) days after a written demand for sulisghperformance is delivered to Executive by
the Bank which specifically identifies the mannemihich it is believed that Executive has failegttempt to perform his or her duties
hereunder; (2) the willful engaging by Executivemisconduct materially injurious to the Bank; (8keipt by the Bank of a notice (which shall
not have been appealed by Executive or shall hagerhe final and non-appealable) of any governmdutdy or entity having jurisdiction
over the Bank requiring termination or removal akEutive from his or her then present positiomemeipt of a written directive or order of
any governmental body or entity having jurisdictmrer the Bank (which shall not have been appédayefixecutive or shall have become final
and non-appealable) requiring termination or rerhof/&xecutive from his or her then present positior (4) personal dishonesty,
incompetence, willful misconduct, willful breach fiduciary duty involving personal profit or contiien of a felony. For purposes of this
paragraph, no act, or failure to act, on Execusiyert shall be considered “willfultinless done or omitted to be done by Executiveathfaith
and without reasonable belief that his or her actipomission was in the best interest of Bank. Aatyor omission to act by Executive in
reliance upon a written opinion of counsel to Bahkll not be deemed to be willful.

(d) Definition of “Good Reason.For purposes of this Agreement, “Good Reason” shalin (i) any material reduction in title or a
material adverse change in Executive’s responséslor authority which are inconsistent with, loe assignment to Executive of duties
materially inconsistent with, Executive’s positiaith the Bank immediately prior to such action;(igrany material reduction in Executive’s
annual base salary as in effect on the date herexdf the same may be increased from time to time.

(e) Definition of “Change in Control."For purposes of this Agreement, a “Change in Céntfcthe Bank shall mean:

(i) there occurs a merger, consolidation or othesitess combination or reorganization to whichBhak is a party, whether
or not approved in advance by the Board of Directdrthe Bank, in which (A) the members of the Bloaf Directors of the Bank immediately
preceding the consummation of such transactionofi@anstitute a majority of the members of the BloafrDirectors of the resulting
corporation and of any parent corporation thergohediately after the consummation of such transactind (B) the shareholders of the Bank
immediately before such transaction do not holdentban fifty percent (50%) of the voting power etsrities of the resulting corporation;

(ii) There occurs a sale, exchange, transfer, leradisposition of substantially all of the assdtthe Bank to another entity,
whether or not approved in advance by the Boafdirctors of the Bank (for purpose of this Agreetarsale of more than one-half of the
branches of the Bank would constitute a Changeoimt@l, but for purposes of this paragraph, no binas or assets will be deemed to have
been sold if they are leased back contemporaneatsiyor promptly after their sale);

(iii) A plan of liquidation or dissolution is adogd for the Bank; or

(iv) Any “person” or any group of “persons” (as Buerm is defined in Sections 13(d) and 14(d) efEixchange Act), as if
such provisions were applicable to the Bank, othan the holders of shares of the Bank’s commockstoexistence on the date of the
Opening for Business, is or shall become the “bieiafowner” (as defined in Rule 13d-3
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under the Exchange Act), as if such rule were apple to the Bank, directly or indirectly, of seties of the Bank representing 50% or more
of the combined voting power of the Bank’s thenstaniding securities.

(f) Severance If Executive is entitled to severance under satise (a) or (b) of this Section, Bank shall paysaserance to
Executive the sum of the following amounts in gg&rlump sum within 60 days following the date &f termination of employment, subjeci
all tax withholding obligations of the Bank:

(i) 200% of the highest rate of base annual safzywas payable to or for the benefit of Execuéivany time during the 12-
month period ending on the date of Executive’s teation of employment; and

(ii) 200% of the average of the aggregate annusl b@nuses that have been earned by the Execatipeiformance by the
Executive during each of the three (3) most refisoal years of the Bank ended with or prior to da¢e of Executive’s termination of
employment. If Executive shall not have been emgdblyy the Bank for three (3) full fiscal years ptio the time the Executive becomes
entitled to severance payments under this Sedtieraverage used shall be determined based omwthlean of full and partial fiscal years of
Bank in which the Executive was so employed antllthse ended with or prior to the date of Execusivermination of employment.

(g9) Any termination of Executive’s employment byrikeor by Executive shall be communicated by a dateitten notice, signed
by the party giving the notice, which shall (i) icate the specific termination provision in thisrAgment relied upon; (ii) set forth in
reasonable detail the facts and circumstances ethimprovide a basis for termination of Executvemployment under the provision so
indicated; and (jii) specify the effective datetefmination. In addition, Executive shall not bexsidered to have terminated his employmer
Good Reason unless he provides such written ntatittee Bank within 90 days following the initialistence of a condition creating Good
Reason, and upon notice of which the Bank mustrbeigied a period of at least 30 days during whiahay remedy the condition and not be
required to pay the severance payment.

(h) Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreemémthe contrary, if, as a result of a payment ffed for under or pursuant to
this Agreement, together with all other paymentthannature of compensation provided to or forltaeefit of the Executive under any other
plans or agreements in connection with a Chan@wointrol, the Executive becomes subject to excisestander Section 4999 of the Code, 1
the amount of severance to be paid pursuant téAtiieement shall be reduced to the maximum amdilowable without causing Executive to
become subject to such excise taxes. Such maximuoara shall be determined by a registered pubkowaeting firm selected by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of DirectorthefBank, whose determination, absent manifest,eshall be treated as conclusive and
binding.

(i) It is understood by Executive and Bank that Baray elect to participate in the Troubled Assedtid® Program (“TARP”)
established under the Emergency Economic Staldiz#tct of 2008 (“EESA”), as amended by the Ameniddecovery and Reinvestment Act
of 2009 (“ARRA") and any subsequent legislation ez heretofore or hereafter enacted (“Subsequegislation”) and as implemented by
present and future regulations of applicable fddgraernment agencies (“Implementing Regulatiorf#ie requirements of EESA, ARRA,
Subsequent Legislation and Implementing Regulatibasmay be applicable to the Bank or Executivthercompensation or benefits provis
to Executive under this Agreement or otherwise gesalt of the Bank’s participation in TARP are simes referred to herein as the “TARP
Provisions”). In that event, if the severance tgpb®vided to Executive pursuant to this Agreemeuasinbe reduced, delayed or otherwise
modified in order for the Bank to comply with anfytbe TARP Provisions, as interpreted and implere iy
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regulations of the U. S. Department of the Treasuny the terms of any contract between Bank or lkexand said Department or any other
agency of the federal government (“TARP Requiresi@nthis Agreement and all such other compensabenefits and perquisites and
agreements relating to any of the foregoing shabmatically be deemed amended to cause the Bamdk ito compliance at all times with the
TARP Requirements. Executive and Bank shall netgiragood faith to document, by amendment or ammemds to this Agreement, the
modifications so required, but the parties’ failtweeach final agreement shall not negate theigians of this Section. In consideration for the
benefits Executive will receive under this Agreetremd potentially as a result of Bank’s participatin TARP, Executive hereby voluntarily
waives any claim against the Bank for any chang&sxecutive’s compensation or benefits that areired for Bank to comply with TARP
Requirements. This waiver includes all claims Exeunay have under the laws of the United Stateny state related to the requirements
imposed by any of the TARP Requirements, includiithout limitation a claim for any compensationather payments Executive would
otherwise receive, any challenge to the processhigh any of the TARP Requirements were adoptedasuydtort or constitutional claim abc
the effect of any of the TARP Requirements on Ekigels employment relationship with Bank. Executagrees to execute such waivers and
other agreements as may be requires by the U.8sling Department in connection with Bank’s partdipn in TARP.

(j) All obligations under this Agreement are subjectermination by any bank regulatory agency hgyurisdiction over Bank in
accordance with any applicable provisions of lawegulations granting such authority, but right$haf Executive to compensation earned :
the date of termination shall not be affected.

(k) Executive shall not be required to mitigate #meount of any payment provided for in this Agreat®y seeking other
employment or otherwise. The severance paymenigedvor in this Agreement shall not be reducecgby compensation or other payments
received by Executive after the date of terminatibExecutive’s employment from any source.

4. Payment Obligations Absolut®rovided that the preconditions for payment sghfin this Agreement are fully satisfied, Bank’s
obligation to pay Executive the severance paymentiged herein shall be absolute and unconditiandl shall not be affected by any
circumstances, including, without limitation, aret-®ff counter claim, recoupment, defense or ottgnt which Bank may have against
Executive. All amounts payable by Bank hereundatl $fe paid without notice or demand.

5. Executivés CovenantsAs further consideration for the Bank’s willingigeto enter into this Agreement and to providepittential
benefits set forth herein, Executive agrees tadlgictions set forth in this Section.

(a) Executive covenants and agrees that ExecutiVaat at any time, either during his or her empteent with the Bank or
thereafter, use, disclose or make accessible totn@y person, firm, partnership, corporation or ather entity any Confidential and
Proprietary Information (as defined herein), ottiian to (i) Executive’s attorney or spouse in coafice, (ii) while employed by the Bank, in
the business and for the benefit of the Bank,ipmhen required to do so by a court of compefarisdiction, any government agency having
supervisory authority over the business of the Htiee or the Bank or any administrative body oridé&give body, including a committee
thereof, with jurisdiction.

For purposes of this Agreement, “Confidential anopfietary Information” shall mean non-public, ciaigitial, and proprietary
information provided to the Executive concerningthaut limitation, the Bank’s financial conditiomd/or results of operations, statistical data
products, ideas and concepts, strategic businass,fists of customers or customer informatiofgrimation relating to marketing plans,
management development reviews, including inforamategarding the capabilities and experience oBuek’'s employees, compensation,
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recruiting and training, and human resource pdiieied procedures, policy and procedure manualsthiegwith all materials and document:
any form or medium (including oral, written, tanigipintangible, or electronic) concerning any af #tbbove, and other non-public, proprietary
and confidential information of the Bank; providédwever, that Confidential and Proprietary Infotima shall not include any information
that is known generally to the public or within thelustry other than as a result of unauthorizedldsure by the Executive. It is specifically
understood and agreed by the Executive that amypnblfic information received by the Executive dgriBxecutive’s employment by the Bank
is deemed Confidential and Proprietary Informafiempurposes of this Agreement. In the event thedave’'s employment is terminated for
any reason, the Executive shall immediately retarthe Bank upon request all Confidential and Hetary Information in Executive’s
possession or control.

(b) Executive agrees that during his or her empleryinwvith the Bank and for a period of twelve (12)nths thereafter, unless the
Executive obtains the Bank'’s prior written permissiwhich may be granted or denied at the Banlis and absolute discretion, the Executive
shall not:

(i) solicit or divert to any competitor of the Bank, upon termination of the Executive’s employmeith the Bank, accept
any business from any individual or entity thad isustomer or a prospective customer of the Banthe extent that such prospective custome
was identifiable as such prior to the date of tRedttive’'s termination, except that this covendntan-solicitation shall not apply with respect
to anyone who, while having previously been a austoor prospect of the Bank, is no longer a custamerospect of the Bank at the time of
the solicitation; or

(ii) induce or encourage any officer and/or emptopéthe Bank to leave the employ of the Bank, himg individual who
was an employee of the Bank as of the date ofditmination of the Executive’s, or induce or encgarany customer, vendor, participant,
agent or other business relation of the Bank tese®a reduce doing business with the Bank or inveany interfere with the relationship
between any such customer, vendor, participanftageother business relation and the Bank.

(c) For a period of twelve (12) months after arsigeation or termination of Executive’s employméartany reason, Executive
shall not, directly or indirectly, within 25 miles any office of the Bank, enter into or engagedily or indirectly in competition with the Bal
or any subsidiary or other company under commottrebwith the Bank, in any financial services buess conducted by the Bank or any such
subsidiary at the time of such resignation or teation, either as an individual on his own or g&géner or joint venturer, or as a director,
officer, shareholder, employee, agent, indepencemtractor, nor shall Executive assist any othesqeor entity in engaging directly or
indirectly in such competition.

6. Amendments No amendments to this Agreement shall be bindimigss in a writing, signed by both parties, wrstdites expressly
that it amends this Agreement.

7. Notices Notices under this Agreement shall be deemedcserit and effective if (i) in writing and (ii) éier (A) when delivered in
person or by facsimile, telecopier, telegraph dieotlectronic means capable of being embodiediitew form or (B) forty-eight (48) hours
after deposit thereof in the U.S. mails by certife registered mail, return receipt requestedigmesprepaid, addressed to each party at such
party’s address first set forth above and, in #iecof Bank, to the attention of the Chairman ef8loard, or to such other notice address as th
party to be notified may have designated by writietice to the sending party.

8. Prior AgreementsThere are no other agreements between Bank aexliExe regarding Executive’s employment. This Asgnent is
the entire agreement of the parties with respeits tsubject matter and supersedes any and afl @ricontemporaneous discussions,
representations, understandings or agreementglirgats subject matter.
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9. Assigns and SuccessofBhe rights and obligations of Bank under this @gnent shall inure to the benefit of and shallibdihg
upon the successors and assigns of Bank and Execptovided, however, that Executive shall notgassr anticipate any of his rights
hereunder, whether by operation of law or othervisg purposes of this Agreement, “Bank” shall aksfer to any successor to Bank, whethel
such succession occurs by merger, consolidatiammhpse and assumption, sale of assets or otherwise.

10. Executives Acknowledgment of TermsExecutive acknowledges that he or she has réadgreement fully and carefully,
understands its terms and that it has been eniteieedy Executive voluntarily. Executive acknowlesgghat any payments to be made
hereunder will constitute additional compensatmizkecutive.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have catisedlue execution of this Agreement as of the filstieset forth above.

Executive: Bank:
CUSTOMERS BANCORP INC

/s/ Warren Taylor By: /s/ Richard A. Ehst
Print Name: Warren Taylc Print Name: Richard A. Eh
Title: EVP, President of Community Banking, Markegtiand Title: President and COO

Small Busines



Exhibit 21.1
List of Significant Subsidiaries of Customers Bana, Inc.

Name: Jurisdiction

1. Customers Bar Pennsylvani:



Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statement on Forr3 No. 333-184536 and Form&No. 333-186554
of Customers Bancorp, Inc. of our reports datedddr8, 2013, relating to the consolidated finanstatements and the effectiveness of
Customers Bancorp, Inc.’s internal control oveafinial reporting, which appear in this ForntkK0

/sl ParenteBeard LLC
Lancaster, Pennsylvania
March 18, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, Jay S. Sidhu, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form10fkCastomers Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorny untrue statement of a material fact or enéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules13a-15(e) and 15d)15f&d internal control over financial reporting @efined in Exchange Act Rules13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitiiat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anaave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@gniifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ JAY S. SIDHU
Jay S. Sidhu
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

Date: March 18, 201



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULES 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED

I, James D. Hogan, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form10fkCastomers Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notadorny untrue statement of a material fact or enéttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules13a-15(e) and 15d)15f&d internal control over financial reporting @efined in Exchange Act Rules13a-15
() and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedorecaused such disclosure controls and procedortge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhubsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financegarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure conaintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cougyeldis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitiiat occurred during the registrant’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s intexl control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anaave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@gniifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ JAMES D. HOGAN
James D. Hogan
Chief Financial Officel
Date: March 18, 201




Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban&@xley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report of Customessdrp, Inc. (the “Corporation”) on Form K0for the period ending December 31, 2012
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), I, Jay S. SidBbairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C.51,3s adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanest@xit of 2002, that to the best of my

knowledge and belief:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faphlgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

Date: March 18, 2013

/sl Jay S. Sidhu
Jay S. Sidhu, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarban&@xley Act of 2002

In connection with the annual report of Customessdrp, Inc. (the “Corporation”) on Form K0for the period ending December 31, 2012
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), I, James D. Hod@zmef Financial Officer and Treasurer
of the Corporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.SEC350, as adopted pursuant to 8906 of the Sarlaries-Act of 2002, that to the best of my

knowledge and belief:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeotsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExgfeAct of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition and results of operations of the
Corporation.

Date: March 18, 2013

/sl James D. Hoge
James D. Hogan, Chief Financial Officer




